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The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities
and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED APRIL 6, 2011

PRELIMINARY PROSPECTUS

$175,000,000

GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
17,500,000 Units

 
Global Eagle Acquisition Corp. is a newly organized blank check company formed for the purpose of effecting a merger,

capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more
businesses, which we refer to throughout this prospectus as our initial business combination. We have not identified any
acquisition target and we have not, nor has anyone on our behalf, initiated any substantive discussions, directly or indirectly, with
respect to identifying any acquisition target.

We will provide our stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their shares of our common stock upon the completion of our
initial business combination at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account
described herein, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable, divided by the number of then outstanding
shares of common stock that were sold as part of the units in this offering, which we refer to as our public shares, subject to the
limitations described herein. If we do not complete a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or
24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business
combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, we will redeem 100% of the public shares at a per-share price, payable
in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes
payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest that may be released to us to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of
then outstanding public shares, subject to applicable law and as further described herein.

This is an initial public offering of our securities. We are offering 17,500,000 units. Each unit has an offering price of $10.00
and consists of one share of our common stock and one warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of our
common stock at a price of $11.50, subject to adjustment as described in this prospectus. The warrants will become exercisable on
the later of 30 days after the completion of our initial business combination or 12 months from the closing of this offering, and will
expire five years after the completion of our initial business combination or earlier upon redemption or liquidation, as described in
this prospectus. We have also granted the underwriters a 45-day option to purchase up to an additional 2,625,000 units to cover
over-allotments, if any.

Currently, there is no public market for our units, common stock or warrants. We anticipate that our units will be quoted on the
Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board quotation system, or the OTCBB, under the symbol “    ” on or promptly after the date of this
prospectus. The common stock and warrants comprising the units will begin separate trading on the 52nd day following the date of
this prospectus unless Citigroup Global Markets Inc. informs us of its decision to allow earlier separate trading, subject to our
filing a Current Report on Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, containing an audited balance sheet
reflecting our receipt of the gross proceeds of this offering and issuing a press release announcing when such separate trading will
begin. Once the securities comprising the units begin separate trading, the common stock and warrants will be traded on the
OTCBB under the symbols “    ” and “    ,” respectively.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 21 for a discussion of
information that should be considered in connection with an investment in our securities.

Neither the SEC nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this
prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.   

 Per Unit  Total
Public offering price  $ 10.00  $175,000,000 
Underwriting discounts and commissions(1)  $ 0.55  $ 9,625,000 
Proceeds, before expenses, to us  $ 9.45  $165,375,000 

(1) Includes $0.35 per unit, or approximately $6,125,000 in the aggregate payable to the underwriters for deferred underwriting commissions to
be placed in the trust account described herein. If the aggregate gross proceeds to us from this offering (including pursuant to the exercise of
the underwriters’ overallotment option) exceed $200,000,000, the aggregate underwriting commissions will be increased to $0.60 per unit,
or $12,075,000 in the aggregate assuming the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, with $0.40 per unit, or $8,050,000 in
the aggregate being deferred and placed into the trust account. The deferred commissions will be released to the underwriters only on
completion of an initial business combination, as described in this prospectus. See also “Underwriting” beginning on page 120.

The underwriters are offering the units on a firm commitment basis. The underwriters expect to deliver the units to purchasers
on or about     , 2011.



 
Sole Book-Running Manager

     Citi Deutsche Bank Securities

 
        , 2011
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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not, and the underwriters have not,
authorized anyone to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent
information, you should not rely on it. We are not, and the underwriters are not, making an offer to sell securities in any
jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should not assume that the information contained in this
prospectus is accurate as of any date other than the date on the front of this prospectus.
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SUMMARY

This summary only highlights the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. As this is a summary, it
does not contain all of the information that you should consider in making an investment decision. You should read this entire
prospectus carefully, including the information under “Risk Factors” and our financial statements and the related notes included
elsewhere in this prospectus, before investing.

Unless otherwise stated in this prospectus, references to:

• “we,” “us,” “company” or “our company” refer to Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.;

• “public shares” refer to shares of our common stock sold as part of the units in this offering (whether they are purchased in
this offering or thereafter in the open market);

• “public stockholders” refer to the holders of our public shares, including our initial stockholders and management team to
the extent our initial stockholders and/or members of our management team purchase public shares, provided that each
initial stockholder’s and member of management’s status as a “public stockholder” shall only exist with respect to such
public shares;

• our “management” or our “management team” refer to our officers and directors;

• our “sponsor” refer to Global Eagle Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company;

• our “founder shares” refer to shares of our common stock initially purchased by our sponsor in a private placement prior
to this offering, and all information concerning the number of founder shares or information derived from the number of
founder shares gives effect to a dividend of 302,979 shares of common stock issued to our sponsor subsequent to the initial
purchase of common stock by our sponsor; and

• our “initial stockholders” refer to holders of our founder shares prior to this offering.

Unless we tell you otherwise, the information in this prospectus assumes that the underwriters will not exercise their over-
allotment option.

General
We are a newly organized blank check company formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset

acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses, which we refer to
throughout this prospectus as our initial business combination. We have not identified any acquisition target and we have not, nor
has anyone on our behalf, initiated any substantive discussions, directly or indirectly, with respect to identifying any acquisition
target.

We will seek to capitalize on the substantial deal sourcing, investing and operating expertise of our management team to
indentify, acquire and operate media or entertainment businesses, including providers of content, with high growth potential in the
United States or internationally, although we may pursue acquisition opportunities in other sectors. Our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation prohibits us from effectuating a business combination with another blank check company or similar
company with nominal operations.

Our Management Team
Our chairman and chief executive officer, Harry E. Sloan, our president, Jeff Sagansky, and other members of our management

team have extensive operating and deal-making experience with prominent global media companies.

Mr. Sloan was appointed chairman and chief executive officer of Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc., or MGM, by a
consortium comprised of private equity investors, Comcast Corporation and Sony Corporation of America, one year after they
agreed to acquire MGM through a leveraged buyout in September 2004. He served as chairman and chief executive officer from
October 2005 to August 2009, and thereafter continued as non-executive chairman until January 2011. During his tenure, Mr.
Sloan revived key MGM movie franchises, including James Bond, Rocky and The Pink Panther, restarted and rebuilt MGM’s
theatrical and television distribution and marketing units and launched numerous MGM television channels in the United States
and
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internationally. He currently is an outside consultant to MGM pursuant to a consulting agreement which expires in October 2011.
Prior to MGM, Mr. Sloan founded and operated SBS Broadcasting, S.A., or SBS, serving as chairman and chief executive officer
from 1990 until August 2001 and then executive chairman until October 2005. Beginning with a personal investment of
approximately $5,000,000, Mr. Sloan transformed SBS, through a series of acquisitions and organic growth, into a leading pan-
European broadcaster, with, as of 2005, 16 television stations, 21 premium pay channels and 11 radio networks, reaching 100
million people. Mr. Sloan oversaw the initial public offering of SBS in 1993 and its eventual sale to private investors in 2005 for
$2.5 billion. Prior to founding SBS, Mr. Sloan served as co-chairman of New World Entertainment Ltd., or New World, an
independent motion picture and television production company. Mr. Sloan led a group that originally purchased New World in
1983 for $2,000,000. Mr. Sloan extended the company’s business into television production, ultimately growing New World into
one of the largest producers of U.S. primetime television. Mr. Sloan led a number of transactions while at New World, including
New World’s initial public offering in 1985, its acquisition of Marvel Entertainment Group, Inc., in 1986, and New World’s sale to
private investors in 1989 for $260,000,000.

Jeff Sagansky brings 30 years of senior-level media and entertainment industry management experience. Mr. Sagansky
currently serves as co-founder and chairman of Winchester Capital Management LLC, a private motion picture and television
finance company. Mr. Sagansky was formerly chief executive officer and then vice chairman of Paxson Communications
Corporation, or Pax, from 1998 to 2003, where he launched the PAX TV program network in 1998. Under his leadership, PAX TV
became a highly rated family-friendly television network with distribution growing from 60% of U.S. television households to
almost 90% in only four years. In addition, Mr. Sagansky drove substantial improvement in the network’s financial performance
with compounded annual revenue growth of 24% and compounded annual gross income growth of 30% from 1998 to 2002. Prior
to joining Pax, Mr. Sagansky was co-president of Sony Pictures Entertainment, or SPE, from 1996 to 1998 where he was
responsible for SPE’s strategic planning and worldwide television operations. While at SPE, he spearheaded SPE’s acquisition, in
partnership with Liberty Media Corporation and other investors, of Telemundo Network Group, LLC, or Telemundo. The
transaction generated significant returns for SPE as Telemundo was sold to the National Broadcasting Company, Inc., for over six
times its original investment less than three years later. Previously, as executive vice president of Sony Corporation of America, or
SCA, Mr. Sagansky oversaw the 1997 merger of SCA’s Loews Theaters unit with the Cineplex Odeon Corporation to create one
of the world’s largest movie theater companies, and the highly successful U.S. launch of the Sony Playstation video game console.
Prior to joining SCA, Mr. Sagansky was president of CBS Entertainment from 1990 to 1994, where he engineered CBS’s ratings
rise from third to first place in eighteen months. Mr. Sagansky previously served as president of production and then president of
TriStar Pictures, where he developed and oversaw production of a wide variety of successful films.

Initial Business Combination
We anticipate structuring a business combination to acquire 100% of the equity interests or assets of the target business or

businesses. We may, however, structure a business combination to acquire less than 100% of such interests or assets of the target
business, but we will only complete such business combination if we acquire 50% or more of the outstanding voting securities of
the target or are otherwise not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended, or the Investment Company Act. Even if we own 50% or more of the voting securities of the target, our stockholders
prior to the business combination may collectively own a minority interest in the post business combination company, depending
on valuations ascribed to the target and us in the business combination transaction.

Our management team will focus on increasing stockholder value in our initial business combination. Consistent with this
strategy, we have identified the following general guidelines that we believe are important in evaluating prospective target
businesses. We will use these guidelines in evaluating acquisition opportunities, but we may decide to enter into a business
combination with a target business that does not meet these guidelines.

• Media and Entertainment Industry Targets.  We will seek to acquire one or more businesses involved in the media or
entertainment industries, including providers of content. We believe our management’s significant operating and deal-
making experience and relationships with companies in this space will give us a number of competitive advantages and will
present us with a substantial
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number of potential business targets. The factors we will consider include growth prospects, competitive dynamics,
opportunities for consolidation, need for capital investment and barriers to entry. We will analyze the strengths and
weaknesses of target businesses relative to their competitors. We will seek to acquire one or more businesses that
demonstrate advantages when compared to their competitors, which may help to protect their market position and
profitability.

• High-Growth Markets.  We will seek out opportunities in faster-growing segments of developed markets and emerging
international markets. Our management has extensive experience operating media businesses and leading transactions in
international markets. We will focus on assets that currently are undervalued or inefficiently managed, which we believe
may be more likely to exist internationally, where our management is well-positioned to unlock their value.

• Business with Revenue and Earnings Growth Potential.  We will seek to acquire one or more businesses that have
multiple, diverse potential drivers of revenue and earnings growth, including but not limited to a combination of
development, production, digital and distribution capabilities.

• Companies with Potential for Strong Free Cash Flow Generation.  We will seek to acquire one or more businesses that
have the potential to generate strong and stable free cash flow.

These general guidelines are not intended to be exhaustive. Any evaluation relating to the merits of a particular initial business
combination may be based, to the extent relevant, on these general guidelines as well as other considerations, factors and criteria
that our management may deem relevant. In addition, although we intend to focus on identifying business combination candidates
in the media or entertainment sectors and we will not initially actively seek to identify business combination candidates in other
sectors, we will consider a business combination outside of the media or entertainment industries if a business combination
candidate is presented to us and we determine that such candidate offers an attractive investment opportunity for our company or
we are unable to identify a suitable candidate in the media or entertainment industries after having expended a reasonable amount
of time and effort in an attempt to do so.

In evaluating a prospective target business, we expect to conduct an extensive due diligence review which will encompass,
among other things, meetings with incumbent management and employees, document reviews, interviews of customers and
suppliers, inspections of facilities, as well as review of financial and other information which will be made available to us.

Sourcing of Potential Acquisition Targets
Over the course of their careers, the members of our management team have developed a broad network of contacts and

corporate relationships around the world. This network has been developed and strengthened through our management team
sourcing, acquiring and financing businesses, the reputation of our management team for integrity and fair dealing with sellers,
financing sources and target management teams and the experience of our management team in executing transactions under
varying economic and financial market conditions.

In addition, members of our management team have developed contacts from serving on the boards of directors of prominent
media companies. For example, Mr. Sloan was appointed to serve on the board of Promotora de Informaciones, S.A., or PRISA,
Spain’s largest media conglomerate, after its 2010 business combination with Liberty Acquisition Corp. (which was a blank check
company), and he has been a director of ZeniMax Media Inc., an independent producer of interactive gaming and web content,
since 1999. Previously, Mr. Sloan held directorships at Lions Gate Entertainment Corp., an independent motion picture and
television production company and ProSieben Sat.1 Media AG, a European media conglomerate which acquired SBS in 2007. Mr.
Sagansky serves on the board of Scripps Networks Interactive, Inc., a publicly traded lifestyle media company, and was brought in
to serve as non-executive chairman of the board at RHI Entertainment, Inc., a producer of original made-for-television movies and
miniseries, by its largest shareholder. He previously served on the boards of American Media Inc., an owner and operator of
celebrity and health & fitness media publications, and Lions Gate Entertainment. In his capacity as an active private investor, Mr.
Sagansky maintains board positions on a number of private media and entertainment companies.

This network has provided our management team with a flow of referrals that has resulted in numerous transactions which were
proprietary or where a limited group of investors were invited to participate in the
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sale process. We believe that the network of contacts and relationships of our management team will provide us with an important
source of investment opportunities. In addition, we anticipate that target business candidates will be brought to our attention from
various unaffiliated sources, including investment market participants, private equity funds and large business enterprises seeking
to divest non-core assets or divisions.

We are not prohibited from pursuing an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated with our
sponsor, officers or directors or making the acquisition through a joint venture or other form of shared ownership with our sponsor,
officers or directors. In the event we seek to complete an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated
with our sponsor, officers or directors, we, or a committee of independent directors, would obtain an opinion from an independent
investment banking firm which is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, or FINRA, that such an initial
business combination is fair to our company from a financial point of view. We are not required to obtain such an opinion in any
other context.

In order to minimize potential conflicts of interest that may arise from multiple corporate affiliations, each of our officers has
agreed, pursuant to a written agreement with us, that until the earliest of our initial business combination, our redemption of 100%
of our public shares if we do not complete our initial business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or
24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business
combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, or such time as he ceases to be an officer, to present to us for our
consideration, prior to presentation to any other entity, any business combination opportunity with a target business having an
enterprise value of $100,000,000 or more, subject to any pre-existing fiduciary or contractual obligations he might have currently
or in the future in respect of the companies to which he currently has fiduciary duties or contractual obligations. As more fully
discussed in “Management — Conflicts of Interest,” if any of our officers becomes aware of a business combination opportunity
that falls within the line of business of any entity to which he has pre-existing fiduciary or contractual obligations, he may be
required to present such business combination opportunity to such entity prior to presenting such business combination opportunity
to us. All of our officers currently have certain relevant fiduciary duties or contractual obligations that may take priority over their
duties to us. In addition, our officers have agreed not to participate in the formation of, or become an officer or director of, any
blank check company until we have entered into a definitive agreement regarding our initial business combination or we have
failed to complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame.

Executive Offices
Our executive offices are located at 10900 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA, 90024, and our telephone number is

(310) 209-7280.
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The Offering

In making your decision on whether to invest in our securities, you should take into account not only the backgrounds of the
members of our management team, but also the special risks we face as a blank check company and the fact that this offering is not
being conducted in compliance with Rule 419 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act.
You will not be entitled to protections normally afforded to investors in Rule 419 blank check offerings. You should carefully
consider these and the other risks set forth in the section below entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 21 of this prospectus.

Securities offered     17,500,000 units, at $10.00 per unit, each unit consisting of:

    •  one share of common stock; and

    •  one warrant.

OTCBB symbols     Units: “      ”

    Common Stock: “      ”

    Warrants: “      ”

Trading commencement and separation of
common stock and warrants

  
  The units will begin trading on or promptly after the date of this prospectus.

The common stock and warrants comprising the units will begin separate
trading on the 52nd day following the date of this prospectus unless Citigroup
Global Markets Inc. informs us of its decision to allow earlier separate trading,
subject to our having filed the Current Report on Form 8-K described below
and having issued a press release announcing when such separate trading will
begin.

Separate trading of the common stock and
warrants is prohibited until we have
filed a Current Report on Form 8-K

  

  In no event will the common stock and warrants be traded separately until we
have filed a Current Report on Form 8-K with the SEC containing an audited
balance sheet reflecting our receipt of the gross proceeds at the closing of this
offering. We will file the Current Report on Form 8-K promptly after the
closing of this offering, which is anticipated to take place three business days
from the date of this prospectus. If the underwriters’ over-allotment option is
exercised following the initial filing of such Current Report on Form 8-K, a
second or amended Current Report on Form 8-K will be filed to provide
updated financial information to reflect the exercise of the underwriters’ over-
allotment option.

Units:      

Number outstanding before this
offering

  
  0

Number outstanding after this
offering

  
  17,500,000

Common stock:      

Number outstanding before this
offering

  
  4,417,683(1)(2)

Number outstanding after this
offering

  
  21,341,463(2)(3)

(1) This number includes an aggregate of 576,220 founder shares held by our initial stockholders that are subject to forfeiture to the
extent that the over-allotment option is not exercised by the underwriters.
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(2) This number includes a portion of the founder shares, which we refer to as the founder earnout shares, in an amount equal to
4.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option that
are subject to forfeiture by our initial stockholders on the third anniversary of the closing of our initial business combination
unless following our initial business combination (i) the last sales price of our stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as
adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-
trading day period or (ii) we complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of our
stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration in cash, securities or other property
which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the
like).

(3) Assumes no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option and the resulting forfeiture of 576,220 founder shares.

Warrants:

Number of sponsor warrants to be sold in a
private placement simultaneously with
this offering

  

  7,000,000

Number of warrants to be outstanding
after this offering and the private
placement

  

  24,500,000

Exercisability     Each warrant offered in this offering is exercisable to purchase one share of our
common stock.

Exercise price     $11.50 per share, subject to adjustments as described herein.

Exercise period     The warrants will become exercisable on the later of:

    •  30 days after the completion of our initial business combination, or

    •  12 months from the closing of this offering;

    provided in each case that we have an effective registration statement under the
Securities Act covering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
the warrants and a current prospectus relating to them is available (or we are
required to permit holders to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis under
the circumstances specified in the warrant agreement) and such shares are
registered, qualified or exempt from registration under the securities, or blue
sky, laws of the state of residence of the holder.

    We are not registering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
the warrants at this time. However, we have agreed to use our best efforts to
file and have an effective registration statement covering the shares of common
stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, to maintain a current prospectus
relating to those shares of common stock until the warrants expire or are
redeemed and to register the shares of common stock that are issuable upon
exercise of the warrants under certain state blue sky laws, to the extent an
exemption is not available, as specified in the warrant agreement.

    The warrants will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York time, five years after the
completion of our initial business
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  combination or earlier upon redemption or liquidation. On the exercise of any
warrant, the warrant exercise price will be paid directly to us and not placed in
the trust account.

Redemption of warrants     Once the warrants become exercisable, we may redeem the outstanding
warrants (except as described below with respect to the sponsor warrants):

    •  in whole and not in part;

    •  at a price of $0.01 per warrant;

    •  upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption,
which we refer to as the 30-day redemption period; and

    •  if, and only if, the last sale price of our common stock equals or
exceeds $17.50 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30 trading
day period ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which
we send the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

    We will not redeem the warrants unless an effective registration statement
under the Securities Act covering the shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of the warrants is effective and a current prospectus relating to those
shares of common stock is available throughout the 30-day redemption period,
except if the warrants may be exercised on a cashless basis and such cashless
exercise is exempt from registration under the Securities Act. If and when the
warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise our redemption right
even if we are unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale
under all applicable state securities laws.

    If we call the warrants for redemption as described above, our management
will have the option to require all holders that wish to exercise warrants to do
so on a cashless basis. In such event, each holder would pay the exercise price
by surrendering the warrants for that number of shares of common stock equal
to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of
common stock underlying the warrants, multiplied by the difference between
the exercise price of the warrants and the “fair market value” (defined below)
by (y) the fair market value. The “fair market value” shall mean the average
reported last sale price of the common stock for the 10 trading days ending on
the third trading day prior to the date on which we send the notice of
redemption to the warrant holders.

    None of the sponsor warrants will be redeemable by us so long as they are held
by our sponsor or its permitted transferees.
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Founder shares     In February 2011, our sponsor purchased an aggregate of 4,417,683 founder
shares for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, or approximately $0.01 per
share. Subsequently, in March 2011, our sponsor transferred an aggregate of
44,176 founder shares to Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, each of
whom has agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the closing of this
offering. The founder shares held by our initial stockholders include an
aggregate of 576,220 shares subject to forfeiture to the extent that the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is not exercised in full, so that our initial
stockholders will collectively own 18.0% of our issued and outstanding shares
after this offering (assuming they do not purchase any units in this offering and
they are not required to forfeit their founder earnout shares, as described in this
prospectus). In addition, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of our
issued and outstanding shares after this offering and the expiration of the
underwriters’ over-allotment option) will be subject to forfeiture by our initial
stockholders on the third anniversary of the closing of our initial business
combination unless following our initial business combination (i) the last sales
price of our stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock
splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any
20 trading days within any 30-trading day period or (ii) we complete a
liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in
all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common
stock for consideration in cash, securities or other property which equals or
exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends,
reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like).

    The founder shares are identical to the shares of common stock included in the
units being sold in this offering, except that:

    •  the founder shares are subject to certain transfer restrictions, as
described in more detail below, and

    •  our initial stockholders have agreed (i) to waive their redemption
rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in
connection with the completion of a business combination and (ii) to
waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares if
we fail to complete a business combination within the prescribed
time frame (although they will be entitled to redemption rights with
respect to any public shares they hold if we fail to complete a
business combination within the prescribed time frame).
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    If we submit our initial business combination to our public stockholders for a
vote, our initial stockholders have agreed to vote their founder shares in
accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the public stockholders and
to vote any public shares purchased during or after this offering in favor of our
initial business combination.

Sponsor warrants     Our sponsor has committed, pursuant to a written agreement, to purchase an
aggregate of 7,000,000 sponsor warrants, each exercisable to purchase one
share of our common stock at $11.50 per share, at a price of $0.75 per warrant
($5,250,000 in the aggregate) in a private placement that will occur
simultaneously with the closing of this offering. The purchase price of the
sponsor warrants will be added to the proceeds from this offering to be held in
the trust account. If we do not complete a business combination within the
prescribed time frame, the proceeds of the sale of the sponsor warrants will
used to fund the redemption of our public shares (subject to the requirements
of applicable law), and the sponsor warrants will expire worthless. The sponsor
warrants will be non-redeemable so long as they are held by our sponsor or its
permitted transferees (except as described below under “Principal
Stockholders — Transfers of Founder Shares and Sponsor Warrants”). If the
sponsor warrants are held by holders other than our sponsor or its permitted
transferees, the sponsor warrants will be redeemable by us and exercisable by
the holders on the same basis as the warrants included in the units being sold in
this offering.

Escrow of founder shares and sponsor
warrants

  
  On the date of this prospectus, the founder shares and sponsor warrants will be

placed into a segregated escrow account maintained by American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, LLC acting as escrow agent. While in escrow,
such securities will not be transferable, other than to permitted transferees as
described below under “Principal Stockholders — Transfers of Founder Shares
and Sponsor Warrants”.

    The founder shares will be released from escrow on the earlier of (x) one year
after the completion of our initial business combination or earlier if,
subsequent to our business combination, the last sales price of our common
stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock
dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading
days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our
initial business combination, or (y) the date on which we complete a
liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after our initial
business combination that results in all of our
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  stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for
cash, securities or other property.

    Notwithstanding the foregoing, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of
our issued and outstanding shares after this offering and the expiration of the
underwriters’ over-allotment option) will not be released from escrow unless
they no longer are subject to forfeiture, as described herein.

    The sponsor warrants will not be released from escrow until 30 days following
the completion of our initial business combination.

Proceeds to be held in trust account     $175,000,000, or approximately $10.00 per unit of the proceeds of this offering
and the proceeds of the private placement of the sponsor warrants
($200,725,000, or approximately $9.97 per unit, if the underwriters’ over-
allotment option is exercised in full) will be placed in a segregated trust account
at Citibank, N.A. with American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC acting
as trustee. These proceeds include approximately $6,125,000 (or approximately
$8,050,000 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) in
deferred underwriting commissions.

    If we increase the size of the offering, the per-share amount payable to our
public stockholders if we fail to complete our initial business combination
within the prescribed time frame (or if the public stockholders exercise their
redemption rights in connection with the completion of our initial business
combination) will be reduced because the portion of the trust account
attributable to the sales proceeds of the sponsor warrants will be allocated pro
rata among a greater number of public shares. Assuming a 15% increase in the
size of this offering, the per-share redemption or liquidation amount could
decrease by as much as approximately $0.03.

    We may increase the initial amount held in the trust account from
approximately $10.00 per unit prior to the effectiveness of the registration
statement of which this prospectus forms a part. In such case, the increase
would be funded by an increase in the amount of the deferral of the
underwriting commissions payable in connection with this offering, an increase
in the number of sponsor warrants to be purchased by our sponsor at a price of
$0.75 per warrant and/or a reduction from $1,000,000 of the amount initially
available to us for working capital that is not held in the trust account. Public
stockholders would own a smaller percentage of our outstanding common
stock on a fully diluted basis to the extent that our sponsor purchases additional
warrants. We do not intend to reduce the initial amount to be held in the trust
account.
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    Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, except for
a portion of the interest income that may be released to us to pay any income or
franchise taxes and to fund our working capital requirements, and any amounts
necessary to purchase up to 15% of our public shares if we seek stockholder
approval of our business combination, as discussed below, none of the funds
held in the trust account will be released from the trust account until the earlier
of (i) the completion of our initial business combination or (ii) the redemption
of 100% of our public shares if we do not complete a business combination
within the prescribed time frame (subject to the requirements of law). The
proceeds deposited in the trust account could become subject to the claims of
our creditors, if any, which could have priority over the claims of our public
stockholders.

Payment of expenses and funding sources     Unless and until we complete our initial business combination, no proceeds
held in the trust account, other than up to $1,750,000, subject to adjustment as
described below, of the interest earned on the trust account (net of franchise
and income taxes payable), and any amounts necessary to purchase up to 15%
of our public shares if we seek stockholder approval of our business
combination, will be available for our use, and we may pay our expenses only
from:

    •  such interest; and

    •  the net proceeds of this offering not held in the trust account, which
will be $1,000,000 in working capital after the payment of
approximately $750,000 in expenses relating to this offering.

    If the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option or the size of this
offering is increased, the maximum amount of interest income we may
withdraw from the trust account will proportionately increase. In addition, if
the size of this offering is decreased, the maximum amount of interest income
we may withdraw from the trust account will proportionately decrease.

Conditions to completing our initial
business combination

  
  There is no limitation on our ability to raise funds privately or through loans in

connection with our initial business combination. Because, unlike many blank
check companies, we do not have the limitation that a target business have a
minimum fair market enterprise value equal to a specified percentage of the net
assets held in the trust account at the time of our signing a definitive agreement
in connection with our initial business combination, our management will have
virtually unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting one or more
prospective target businesses. We will complete our initial business
combination only if we acquire 50% or
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  more of the outstanding voting securities of the target or are otherwise not
required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company
Act. Even if we own 50% or more of the voting securities of the target, our
stockholders prior to the business combination may collectively own a
minority interest in the post business combination company, depending on
valuations ascribed to the target and us in the business combination transaction.

Permitted purchases of public shares by us
prior to the completion of our initial
business combination using amounts
held in the trust account

  

  Unlike many blank check companies, if we seek stockholder approval of our
initial business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection
with our business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, prior to the
completion of a business combination, our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation will permit the release to us from the trust account amounts
necessary to purchase up to 15% of the shares sold in this offering (2,625,000
shares, or 3,018,750 shares if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is
exercised in full) at any time commencing after the filing of a preliminary
proxy statement for our initial business combination and ending on the date of
the stockholder meeting to approve the initial business combination. Purchases
will be made only in open market transactions at times when we are not in
possession of any material non-public information and may not be made during
a restricted period under Regulation M under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. It is intended that these purchases will
comply with Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act, which provides a safe
harbor for purchases made under certain conditions, including with respect to
the manner of sale (sales are required to be effected through one broker on a
single day, subject to certain exceptions), timing (purchases are subject to
certain restrictions at the beginning and end of the trading session), pricing (the
purchase price may not exceed the highest independent bid or the last
independent transaction price, whichever is higher) and volume of purchases
(the total volume of Rule 10b-18 purchases effected by us or any affiliated
purchasers effected on any single day generally must not exceed 25% of the
average daily trading volume of the shares). If the conditions of Rule 10b-18,
as in effect at the time we wish to make such purchases, are not satisfied, we
may still make such purchases provided such purchases do not violate the anti-
manipulation provisions of Section 9(a)(2) of the Exchange Act or Rule 10b-5
promulgated under the Exchange Act. Any purchases we make will be at prices
(inclusive of commissions) not to exceed the per-share amount then held in the
trust account (approximately
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  $10.00 per share or approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-
allotment option is exercised in full). Any difference between the prices we
pay and the per-share amount then held in the trust account will remain in the
trust account and will be available for distribution to our remaining public
stockholders upon any subsequent redemption of our public shares. We can
purchase any or all of the 2,625,000 shares (3,018,750 shares if the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) that we are entitled to
purchase. It will be entirely in our discretion as to how many shares are
purchased. Purchasing decisions will be made based on various factors,
including the then current market price of our common stock and the terms of
the proposed business combination. All shares purchased by us will be
immediately cancelled. Such open market purchases, if any, would be
conducted by us to minimize any disparity between the then current market
price of our common stock and the per-share amount held in the trust account.
A market price below the per-share trust amount could provide an incentive for
purchasers to buy our shares after the filing of our preliminary proxy statement
at a discount to the per share amount held in the trust account for the sole
purpose of voting against our initial business combination and exercising
redemption rights for the full per-share amount held in the trust account. Such
trading activity could enable such investors to block a business combination by
making it difficult for us to obtain the approval of such business combination
by the vote of a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock that are
voted.

Other permitted purchases of public shares
by us or our affiliates

  
  In addition to the permitted purchases of public shares by us prior to the

completion of the initial business combination using amounts held in the trust
account, as described above, if we seek stockholder approval of our initial
business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection with
our business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, we may enter into
privately negotiated transactions to purchase public shares from stockholders
following completion of the initial business combination with proceeds
released to us from the trust account immediately following completion of the
initial business combination. Our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their
affiliates may also purchase shares in privately negotiated transactions either
prior to or following the completion of our initial business combination.
Neither we nor our directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates will make any
such purchases when we or they are in possession of any material nonpublic
information not disclosed to the seller or during a restricted period under
Regulation M under the Exchange Act. Although neither we nor they currently
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  anticipate paying any premium purchase price for such public shares, in the
event we or they do, the payment of a premium may not be in the best interest
of those stockholders not receiving any such additional consideration. In
addition, the payment of a premium by us after the completion of our initial
business combination may not be in the best interest of the remaining
stockholders who do not redeem their shares, because such stockholders will
experience a reduction in book value per share compared to the value received
by stockholders that have their shares purchased by us at a premium.
Nevertheless, because any payment of a premium by us will be made only from
proceeds released to us from the trust account following completion of a
business combination, no such payments will reduce the per share amounts
available in the trust account for redemption in connection with the business
combination. Except for the limitations described above on use of trust
proceeds released to us prior to completing our initial business combination,
there is no limit on the amount of shares that could be acquired by us or our
affiliates, or the price we or they may pay, if we hold a stockholder vote.

Redemption rights for public stockholders
upon completion of our initial business
combination

  

  We will provide our stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their shares
of common stock upon the completion of our initial business combination at a
per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit
in the trust account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes
payable, divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, subject to
the limitations described herein. The amount in the trust account is initially
anticipated to be approximately $10.00 per public share (or approximately
$9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full), which is approximately equal to the per-unit offering price of $10.00
(approximately $9.97 less if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is
exercised in full). There will be no redemption rights upon the completion of
our initial business combination with respect to our warrants. Our initial
stockholders have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their
founder shares and any public shares they may hold in connection with the
completion of a business combination.

Manner of conducting redemptions     Unlike many blank check companies that hold stockholder votes and conduct
proxy solicitations in conjunction with their business combinations and related
redemptions of public shares for cash upon completion of such initial business
combinations even when a vote is not required by law, if a stockholder vote is
not required by law and we do not decide to hold a stockholder vote
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  for business or other legal reasons, we will, pursuant to our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation:

    •  conduct the redemptions pursuant to Rule 13e-4 and Regulation 14E
of the Exchange Act, which regulate issuer tender offers, and

    •  file tender offer documents with the SEC prior to completing our
initial business combination which contain substantially the same
financial and other information about the initial business
combination and the redemption rights as is required under
Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act, which regulates the solicitation
of proxies.

    In the event we conduct redemptions pursuant to the tender offer rules, our
offer to redeem will remain open for at least 20 business days, in accordance
with Rule 14e-1(a) under the Exchange Act, and we will not be permitted to
complete our initial business combination until the expiration of the tender
offer period. In addition, the tender offer will be conditioned on public
shareholders not tendering more than a specified number of public shares,
which number will be based on the requirement that we may not redeem public
shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less than
$5,000,001 (so that we are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules) or any
greater net tangible asset or cash requirement which may be contained in the
agreement relating to our initial business combination. If public stockholders
tender more shares than we have offered to purchase, we will withdraw the
tender offer and not complete the initial business combination.

    If, however, stockholder approval of the transaction is required by law, or we
decide to obtain stockholder approval for business or other legal reasons, we
will, pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation:

    •  conduct the redemptions in conjunction with a proxy solicitation
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act, which regulates the
solicitation of proxies, and not pursuant to the tender offer rules, and

    •  file proxy materials with the SEC.

    If we seek stockholder approval, we will complete our initial business
combination only if a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock
voted are voted in favor of the business combination. In such case, our initial
stockholders have agreed to vote their founder shares in accordance with the
majority of the votes cast by the public stockholders and to vote any public
shares purchased during or after the offering in favor of our initial business
combination. Each public stockholder may
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  elect to redeem their public shares irrespective of whether they vote for or
against the proposed transaction.

    Many blank check companies would not be able to complete a business
combination if the holders of the company’s public shares voted against a
proposed business combination and elected to redeem or convert more than a
specified percentage of the shares sold in such company’s initial public
offering, which percentage threshold has typically been between 19.99% and
39.99%. As a result, many blank check companies have been unable to
complete business combinations because the amount of shares voted by their
public stockholders electing conversion exceeded the maximum conversion
threshold pursuant to which such company could proceed with a business
combination. Since we have no specified maximum redemption threshold
contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our
structure is different in this respect from the structure that has been used by
many blank check companies. However, in no event will we redeem our public
shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less than
$5,000,001 (so that we are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules). In
such case, we would not proceed with the redemption of our public shares and
the related initial business combination, and instead may search for an alternate
initial business combination.

Limitation on redemption rights of
stockholders holding 10% or more of the
shares sold in this offering if we hold
stockholder vote

  

  Notwithstanding the foregoing redemption rights, if we seek stockholder
approval of our initial business combination and we do not conduct
redemptions in connection with our business combination pursuant to the
tender offer rules, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
provides that a public stockholder, together with any affiliate of such
stockholder or any other person with whom such stockholder is acting in
concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange Act), will
be restricted from redeeming its shares with respect to more than an aggregate
of 10% of the shares sold in this offering. We believe this restriction will
discourage stockholders from accumulating large blocks of shares, and
subsequent attempts by such holders to use their ability to redeem their shares
as a means to force us or our management to purchase their shares at a
significant premium to the then-current market price or on other undesirable
terms. Absent this provision, a public stockholder holding more than an
aggregate of 10% of the shares sold in this offering could threaten to exercise
its redemption rights if such holder’s shares are not purchased by us or our
management at a premium to the then-current market price or on other
undesirable terms. By limiting our stockholders’ ability to redeem no more
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  than 10% of the shares sold in this offering, we believe we will limit the ability
of a small group of stockholders to unreasonably attempt to block our ability to
complete a business combination, particularly in connection with a business
combination with a target that requires as a closing condition that we have a
minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash. However, we would not be
restricting our stockholders’ ability to vote all of their shares for or against a
business combination.

Release of funds in trust account on closing
of our initial business combination

  
  On the closing of our initial business combination, all amounts held in the trust

account will be released to us. We will use these funds to pay amounts due to
any public stockholders who exercise their redemption rights as described
above under “Redemption rights for public stockholders upon completion of
our initial business combination” and to pay the underwriters their deferred
underwriting commissions. Funds released from the trust account to us can be
used to pay all or a portion of the purchase price of the business or businesses
we acquire in our initial business combination. If our initial business
combination is paid for using stock or debt securities, or not all of the funds
released from the trust account are used for payment of the purchase price in
connection with our business combination, we may apply the cash released to
us from the trust account that is not applied to the purchase price for general
corporate purposes, including for maintenance or expansion of operations of
acquired businesses, the payment of principal or interest due on indebtedness
incurred in completing the initial business combination, to fund the purchase of
other companies or for working capital.

Redemption of public shares and
distribution and liquidation if no initial
business combination

  

  Our sponsor, officers and directors have agreed that we will have only 21
months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this
offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective
initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, to
complete our initial business combination. If we do not complete a business
combination within such timeframe, we will (i) cease all operations except for
the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but not more
than ten business days thereafter, redeem 100% of the public shares, at a per-
share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in
the trust account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes
payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest that may be released to us to
pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public
shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public stockholders’
rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further
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  liquidation distributions, if any), subject to applicable law, and subject to the
requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the trust
account which is received after such redemption shall be distributed to the
former public stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible
following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining
stockholders and our board of directors, dissolve and liquidate, subject in each
case to our obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors
and the requirements of other applicable law. There will be no redemption
rights or liquidating distributions with respect to our warrants, which will
expire worthless if we do not complete a business combination within the
prescribed time frame.

    Our initial stockholders have waived their redemption rights with respect to
their founder shares if we do not complete an initial business combination
within the prescribed time frame. However, if our initial stockholders, or any
of our officers, directors or affiliates, acquire public shares in or after this
offering, they will be entitled to redemption rights with respect to such public
shares if we do not complete a business combination within the required time
period.

    The underwriters have agreed to waive their rights to their deferred
underwriting commission held in the trust account in the event we do not
complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame and, in such
event, such amounts will be included with the funds held in the trust account
that will be available to fund the redemption of our public shares.

Limited payments to insiders     There will be no finder’s fees, reimbursements or cash payments made to our
sponsor, officers, directors, or our or their affiliates, for services rendered to us
prior to or in connection with the completion of our initial business
combination, other than the following payments, none of which will be made
from the proceeds of this offering held in the trust account prior to the
completion of our initial business combination (except to the extent paid out of
up to $1,750,000 subject to adjustment as described herein of interest earned on
the trust account that may be released to us to fund working capital
requirements):

    •  Repayment of loans of up to an aggregate of $200,000 made to us by
our sponsor to cover offering-related and organizational expenses;

    •  A payment of an aggregate of $10,000 per month to Roscomare Ltd.,
an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, our chairman and chief
executive officer, for office space, secretarial and administrative
services;

    •  Consulting fees payable to our chief financial officer, James A. Graf,
or an entity owned or
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  controlled by Mr. Graf, of $15,000 per month for services prior to
the closing of our initial business combination;

    •  Reimbursement for any out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying,
investigating and completing an initial business combination; and

    •  Repayment of loans which may be made by our sponsor or an
affiliate of our sponsor or certain of our officers and directors to
finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial
business combination, the terms of which have not been determined
nor have any written agreements been executed with respect thereto.

    Our independent directors will review on a quarterly basis all payments that
were made to our sponsor, officers, directors or our or their affiliates.

Risks

We are a newly formed company that has conducted no operations and has generated no revenues. Until we complete our
initial business combination, we will have no operations and will generate no operating revenues. In making your decision
whether to invest in our securities, you should take into account not only the background of our management team, but also the
special risks we face as a blank check company. This offering is not being conducted in compliance with Rule 419 promulgated
under the Securities Act and has certain terms and conditions that deviate from many blank check offerings. Accordingly, you will
not be entitled to protections normally afforded to investors in Rule 419 blank check offerings or to investors in many other blank
check companies. For additional information concerning how Rule 419 blank check offerings differ from this offering, please see
“Proposed Business — Comparison of This Offering to Those of Blank Check Companies Subject to Rule 419.” For additional
information concerning how many blank check offerings differ from this offering, please see “Proposed Business — Comparison
of This Offering to Those of Many Blank Check Companies Not Subject to Rule 419.” You should carefully consider these and
the other risks set forth in the section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 21 of this prospectus.
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Summary Financial Data

The following table summarizes the relevant financial data for our business and should be read with our financial statements,
which are included in this prospectus. We have not had any significant operations to date, so only balance sheet data is presented.  

 February 4, 2011
   Actual  As Adjusted
Balance Sheet Data:           
Working capital (deficiency)  $ (5,000)  $169,890,000 
Total assets  $70,000  $176,015,000 
Total liabilities  $55,000  $ 6,125,000 
Value of common stock that may be redeemed in connection with our initial business

combination (approximately $10.00 per share)
 $ —  $164,889,990 

Stockholder’s equity(1)  $15,000  $ 5,000,010 

(1) Excludes shares subject to redemption in connection with our initial business combination.

The “as adjusted” information gives effect to the sale of the units in this offering, the sale of the sponsor warrants and the
payment of the estimated expenses of this offering. The “as adjusted” total assets amount includes the $175,000,000 held in the
trust account for the benefit of our public stockholders, which amount, less deferred underwriting commissions, will be available to
us only upon the completion of a business combination within the prescribed time frame. The “as adjusted” working capital and
“as adjusted” total assets include approximately $6,125,000 being held in the trust account (approximately $8,050,000 if the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) representing deferred underwriting commissions.

If no business combination is completed within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of
this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the
21-month period ends, the proceeds held in the trust account, including the deferred underwriting commissions and all interest
thereon, net of franchise and income taxes payable, up to $100,000 of such net interest that may be released to us to pay dissolution
expenses, any interest income released to us to fund our working capital requirements and any amounts released to purchase up to
15% of our public shares if we seek stockholder approval of our business combination, as described in this prospectus, will be used
to fund the redemption of our public shares. Our initial stockholders have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to
their founder shares if we fail to complete a business combination within such 21- or 24-month time period.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in our securities involves a high degree of risk. You should consider carefully all of the risks described below,
together with the other information contained in this prospectus, before making a decision to invest in our units. If any of the
following events occur, our business, financial condition and operating results may be materially adversely affected. In that event,
the trading price of our securities could decline, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

We are a newly formed development stage company with no operating history and no revenues, and you have no basis on
which to evaluate our ability to achieve our business objective.

We are a recently formed development stage company with no operating results, and we will not commence operations until
obtaining funding through this offering. Because we lack an operating history, you have no basis upon which to evaluate our ability
to achieve our business objective of completing our initial business combination with one or more target businesses. We have no
plans, arrangements or understandings with any prospective target business concerning a business combination and may be unable
to complete a business combination. If we fail to complete a business combination, we will never generate any operating revenues.

Our public stockholders may not be afforded an opportunity to vote on our proposed business combination, unless such vote is
required by law, which means we may complete our initial business combination even though a majority of our public
stockholders do not support such a combination.

We may not hold a stockholder vote before we complete our initial business combination unless the business combination
would require stockholder approval under applicable state law or if we decide to hold a stockholder vote for business or other legal
reasons. Accordingly, we may complete our initial business combination even if holders of a majority of our public shares do not
approve of the business combination we complete.

Your only opportunity to affect the investment decision regarding a potential business combination will be limited to the
exercise of your right to redeem your shares from us for cash, unless we seek stockholder approval of the business combination.

At the time of your investment in us, you will not be provided with an opportunity to evaluate the specific merits or risks of
one or more target businesses. Since our board of directors may complete a business combination without seeking stockholder
approval, public stockholders may not have the right or opportunity to vote on the business combination, unless we seek such
stockholder vote. Accordingly, your only opportunity to affect the investment decision regarding a potential business combination
may be limited to exercising your redemption rights within the period of time (which will be at least 20 business days) set forth in
our tender offer documents mailed to our public stockholders in which we describe our business combination.

The ability of our public stockholders to redeem their shares for cash may make our financial condition unattractive to
potential business combination targets, which may make it difficult for us to enter into a business combination with a target.

We may enter into a business combination transaction agreement with a prospective target that requires as a closing condition
that we have a minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash. If too many public stockholders exercise their redemption rights in
connection with the business combination, we may not be able to meet such closing condition, and as a result, would not proceed
with the redemption and the related business combination. Furthermore, we may not redeem our public shares in an amount that
would cause our net tangible assets to be less than $5,000,001 (so that we are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules).
Consequently, if accepting all properly submitted redemption requests would cause our net tangible assets to be less than
$5,000,001 or such greater amount necessary to satisfy a closing condition as described above, we would not proceed with the
redemption and the related business combination. Prospective targets will be aware of these risks and, thus, may be reluctant to
enter into a business combination transaction with us.
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The ability of a larger number of our stockholders to exercise redemption rights may not allow us to complete the most
desirable business combination or optimize our capital structure.

If our business combination requires us to use substantially all of our cash to pay the purchase price, because we will not know
how many stockholders may exercise such redemption rights, we may either need to reserve part of the trust account for possible
payment upon such redemption, or we may need to arrange third party financing to help fund our business combination in case a
larger percentage of stockholders exercise their redemption rights than we expect. If the business combination involves the
issuance of our stock as consideration, we may be required to issue a higher percentage of our stock to the target or its stockholders
to make up for the failure to satisfy a minimum cash requirement. Raising additional funds to cover any shortfall may involve
dilutive equity financing or incurring indebtedness at higher than desirable levels. This may limit our ability to effectuate the most
attractive business combination available to us.

The requirement that we complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame may give potential target businesses
leverage over us in negotiating a business combination and may decrease our ability to conduct due diligence on potential
business combination targets as we approach our dissolution deadline, which could undermine our ability to complete a
business combination on terms that would produce value for our stockholders.

Any potential target business with which we enter into negotiations concerning a business combination will be aware that we
must complete a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this
offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-
month period ends. Consequently, such target businesses may obtain leverage over us in negotiating a business combination,
knowing that if we do not complete a business combination with that particular target business, we may be unable to complete a
business combination with any target business. This risk will increase as we get closer to the prescribed time frame described
above. In addition, we may have limited time to conduct due diligence and may enter into a business combination on terms that we
would have rejected upon a more comprehensive investigation.

We may not be able to complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame, in which case we would cease all
operations except for the purpose of winding up and we would redeem our public shares and liquidate.

Our sponsor, officers and directors have agreed that we must complete our initial business combination within 21 months from
the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a
prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends. We may not be able to find a suitable target
business and complete a business combination within such time period. If we have not completed a business combination within
such time period, we will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but
not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem 100% of the public shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the
aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account, including interest, but net of franchise and income taxes payable (less up to
$100,000 of such net interest which may be released to us to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding
public shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to
receive further liquidation distributions, if any), subject to applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income
taxes that were paid from the trust account which is received after such redemption shall be distributed to the former public
stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining
stockholders and our board of directors, dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to our obligations under Delaware law to
provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law.

If we are unable to complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame, our public stockholders may
receive less than $10.00 per share on our redemption and our warrants will expire worthless.

If the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, the amount held in the trust account will initially be less than
$10.00 per share. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame and are forced to
redeem 100% of the public shares, the per-share redemption
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amount received by stockholders at such time may also be less than $10.00 because of the expenses of this offering, our general
and administrative expenses and the anticipated costs of seeking our initial business combination. For example, if the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, and we were unable to conclude our initial business combination and
expend all of the net proceeds of this offering, other than the proceeds deposited in the trust account, and without taking into
account interest, if any, earned on the trust account, net of franchise and income taxes payable and net of up to $1,750,000 (subject
to adjustment as described herein), in interest income on the trust account balance previously released to us to fund working capital
requirements, the per-share redemption amount received by stockholders would be $9.97, which is approximately $0.03 less than
the per-unit offering price of $10.00. Furthermore, whether or not the underwriters exercise the over-allotment option, our
outstanding warrants are not entitled to participate in any redemption and the warrants will therefore expire worthless if we are
unable to complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame.

In the event we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination, a public stockholder, together with any affiliate
of such stockholder or any other person with whom such stockholder is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under
Section 13 of the Exchange Act), will be restricted from redeeming its shares with respect to more than an aggregate of 10% of
the shares included in the units sold in this offering.

If we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection with our
business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that a public
stockholder, together with any affiliate of such stockholder or any other person with whom such stockholder is acting in concert or
as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange Act), will be restricted from redeeming its shares with respect to more
than an aggregate of 10% of the shares included in the units sold in this offering. Absent this provision, a public stockholder
holding more than an aggregate of 10% of the shares included in the units sold in this offering could threaten to exercise its
redemption rights if such holder’s shares are not purchased by us or our management at a premium to the then-current market price
or on other undesirable terms. This restriction may increase the likelihood that we will be able to complete our business
combination.

If a stockholder fails to receive notice of our offer to redeem our public shares in connection with our business combination, or
fails to comply with the procedures for tendering its shares, such shares may not be redeemed.

We will comply with the tender offer rules or proxy rules, as applicable, when conducting redemptions in connection with our
business combination. Despite our compliance with these rules, if a stockholder fails to receive our tender offer or proxy materials,
as applicable, such stockholder may not become aware of the opportunity to redeem its shares. In addition, the tender offer
documents or proxy materials, as applicable, that we will furnish to holders of our public shares in connection with our initial
business combination will describe the various procedures that must be complied with in order to validly tender public shares. In
the event that a stockholder fails to comply with these procedures, its shares may not be redeemed. See “Proposed Business—
Business Strategy—Tendering stock certificates in connection with a tender offer or redemption rights.”

Our purchase of common stock in the open market may support the market price of the common stock and/or warrants during
the buyback period and, accordingly, the termination of the support provided by such purchases may materially adversely affect
the market price of the units, common stock and/or warrants.

Unlike many blank check companies, if we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination, prior to the
completion of a business combination, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will permit the release to us from the
trust account amounts necessary to purchase up to 15% of the shares sold in this offering (2,625,000 shares, or 3,018,750 shares if
the over-allotment option is exercised in full) at any time commencing after the filing of a preliminary proxy statement for our
initial business combination and ending on the date of the stockholder meeting to approve the initial business combination.
Purchases will be made only in open market transactions at times when we are not in possession of material non-public information
and will not be made during a restricted period under Regulation M under the Exchange Act. The
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restricted period under Regulation M will depend on the nature of the business combination. If our business combination requires
us to issue securities to shareholders of a privately held target who will approve the business combination by entering into the
acquisition agreement, the restricted period would be deemed to commence on the earlier of one (or five) business day(s) prior to
(i) the time we furnish the definitive acquisition agreement for execution to the shareholders of the privately held target company
or (ii) the commencement of the valuation period, if any, which is the period when the market price of the securities we are issuing
in the business combination is a factor in determining the consideration to be paid in the business combination. The restricted
period would continue until the later of (i) execution of the definitive acquisition agreement or (ii) the end of the valuation period.
If our business combination requires us to issue securities to the shareholders of the target who will be solicited to approve the
business combination, the restricted period would be deemed to commence on the day of mailing the proxy solicitation materials
and continue through the end of the period in which the target shareholders can vote on the business combination, provided that if
the valuation period occurs outside of the proxy solicitation period, an additional restricted period would commence one (or five)
business days prior to the commencement of the valuation period and continue until the valuation period ends. In addition, if we
engage in an offering of securities at the time of the business combination, there may also be a restricted period under Regulation
M depending on the nature of the offering. In addition, it is intended that these purchases will comply with Rule 10b-18 under the
Exchange Act, which provides a safe harbor for purchases made under certain conditions, including with respect to the manner of
sale (sales are required to be effected through one broker on a single day, subject to certain exceptions), timing (purchases are
subject to certain restrictions at the beginning and end of the trading session), pricing (the purchase price may not exceed the
highest independent bid or the last independent transaction price, whichever is higher) and volume of purchases (the total volume
of Rule 10b-18 purchases effected by us or any affiliated purchasers effected on any single day generally must not exceed 25% of
the average daily trading volume of the shares). If the conditions of Rule 10b-18, as in effect at the time we wish to make such
purchases, are not satisfied, we may still make such purchases provided such purchases do not violate the anti-manipulation
provisions of Section 9(a)(2) of the Exchange Act or Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Exchange Act. Consequently, if the market
does not view our initial business combination positively, these purchases may have the effect of counteracting the market’s view
of our initial business combination, which would otherwise be reflected in a decline in the market price of our securities. If we do
not make these purchases because they would not be in compliance with Regulation M or Rule 10b-18 or otherwise, the absence of
the support of these purchases could materially affect the market price of our securities or our ability to complete a business
combination. In addition, even if these purchases are made, once the purchases are complete, the termination of the support
provided by these purchases may materially adversely affect the market price of our securities or our ability to complete a business
combination.

If we seek stockholder approval of our business combination, we, our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors and their affiliates
may elect to purchase shares from stockholders, in which case we or they may influence a vote in favor of a proposed business
combination that you do not support.

If we seek stockholder approval of our business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection with our
business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, we may enter into privately negotiated transactions to purchase public
shares following completion of the business combination from stockholders who would have otherwise elected to have their
shares redeemed in conjunction with a proxy solicitation pursuant to the proxy rules. Our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or
their affiliates may also purchase shares in privately negotiated transactions either prior to or following the completion of our
initial business combination. Neither we nor our directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates will make any such purchases when
we or they are in possession of any material non-public information not disclosed to the seller or during a restricted period under
Regulation M under the Exchange Act. Such a purchase would include a contractual acknowledgement that such stockholder,
although still the record holder of our shares is no longer the beneficial owner thereof and therefore agrees not to exercise its
redemption rights. In the event that we or our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates purchase shares in privately
negotiated transactions from public stockholders who have already elected to exercise their redemption rights, such selling
stockholders would be required to revoke their prior elections to redeem their shares. Although neither we nor they currently
anticipate paying any premium purchase price for such public shares, in the event we or they do, the payment of a premium may
not be in the best interest of those stockholders not receiving any such
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additional consideration. In addition, the payment of a premium by us after the completion of our initial business combination may
not be in the best interest of the remaining stockholders who do not redeem their shares. Such stockholders will experience a
reduction in book value per share compared to the value received by stockholders that have their shares purchased by us at a
premium. In addition, in the event we seek stockholder approval of our business combination, our amended and restated certificate
of incorporation will permit the release to us from the trust account amounts necessary to purchase up to 15% of the shares sold in
this offering (2,625,000 shares, or 3,018,750 shares if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full). These purchases
will be made only in open market transactions at times when we are not in possession of any material non-public information and
may not be made during a restricted period under Regulation M under the Exchange Act. It is intended that these purchases will
comply with Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act, which provides a safe harbor for purchases made under certain conditions,
including with respect to the manner of sale, timing, pricing and volume of purchases. If the conditions of Rule 10b-18, as in effect
at the time we wish to make such purchases, are not satisfied, we may still make such purchases provided such purchases do not
violate the anti-manipulation provisions of Section 9(a)(2) of the Exchange Act or Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Exchange
Act. Any purchases we make will be at prices (inclusive of commissions) not to exceed the per-share amount then held in the trust
account (approximately $10.00 per share or approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full). Any difference between the prices we pay and the per-share amount then held in the trust account will remain in the trust
account and will be available for distribution to our remaining public stockholders upon any subsequent redemption of our public
shares.

The purpose of such purchases would be to (i) increase the likelihood of obtaining stockholder approval of the business
combination or (ii), where the purchases are made by our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates, to satisfy a closing
condition in an agreement with a target that requires us to have a minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash at the closing of
the business combination, where it appears that such requirement would otherwise not be met. This may result in the completion
of a business combination that may not otherwise have been possible. In addition, purchases in the open market would provide
liquidity to those public stockholders whose shares are so purchased in advance of the closing of the business combination. If
these purchases are not made because they would not be in compliance with Regulation M or Rule 10b-18 or otherwise, the
absence of the support of these purchases could materially affect the market price of our securities or our ability to complete a
business combination.

Our purchases of common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions would reduce the funds available to
us after the business combination.

If we seek stockholder approval of our business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection with our
business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, we may privately negotiate transactions to purchase shares effective
immediately following the completion of the business combination from stockholders who would have otherwise elected to have
their shares redeemed in conjunction with a proxy solicitation pursuant to the proxy rules with proceeds released to us from the
trust account immediately following completion of the initial business combination. In addition, in the event we seek stockholder
approval of our business combination, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will permit the release to us from the
trust account amounts necessary to purchase to 15% of the shares sold in this offering (2,625,000 shares, or 3,018,750 shares if the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full). These purchases will be made only in open market transactions at times
when we are not in possession of any material non-public information and may not be made during a restricted period under
Regulation M under the Exchange Act. It is intended that these purchases will comply with Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act,
which provides a safe harbor for purchases made under certain conditions, including with respect to the manner of sale, timing,
pricing and volume of purchases. If the conditions of Rule 10b-18, as in effect at the time we wish to make such purchases, are not
satisfied, we may still make such purchases provided such purchases do not violate the anti-manipulation provisions of Section
9(a)(2) of the Exchange Act or Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Exchange Act. Any purchases we make will be at prices
(inclusive of commissions) not to exceed the per-share amount then held in the trust account (approximately $10.00 per share or
approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full). As a consequence of such purchases,
the funds in our trust account that are so used will not be available to us after the business combination.
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Purchases of common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions by us or our sponsor, directors, officers,
advisors or their affiliates may make it difficult for us to list our common stock on a national securities exchange.

If we or our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates purchase shares of our common stock in the open market or
in privately negotiated transactions, it would reduce the public “float” of our common stock and the number of beneficial holders
of our securities, which may make it difficult to obtain the quotation, listing or trading of our securities on a national securities
exchange if we determine to apply for such quotation or listing in connection with the business combination.

Our purchases of common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions may have negative economic effects
on our remaining public stockholders.

If we seek stockholder approval of our business combination and purchase shares in privately negotiated or market transactions
from stockholders who would have otherwise elected to have their shares redeemed in conjunction with a proxy solicitation
pursuant to the proxy rules for a per-share pro rata portion of the trust account, our remaining public stockholders will bear the
economic burden of the franchise and income taxes payable (as well as, in the case of purchases which occur prior to the
completion of our initial business combination, up to $100,000 of net interest that may be released to us from the trust account to
fund our dissolution expenses in the event we do not complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame).
In addition, our remaining public stockholders following the completion of a business combination will bear the economic burden
of the deferred underwriting commission as well as the amount of any premium we may pay to the per-share pro rata portion of the
trust account using funds released to us from the trust account following the completion of the business combination. This is
because the stockholders from whom we purchase shares in open market or in privately negotiated transactions may receive a per
share purchase price payable from the trust account that is not reduced by a pro rata share of the franchise and income taxes
payable on the interest earned by the trust account, the up to $100,000 of dissolution expenses or the deferred underwriting
commission and, in the case of purchases at a premium, have received such premium.

You will not have any rights or interests in funds from the trust account, except under certain limited circumstances. To
liquidate your investment, therefore, you may be forced to sell your public shares or warrants, potentially at a loss.

Our public stockholders will be entitled to receive funds from the trust account only upon the earlier to occur of: (i) our
completion of an initial business combination, and then only in connection with those shares of our common stock that such
stockholder properly elected to redeem, subject to the limitations described herein, or (ii) the redemption of 100% of our public
shares if we are unable to complete an initial business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, subject to
applicable law and as further described herein. In addition, if our plan to redeem our public shares if we are unable to complete an
initial business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a
letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month
period ends, is not completed for any reason, compliance with Delaware law may require that we submit a plan of dissolution to
our then-existing stockholders for approval prior to the distribution of the proceeds held in our trust account. In that case, public
stockholders may be forced to wait beyond such time period before they receive funds from our trust account. In no other
circumstances will a public stockholder have any right or interest of any kind in the trust account. Accordingly, to liquidate your
investment, you may be forced to sell your public shares or warrants, potentially at a loss.

We do not intend to establish an audit committee or a compensation committee until the completion of an initial business
combination. Until such time, no formal committee of independent directors will review matters related to our business, and
such lack of review could negatively impact our business.

We currently do not have any independent directors and our sole director is Mr. Sloan. Our independent directors will join
upon the closing of this offering. Upon completion of an initial business combination, our board of directors intends to establish an
audit committee and a compensation committee, and adopt charters for these committees. Prior to such time we do not intend to
establish either committee. Accordingly, there
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will not be a separate committee comprised of some members of our board of directors with specialized accounting and financial
knowledge to meet, analyze and discuss solely financial matters concerning prospective target businesses nor will there be a
separate formal committee to review the reasonableness of expense reimbursement requests by anyone other than our board of
directors, which includes persons who may seek such reimbursements. The absence of such committees to review the matters
discussed above until the completion of our initial business combination could negatively impact our operations and profitability.

Our securities will be initially quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board quotation system, which will limit the liquidity
and price of our securities more than if our securities were quoted or listed on a national securities exchange and result in our
stockholders not receiving the benefit of our being subject to the listing standards of a national securities exchange.

Our units, common stock and warrants will be traded in the over-the-counter market and will be initially quoted on the Over-
the-Counter Bulletin Board quotation system, or the OTCBB, which is a FINRA-sponsored and operated inter-dealer automated
quotation system for equity securities not listed on a national securities exchange. Quotation of our securities on the OTCBB will
limit the liquidity and price of our securities more than if our securities were quoted or listed on a national securities exchange.
Lack of liquidity will limit the price at which you may be able to sell our securities or your ability to sell our securities at all.

The OTCBB does not impose listing standards or requirements. If our securities were listed on a national securities exchange,
we would be subject to a number of listing standards, including requirements relating to our minimum unaffiliated market
capitalization and common stock trading price, the independence of a majority of our board of directors, requirements regarding
committees of our board and certain other stockholder approval and corporate governance requirements. In addition, we would be
subject to any special stock exchange requirements applicable to blank check companies, such as requirements that we obtain
stockholder approval of our initial business combination under certain circumstances even if not required by Delaware law, and
that we do not enter into an initial business combination that has an acquisition value less than 80% of the funds in the trust
account.

If there are no market makers for our securities on the OTCBB, our securities could be removed from quotation on the
OTCBB, and the liquidity of our securities would be further limited.

The OTCBB operates as a dealer system. As a result, all securities being quoted on the OTCBB must be sponsored by a
participating market maker. Although Citigroup Global Markets Inc. has advised us that it intends to act as a market maker of our
securities on the OTCBB until the earlier of (i) the completion of our initial business combination and (ii) the redemption of all of
our public shares if we fail to complete a business combination in the prescribed time frame, it could cease making a market at any
time. We expect that other market makers will make a market in our securities, but we cannot assure you that they will do so. A
complete lack of market making in our securities could result in the removal of our securities from the OTCBB, which, in turn,
could further diminish the liquidity of our securities.

You will not be entitled to protections normally afforded to investors of many other blank check companies.
Since the net proceeds of this offering are intended to be used to complete an initial business combination with a target

business that has not been identified, we may be deemed to be a “blank check” company under the United States securities laws.
However, because we will have net tangible assets in excess of $5,000,000 upon the successful completion of this offering and
will file a Current Report on Form 8-K, including an audited balance sheet demonstrating this fact, we are exempt from the “penny
stock” rules promulgated by the SEC to protect investors in blank check companies, such as Rule 419. Accordingly, investors will
not be afforded the benefits or protections of those rules. Among other things, this means our units will be immediately tradable
and we will have a longer period of time to complete a business combination than do companies subject to Rule 419. Moreover, if
this offering is subject to Rule 419, it would prohibit the release of any interest earned on funds held in the trust account to us and,
if we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination, the release of funds to us to purchase up to 15% of our public
shares pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, unless and until the funds in the trust account were
released to us in connection with our completion of an initial business combination. For a more
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detailed comparison of our offering to offerings that comply with Rule 419, please see “Proposed Business —  Comparison of This
Offering to Those of Blank Check Companies Subject to Rule 419.”

Because of our limited resources and the significant competition for business combination opportunities, it may be more
difficult for us to complete a business combination. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination, our public
stockholders may receive only approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’
over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.

We expect to encounter intense competition from other entities having a business objective similar to ours, including private
investors (which may be individuals or investment partnerships), other blank check companies and other entities, domestic and
international, competing for the types of businesses we intend to acquire. Many of these individuals and entities are well-
established and have extensive experience in identifying and effecting, directly or indirectly, acquisitions of companies operating
in or providing services to various industries. Many of these competitors possess greater technical, human and other resources, or
more local industry knowledge than we do and our financial resources will be relatively limited when contrasted with those of
many of these competitors. While we believe there are numerous target businesses we could potentially acquire with the net
proceeds of this offering, our ability to compete with respect to the acquisition of certain target businesses that are sizable will be
limited by our available financial resources. This inherent competitive limitation gives others an advantage in pursuing the
acquisition of certain target businesses. Furthermore, if we are obligated to pay cash for the shares of common stock redeemed
and, in the event we seek stockholder approval of our business combination, we make purchases of our common stock in the open
market in a manner intended to comply with Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act, which provides a safe harbor for purchases
made under certain conditions, including with respect to the manner of sale, timing, pricing and volume of purchases, using
available funds from the trust account, then the resources available to us for a business combination may be reduced. Any of these
obligations may place us at a competitive disadvantage in successfully negotiating a business combination. If we are unable to
complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may receive only approximately $10.00 per share (or
approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our
warrants will expire worthless.

If the net proceeds of this offering not being held in the trust account, together with the up to $1,750,000 (subject to adjustment
as described herein) of interest in the trust account (net of franchise and income taxes payable) which may be released to us for
working capital purposes, are insufficient to allow us to operate for at least the next 24 months, we may be unable to complete
our initial business combination.

The funds available to us outside of the trust account, plus the interest earned on the funds held in the trust account that may be
available to us, may not be sufficient to allow us to operate for at least the next 24 months, assuming that our initial business
combination is not completed during that time. We believe that, upon closing of this offering, the funds available to us outside of
the trust account, plus the interest earned on the funds held in the trust account that may be available to us, will be sufficient to
allow us to operate for at least the next 24 months, assuming that our initial business combination is not completed during that
time. However, we cannot assure you that our estimate will be accurate. We could use a portion of the funds available to us to pay
fees to consultants to assist us with our search for a target business. We could also use a portion of the funds as a down payment or
to fund a “no-shop” provision (a provision in letters of intent designed to keep target businesses from “shopping” around for
transactions with other companies on terms more favorable to such target businesses) with respect to a particular proposed business
combination, although we do not have any current intention to do so. If we entered into a letter of intent where we paid for the
right to receive exclusivity from a target business and were subsequently required to forfeit such funds (whether as a result of our
breach or otherwise), we might not have sufficient funds to continue searching for, or conduct due diligence with respect to, a
target business. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may only receive
approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.
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The current low interest rate environment could limit the amount available to fund our search for a target business or
businesses and complete our initial business combination since we will depend on interest earned on the trust account to fund
our search, to pay our franchise and income taxes and to complete our initial business combination.

Of the net proceeds of this offering, only $1,000,000 will be available to us initially outside the trust account to fund our
working capital requirements. In the event that our offering expenses exceed our estimate of $750,000, we may fund such excess
with funds from the $1,000,000 not to be held in the trust account. In such case, the amount of funds we intend to be held outside
the trust account would decrease by a corresponding amount. Conversely, in the event that the offering expenses are less than our
estimate of $750,000, the amount of funds we intend to be held outside the trust account would increase by a corresponding
amount. We will depend on sufficient interest being earned on the proceeds held in the trust account to provide us with up to
$1,750,000, subject to adjustment in the event the size of the offering changes as a result of the underwriters’ exercise of any
portion of the over-allotment option or if we otherwise decide to change the size of this offering, of additional working capital we
may need to identify one or more target businesses, conduct due diligence and complete our initial business combination, as well
as to pay any franchise and income taxes that we may owe. The current low interest rate environment may make it more difficult
for us to have sufficient funds available to structure, negotiate or close our initial business combination. As described elsewhere in
this prospectus, the amounts in the trust account may be invested only in U.S. government treasury bills with a maturity of 180
days or less or in money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act. If, for
example, the amounts in the trust account were invested for a 24-month period in U.S. government treasury bills with 180-day
maturities yielding 0.18% per annum, they would generate a total of approximately $631,000 in pre-tax interest (or approximately
$727,000 in pre-tax interest if the over-allotment option is exercised in full). If the actual yields are higher, a greater amount of
pre-tax interest would be generated. Conversely, if the actual yields are lower, or if (as we expect) interest generated by the
amounts in the trust account is withdrawn from time to time, a lesser amount of pre-tax interest would be generated. If we are
required to seek additional capital, we would need to borrow funds from our sponsor or management team to operate or may be
forced to liquidate. Neither our sponsor nor our management team is under any obligation to advance funds to us in such
circumstances. Any such loans would be repaid only from funds held outside the trust account or from funds released to us upon
completion of our initial business combination. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination because we do not
have sufficient funds available to us, we will be forced to cease operations and liquidate the trust account. Consequently, our
public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’
over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption of our public shares, and our warrants will expire worthless.

Subsequent to our completion of our initial business combination, we may be required to subsequently take write-downs or
write-offs, restructuring and impairment or other charges that could have a significant negative effect on our financial
condition, results of operations and our stock price, which could cause you to lose some or all of your investment.

Even if we conduct extensive due diligence on a target business with which we combine, we cannot assure you that this
diligence will surface all material issues that may be present inside a particular target business, that it would be possible to uncover
all material issues through a customary amount of due diligence, or that factors outside of the target business and outside of our
control will not later arise. As a result of these factors, we may be forced to later write-down or write-off assets, restructure our
operations, or incur impairment or other charges that could result in our reporting losses. Even if our due diligence successfully
identifies certain risks, unexpected risks may arise and previously known risks may materialize in a manner not consistent with
our preliminary risk analysis. Even though these charges may be non-cash items and not have an immediate impact on our
liquidity, the fact that we report charges of this nature could contribute to negative market perceptions about us or our securities.
In addition, charges of this nature may cause us to violate net worth or other covenants to which we may be subject as a result of
assuming pre-existing debt held by a target business or by virtue of our obtaining post-combination debt financing. Accordingly,
any stockholders who choose to remain stockholders following the business combination could suffer a reduction in the value of
their shares. Such stockholders are unlikely to have a remedy for such reduction in value unless they are able to successfully claim
that the reduction was due to the breach by our
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officers or directors of a duty of care or other fiduciary duty owed to them, or if they are able to successfully bring a private claim
under securities laws that the tender offer materials or proxy statement relating to the business combination contained an
actionable material misstatement or material omission.

If the size of the offering is increased, the portion of the trust account attributable to the proceeds of the sale of sponsor
warrants will be allocated pro rata among a greater number of public shares, which will reduce the per-share amount payable
to our public stockholders upon our liquidation or our public stockholders’ exercise of redemption rights.

If the size of the offering is increased, there will be no corresponding increase in the number of sponsor warrants purchased by
our sponsor. Accordingly, the portion of the trust account attributable to the sale proceeds of the sponsor warrants will be spread
pro rata across a greater number of public shares, which will reduce the per-share amount payable to each public stockholder upon
our liquidation or our stockholders’ exercise of redemption rights. Assuming a 15% increase in the size of this offering, the per
share redemption or liquidation amount could decrease by as much as approximately $0.03.

If third parties bring claims against us, the proceeds held in the trust account could be reduced and the per-share redemption
amount received by stockholders may be less than approximately $10.00 per share.

Our placing of funds in the trust account may not protect those funds from third party claims against us. Although we will seek
to have all vendors, service providers, prospective target businesses or other entities with which we do business execute
agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the trust account for the
benefit of our public stockholders, such parties may not execute such agreements, or even if they execute such agreements they
may not be prevented from bringing claims against the trust account, including, but not limited to, fraudulent inducement, breach of
fiduciary responsibility or other similar claims, as well as claims challenging the enforceability of the waiver, in each case in order
to gain advantage with respect to a claim against our assets, including the funds held in the trust account. If any third party refuses
to execute an agreement waiving such claims to the monies held in the trust account, our management will perform an analysis of
the alternatives available to it and will only enter into an agreement with a third party that has not executed a waiver if
management believes that such third party’s engagement would be significantly more beneficial to us than any alternative.

Examples of possible instances where we may engage a third party that refuses to execute a waiver include the engagement of
a third party consultant whose particular expertise or skills are believed by management to be significantly superior to those of
other consultants that would agree to execute a waiver or in cases where management is unable to find a service provider willing to
execute a waiver. In addition, there is no guarantee that such entities will agree to waive any claims they may have in the future as
a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations, contracts or agreements with us and will not seek recourse against the trust account
for any reason. Upon redemption of our public shares, if we are unable to complete a business combination within the required
time frame, or upon the exercise of a redemption right in connection with a business combination, we will be required to provide
for payment of claims of creditors that were not waived that may be brought against us within the 10 years following redemption.
Accordingly, the per-share redemption amount received by public stockholders could be less than the approximately $10.00 per
share initially held in the trust account (or approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full), due to claims of such creditors. Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky have agreed that they will be jointly and severally liable to us if
and to the extent any claims by a vendor for services rendered or products sold to us, or a prospective target business with which
we have discussed entering into a transaction agreement, reduce the amounts in the trust account to below $10.00 per share (or
approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) except as to any claims by a third
party who executed a waiver of any and all rights to seek access to the trust account and except as to any claims under our
indemnity of the underwriters of this offering against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. Moreover, in
the event that an executed waiver is deemed to be unenforceable against a third party, Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky will not be
responsible to the extent of any liability for such third party claims. However, we have not asked Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky to
reserve for such indemnification obligations and we cannot assure you that Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky would be able to satisfy
those obligations. None of our other officers or directors will indemnify us for claims by third parties including, without limitation,
claims by vendors and prospective target businesses.

30

 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Our directors may decide not to enforce the indemnification obligations of Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky, resulting in a
reduction in the amount of funds in the trust account available for distribution to our public stockholders.

In the event that the proceeds in the trust account are reduced below $10.00 per public share (or approximately $9.97 per public
share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) and Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky assert that they are unable to
satisfy their joint and several obligations or that they have no indemnification obligations related to a particular claim, our
independent directors would determine whether to take legal action against Messrs. Sloan or Sagansky to enforce their
indemnification obligations. While we currently expect that our independent directors would take legal action on our behalf against
Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky to enforce their indemnification obligations to us, it is possible that our independent directors in
exercising their business judgment may choose not to do so in any particular instance. If our independent directors choose not to
enforce these indemnification obligations, the amount of funds in the trust account available for distribution to our public
stockholders may be reduced below $10.00 per share.

If, after we distribute the proceeds in the trust account to our public stockholders, we file a bankruptcy petition or an
involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, a bankruptcy court may seek to recover such proceeds,
and the members of our board of directors may be viewed as having breached their fiduciary duties to our creditors, thereby
exposing the members of our board of directors and us to claims of punitive damages.

If, after we distribute the proceeds in the trust account to our public stockholders, we file a bankruptcy petition or an
involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, any distributions received by stockholders could be viewed
under applicable debtor/creditor and/or bankruptcy laws as either a “preferential transfer” or a “fraudulent conveyance.” As a
result, a bankruptcy court could seek to recover all amounts received by our stockholders. In addition, our board of directors may
be viewed as having breached its fiduciary duty to our creditors and/or having acted in bad faith, thereby exposing itself and us to
claims of punitive damages, by paying public stockholders from the trust account prior to addressing the claims of creditors.

If, before distributing the proceeds in the trust account to our public stockholders, we file a bankruptcy petition or an
involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, the claims of creditors in such proceeding may have
priority over the claims of our stockholders and the per-share amount that would otherwise be received by our stockholders in
connection with our liquidation may be reduced.

If, before distributing the proceeds in the trust account to our public stockholders, we file a bankruptcy petition or an
involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, the proceeds held in the trust account could be subject to
applicable bankruptcy law, and may be included in our bankruptcy estate and subject to the claims of third parties with priority
over the claims of our stockholders. To the extent any bankruptcy claims deplete the trust account, the per-share amount that would
otherwise be received by our stockholders in connection with our liquidation may be reduced.

If we are deemed to be an investment company under the Investment Company Act, we may be required to institute burdensome
compliance requirements and our activities may be restricted, which may make it difficult for us to complete a business
combination.

If we are deemed to be an investment company under the Investment Company Act, our activities may be restricted, including:

• restrictions on the nature of our investments; and

• restrictions on the issuance of securities,

each of which may make it difficult for us to complete a business combination.

In addition, we may have imposed upon us burdensome requirements, including:

• registration as an investment company;
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• adoption of a specific form of corporate structure; and

• reporting, record keeping, voting, proxy and disclosure requirements and other rules and regulations.

We do not believe that our anticipated principal activities will subject us to the Investment Company Act. The proceeds held in
the trust account may be invested by the trustee only in U.S. government treasury bills with a maturity of 180 days or less or in
money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act. Because the investment of
the proceeds will be restricted to these instruments, we believe we will meet the requirements for the exemption provided in Rule
3a-1 promulgated under the Investment Company Act. If we were deemed to be subject to the Investment Company Act,
compliance with these additional regulatory burdens would require additional expenses for which we have not allotted funds and
may hinder our ability to complete a business combination. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination, our
public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’
over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.

Changes in laws or regulations, or a failure to comply with any laws and regulations, may adversely affect our business,
investments and results of operations.

We are subject to laws and regulations enacted by national, regional and local governments. In particular, we will be required
to comply with certain SEC and other legal requirements. Compliance with, and monitoring of, applicable laws and regulations
may be difficult, time consuming and costly. Those laws and regulations and their interpretation and application may also change
from time to time and those changes could have a material adverse effect on our business, investments and results of operations. In
addition, a failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations, as interpreted and applied, could have a material adverse effect on
our business and results of operations.

Our stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against us to the extent of distributions received by them upon
redemption of their shares.

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, or DGCL, stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against a
corporation to the extent of distributions received by them in a dissolution. The pro rata portion of our trust account distributed to
our public stockholders upon the redemption of 100% of our public shares in the event we do not complete our initial business
combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent
or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends (subject
to the requirements of law), may be considered a liquidation distribution under Delaware law. If a corporation complies with
certain procedures set forth in Section 280 of the DGCL intended to ensure that it makes reasonable provision for all claims against
it, including a 60-day notice period during which any third-party claims can be brought against the corporation, a 90-day period
during which the corporation may reject any claims brought, and an additional 150-day waiting period before any liquidating
distributions are made to stockholders, any liability of stockholders with respect to a liquidating distribution is limited to the lesser
of such stockholder’s pro rata share of the claim or the amount distributed to the stockholder, and any liability of the stockholder
would be barred after the third anniversary of the dissolution. However, it is our intention to redeem our public shares as soon as
reasonably possible following our 21st month, or 24th month, if applicable, in the event we do not complete an initial business
combination and, therefore, we do not intend to comply with those procedures.

Because we will not be complying with Section 280, Section 281(b) of the DGCL requires us to adopt a plan, based on facts
known to us at such time that will provide for our payment of all existing and pending claims or claims that may be potentially
brought against us within the 10 years following our dissolution. However, because we are a blank check company, rather than an
operating company, and our operations will be limited to searching for prospective target businesses to acquire, the only likely
claims to arise would be from our vendors (such as lawyers, investment bankers, etc.) or prospective target businesses. If our plan
of distribution complies with Section 281(b) of the DGCL, any liability of stockholders with respect to a liquidating distribution is
limited to the lesser of such stockholder’s pro rata share of the claim or the amount distributed to the stockholder, and any liability
of the stockholder would likely be barred after the third
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anniversary of the dissolution. We cannot assure you that we will properly assess all claims that may be potentially brought against
us. As such, our stockholders could potentially be liable for any claims to the extent of distributions received by them (but no
more) and any liability of our stockholders may extend beyond the third anniversary of such date. Furthermore, if the pro rata
portion of our trust account distributed to our public stockholders upon the redemption of 100% of our public shares in the event
we do not complete our initial business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the
closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed
before the 21-month period ends (subject to the requirements of law), is not considered a liquidation distribution under Delaware
law and such redemption distribution is deemed to be unlawful, then pursuant to Section 174 of the DGCL, the statute of
limitations for claims of creditors could then be six years after the unlawful redemption distribution, instead of three years, as in
the case of a liquidation distribution.

We do not currently intend to hold an annual meeting of stockholders until after our completion of a business combination and
you will not be entitled to any of the corporate protections provided by such a meeting.

We do not currently intend to hold an annual meeting of stockholders until after we complete a business combination, and thus
may not be in compliance with Section 211(b) of the DGCL, which requires an annual meeting of stockholders be held for the
purposes of electing directors in accordance with a company’s bylaws unless such election is made by written consent in lieu of
such a meeting. Therefore, if our stockholders want us to hold an annual meeting prior to our completion of a business
combination, they may attempt to force us to hold one by submitting an application to the Delaware Court of Chancery in
accordance with Section 211(c) of the DGCL.

We are not registering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants under the Securities Act or states
securities laws at this time, and such registration may not be in place when an investor desires to exercise warrants, thus
precluding such investor from being able to exercise its warrants and causing such warrants to expire worthless.

We are not registering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants under the Securities Act or any state
securities laws at this time. However, under the terms of the warrant agreement, we have agreed to use our best efforts to file a
registration statement under the Securities Act covering such shares and maintain a current prospectus relating to the common
stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, and to use our best efforts to take such action as is necessary to register or qualify for
sale, in those states in which the warrants were initially offered by us, the shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants, to the
extent an exemption is not available. We cannot assure you that we will be able to do so. If the shares issuable upon exercise of the
warrants are not registered under the Securities Act, we will be required to permit holders to exercise their warrants on a cashless
basis, under certain circumstances specified in the warrant agreement. However, no warrant will be exercisable for cash or on a
cashless basis, and we will not be obligated to issue any shares to holders seeking to exercise their warrants, unless the issuance of
the shares upon such exercise is registered or qualified under the securities laws of the state of the exercising holder, unless an
exemption is available. In no event will we be required to issue cash, securities or other compensation in exchange for the warrants
in the event that we are unable to register or qualify the shares underlying the warrants under the Securities Act or applicable state
securities laws. If the issuance of the shares upon exercise of the warrants is not so registered or qualified, the holder of such
warrant shall not be entitled to exercise such warrant and such warrant may have no value and expire worthless. In such event,
holders who acquired their warrants as part of a purchase of units will have paid the full unit purchase price solely for the shares
of common stock included in the units. If and when the warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise our redemption right
even if we are unable to register or qualify the underlying shares of common stock for sale under all applicable state securities
laws.
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The grant of registration rights to our initial stockholders and holders of our sponsor warrants may make it more difficult to
complete our initial business combination, and the future exercise of such rights may adversely affect the market price of our
common stock.

Pursuant to an agreement to be entered into concurrently with the issuance and sale of the securities in this offering, our initial
stockholders and their permitted transferees can demand that we register the founder shares, holders of our sponsor warrants and
their permitted transferees can demand that we register the sponsor warrants and the shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of the sponsor warrants and holders of warrants that may be issued upon conversion of working capital loans may demand
that we register such warrants or the common stock issuable upon conversion of such warrants. The registration rights will be
exercisable with respect to the founder shares and the sponsor warrants and the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of
such sponsor warrants. We will bear the cost of registering these securities. The registration and availability of such a significant
number of securities for trading in the public market may have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock. In
addition, the existence of the registration rights may make our initial business combination more costly or difficult to conclude.
This is because the stockholders of the target business may increase the equity stake they seek in the combined entity or ask for
more cash consideration to offset the negative impact on the market price of our common stock that is expected when the
securities owned by our initial stockholders, holders of our sponsor warrants or their respective permitted transferees are
registered.

Because we have not selected a particular segment of the media or entertainment industries or any specific target businesses
with which to pursue a business combination, you will be unable to ascertain the merits or risks of any particular target
business’s operations.

We will seek to complete a business combination with an operating company in the media or entertainment industries but may
also pursue acquisition opportunities in other sectors, except that we will not, under our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation, be permitted to effectuate a business combination with another blank check company or similar company with
nominal operations. Because we have not yet identified or approached any specific target business with respect to a business
combination, there is no basis to evaluate the possible merits or risks of any particular target business’s operations, results of
operations, cash flows, liquidity, financial condition or prospects. To the extent we complete our initial business combination, we
may be affected by numerous risks inherent in the business operations with which we combine. For example, if we combine with a
financially unstable business or an entity lacking an established record of sales or earnings, we may be affected by the risks
inherent in the business and operations of a financially unstable or a development stage entity. Although our officers and directors
will endeavor to evaluate the risks inherent in a particular target business, we cannot assure you that we will properly ascertain or
assess all of the significant risk factors or that we will have adequate time to complete due diligence. Furthermore, some of these
risks may be outside of our control and leave us with no ability to control or reduce the chances that those risks will adversely
impact a target business. We also cannot assure you that an investment in our securities will ultimately prove to be more favorable
to investors than a direct investment, if such opportunity were available, in an acquisition target. Accordingly, any stockholders
who choose to remain stockholders following the business combination could suffer a reduction in the value of their shares. Such
stockholders are unlikely to have a remedy for such reduction in value unless they are able to successfully claim that the reduction
was due to the breach by our officers or directors of a duty of care or other fiduciary duty owed to them, or if they are able to
successfully bring a private claim under securities laws that the tender offer materials or proxy statement relating to the business
combination contained an actionable material misstatement or material omission.

None of our officers or directors has ever been associated with a blank check company, which could adversely affect our ability
to consummate a business combination.

None of our officers or directors has ever been associated with a blank check company prior to its business combination.
Accordingly, you may not have sufficient information with which to evaluate the ability of our management team to identify and
complete a business combination using the proceeds of this offering and the private placement. Our management’s lack of
experience in operating a blank check company could adversely affect our ability to consummate a business combination and
result in our not completing a business combination in the prescribed time frame.

34

 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

We may seek investment opportunities in industries outside of the media or entertainment industries (which industries may or
may not be outside of our management’s area of expertise).

Although we intend to focus on identifying business combination candidates in the media or entertainment sectors and we will
not initially actively seek to identify business combination candidates in other sectors (which sectors may be outside our
management’s area of expertise), we will consider a business combination outside of the media or entertainment industries if a
business combination candidate is presented to us and we determine that such candidate offers an attractive investment opportunity
for our company or we are unable to identify a suitable candidate in the media or entertainment industries after having expended a
reasonable amount of time and effort in an attempt to do so. Although our management will endeavor to evaluate the risks inherent
in any particular business combination candidate, we cannot assure you that we will adequately ascertain or assess all of the
significant risk factors. We also cannot assure you that an investment in our units will not ultimately prove to be less favorable to
investors in this offering than a direct investment, if an opportunity were available, in a business combination candidate. In the
event we elect to pursue an investment outside of the media or entertainment industries, our management’s expertise in the media
and entertainment industries would not be directly applicable to its evaluation or operation, and the information contained herein
regarding the media and entertainment industries would not be relevant to an understanding of the business that we elect to
acquire. Accordingly, any stockholders who choose to remain stockholders following the business combination could suffer a
reduction in the value of their shares. Such stockholders are unlikely to have a remedy for such reduction in value unless they are
able to successfully claim that the reduction was due to the breach by our officers or directors of a duty of care or other fiduciary
duty owed to them, or if they are able to successfully bring a private claim under securities laws that the tender offer materials or
proxy statement relating to the business combination contained an actionable material misstatement or material omission.

Although we identified general guidelines that we believe are important in evaluating prospective target businesses, we may
enter into a business combination with a target does not meet such guidelines, and as a result, the target business with which
we enter into our initial business combination may not have attributes entirely consistent with our general guidelines.

Although we have identified general guidelines for evaluating prospective target businesses, it is possible that a target business
with which we enter into a business combination will not have all of these positive attributes. If we complete a business
combination with a target that does not meet some or all of these guidelines, such combination may not be as successful as a
combination with a business that does meet all of our general guidelines. In addition, if we announce a prospective business
combination with a target that does not meet our general guidelines, a greater number of stockholders may exercise their
redemption rights, which may make it difficult for us to meet any closing condition with a target business that requires us to have a
minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash. In addition, if stockholder approval of the transaction is required by law, or we
decide to obtain stockholder approval for business or other legal reasons, it may be more difficult for us to attain stockholder
approval of our initial business combination if the target business does not meet our general guidelines. If we are unable to
complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share (or
approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants
will expire worthless.

Unlike many blank check companies, we are not required to acquire a target with a valuation equal to a certain percentage of
the amount held in the trust account. Management’s unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting a prospective
acquisition candidate, along with our management’s financial interest in completing an initial business combination, may lead
management to enter into an acquisition agreement that is not in the best interest of our stockholders.

Many blank check companies are required to complete their initial business combination with a target whose value is equal to
at least 80% of the amount of money held in the trust account of the blank check company at the time of entry into a definitive
agreement for a business combination. Because we do not have the requirement that a target business have a minimum fair market
enterprise value equal to a certain percentage of the net assets held in the trust account at the time of our signing a definitive
agreement in connection with our initial business
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combination, we will have virtually unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting a prospective acquisition candidate.
Investors will be relying on management’s ability to identify business combinations, evaluate their merits, conduct or monitor
diligence and conduct negotiations. In addition, we may complete a business combination with a target whose enterprise value is
significantly less than the amount of money held in the trust account, thereby resulting in our ability to use the remaining funds in
the trust account to make additional acquisitions without seeking stockholder approval or providing redemption rights.

Management’s unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting a prospective acquisition candidate, along with
management’s financial interest in completing an initial business combination, may lead management to enter into an acquisition
agreement that is not in the best interest of our stockholders, which would be the case if the trading price of our shares of common
stock after giving effect to such business combination was less than the per-share trust liquidation value that our stockholders
would have received if we had dissolved without completing a business combination.

We are not required to obtain an opinion from an independent investment banking firm, and consequently, you may have no
assurance from an independent source that the price we are paying for the business is fair to our company from a financial
point of view.

Unless we complete a business combination with an affiliated entity, we are not required to obtain an opinion from an
independent investment banking firm that the price we are paying is fair to our company from a financial point of view. If no
opinion is obtained, our stockholders will be relying on the judgment of our board of directors, who will determine fair market
value based on standards generally accepted by the financial community. Such standards used will be disclosed in our tender offer
documents or proxy solicitation materials, as applicable, related to our initial business combination.

We may issue additional common or preferred shares to complete our initial business combination or under an employee
incentive plan after completion of our initial business combination, which would dilute the interest of our stockholders and
likely present other risks.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 400,000,000 shares of common stock,
par value $0.0001 per share, and 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share. Immediately after this offering,
there will be 354,158,517 (assuming that the underwriters have not exercised their over-allotment option) authorized but unissued
shares of common stock available for issuance and not reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding warrants. We may issue
a substantial number of additional shares of common or preferred stock to complete our initial business combination or under an
employee incentive plan after completion of our initial business combination. The issuance of additional shares of common or
preferred stock:

• may significantly dilute the equity interest of investors in this offering;

• may subordinate the rights of holders of common stock if preferred stock is issued with rights senior to those afforded our
common stock;

• could cause a change in control if a substantial number of common stock is issued, which may affect, among other things,
our ability to use our net operating loss carry forwards, if any, and could result in the resignation or removal of our present
officers and directors; and

• may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our units, common stock and/or warrants.

Resources could be wasted in researching acquisitions that are not completed, which could materially adversely affect
subsequent attempts to locate and acquire or merge with another business. If we are unable to complete our initial business
combination, our public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public
share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.

We anticipate that the investigation of each specific target business and the negotiation, drafting and execution of relevant
agreements, disclosure documents and other instruments will require substantial management time and attention and substantial
costs for accountants, attorneys and others. If we decide not to complete a specific initial business combination, the costs incurred
up to that point for the proposed
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transaction likely would not be recoverable. Furthermore, if we reach an agreement relating to a specific target business, we may
fail to complete our initial business combination for any number of reasons including those beyond our control. Any such event
will result in a loss to us of the related costs incurred which could materially adversely affect subsequent attempts to locate and
acquire or merge with another business. In addition, in the event we seek stockholder approval of our business combination and we
do not conduct redemptions in connection with our business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation will permit the release to us from the trust account amounts necessary to purchase up to 15% of
the shares sold in this offering, in the open market in a manner intended to comply with Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act,
which provides a safe harbor for purchases made under certain conditions, including with respect to the manner of sale, timing,
pricing and volume of purchases. If such business combination is not completed, these purchases would have the effect of reducing
the funds available in the trust account for future business combinations. If we are unable to complete our initial business
combination, our public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if
the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.

We are dependent upon our officers and directors and their loss could adversely affect our ability to operate.
Our operations are dependent upon a relatively small group of individuals and, in particular, our officers and directors. We

believe that our success depends on the continued service of our officers and directors, at least until we have completed a business
combination. In addition, our officers and directors are not required to commit any specified amount of time to our affairs and,
accordingly, will have conflicts of interest in allocating management time among various business activities, including identifying
potential business combinations and monitoring the related due diligence. We do not have an employment agreement with, or key-
man insurance on the life of, any of our directors or officers. The unexpected loss of the services of one or more of our directors or
officers could have a detrimental effect on us.

Our ability to successfully effect our initial business combination and to be successful thereafter will be totally dependent upon
the efforts of our key personnel, some of whom may join us following our initial business combination. The loss of key
personnel could negatively impact the operations and profitability of our post-combination business.

Our ability to successfully effect our initial business combination is dependent upon the efforts of our key personnel. The role
of our key personnel in the target business, however, cannot presently be ascertained. Although some of our key personnel may
remain with the target business in senior management or advisory positions following a business combination, it is likely that some
or all of the management of the target business will remain in place. While we intend to closely scrutinize any individuals we
engage after a business combination, we cannot assure you that our assessment of these individuals will prove to be correct. These
individuals may be unfamiliar with the requirements of operating a company regulated by the SEC, which could cause us to have
to expend time and resources helping them become familiar with such requirements.

Our key personnel may negotiate employment or consulting agreements with a target business in connection with a particular
business combination. These agreements may provide for them to receive compensation following a business combination and
as a result, may cause them to have conflicts of interest in determining whether a particular business combination is the most
advantageous.

Our key personnel may be able to remain with the company after the completion of a business combination only if they are
able to negotiate employment or consulting agreements in connection with the business combination. Such negotiations would
take place simultaneously with the negotiation of the business combination and could provide for such individuals to receive
compensation in the form of cash payments and/or our securities for services they would render to us after the completion of the
business combination. The personal and financial interests of such individuals may influence their motivation in identifying and
selecting a target business. However, we believe the ability of such individuals to remain with us after the completion of a business
combination will not be the determining factor in our decision as to whether or not
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we will proceed with any potential business combination. There is no certainty, however, that any of our key personnel will remain
with us after the completion of a business combination. We cannot assure you that any of our key personnel will remain in senior
management or advisory positions with us. The determination as to whether any of our key personnel will remain with us will be
made at the time of our initial business combination.

We may have a limited ability to assess the management of a prospective target business and, as a result, may effect a business
combination with a target business whose management may not have the skills, qualifications or abilities to manage a public
company.

When evaluating the desirability of effecting a business combination with a prospective target business, our ability to assess
the target business’s management may be limited due to a lack of time, resources or information. Our assessment of the capabilities
of the target’s management, therefore, may prove to be incorrect and such management may lack the skills, qualifications or
abilities we suspected. Should the target’s management not possess the skills, qualifications or abilities necessary to manage a
public company, the operations and profitability of the post-combination business may be negatively impacted. Accordingly, any
stockholders who choose to remain stockholders following the business combination could suffer a reduction in the value of their
shares. Such stockholders are unlikely to have a remedy for such reduction in value unless they are able to successfully claim that
the reduction was due to the breach by our officers or directors of a duty of care or other fiduciary duty owed to them, or if they are
able to successfully bring a private claim under securities laws that the tender offer materials or proxy statement relating to the
business combination contained an actionable material misstatement or material omission.

The officers and directors of an acquisition candidate may resign upon completion of a business combination. The loss of an
acquisition target’s key personnel could negatively impact the operations and profitability of our post-combination business.

The role of an acquisition candidate’s key personnel upon the completion of a business combination cannot be ascertained at
this time. Although we contemplate that certain members of an acquisition candidate’s management team will remain associated
with the acquisition candidate following a business combination, it is possible that members of the management of an acquisition
candidate will not wish to remain in place.

Our officers and directors will allocate their time to other businesses thereby causing conflicts of interest in their determination
as to how much time to devote to our affairs. This conflict of interest could have a negative impact on our ability to complete a
business combination.

Our executive officers and directors are not required to, and will not, commit their full time to our affairs, which may result in
a conflict of interest in allocating their time between our operations and the search for a business combination on the one hand and
their other businesses on the other hand. We do not intend to have any full-time employees prior to the completion of our business
combination. Each of our executive officers is engaged in several other business endeavors and our executive officers are not
obligated to contribute any specific number of hours per week to our affairs. Our independent directors may also serve as officers
and board members for other entities. See “Management — Conflicts of Interest.”

If our executive officers’ and directors’ other business affairs require them to devote substantial amounts of time to such affairs
in excess of their current commitment levels, it could limit their ability to devote time to our affairs which may have a negative
impact on our ability to complete our business combination.

Certain of our officers and directors are now, and all of them may in the future become, affiliated with entities engaged in
business activities similar to those intended to be conducted by us and, accordingly, may have conflicts of interest in allocating
their time and determining to which entity a particular business opportunity should be presented.

Although none of our officers or directors is currently, or has been at any time prior to this offering, associated with other blank
check companies, our officers and directors may in the future become affiliated with entities, including, among others, blank check
companies that are limited to a particular industry other
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than media and entertainment or public and private companies, private equity funds, venture capital funds, hedge funds and other
investment vehicles and capital pools, which may be engaged in business activities similar to those intended to be conducted by us.
Additionally, our officers and directors may become aware of business opportunities which may be appropriate for presentation to
us and the other entities to which they owe fiduciary duties. Accordingly, they may have conflicts of interest in determining to
which entity time should be allocated or a particular business opportunity should be presented. We cannot assure you that these
conflicts will be resolved in our favor. As a result, a potential target business may be presented to another entity prior to its
presentation to us, which could have a negative impact on our ability to successfully consummate an initial business combination.

Each of our officers and directors, other than our independent directors, have agreed, until the earliest of (i) our initial business
combination, (ii) our failure to complete an initial business combination in the prescribed time frame or (iii) such time as the
applicable person ceases to be an officer or director, to present to our company for our consideration, prior to presentation to any
other entity, any business combination opportunity with a target business having an enterprise value of $100,000,000 or more,
subject to any fiduciary duties or contractual obligations they may have, currently, or in the future, in respect of the companies to
which they currently have fiduciary duties or contractual obligations. Accordingly, our officers and directors may have conflicts of
interest in determining to which entity a particular business opportunity should be presented. We cannot assure you that these
conflicts will be resolved in our favor.

For a complete discussion of our officers’ and directors’ business affiliations and the potential conflicts of interest that you
should be aware of, please see “Management — Directors and Executive Officers,” “Management — Conflicts of Interest” and
“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.”

Our officers, directors, security holders and their respective affiliates may have competitive pecuniary interests that conflict
with our interests.

We have not adopted a policy that expressly prohibits our directors, officers, security holders or affiliates from having a direct
or indirect pecuniary or financial interest in any investment to be acquired or disposed of by us or in any transaction to which we
are a party or have an interest. In fact, we may enter into a business combination with a target business that is affiliated with our
sponsor, our directors or officers, although we do not intend to do so. Nor do we have a policy that expressly prohibits any such
persons from engaging for their own account in business activities of the types conducted by us. Accordingly, such persons or
entities may have a conflict between their interests and ours.

We may engage in a business combination with one or more target businesses that have relationships with entities that may be
affiliated with our executive officers, directors or existing holders which may raise potential conflicts of interest.

In light of the involvement of our sponsor, officers and directors with other entities, we may decide to acquire one or more
businesses affiliated with our sponsor, officers and directors. Our directors also serve as officers and board members for other
entities, including, without limitation, those described under “Management — Conflicts of Interest.” Such entities may compete
with us for business combination opportunities. Our sponsor, officers and directors are not currently aware of any specific
opportunities for us to complete a business combination with any entities with which they are affiliated, and there have been no
preliminary discussions concerning a business combination with any such entity or entities. Although we will not be specifically
focusing on, or targeting, any transaction with any affiliated entities, we would pursue such a transaction if we determined that
such affiliated entity met our criteria for a business combination as set forth in “Proposed Business — Effecting our initial business
combination — Selection of a target business and structuring of our initial business combination” and such transaction was
approved by a majority of our disinterested directors. Despite our agreement to obtain an opinion from an independent investment
banking firm regarding the fairness to our company from a financial point of view of a business combination with one or more
domestic or international businesses affiliated with our executive officers, directors or existing holders, potential conflicts of
interest still may exist and, as a result, the terms of the business combination may not be as advantageous to our public
stockholders as they would be absent any conflicts of interest.
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Since our sponsor will lose its entire investment in us if a business combination is not completed and our officers and directors
have significant financial interests in us, a conflict of interest may arise in determining whether a particular acquisition target
is appropriate for our initial business combination.

In February 2011, our sponsor purchased an aggregate of 4,417,683 founder shares for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000,
or approximately $0.01 per share. Subsequently, in March 2011, our sponsor transferred an aggregate of 44,176 founder shares to
Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, each of whom has agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the closing of this
offering. The founder shares include an aggregate of 576,220 shares subject to forfeiture to the extent that the underwriters’ over-
allotment option is not exercised in full. The founder shares will be worthless if we do not complete an initial business
combination. In addition, our sponsor has committed to purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 sponsor warrants, each exercisable for
one share of our common stock at $11.50 per share, for a purchase price of $5,250,000, or $0.75 per warrant, that will also be
worthless if we do not complete a business combination. In addition, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued and
outstanding shares after this offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) will be subject to forfeiture by
our initial stockholders on the third anniversary of the closing of our initial business combination unless following our initial
business combination (i) the last sales price of our stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock
dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period or (ii) we
complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of our stockholders having the right to
exchange their shares of common stock for consideration in cash, securities or other property which equals or exceeds $13.00 per
share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like). The personal and financial
interests of our officers and directors may influence their motivation in identifying and selecting a target business combination,
completing an initial business combination and influencing the operation of the business following the initial business
combination.

We may issue notes or other debt securities, or otherwise incur substantial debt, to complete a business combination, which
may adversely affect our leverage and financial condition and thus negatively impact the value of our stockholders’ investment
in us.

Although we have no commitments as of the date of this prospectus to issue any notes or other debt securities, or to otherwise
incur outstanding debt, we may choose to incur substantial debt to complete a business combination. The incurrence of debt could
have a variety of negative effects, including:

• default and foreclosure on our assets if our operating revenues after an initial business combination are insufficient to repay
our debt obligations;

• acceleration of our obligations to repay the indebtedness even if we make all principal and interest payments when due if we
breach certain covenants that require the maintenance of certain financial ratios or reserves without a waiver or
renegotiation of that covenant;

• our immediate payment of all principal and accrued interest, if any, if the debt security is payable on demand;

• our inability to obtain necessary additional financing if the debt security contains covenants restricting our ability to obtain
such financing while the debt security is outstanding;

• our inability to pay dividends on our common stock;

• using a substantial portion of our cash flow to pay principal and interest on our debt, which will reduce the funds available
for dividends on our common stock if declared, expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general corporate
purposes;

• limitations on our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business and in the industry in which we operate;

• increased vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry and competitive conditions and adverse changes in
government regulation; and
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• limitations on our ability to borrow additional amounts for expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service
requirements, execution of our strategy and other purposes and other disadvantages compared to our competitors who have
less debt.

We may only be able to complete one business combination with the proceeds of this offering, which will cause us to be solely
dependent on a single business which may have a limited number of products or services. This lack of diversification may
negatively impact our operations and profitability.

The net proceeds from this offering will provide us with approximately $175,000,000 (or approximately $200,725,000 if the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) that we may use to complete a business combination.

We may effectuate an initial business combination with a single target business or multiple target businesses simultaneously.
However, we may not be able to effectuate a business combination with more than one target business because of various factors,
including the existence of complex accounting issues and the requirement that we prepare and file pro forma financial statements
with the SEC that present operating results and the financial condition of several target businesses as if they had been operated on a
combined basis. By completing an initial business combination with only a single entity, our lack of diversification may subject us
to numerous economic, competitive and regulatory developments. Further, we would not be able to diversify our operations or
benefit from the possible spreading of risks or offsetting of losses, unlike other entities which may have the resources to complete
several business combinations in different industries or different areas of a single industry. Accordingly, the prospects for our
success may be:

• solely dependent upon the performance of a single business, property or asset, or

• dependent upon the development or market acceptance of a single or limited number of products, processes or services.

This lack of diversification may subject us to numerous economic, competitive and regulatory developments, any or all of
which may have a substantial adverse impact upon the particular industry in which we may operate subsequent to an initial
business combination.

We may attempt to simultaneously complete business combinations with multiple prospective targets, which may hinder our
ability to complete an initial business combination and give rise to increased costs and risks that could negatively impact our
operations and profitability.

If we determine to simultaneously acquire several businesses that are owned by different sellers, we will need for each of such
sellers to agree that our purchase of its business is contingent on the simultaneous closings of the other business combinations,
which may make it more difficult for us, and delay our ability, to complete the initial business combination. With multiple
business combinations, we could also face additional risks, including additional burdens and costs with respect to possible multiple
negotiations and due diligence investigations (if there are multiple sellers) and the additional risks associated with the subsequent
assimilation of the operations and services or products of the acquired companies in a single operating business. If we are unable to
adequately address these risks, it could negatively impact our profitability and results of operations.

We may attempt to complete our initial business combination with a private company about which little information is
available, which may result in a business combination with a company that is not as profitable as we suspected, if at all.

In pursuing our acquisition strategy, we may seek to effectuate our initial business combination with a privately held company.
By definition, very little public information exists about private companies, and we could be required to make our decision on
whether to pursue a potential initial business combination on the basis of limited information, which may result in a business
combination with a company that is not as profitable as we suspected, if at all.
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We may not be able to maintain control of a target business after our initial business combination. We cannot provide
assurance that, upon loss of control of a target business, new management will possess the skills, qualifications or abilities
necessary to profitably operate such business.

We may structure a business combination to acquire less than 100% of the equity interests or assets of a target business, but we
will only complete such business combination if we acquire 50% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the target or are
otherwise not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act. Even if we own 50% or more of
the voting securities of the target, our stockholders prior to the business combination may collectively own a minority interest in
the post business combination company, depending on valuations ascribed to the target and us in the business combination
transaction. In addition, other minority stockholders may subsequently combine their holdings resulting in a single person or group
obtaining a larger share of the company’s stock than we initially acquired. Accordingly, this may make it more likely that we will
not be able to maintain our control of the target business.

Unlike many blank check companies, we do not have a specified maximum redemption threshold. The absence of such a
redemption threshold will make it easier for us to complete a business combination with which a substantial majority of our
stockholders do not agree.

Since we have no specified maximum redemption threshold contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation,
our structure is different in this respect from the structure that has been used by many blank check companies. Many blank check
companies would not be able to complete a business combination if the holders of the company’s public shares voted against a
proposed business combination and elected to redeem or convert more than a specified percentage of the shares sold in such
company’s initial public offering, which percentage threshold has typically been between 19.99% and 39.99%. As a result, many
blank check companies have been unable to complete business combinations because the amount of shares voted by their public
stockholders electing conversion exceeded the maximum conversion threshold pursuant to which such company could proceed
with a business combination. As a result, we may be able to complete a business combination even though a substantial majority of
our public stockholders do not agree with the transaction and have redeemed their shares or, if we seek stockholder approval of our
initial business combination and do not conduct redemptions in connection with our business combination pursuant to the tender
offer rules, have entered into privately negotiated agreements to sell their shares to us or our sponsor, officers, directors, advisors
or their affiliates. However, we may not redeem our public shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less
than $5,000,001 (so that we are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules) and the agreement for our business combination
may require as a closing condition that we have a minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash. If too many public stockholders
exercise their redemption rights so that we cannot satisfy the net tangible asset requirement or any net worth or cash requirements,
we would not proceed with the redemption of our public shares and the related business combination, and instead may search for
an alternate business combination.

The exercise price for the public warrants is higher than in many similar blank check company offerings in the past, and,
accordingly, the warrants are more likely to expire worthless.

The exercise price of the warrants is higher than is typical in many similar blank check companies. Historically, the exercise
price of a warrant was generally a fraction of the purchase price of the units in the initial public offering. The exercise price for our
public warrants is $11.50 per share. As a result, the warrants are less likely to ever be in the money and more likely to expire
worthless.

In order to effectuate a business combination, blank check companies have, in the recent past, amended various provisions of
their charters and modified governing instruments. We cannot assure you that we will not seek to amend our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation or governing instruments in a manner that will make it easier for us to complete a business
combination that our stockholders may not support.

In order to effectuate a business combination, blank check companies have, in the recent past, amended various provisions of
their charters and modified governing instruments. For example, blank check companies have amended the definition of business
combination, increased redemption thresholds and changed industry focus. We cannot assure you that we will not seek to amend
our charter or governing instruments in order to effectuate our initial business combination.
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The provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation may be amended with the approval of 65% of our
stockholders, which is a lower amendment threshold than that of many blank check companies. It may be easier for us,
therefore, to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to facilitate the completion of an initial business
combination that our stockholders may not support.

Many blank check companies have a provision in their charter which prohibits the amendment of certain of its provisions,
including those which relate to a company’s pre-business combination activity, without approval by a certain percentage of the
company’s stockholders. Typically, amendment of these provisions requires approval by between 90% and 100% of the
company’s public stockholders. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that any of its provisions, including
those related to pre-business combination activity, may be amended if approved by 65% of our stockholders. Our initial
stockholders, who will collectively beneficially own 18.0% of our common stock upon the closing of this offering (assuming they
do not purchase any units in this offering), will participate in any vote to amend our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and will have the discretion to vote in any manner they choose. As a result, we may be able to amend the provisions
of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation which govern our pre-business combination behavior more easily that
many blank check companies, and this may increase our ability to complete a business combination with which you do not agree.

We may be unable to obtain additional financing to complete our initial business combination or to fund the operations and
growth of a target business, which could compel us to restructure or abandon a particular business combination. If we are
unable to complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share
(or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and
our warrants will expire worthless.

Although we believe that the net proceeds of this offering, including the interest earned on the proceeds held in the trust
account that may be available to us for a business combination, will be sufficient to allow us to complete our initial business
combination, because we have not yet identified any prospective target business we cannot ascertain the capital requirements for
any particular transaction. If the net proceeds of this offering prove to be insufficient, either because of the size of our initial
business combination, the depletion of the available net proceeds in search of a target business, the obligation to repurchase for
cash a significant number of shares from stockholders who elect redemption in connection with our initial business combination or
the terms of negotiated transactions to purchase shares in connection with our initial business combination, we will be required to
seek additional financing. We cannot assure you that such financing will be available on acceptable terms, if at all. The current
economic environment has made it especially difficult for companies to obtain acquisition financing. To the extent that additional
financing proves to be unavailable when needed to complete our initial business combination, we would be compelled to either
restructure the transaction or abandon that particular initial business combination and seek an alternative target business candidate.
If we are unable to complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per
share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption,
and our warrants will expire worthless. In addition, even if we do not need additional financing to complete our initial business
combination, we may require such financing to fund the operations or growth of the target business. The failure to secure
additional financing could have a material adverse effect on the continued development or growth of the target business. None of
our officers, directors or stockholders is required to provide any financing to us in connection with or after a business combination.

Our initial stockholders control a substantial interest in us and thus may exert a substantial influence on actions requiring a
stockholder vote, potentially in a manner that you do not support.

Upon closing of this offering, our initial stockholders will own 18.0% of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock
(assuming they do not purchase any units in this offering and they are not required to forfeit their founder earnout shares, as
described in this prospectus). Accordingly, they may exert a substantial influence on actions requiring a stockholder vote,
potentially in a manner that you do not support, including amendments to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. If
our initial stockholders purchase any
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units in this offering or if we or our initial stockholders purchase any additional shares of common stock in the aftermarket or in
privately negotiated transactions, this would increase their control. Neither our sponsor nor, to our knowledge, any of our officers
or directors, has any current intention to purchase additional securities, other than as disclosed in this prospectus. Factors that
would be considered in making such additional purchases would include consideration of the current trading price of our common
stock. In addition, our board of directors, whose members were elected by our initial stockholders, is and will be divided into three
classes, each of which will generally serve for a term of three years with only one class of directors being elected in each year. It is
unlikely that there will be an annual meeting of stockholders to elect new directors prior to the completion of a business
combination, in which case all of the current directors will continue in office until at least the completion of the business
combination. If there is an annual meeting, as a consequence of our “staggered” board of directors, only a minority of the board of
directors will be considered for election and our sponsor, because of its ownership position, will have considerable influence
regarding the outcome. Accordingly, our sponsor will continue to exert control at least until the completion of our initial business
combination.

Our initial stockholders paid an aggregate of $25,000, or approximately $0.01 per founder share and, accordingly, you will
experience immediate and substantial dilution from the purchase of our common stock.

The difference between the public offering price per share (allocating all of the unit purchase price to the common stock and
none to the warrant included in the unit) and the pro forma net tangible book value per share of our common stock after this
offering constitutes the dilution to you and the other investors in this offering. Our initial stockholders acquired the founder shares
at a nominal price, significantly contributing to this dilution. Upon closing of this offering, and assuming no value is ascribed to
the warrants included in the units, you and the other public stockholders will incur an immediate and substantial dilution of
approximately 89.7% or $8.97 per share (the difference between the pro forma net tangible book value per share of $1.03 and the
initial offering price of $10.00 per unit).

We may amend the terms of the warrants in a manner that may be adverse to holders with the approval by the holders of at least
65% of the then outstanding public warrants.

Our warrants will be issued in registered form under a warrant agreement between American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
LLC, as warrant agent, and us. The warrant agreement provides that the terms of the warrants may be amended without the
consent of any holder to cure any ambiguity or correct any defective provision, but requires the approval by the holders of at least
65% of the then outstanding public warrants to make any change that adversely affects the interests of the registered holders.
Accordingly, we may amend the terms of the warrants in a manner adverse to a holder if holders of at least 65% of the then
outstanding public warrants approve of such amendment. Although our ability to amend the terms of the warrants with the consent
of at least 65% of the then outstanding warrants is unlimited, examples of such amendments could be amendments to, among other
things, increase the exercise price of the warrants, shorten the exercise period or decrease the number of shares of our common
stock purchasable upon exercise of a warrant.

We may redeem your unexpired warrants prior to their exercise at a time that is disadvantageous to you, thereby making your
warrants worthless.

We have the ability to redeem outstanding warrants at any time after they become exercisable and prior to their expiration, at a
price of $0.01 per warrant, provided that the last reported sales price of the common stock equals or exceeds $17.50 per share for
any 20 trading days within a 30 trading-day period ending on the third trading day prior to proper notice of such redemption
provided that on the date we give notice of redemption and during the entire period thereafter until the time we redeem the
warrants, we have an effective registration statement under the Securities Act covering the shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of the warrants and a current prospectus relating to them is available, unless they may be exercised on a cashless basis and
such cashless exercise is exempt from registration under the Securities Act. If and when the warrants become redeemable by us, we
may exercise our redemption right even if we are unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable
state securities laws. Redemption of the
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outstanding warrants could force you (i) to exercise your warrants and pay the exercise price therefor at a time when it may be
disadvantageous for you to do so, (ii) to sell your warrants at the then-current market price when you might otherwise wish to hold
your warrants or (iii) to accept the nominal redemption price which, at the time the outstanding warrants are called for redemption,
is likely to be substantially less than the market value of your warrants. None of the sponsor warrants will be redeemable by us so
long as they are held by the sponsor or its permitted transferees.

Our warrants may have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and make it more difficult to effectuate a
business combination.

We will be issuing warrants to purchase 17,500,000 shares of our common stock (or up to 20,125,000 shares of common stock
if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised) as part of the units offered by this prospectus and, simultaneously with the
closing of this offering, we will be issuing in a private placement an aggregate of 7,000,000 sponsor warrants, each exercisable to
purchase one share of common stock at $11.50 per share. In addition, if the sponsor makes any working capital loans, it may
convert those loans into up to an additional 666,667 sponsor warrants, at the price of $0.75 per warrant. To the extent we issue
shares of common stock to effectuate a business transaction, the potential for the issuance of a substantial number of additional
shares of common stock upon exercise of these warrants could make us a less attractive acquisition vehicle to a target business.
Such warrants, when exercised, will increase the number of issued and outstanding shares of our common stock and reduce the
value of the shares of common stock issued to complete the business transaction. Therefore, our warrants may make it more
difficult to effectuate a business transaction or increase the cost of acquiring the target business.

The sponsor warrants are identical to the warrants sold as part of the units in this offering except that, so long as they are held
by our sponsor or its permitted transferees, (i) they will not be redeemable by us, (ii) they (including the common stock issuable
upon exercise of these warrants) may not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by the sponsor until
30 days after the completion of our initial business combination and (iii) they may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis.

The determination of the offering price of our units and the size of this offering is more arbitrary than the pricing of securities
and size of an offering of an operating company in a particular industry. You may have less assurance, therefore, that the
offering price of our units properly reflects the value of such units than you would have in a typical offering of an operating
company.

Prior to this offering there has been no public market for any of our securities. The public offering price of the units and the
terms of the warrants were negotiated between us and the underwriters. In determining the size of this offering, management held
customary organizational meetings with representatives of the underwriters, both prior to our inception and thereafter, with respect
to the state of capital markets, generally, and the amount the underwriters believed they reasonably could raise on our behalf.
Factors considered in determining the size of this offering, prices and terms of the units, including the common stock and warrants
underlying the units, include:

• the history and prospects of companies whose principal business is the acquisition of other companies;

• prior offerings of those companies;

• our prospects for acquiring an operating business at attractive values;

• a review of debt to equity ratios in leveraged transactions;

• our capital structure;

• an assessment of our management and their experience in identifying operating companies;

• general conditions of the securities markets at the time of this offering; and

• other factors as were deemed relevant.
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Although these factors were considered, the determination of our offering price is more arbitrary than the pricing of securities
of an operating company in a particular industry since we have no historical operations or financial results.

There is currently no market for our securities and a market for our securities may not develop, which would adversely affect
the liquidity and price of our securities.

There is currently no market for our securities. Stockholders therefore have no access to information about prior market history
on which to base their investment decision. Following this offering, the price of our securities may vary significantly due to one or
more potential business combinations and general market or economic conditions. Furthermore, an active trading market for our
securities may never develop or, if developed, it may not be sustained. You may be unable to sell your securities unless a market
can be established and sustained.

Because we must furnish our stockholders with target business financial statements, we may lose the ability to complete an
otherwise advantageous initial business combination with some prospective target businesses.

The federal proxy rules require that a proxy statement with respect to a vote on a business combination meeting certain
financial significance tests include historical and/or pro forma financial statement disclosure in periodic reports. We will include
the same financial statement disclosure in connection with our tender offer documents, whether or not they are required under the
tender offer rules. These financial statements may be required to be prepared in accordance with, or be reconciled to, accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, or international financial reporting standards, or IFRS,
depending on the circumstances, and the historical financial statements may be required to be audited in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), or PCAOB. These financial statement
requirements may limit the pool of potential target businesses we may acquire because some targets may be unable to provide such
statements in time for us to disclose such statements in accordance with federal proxy rules and complete our initial business
combination within the prescribed time frame.

If you are not an institutional investor, you may purchase our securities in this offering only if you reside within certain states
in which we will apply to have the securities registered. Although resales of our securities are exempt from state registration
requirements, state securities commissioners who view blank check offerings unfavorably may attempt to hinder resales in
their states.

We will offer and sell the units to retail customers only in Connecticut, Colorado, Delaware, the District of Columbia, Florida,
Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Louisiana, Minnesota, Missouri, New York, Rhode Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, Utah,
Virginia, Wisconsin and Wyoming. In states other than those listed above, we will apply to have the units registered for sale and
will not sell the units to retail customers in such states unless and until such registration is effective If you are not an “institutional
investor,” you must be a resident of one of these jurisdictions to purchase our securities in the offering. We may offer and sell the
units to institutional investors in every state, except Idaho, in this offering pursuant to an exemption provided for sales to these
investors under the blue sky laws of various states. The definition of an “institutional investor” varies from state to state but
generally includes financial institutions, broker-dealers, banks, insurance companies and other qualified entities. The National
Securities Markets Improvement Act of 1996, which is a federal statute, preempts the states from regulating transactions in certain
securities, which are referred to as “covered securities.” The resale of the units and, once they become separately transferable, the
common stock and warrants comprising the units are exempt from state registration requirements under the National Securities
Markets Improvement Act, because we will file periodic and annual reports under the Exchange Act. However, each state retains
jurisdiction to investigate and bring enforcement actions with respect to fraud or deceit, or unlawful conduct by a broker or dealer,
in connection with the sale of securities. Although we are not aware of a state having used these powers to prohibit or restrict
resales of securities issued by blank check companies generally, certain state securities commissioners view blank check
companies unfavorably and might use these powers, or threaten to use these powers, to hinder the resale of securities of blank
check companies in their state. For a complete discussion of the blue sky state securities laws and registrations affecting this
offering, please see the section entitled “Underwriting — State Blue Sky Information” below.
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Compliance obligations under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 may make it more difficult for us to effectuate a business
combination, require substantial financial and management resources, and increase the time and costs of completing an
acquisition.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, requires that we evaluate and report on our system
of internal controls beginning with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2012. Only in the event we
are deemed to be a large accelerated filer or an accelerated filer will we be required to have our system of internal controls audited.
The fact that we are a blank check company makes compliance with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act particularly
burdensome on us as compared to most other public companies because a target company with which we seek to complete a
business combination may not be in compliance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding adequacy of its internal
controls. The development of the internal controls of any such entity to achieve compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act may
increase the time and costs necessary to complete any such acquisition.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and Delaware law may inhibit a takeover of us, which
could limit the price investors might be willing to pay in the future for our common stock and could entrench management.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions that may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals
that stockholders may consider to be in their best interests. These provisions include a staggered board of directors and the ability
of the board of directors to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred shares, which may make more difficult the
removal of management and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over prevailing
market prices for our securities.

We are also subject to anti-takeover provisions under Delaware law, which could delay or prevent a change of control.
Together these provisions may make more difficult the removal of management and may discourage transactions that otherwise
could involve payment of a premium over prevailing market prices for our securities.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements contained in this prospectus that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements. Our forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, statements regarding our or our management’s expectations, hopes, beliefs, intentions or
strategies regarding the future. In addition, any statements that refer to projections, forecasts or other characterizations of future
events or circumstances, including any underlying assumptions, are forward-looking statements. The words “anticipate,”
“believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intends,” “may,” “might,” “plan,” “possible,” “potential,” “predict,”
“project,” “should,” “would” and similar expressions may identify forward-looking statements, but the absence of these words
does not mean that a statement is not forward-looking. Forward-looking statements in this prospectus may include, for example,
statements about:

• our ability to complete our initial business combination;

• our success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors following our initial
business combination;

• our officers and directors allocating their time to other businesses and potentially having conflicts of interest with our
business or in approving our initial business combination, as a result of which they would then receive expense
reimbursements;

• our potential ability to obtain additional financing to complete our initial business combination;

• our pool of prospective target businesses;

• the ability of our officers and directors to generate a number of potential investment opportunities;

• our public securities’ potential liquidity and trading;

• the lack of a market for our securities;

• the use of proceeds not held in the trust account or available to us from interest income on the trust account balance; or

• our financial performance following this offering.

The forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus are based on our current expectations and beliefs concerning
future developments and their potential effects on us. There can be no assurance that future developments affecting us will be
those that we have anticipated. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks, uncertainties (some of which are
beyond our control) or other assumptions that may cause actual results or performance to be materially different from those
expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, those
factors described under the heading “Risk Factors” beginning on page 21. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties
materialize, or should any of our assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary in material respects from those projected in
these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We are offering 17,500,000 units at an offering price of $10.00 per unit. We estimate that the net proceeds of this offering
together with the funds we will receive from the sale of the sponsor warrants (all of which will be deposited into the trust account)
will be used as set forth in the following table.   

 Without Over-
Allotment Option

 Over-Allotment
Option

Exercised
Gross proceeds           
Gross proceeds from units offered to public(1)  $ 175,000,000  $201,250,000 
Gross proceeds from sponsor warrants offered in the private placement   5,250,000   5,250,000 
Total gross proceeds  $ 180,250,000  $206,500,000 

Offering expenses(2)           
Underwriting commissions (2% of gross proceeds from units offered to

public, excluding deferred portion)(3)
 $ 3,500,000  $ 4,025,000 

Legal fees and expenses   300,000   300,000 
Printing and engraving expenses   60,000   60,000 
Accounting fees and expenses   40,000   40,000 
Blue Sky filing fees   40,000   40,000 
SEC/FINRA Expenses   43,990   43,990 
Travel and road show   60,000   60,000 
Directors’ and officers’ insurance   100,000   100,000 
Miscellaneous   106,010   106,010 
Total offering expenses  $ 750,000  $ 750,000 
Proceeds after offering expenses  $ 176,000,000  $201,725,000 

Held in trust account(3)  $ 175,000,000  $200,725,000 
% of public offering size   100%   99.7% 
Not held in trust account  $ 1,000,000  $ 1,000,000 

The following table shows the use of the $1,000,000 of net proceeds not held in the trust account and up to an additional
$1,750,000, subject to proportionate adjustment in the event the size of the offering changes as a result of the underwriters’
exercise of any portion of the over-allotment option or we otherwise decide to make such a change prior to the effectiveness of the
registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, of interest earned on our trust account (net of income and franchise
taxes payable) that may be released to us to cover operating expenses(4).   

 Amount  % of
Total

Legal, accounting, due diligence, travel, and other expenses in connection with any
business combination(5)

  1,800,000   65.5% 

Legal and accounting fees related to regulatory reporting obligations   110,000   4.0% 
Payment for office space, administrative and support services   240,000   8.7% 
Printing   50,000   1.8% 
Consulting and travel for search for business combination target   400,000   14.5% 
Working capital to cover miscellaneous expenses   150,000   5.5% 
Total   2,750,000   100.0% 

(1) Includes amounts payable to public stockholders who properly redeem their shares in connection with our successful completion
of our initial business combination.

(2) In addition, a portion of the offering expenses have been paid from the proceeds of loans from our sponsor of up to $200,000 as
described in this prospectus. These loans will be repaid upon completion of this offering out of the $750,000 of offering
proceeds that has been allocated for the payment of offering expenses other than underwriting commissions. In the event that
offering expenses are less than set forth in this table, any such amounts will be used for post-closing working capital expenses.
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(3) The underwriters have agreed to defer underwriting commissions equal to 3.5% of the gross proceeds of this offering, or
approximately $6,125,000 in the aggregate, until completion of our initial business combination. If the aggregate gross proceeds
to us from this offering (including pursuant to the exercise of the underwriters’ overallotment option) exceed $200,000,000, the
aggregate underwriting commissions will be increased to 6.0% of the gross proceeds of this offering, with 4.0% being deferred
and placed into the trust account. The deferred commissions will be released to the underwriters only on completion of an initial
business combination, as described in this prospectus. The remaining funds in the trust account will be released to us and can be
used to pay all or a portion of the purchase price of the business or businesses with which our initial business combination
occurs or for general corporate purposes, including repayment of any loans made by our sponsor or affiliates of our sponsor,
payment of principal or interest on indebtedness incurred in connection with our initial business combination, to fund the
purchases of other companies or for working capital.

(4) These expenses are estimates only. Our actual expenditures for some or all of these items may differ from the estimates set forth
herein. For example, we may incur greater legal and accounting expenses than our current estimates in connection with
negotiating and structuring a business combination based upon the level of complexity of such business combination. In the
event we identify an acquisition target in a specific industry subject to specific regulations, we may incur additional expenses
associated with legal due diligence and the engagement of special legal counsel. In addition, our staffing needs may vary and as
a result, we may engage a number of consultants to assist with legal and financial due diligence. We do not anticipate any
change in our intended use of proceeds, other than fluctuations among the current categories of allocated expenses, which
fluctuations, to the extent they exceed current estimates for any specific category of expenses, would not be available for our
expenses. The amount of interest available to us from the trust account may be less than $1,750,000 as a result of the current
interest rate environment.

(5) Includes estimated amounts that may also be used in connection with our initial business combination to fund a “no shop”
provision and commitment fees for financing.

A total of approximately $175,000,000 (or approximately $200,725,000 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised
in full) of the net proceeds from this offering and the sale of the sponsor warrants described in this prospectus, including
approximately $6,125,000 (or approximately $8,050,000 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) of deferred
underwriting commissions, will be placed in a trust account at Citibank, N.A. with American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
LLC acting as trustee and will be invested only in U.S. government treasury bills with a maturity of 180 days or less or in money
market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act. Our amended and restated certificate
of incorporation provides that, except for a portion of the interest income that may be released to us to pay any income and
franchise taxes and to fund our working capital requirements, as discussed below, and any amounts necessary to purchase up to
15% of our public shares if we seek stockholder approval of our business combination, none of the funds held in the trust account
will be released until the earlier of (i) the completion of our initial business combination or (ii) the redemption of 100% of our
public shares if we are unable to complete a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months
from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is
executed before the 21-month period ends (subject to the requirements of law).

We may increase the initial amount held in the trust account from approximately $10.00 per unit prior to the effectiveness of
the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. In such case, the increase would be funded by an increase in the
amount of the deferral of the underwriting commissions payable in connection with this offering, an increase in the number of
sponsor warrants to be purchased by our sponsor at a price of $0.75 per warrant and/or a reduction from $1,000,000 of the amount
initially available to us for working capital that is not held in the trust account. Public stockholders would own a smaller
percentage of our outstanding common stock on a fully diluted basis to the extent that our sponsor purchases additional warrants.
We do not intend to reduce the initial amount to be held in the trust account.

The net proceeds held in the trust account may be used as consideration to pay the sellers of a target business with which we
ultimately complete a business combination. If our initial business combination is paid for using stock or debt securities, or not all
of the funds released from the trust account are used for payment of the purchase price in connection with our business
combination, we may apply the cash released
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from the trust account that is not applied to the purchase price for general corporate purposes, including for maintenance or
expansion of operations of acquired businesses, the payment of principal or interest due on indebtedness incurred in completing
the initial business combination, to fund the purchase of other companies or for working capital.

We believe that amounts not held in trust, as well as the interest income of up to $1,750,000, subject to proportionate
adjustment in the event the size of the offering changes as a result of the underwriters’ exercise of any portion of the over-
allotment option or we otherwise decided to make such a change prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement of which
this prospectus forms a part, earned on the trust account balance (net of franchise and income taxes payable) that may be released
to fund our working capital requirements will be sufficient to pay the costs and expenses to which such proceeds are allocated. This
belief is based on the fact that while we may begin preliminary due diligence of a target business in connection with an indication
of interest, we intend to undertake in-depth due diligence, depending on the circumstances of the relevant prospective acquisition,
only after we have negotiated and signed a letter of intent or other preliminary agreement that addresses the terms of a business
combination. However, if our estimate of the costs of undertaking in-depth due diligence and negotiating a business combination is
less than the actual amount necessary to do so, or the amount of interest available to use from the trust account is less than
$1,750,000 as a result of the current interest rate environment, we may be required to raise additional capital, the amount,
availability and cost of which is currently unascertainable. As described elsewhere in this prospectus, the amounts in the trust
account may be invested only in U.S. government treasury bills with a maturity of 180 days or less or in money market funds
meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act. If, for example, the amounts in the trust account
were invested for a 24-month period in U.S. government treasury bills with 180-day maturities yielding 0.18% per annum, they
would generate a total of approximately $631,000 in pre-tax interest (or approximately $727,000 in pre-tax interest if the over-
allotment option is exercised in full). If the actual yields are higher, a greater amount of pre-tax interest would be generated.
Conversely, if the actual yields are lower, or if (as we expect) interest generated by the amounts in the trust account is withdrawn
from time to time, a lesser amount of pre-tax interest would be generated. If we are required to seek additional capital, we could
seek such additional capital through loans or additional investments from members of our management team, but such members of
our management team are not under any obligation to advance funds to, or invest in, us. If the underwriters exercise their over-
allotment option or the size of this offering is increased, the maximum amount of interest income we may withdraw from the trust
account will proportionately increase (for example, if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, the size of the
offering will increase by 15%, and the maximum amount of interest income we may withdraw from the trust account will increase
to $2,012,500). In addition, if the size of this offering is decreased, the maximum amount of interest income we may withdraw
from the trust account will proportionately decrease. We will use any proportionate increase in interest income to cover our
working capital expenses. While we currently do not know what our future working capital expenses will be and while they will
not necessarily be proportionate to the size of the offering, we believe that any additional interest income released to us would
facilitate our ability to finance the exploration and consideration of a greater number of potential acquisition targets.

Commencing on the date that our securities are first quoted on the OTCBB, we have agreed to pay Roscomare Ltd., an entity
owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, our chairman and chief executive officer, a total of $10,000 per month for office space,
administrative services and secretarial support. This arrangement is being agreed to by Mr. Sloan for our benefit and is not
intended to provide Mr. Sloan compensation in lieu of salary or other remuneration. In addition, we will pay Mr. Graf, or an entity
owned and controlled by him, a monthly consulting fee of $15,000 for services prior to the completion of our initial business
combination. We believe that such fees are at least as favorable as we could have obtained from an unaffiliated person. Upon
completion of our initial business combination or our liquidation, we will cease paying these monthly fees.

Prior to the closing of this offering, our sponsor has agreed to loan us up to $200,000 to be used for a portion of the expenses of
this offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due at the earlier of August 1, 2011 or the closing of this
offering. The loan will be repaid upon the closing of this offering out of the $750,000 of offering proceeds that has been allocated
to the payment of offering expenses.
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In addition, in order to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination, our sponsor or an
affiliate of our sponsor or certain of our officers and directors may, but are not obligated to, loan us funds as may be required. If
we complete an initial business combination, we would repay such loaned amounts out of the proceeds of the trust account
released to us. Otherwise, such loans would be repaid only out of funds held outside the trust account. In the event that the initial
business combination does not close, we may use a portion of the working capital held outside the trust account to repay such
loaned amounts but no proceeds from our trust account would be used to repay such loaned amounts. Up to $500,000 of such loans
may be convertible into warrants of the post business combination entity at a price of $0.75 per warrant at the option of the lender.
The warrants would be identical to the sponsor warrants. The terms of such loans by our officers and directors, if any, have not
been determined and no written agreements exist with respect to such loans.

Unlike many blank check companies, if we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination and we do not
conduct redemptions in connection with our business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, prior to the completion of a
business combination, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will permit the release to us from the trust account of
amounts necessary to purchase up to 15% of the shares sold in this offering (2,625,000 shares, or 3,018,750 shares if the over-
allotment option is exercised in full) at any time commencing after the filing of a preliminary proxy statement for our initial
business combination and ending on the date of the stockholder meeting to approve the initial business combination. Purchases
will be made only in open market transactions at times when we are not in possession of any material non-public information and
may not be made during a restricted period under Regulation M under the Exchange Act. It is intended that these purchases will
comply with Rule 10b-18 under the Exchange Act, which provides a safe harbor for purchases made under certain conditions,
including with respect to the manner of sale (sales are required to be effected through one broker on a single day, subject to certain
exceptions), timing (purchases are subject to certain restrictions at the beginning and end of the trading session), pricing (the
purchase price may not exceed the highest independent bid or the last independent transaction price, whichever is higher) and
volume of purchases (the total volume of Rule 10b-18 purchases effected by us or any affiliated purchasers effected on any single
day generally must not exceed 25% of the average daily trading volume of the shares). If the conditions of Rule 10b-18, as in
effect at the time we wish to make such purchases, are not satisfied, we may still make such purchases provided such purchases do
not violate the anti-manipulation provisions of Section 9(a)(2) of the Exchange Act or Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the
Exchange Act. Any purchases we make will be at prices (inclusive of commissions) not to exceed the per-share amount then held
in the trust account (approximately $10.00 per share or approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is
exercised in full). Any difference between the prices we pay and the per-share amount then held in the trust account will remain in
the trust account and will be available for distribution to our remaining public stockholders upon any subsequent redemption of our
public shares. We can purchase any or all of the 2,625,000 shares (or 3,018,750 shares if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is
exercised in full) we are entitled to purchase. It will be entirely in our discretion as to how many shares are purchased. Purchasing
decisions will be made based on various factors, including the then current market price of our common stock and the terms of the
proposed business combination. All shares purchased by us will be immediately cancelled. Such open market purchases, if any,
would be conducted by us to minimize any disparity between the then current market price of our common stock and the per-share
amount held in the trust account. A market price below the per-share trust amount could provide an incentive for purchasers to buy
our shares after the filing of our preliminary proxy statement at a discount to the per-share amount held in the trust account for the
sole purpose of voting against our initial business combination and exercising redemption rights for the full per share amount held
in the trust account. Such trading activity could enable such investors to block a business combination by making it difficult for us
to obtain the approval of such business combination by the vote of a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock.

If we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection with our
business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, we may enter into privately negotiated transactions to purchase public
shares from stockholders following completion of the initial business combination with proceeds released to us from the trust
account immediately following completion of the initial business combination. Our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their
affiliates may also purchase shares in privately negotiated transactions either prior to or following the completion of our initial
business
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combination. Neither we nor our directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates will make any such purchases when we or they are
in possession of any material non-public information not disclosed to the seller. Although we do not currently anticipate paying
any premium purchase price for such public shares, in the event we do, the payment of a premium may not be in the best interest of
those stockholders not receiving any such additional consideration. In addition, the payment of a premium by us after the
completion of our initial business combination may not be in the best interest of the remaining stockholders who do not redeem
their shares. Such stockholders will experience a reduction in book value per share compared to the value received by stockholders
that have their shares purchased by us at a premium. Nevertheless, because any payment of a premium by us will be made only
from proceeds released to us from the trust account following completion of a business combination, no such payments will reduce
the per share amounts available in the trust account for redemptions in connection with the business combination. Except for the
limitations described above on use of trust proceeds released to us prior to completing our initial business combination, there is no
limit on the amount of shares that could be acquired by us or our affiliates, or the price we or they may pay, if we hold a
stockholder vote.

We may not redeem our public shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less than $5,000,001 (so that
we are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules) and the agreement for our business combination may require as a closing
condition that we have a minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash. If too many public stockholders exercise their
redemption rights so that we cannot satisfy the net tangible asset requirement or any net worth or cash requirements, we would not
proceed with the redemption of our public shares or the business combination, and instead may search for an alternate business
combination.

A public stockholder will be entitled to receive funds from the trust account only upon the earlier to occur of: (i) our
completion of an initial business combination, and then only in connection with those shares of our common stock that such
stockholder properly elected to redeem, subject to the limitations described herein or (ii) the redemption of our public shares if we
are unable to complete an initial business combination within 21 months following the closing of this offering, or 24 months from
the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is
executed before the 21-month period ends, subject to applicable law and as further described herein. In no other circumstances
will a public stockholder have any right or interest of any kind to or in the trust account.

Our initial stockholders have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in
connection with the completion of a business combination. In addition, our initial stockholders have agreed to waive their
redemption rights with respect to their founder shares if we fail to complete a business combination within 21 months from the
closing of this offering or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a
prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends (subject to the requirements of law).
However, if our initial stockholders, or any of our officers, directors or affiliates acquire public shares in or after this offering, they
will be entitled to redemption rights with respect to such public shares if we fail to complete a business combination within the
required time period.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock to date and do not intend to pay cash dividends prior to the
completion of an initial business combination. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be dependent upon our revenues
and earnings, if any, capital requirements and general financial condition subsequent to completion of an initial business
combination. The payment of any cash dividends subsequent to an initial business combination will be within the discretion of our
board of directors at such time. In addition, our board of directors is not currently contemplating and does not anticipate declaring
any stock dividends in the foreseeable future, except if we increase the size of the offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the
Securities Act, in which case we will effect a stock dividend immediately prior to the completion of the offering in such amount as
to maintain our initial stockholders’ ownership at 18.0% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock upon the
completion of this offering. Further, if we incur any indebtedness in connection with a business combination, our ability to declare
dividends may be limited by restrictive covenants we may agree to in connection therewith.
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DILUTION

The difference between the public offering price per share of common stock, assuming no value is attributed to the warrants
included in the units we are offering pursuant to this prospectus or the sponsor warrants, and the pro forma net tangible book value
per share of our common stock after this offering constitutes the dilution to investors in this offering. Such calculation does not
reflect any dilution associated with the sale and exercise of warrants, including the sponsor warrants, which would cause the actual
dilution to the public stockholders to be higher, particularly where a cashless exercise is utilized. In addition, such calculation does
not reflect any dilution associated with purchases we may make prior to the completion of our initial business combination of up to
15% of the shares sold in this offering using the trust proceeds. Net tangible book value per share is determined by dividing our net
tangible book value, which is our total tangible assets less total liabilities (including the value of common stock which may be
redeemed for cash), by the number of outstanding shares of our common stock.

At February 4, 2011, our net tangible book value was a deficiency of $(5,000), or approximately $(0.01) per share of common
stock. After giving effect to the sale of 17,500,000 shares of common stock included in the units we are offering by this prospectus,
the sale of the sponsor warrants and the deduction of underwriting commissions and estimated expenses of this offering, our pro
forma net tangible book value at February 4, 2011 would have been $5,000,010 or $1.03 per share, representing an immediate
increase in net tangible book (as decreased by the value of the approximately 16,488,999 shares of common stock that may be
redeemed for cash and assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) value of $8.98 per share to our initial
stockholders as of the date of this prospectus and an immediate dilution of $10.00 per share or 100.0% to our public stockholders
not exercising their redemption rights.

The following table illustrates the dilution to the public stockholders on a per-share basis, assuming no value is attributed to the
warrants included in the units or the sponsor warrants:   
Public offering price       $ 10.00 
Net tangible book value before this offering  $ (0.01)      
Increase attributable to public stockholders  $ 8.98      
Decrease attributable to public shares subject to redemption   (10.00)    
Pro forma net tangible book value after this offering and the sale of the sponsor

warrants
    $ (1.03) 

Dilution to public stockholders     $ 8.97 

For purposes of presentation, we have reduced our pro forma net tangible book value after this offering (assuming no exercise
of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) by $164,889,990 because holders of up to approximately 94% of our public shares may
redeem their shares for a pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account at a per share redemption price
equal to the amount in the trust account as set forth in our tender offer or proxy materials (initially anticipated to be the aggregate
amount held in trust two days prior to the commencement of our tender offer or stockholders meeting, including interest less
franchise and income taxes payable), divided by the number of shares of common stock sold in this offering.

The following table sets forth information with respect to our initial stockholders and the public stockholders:     
 Shares Purchased  Total Consideration  Average

Price
per Share

   Number  Percentage  Amount  Percentage

Initial Stockholders(1)   3,841,463   18.0%  $ 25,000   0.01%  $ 0.01 
Public Stockholders   17,500,000   82.0%   175,000,000   99.99%  $ 10.00 
    21,341,463   100.0%  $ 175,025,000   100.0%    

(1) Assumes an aggregate of 576,220 shares held by our initial stockholders have been forfeited.
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The pro forma net tangible book value per share after the offering is calculated as follows: 
Numerator:      

Net tangible book value before this offering  $ (5,000) 
Proceeds from this offering and sale of the sponsor warrants, net of expenses  $ 176,000,000 
Offering costs excluded from net tangible book value before this offering  $ 20,000 
Less: deferred underwriters’ commissions payable  $ (6,125,000) 
Less: amount of common stock subject to redemption to maintain net tangible

assets of $5,000,001
 $(164,889,990) 

   $ 5,000,010 
Denominator:      

Shares of common stock outstanding prior to this offering   4,417,683 
Shares forfeited if over-allotment is not exercised   (576,220) 
Shares of common stock included in the units offered   17,500,000 
Less: shares subject to redemption to maintain net tangible assets of $5,000,001   (16,488,999) 

    4,852,464 
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization at February 4, 2011, and as adjusted to give effect to the filing of our amended
and restated certificate of incorporation, the sale of our units and the sponsor warrants and the application of the estimated net
proceeds derived from the sale of such securities:   

 February 4, 2011
   Actual  As Adjusted(1)

Deferred underwriting commissions  $ —  $ 6,125,000 
Loans payable to affiliate(2)   25,000   — 
Common stock, subject to redemption(3)   —   164,889,990 
Stockholder’s equity (deficit):           
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized; none

issued or outstanding
  —   — 

Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized;
4,417,683 shares issued and outstanding; 400,000,000 shares
authorized; 21,341,463 shares issued and outstanding, as adjusted

  442   2,134 

Additional paid-in capital   24,558   5,007,876 
Deficit accumulated during the development stage   (10,000)   (10,000) 
Total stockholder’s equity   15,000   5,000,010 
Total capitalization  $ 40,000  $176,015,000 

(1) Includes the $5,250,000 we will receive from the sale of the sponsor warrants.

(2) Loans payable to affiliate were made pursuant to a promissory note issued in an amount up to $200,000 in the aggregate to our
sponsor. The note is non-interest bearing and is payable on the earlier of August 1, 2011 or the completion of this offering.

(3) Upon the completion of our initial business combination, we will provide our stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their
public shares for cash equal to their pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account, including interest
less franchise and income taxes payable, subject to the limitations described herein whereby our net tangible assets will be
maintained at a minimum of $5,000,001.

(1) Assumes the over-allotment option has not been exercised and an aggregate of 576,220 founder shares held by our initial
stockholders have been forfeited, but no forfeiture of the founder earnout shares.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We are a blank check company formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock
purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses. We have not identified any acquisition
target and we have not, nor has anyone on our behalf, initiated any substantive discussions directly or indirectly, with respect to
identifying any acquisition target. We intend to effectuate our initial business combination using cash from the proceeds of this
offering and the private placement of the sponsor warrants, our capital stock, debt or a combination of cash, stock and debt.

The issuance of additional shares of our stock in a business combination:

• may significantly dilute the equity interest of investors in this offering;

• may subordinate the rights of holders of common stock if preferred stock is issued with rights senior to those afforded our
common stock;

• could cause a change in control if a substantial number of shares of our common stock is issued, which may affect, among
other things, our ability to use our net operating loss carry forwards, if any, and could result in the resignation or removal of
our present officers and directors;

• may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of us by diluting the stock ownership or voting rights or a
person seeking to obtain control of us; and

• may adversely affect prevailing market prices for our common stock and/or warrants.

Similarly, if we issue debt securities, such issuance could result in:

• default and foreclosure on our assets if our operating revenues after an initial business combination are insufficient to repay
our debt obligations;

• acceleration of our obligations to repay the indebtedness even if we make all principal and interest payments when due if we
breach certain covenants that require the maintenance of certain financial ratios or reserves without a waiver or
renegotiation of that covenant;

• our immediate payment of all principal and accrued interest, if any, if the debt security is payable on demand;

• our inability to obtain necessary additional financing if the debt security contains covenants restricting our ability to obtain
such financing while the debt security is outstanding;

• our inability to pay dividends on our common stock;

• using a substantial portion of our cash flow to pay principal and interest on our debt, which will reduce the funds available
for dividends on our common stock if declared, expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general corporate
purposes;

• limitations on our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business and in the industry in which we operate;

• increased vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry and competitive conditions and adverse changes in
government regulation; and

• limitations on our ability to borrow additional amounts for expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service
requirements, execution of our strategy and other purposes and other disadvantages compared to our competitors who have
less debt.

As indicated in the accompanying financial statements, at February 4, 2011, we had $50,000 in cash and deferred offering costs
of $20,000. Further, we expect to continue to incur significant costs in the pursuit of our acquisition plans. We cannot assure you
that our plans to raise capital or to complete our initial business combination will be successful.
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Results of Operations and Known Trends or Future Events

We have neither engaged in any operations nor generated any revenues to date. Our only activities since inception have been
organizational activities and those necessary to prepare for this offering. Following this offering, we will not generate any
operating revenues until after completion of our initial business combination. We will generate non-operating income in the form
of interest income on cash and cash equivalents after this offering. There has been no significant change in our financial or trading
position and no material adverse change has occurred since the date of our audited financial statements. After this offering, we
expect to incur increased expenses as a result of being a public company (for legal, financial reporting, accounting and auditing
compliance), as well as for due diligence expenses. We expect our expenses to increase substantially after the closing of this
offering.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity needs have been satisfied to date through receipt of $25,000 from the sale of the founder shares to our sponsor
and loans from our sponsor in an aggregate amount up to $200,000. We estimate that the net proceeds from (i) the sale of the units
in this offering, after deducting offering expenses of approximately $750,000, but including deferred underwriting commissions of
approximately $6,125,000 (or approximately $8,050,000 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full), and (ii) the
sale of the sponsor warrants for a purchase price of $5,250,000, will be approximately $175,000,000 (or approximately
$200,725,000 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full). Approximately $175,000,000 (or approximately
$200,725,000 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full), will be held in the trust account, which includes
approximately $6,125,000 (or approximately $8,050,000 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) of deferred
underwriting commissions. The remaining $1,000,000 will not be held in the trust account. In the event that our offering expenses
exceed our estimate of $750,000, we may fund such excess with funds from the $1,000,000 not to be held in the trust account. In
such case, the amount of funds we intend to be held outside the trust account would decrease by a corresponding amount.
Conversely, in the event that the offering expenses are less than our estimate of $750,000, the amount of funds we intend to be
held outside the trust account would increase by a corresponding amount.

We intend to use substantially all of the funds held in the trust account, including any amounts representing interest earned on
the trust account (net of franchise and income taxes payable and deferred underwriting commissions) to complete our initial
business combination. We may use interest earned on the trust account to pay franchise taxes and income taxes. We estimate our
annual franchise tax obligations, based on the number of shares of our common stock authorized and outstanding after the
completion of this offering, to be $180,000, which is the maximum amount of annual franchise taxes payable by us as a Delaware
corporation. Our annual income tax obligations will depend on the amount of interest and other income earned on the amounts
held in the trust account. To the extent that our capital stock or debt is used, in whole or in part, as consideration to complete our
initial business combination, the remaining proceeds held in the trust account will be used as working capital to finance the
operations of the target business or businesses, make other acquisitions and pursue our growth strategies.

Prior to the completion of our initial business combination, we will have available to us the $1,000,000 of proceeds held
outside the trust account and up to $1,750,000, subject to adjustment as described below, in interest income on the balance of the
trust account (net franchise and income taxes payable) that will be released to us to fund our working capital requirements. We will
use these funds to identify and evaluate target businesses, perform business due diligence on prospective target businesses, travel
to and from the offices, plants or similar locations of prospective target businesses or their representatives or owners, review
corporate documents and material agreements of prospective target businesses, and structure, negotiate and complete a business
combination. If the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option or the size of this offering is increased, the maximum amount
of interest income we may withdraw from the trust account will proportionately increase. In addition, if the size of this offering is
decreased, the maximum amount of interest income we may withdraw from the trust account will proportionately decrease.
Assuming a 15% increase in the size of this offering, the per share redemption or liquidation amount could decrease by as much as
approximately $0.03.
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In addition, in order to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination, our sponsor or an
affiliate of our sponsor or certain of our officers and directors may, but are not obligated to, loan us funds as may be required. If
we complete an initial business combination, we would repay such loaned amounts. In the event that the initial business
combination does not close, we may use a portion of the working capital held outside the trust account to repay such loaned
amounts but no proceeds from our trust account would be used for such repayment, other than the interest on such proceeds that
may be released to us for working capital purposes. Up to $500,000 of such loans may be convertible into warrants of the post
business combination entity at a price of $0.75 per warrant at the option of the lender. The warrants would be identical to the
sponsor warrants. The terms of such loans by our officers and directors, if any, have not been determined and no written
agreements exist with respect to such loans.

We expect our primary liquidity requirements during that period to include approximately $1,800,000 for legal, accounting,
due diligence, travel and other expenses associated with structuring, negotiating and documenting successful business
combinations; $10,000 per month for up to 24 months for office space, administrative and support services payable to Roscomare
Ltd., an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, our chairman and chief executive officer; $110,000 for legal and accounting
fees related to regulatory reporting requirements; $50,000 for printing; $400,000 for consulting and travel for the search for a
business combination target; and approximately $150,000 for general working capital that will be used for miscellaneous expenses
and reserves.

These amounts are estimates and may differ materially from our actual expenses. In addition, we could use a portion of the
funds not being placed in trust to pay commitment fees for financing, fees to consultants to assist us with our search for a target
business or as a down payment or to fund a “no-shop” provision (a provision designed to keep target businesses from “shopping”
around for transactions with other companies on terms more favorable to such target businesses) with respect to a particular
proposed business combination, although we do not have any current intention to do so. If we entered into an agreement where we
paid for the right to receive exclusivity from a target business, the amount that would be used as a down payment or to fund a “no-
shop” provision would be determined based on the terms of the specific business combination and the amount of our available
funds at the time. Our forfeiture of such funds (whether as a result of our breach or otherwise) could result in our not having
sufficient funds to continue searching for, or conducting due diligence with respect to, prospective target businesses.

We do not believe we will need to raise additional funds following this offering in order to meet the expenditures required for
operating our business. However, if our estimates of the costs of identifying a target business, undertaking in-depth due diligence
and negotiating an initial business combination are less than the actual amounts necessary to do so, or the amount of interest
available to us from the trust account is less than $1,750,000 as a result of the current interest rate environment, we may have
insufficient funds available to operate our business prior to our initial business combination. Moreover, we may need to obtain
additional financing either to complete our initial business combination or because we become obligated to redeem a significant
number of our public shares upon completion of our initial business combination, in which case we may issue additional securities
or incur debt in connection with such business combination. Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, we would only
complete such financing simultaneously with the completion of our initial business combination. In the current economic
environment, it has become especially difficult to obtain acquisition financing. If we are unable to complete our initial business
combination because we do not have sufficient funds available to us, we will be forced to cease operations and liquidate the trust
account. In addition, following our initial business combination, if cash on hand is insufficient, we may need to obtain additional
financing in order to operate our business.

Controls and Procedures

We are not currently required to maintain an effective system of internal controls as defined by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act. We will be required to comply with the internal control requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2012. Only in the event we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer or an accelerated filer will we be
required to have our system of internal controls audited. As of the date of this prospectus, we have not completed an assessment,
nor have our auditors tested our systems, of internal controls. We expect to assess the internal controls of our target business or
businesses prior to the completion of our initial business combination and, if necessary, to implement and test additional
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controls as we may determine are necessary in order to state that we maintain an effective system of internal controls. A target
business may not be in compliance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding the adequacy of internal controls.
Many small and mid-sized target businesses we may consider for a business combination may have internal controls that need
improvement in areas such as:

• staffing for financial, accounting and external reporting areas, including segregation of duties;

• reconciliation of accounts;

• proper recording of expenses and liabilities in the period to which they relate;

• evidence of internal review and approval of accounting transactions;

• documentation of processes, assumptions and conclusions underlying significant estimates; and

• documentation of accounting policies and procedures.

Because it will take time, management involvement and perhaps outside resources to determine what internal control
improvements are necessary for us to meet regulatory requirements and market expectations for our operation of a target business,
we may incur significant expense in meeting our public reporting responsibilities, particularly in the areas of designing,
enhancing, or remediating internal and disclosure controls. Doing so effectively may also take longer than we expect, thus
increasing our exposure to financial fraud or erroneous financing reporting.

Once our management’s report on internal controls is complete, we will render an opinion on such report when required by
Section 404.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The net proceeds of this offering, including amounts in the trust account, will be invested in U.S. government treasury bills
with a maturity of 180 days or less or in money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment
Company Act. Due to the short-term nature of these investments, we believe there will be no associated material exposure to
interest rate risk.

Related Party Transactions

In February 2011, our sponsor purchased an aggregate of 4,417,683 founder shares for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000,
or approximately $0.01 per share. Subsequently, in March 2011, our sponsor transferred an aggregate of 44,176 founder shares to
Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, each of whom has agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the closing of this
offering. Harry E. Sloan, our chairman and chief executive officer, Jeff Sagansky, our president, and James A. Graf, our chief
financial officer, secretary and treasurer, are each members of our sponsor.

Commencing on the date that our securities are first quoted on the OTCBB, we have agreed to pay Roscomare Ltd., an entity
owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, our chairman and chief executive officer, a total of $10,000 per month for office space,
administrative services and secretarial support. This arrangement is being agreed to by Mr. Sloan for our benefit and is not
intended to provide Mr. Sloan compensation in lieu of salary or other remuneration. In addition, we will pay Mr. Graf, or an entity
owned and controlled by him, a monthly consulting fee of $15,000 for services prior to the completion of our initial business
combination. We believe that such fees are at least as favorable as we could have obtained from an unaffiliated person. Upon
completion of our initial business combination or our liquidation, we will cease paying these monthly fees.

Prior to the closing of this offering, our sponsor has agreed to loan us up to $200,000 to be used for a portion of the expenses of
this offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due at the earlier of August 1, 2011 or the closing of this
offering. The loan will be repaid upon the closing of this offering out of the $750,000 of offering proceeds that has been allocated
to the payment of offering expenses.

In addition, in order to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination, our sponsor or an
affiliate of our sponsor or certain of our officers and directors may, but are not obligated to, loan us funds as may be required. If
we complete an initial business combination, we would repay such loaned amounts. In the event that the initial business
combination does not close, we may use a
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portion of the working capital held outside the trust account to repay such loaned amounts but no proceeds from our trust account
would be used for such repayment, other than the interest that may be released to us for working capital purposes. Up to $500,000
of such loans may be convertible into warrants of the post business combination entity at a price of $0.75 per warrant at the option
of the lender. The warrants would be identical to the sponsor warrants. The terms of such loans by our officers and directors, if
any, have not been determined and no written agreements exist with respect to such loans.

Our sponsor has committed, pursuant to a written agreement, to purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 sponsor warrants at a price
of $0.75 per warrant ($5,250,000 in the aggregate) in a private placement that will occur simultaneously with the closing of this
offering. Each sponsor warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of our common stock at $11.50 per share. Our sponsor
will be permitted to transfer the sponsor warrants to our officers and directors, and other persons or entities affiliated with our
sponsor, but the transferees receiving such securities will be subject to the same agreements with respect to such securities as our
sponsor. Otherwise, these warrants will not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferable or salable by our sponsor until 30
days after the completion of our initial business combination. The sponsor warrants will be non-redeemable so long as they are
held by the sponsor or its permitted transferees. The sponsor warrants may also be exercised by our sponsor or their permitted
transferees for cash or on a cashless basis. Otherwise, the sponsor warrants have terms and provisions that are identical to those of
the warrants being sold as part of the units in this offering.

Pursuant to a registration rights agreement we will enter into with our initial stockholders and holders of the sponsor warrants
on or prior to the date of this prospectus, we may be required to register certain securities for sale under the Securities Act. These
stockholders are entitled under the registration rights agreement to make up to three demands that we register certain of our
securities held by them for sale under the Securities Act. In addition, these stockholders have the right to include their securities in
other registration statements filed by us. However, the registration rights agreement provides that we will not permit any
registration statement filed under the Securities Act to become effective until they are released from escrow, as described herein.
We will bear the costs and expenses of filing any such registration statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements; Commitments and Contractual Obligations; Quarterly Results

As of February 4, 2011, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K
and did not have any commitments or contractual obligations. No unaudited quarterly operating data is included in this prospectus
as we have conducted no operations to date.
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PROPOSED BUSINESS

Introduction

We are a newly organized blank check company formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset
acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses. We have not identified
any acquisition target and we have not, nor has anyone on our behalf, initiated any substantive discussions, directly or indirectly,
with respect to identifying any acquisition target.

Business Strategy

We will seek to capitalize on the substantial deal sourcing, investing and operating expertise of our management team to
indentify, acquire and operate media or entertainment businesses, including providers of content, with high growth potential in the
United States or internationally, although we may pursue acquisition opportunities in other industries. Our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation prohibits use from effectuating a business combination with another blank check company or similar
company with nominal operations.

Our chairman and chief executive officer, Harry E. Sloan, our president, Jeff Sagansky, and other members of our management
team have extensive operating and deal-making experience with prominent global media companies.

Mr. Sloan was appointed chairman and chief executive officer of MGM by a consortium comprised of private equity investors,
Comcast Corporation and Sony Corporation of America, one year after they agreed to acquire MGM through a leveraged buyout in
September 2004. He served as chairman and chief executive officer from October 2005 to August 2009, and thereafter continued
as non-executive chairman until January 2011. During his tenure, Mr. Sloan revived key MGM movie franchises, including James
Bond, Rocky and The Pink Panther, restarted and rebuilt MGM’s theatrical and television distribution and marketing units and
launched numerous MGM television channels in the United States and internationally. He currently is an outside consultant to
MGM pursuant to a consulting agreement which expires in October 2011. Prior to MGM, Mr. Sloan founded and operated SBS
serving as chairman and chief executive officer from 1990 until August 2001 and then executive chairman until October 2005.
Beginning with a personal investment of approximately $5,000,000, Mr. Sloan transformed SBS, through a series of acquisitions
and organic growth, into a leading pan-European broadcaster with, as of 2005, 16 television stations, 21 premium pay channels and
11 radio networks, reaching 100 million people. Mr. Sloan oversaw the initial public offering of SBS in 1993 and its eventual sale
to private investors in 2005 for $2.5 billion. Prior to founding SBS, Mr. Sloan served as co-chairman of New World, an
independent motion picture and television production company. Mr. Sloan led a group that originally purchased New World in
1983 for $2,000,000. Mr. Sloan extended the company’s business into television production, ultimately growing New World into
one of the largest producers of U.S. primetime television. Mr. Sloan led a number of transactions while at New World, including
New World’s initial public offering in 1985, its acquisition of Marvel Entertainment Group, Inc., in 1986, and New World’s sale to
private investors in 1989 for $260,000,000.

Jeff Sagansky brings 30 years of senior-level media and entertainment industry management experience. Mr. Sagansky
currently serves as co-founder and chairman of Winchester Capital Management LLC, a private motion picture and television
finance company. Mr. Sagansky was formerly chief executive officer and then vice chairman of Pax, from 1998 to 2003, where he
launched the PAX TV program network in 1998. Under his leadership, PAX TV became a highly rated family-friendly television
network with distribution growing from 60% of U.S. television households to almost 90% in only four years. In addition, Mr.
Sagansky drove substantial improvement in the network’s financial performance with compounded annual revenue growth of 24%
and compounded annual gross income growth of 30% from 1998 to 2002. Prior to joining Pax, Mr. Sagansky was co-president of
SPE from 1996 to 1998 where he was responsible for SPE’s strategic planning and worldwide television operations. While at SPE,
he spearheaded SPE’s acquisition, in partnership with Liberty Media Corporation and other investors, of Telemundo. The
transaction generated significant returns for SPE as Telemundo was sold to the National Broadcasting Company, Inc., for over six
times its original investment less than three years later. Previously, as executive vice president of SCA, Mr. Sagansky oversaw the
1997 merger of SCA’s Loews Theaters unit with the Cineplex Odeon Corporation to create one of the world’s largest movie
theater companies, and the highly successful U.S. launch of the Sony Playstation video game console. Prior to joining SCA, Mr.
Sagansky was president of CBS Entertainment from 1990 to 1994,
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where he engineered CBS’s ratings rise from third to first place in eighteen months. Mr. Sagansky previously served as president
of production and then president of TriStar Pictures, where he developed and oversaw production of a wide variety of successful
films.

We anticipate structuring a business combination to acquire 100% of the equity interests or assets of the target business or
businesses. We may, however, structure a business combination to acquire less than 100% of such interests or assets of the target
business, but we will only complete such business combination if we acquire 50% or more of the outstanding voting securities of
the target or are otherwise not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as
amended, or the Investment Company Act. Even if we own 50% or more of the voting securities of the target, our stockholders
prior to the business combination may collectively own a minority interest in the post business combination company, depending
on valuations ascribed to the target and us in the business combination transaction.

Our management team will focus on increasing stockholder value in our initial business combination. Consistent with this
strategy, we have identified the following general guidelines that we believe are important in evaluating prospective target
businesses. We will use these guidelines in evaluating acquisition opportunities, but we may decide to enter into a business
combination with a target business that does not meet these guidelines.

• Media and Entertainment Industry Targets.  We will seek to acquire a business involved in the media or entertainment
industries, including providers of content. We believe our management’s significant operating and deal-making experience
and relationships with companies in this space will give us with a number of competitive advantages and will present us
with a substantial number of potential business targets. The factors we will consider include growth prospects, competitive
dynamics, opportunities for consolidation, need for capital investment and barriers to entry. We will analyze the strengths
and weaknesses of target businesses relative to their competitors. We will seek to acquire one or more businesses that
demonstrate advantages when compared to their competitors, which may help to protect their market position and
profitability.

• High-Growth Markets.  We will seek out opportunities in faster-growing segments of developed markets and emerging
international markets. Our management has extensive experience operating media businesses and leading transactions in
international markets. We will focus on assets that currently are undervalued or inefficiently managed, which we believe
may be more likely to exist internationally, where our management is well-positioned to unlock their value.

• Business with Revenue and Earnings Growth Potential.  We will seek to acquire one or more businesses that have
multiple, diverse potential drivers of revenue and earnings growth, including but not limited to a combination of
development, production, digital and distribution capabilities.

• Companies with Potential for Strong Free Cash Flow Generation.  We will seek to acquire one or more businesses that
have the potential to generate strong and stable free cash flow.

These general guidelines are not intended to be exhaustive. Any evaluation relating to the merits of a particular initial business
combination may be based, to the extent relevant, on these general guidelines as well as other considerations, factors and criteria
that our management may deem relevant. In addition, although we intend to focus on identifying business combination candidates
in the media or entertainment sectors and we will not initially actively seek to identify business combination candidates in other
sectors, we will consider a business combination outside of the media or entertainment industries if a business combination
candidate is presented to us and we determine that such candidate offers an attractive investment opportunity for our company or
we are unable to identify a suitable candidate in the media or entertainment industries after having expended a reasonable amount
of time and effort in an attempt to do so.

In evaluating a prospective target business, we expect to conduct an extensive due diligence review which will encompass,
among other things, meetings with incumbent management and employees, document reviews, interviews of customers and
suppliers, inspections of facilities, as well as review of financial and other information which will be made available to us.
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Sourcing of Potential Acquisition Targets
Over the course of their careers, the members of our management team have developed a broad network of contacts and

corporate relationships around the world. This network has been developed and strengthened through our management team
sourcing, acquiring and financing businesses, the reputation of our management team for integrity and fair dealing with sellers,
financing sources and target management teams and the experience of our management team in executing transactions under
varying economic and financial market conditions.

In addition, members of our management team have developed contacts from serving on the boards of directors of prominent
media companies. For example, Mr. Sloan was appointed to serve on the board of PRISA, Spain’s largest media conglomerate,
after its 2010 business combination with Liberty Acquisition Corp. (which was a blank check company), and he has been a director
of ZeniMax Media Inc., an independent producer of interactive gaming and web content, since 1999. Previously, Mr. Sloan held
directorships at Lions Gate Entertainment Corp., an independent motion picture and television production company and ProSieben
Sat.1 Media AG, a European media conglomerate which acquired SBS in 2007. Mr. Sagansky serves on the board of Scripps
Networks Interactive, Inc., a publicly traded lifestyle media company, and was brought in to serve as non-executive chairman of
the board at RHI Entertainment, Inc., a producer of original made-for-television movies and miniseries, by its largest shareholder.
He previously served on the boards of American Media Inc., an owner and operator of celebrity and health & fitness media
publications, and Lions Gate Entertainment. In his capacity as an active private investor, Mr. Sagansky maintains board positions
on a number of private media and entertainment companies.

This network has provided our management team with a flow of referrals that has resulted in numerous transactions which were
proprietary or where a limited group of investors were invited to participate in the sale process. We believe that the network of
contacts and relationships of our management team will provide us with an important source of investment opportunities. In
addition, we anticipate that target business candidates will be brought to our attention from various unaffiliated sources, including
investment market participants, private equity funds and large business enterprises seeking to divest non-core assets or divisions.

We are not prohibited from pursuing an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated with our
sponsor, officers or directors or making the acquisition through a joint venture or other form of shared ownership with our sponsor,
officers or directors. In the event we seek to complete an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated
with our sponsor, officers or directors, we, or a committee of independent directors, would obtain an opinion from an independent
investment banking firm which is a member of FINRA, that such an initial business combination is fair to our company from a
financial point of view. We are not required to obtain such an opinion in any other context.

Each of our officers has agreed, pursuant to a written agreement with us, that until the earliest of our initial business
combination, our redemption of 100% of our public shares if we do not complete our initial business combination within 21
months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement
relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, or such time as he ceases to be
an officer, to present to us for our consideration, prior to presentation to any other entity, any business combination opportunity
with a target business having an enterprise value of $100,000,000 or more, subject to any pre-existing fiduciary or contractual
obligations he might have, currently or in the future in respect of the companies to which he currently has fiduciary duties or
contractual obligations. As more fully discussed in “Management — Conflicts of Interest,” if any of our officers becomes aware of
a business combination opportunity that falls within the line of business of any entity to which he has pre-existing fiduciary or
contractual obligations, he may be required to present such business combination opportunity to such entity prior to presenting
such business combination opportunity to us. All of our officers currently have certain relevant fiduciary duties or contractual
obligations that may take priority over their duties to us. In addition, our officers have agreed not to participate in the formation of,
or become an officer or director of, any blank check company until we have entered into a definitive agreement regarding our
initial business combination or we have failed to complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame.

64

 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Status as a public company
We believe our structure will make us an attractive business combination partner to target businesses. As an existing public

company, we offer a target business an alternative to the traditional initial public offering through a merger or other business
combination. In this situation, the owners of the target business would exchange their shares of stock in the target business for
shares of our stock or for a combination of shares of our stock and cash, allowing us to tailor the consideration to the specific needs
of the sellers. Although there are various costs and obligations associated with being a public company, we believe target
businesses will find this method a more certain and cost effective method to becoming a public company than the typical initial
public offering. In a typical initial public offering, there are additional expenses incurred in marketing, road show and public
reporting efforts that may not be present to the same extent in connection with a business combination with us.

Furthermore, once a proposed business combination is completed, the target business will have effectively become public,
whereas an initial public offering is always subject to the underwriters’ ability to complete the offering, as well as general market
conditions, which could prevent the offering from occurring. Once public, we believe the target business would then have greater
access to capital and an additional means of providing management incentives consistent with stockholders’ interests. It can offer
further benefits by augmenting a company’s profile among potential new customers and vendors and aid in attracting talented
employees.

Financial position
With funds available for a business combination initially in the amount of approximately $175,000,000 after payment of

approximately $6,125,000 of deferred underwriting fees (or $200,725,000 after payment of approximately $8,050,000 of deferred
underwriting fees if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full), we offer a target business a variety of options such
as creating a liquidity event for its owners, providing capital for the potential growth and expansion of its operations or
strengthening its balance sheet by reducing its debt ratio. Because we are able to complete a business combination using our cash,
debt or equity securities, or a combination of the foregoing, we have the flexibility to use the most efficient combination that will
allow us to tailor the consideration to be paid to the target business to fit its needs and desires. However, we have not taken any
steps to secure third party financing and there can be no assurance it will be available to us.

Effecting our initial business combination

General
We are not presently engaged in, and we will not engage in, any operations for an indefinite period of time following this

offering. We intend to effectuate our initial business combination using cash from the proceeds of this offering and the private
placement of the sponsor warrants, our capital stock, debt or a combination of these as the consideration to be paid in our initial
business combination. We may seek to complete our initial business combination with a company or business that may be
financially unstable or in its early stages of development or growth, which would subject us to the numerous risks inherent in such
companies and businesses.

If our initial business combination is paid for using stock or debt securities, or not all of the funds released from the trust
account are used for payment of the purchase price in connection with our business combination or used for redemptions of
purchases of our common stock, we may apply the cash released to us from the trust account that is not applied to the purchase
price for general corporate purposes, including for maintenance or expansion of operations of acquired businesses, the payment of
principal or interest due on indebtedness incurred in completing our initial business combination, to fund the purchase of other
companies or for working capital.

We have not identified any acquisition target and we have not, nor has anyone on our behalf, initiated any substantive
discussions with respect to identifying any acquisition target. From the period prior to our formation through the date of this
prospectus, there have been no communications or discussions between any of our officers, directors or our sponsor and any of
their potential contacts or relationships regarding a potential initial business combination. Additionally, we have not engaged or
retained any agent or other
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representative to identify or locate any suitable acquisition candidate, to conduct any research or take any measures, directly or
indirectly, to locate or contact a target business.

Because, unlike many blank check companies, we do not have the limitation that a target business have a minimum fair market
enterprise value of the net assets held in the trust account at the time of our signing a definitive agreement in connection with our
initial business combination, we will have virtually unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting one or more prospective
target businesses. Accordingly, there is no current basis for investors in this offering to evaluate the possible merits or risks of the
target business with which we may ultimately complete our initial business combination. Although our management will assess the
risks inherent in a particular target business with which we may combine, we cannot assure you that this assessment will result in
our identifying all risks that a target business may encounter. Furthermore, some of those risks may be outside of our control,
meaning that we can do nothing to control or reduce the chances that those risks will adversely impact a target business.

We may seek to raise additional funds through a private offering of debt or equity securities in connection with the completion
of our initial business combination, and we may effectuate an initial business combination using the proceeds of such offering
rather than using the amounts held in the trust account. Subject to compliance with applicable securities laws, we would complete
such financing only simultaneously with the completion of our business combination. In the case of an initial business
combination funded with assets other than the trust account assets, our tender offer documents or proxy materials disclosing the
business combination would disclose the terms of the financing and, only if required by law, we would seek stockholder approval
of such financing. There are no prohibitions on our ability to raise funds privately or through loans in connection with our initial
business combination. At this time, we are not a party to any arrangement or understanding with any third party with respect to
raising any additional funds through the sale of securities or otherwise.

Sources of target businesses
We anticipate that target business candidates will be brought to our attention from various unaffiliated sources, including

investment bankers, private investment funds and other members of the financial community. Target businesses may be brought to
our attention by such unaffiliated sources as a result of being solicited by us through calls or mailings. These sources may also
introduce us to target businesses in which they think we may be interested on an unsolicited basis, since many of these sources
will have read this prospectus and know what types of businesses we are targeting. Our officers and directors, as well as their
affiliates, may also bring to our attention target business candidates that they become aware of through their business contacts as a
result of formal or informal inquiries or discussions they may have, as well as attending trade shows or conventions. In addition,
we expect to receive a number of proprietary deal flow opportunities that would not otherwise necessarily be available to us as a
result of the track record and business relationships of our officers and directors. While we do not presently anticipate engaging
the services of professional firms or other individuals that specialize in business acquisitions on any formal basis, we may engage
these firms or other individuals in the future, in which event we may pay a finder’s fee, consulting fee or other compensation to be
determined in an arm’s length negotiation based on the terms of the transaction. We will engage a finder only to the extent our
management determines that the use of a finder may bring opportunities to us that may not otherwise be available to us or if finders
approach us on an unsolicited basis with a potential transaction that our management determines is in our best interest to pursue.
Payment of finder’s fees is customarily tied to completion of a transaction, in which case any such fee will be paid out of the funds
held in the trust account. In no event, however, will our sponsor or any of our existing officers or directors, or any entity with
which they are affiliated, be paid any finder’s fee, consulting fee or other compensation prior to, or for any services they render in
order to effectuate, the completion of our initial business combination (regardless of the type of transaction that it is). None of our
sponsor, officers, directors and any of their respective affiliates will be allowed to receive any compensation, finder’s fees or
consulting fees from a prospective acquisition target in connection with a contemplated acquisition of such target by us. Although
some of our officers and directors may enter into employment or consulting agreements with the acquired business following our
initial business combination, the presence or absence of any such arrangements will not be used as a criteria in our selection
process of an acquisition candidate.
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We are not prohibited from pursuing an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated with our
sponsor, officers or directors or making the acquisition through a joint venture or other form of shared ownership with our sponsor,
officers or directors. In the event we seek to complete an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated
with our sponsor, officers or directors, we, or a committee of independent directors, would obtain an opinion from an independent
investment banking firm which is a member of FINRA, that such an initial business combination is fair to our company from a
financial point of view. We are not required to obtain such an opinion in any other context.

Selection of a target business and structuring of our initial business combination
Because, unlike many blank check companies, we do not have the limitation that a target business have a minimum fair market

enterprise value equal to a specified percentage of the net assets held in the trust account at the time of our signing a definitive
agreement in connection with our initial business combination, our management will have virtually unrestricted flexibility in
identifying and selecting one or more prospective target businesses, although we will not be permitted to effectuate our initial
business combination with another blank check company or a similar company with nominal operations. In any case, we will only
complete an initial business combination in which we acquire 50% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the target or are
otherwise not required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act. There is no basis for investors in
this offering to evaluate the possible merits or risks of any target business with which we may ultimately complete a business
combination. To the extent we effect a business combination with a company or business that may be financially unstable or in its
early stages of development or growth, we may be affected by numerous risks inherent in such company or business. Although our
management will endeavor to evaluate the risks inherent in a particular target business, we cannot assure you that we will properly
ascertain or assess all significant risk factors.

In evaluating a prospective target business, we expect to conduct an extensive due diligence review which will encompass,
among other things, meetings with incumbent management and employees, document reviews, interviews of customers and
suppliers, inspection of facilities, as well as review of financial and other information which will be made available to us.

The time required to select and evaluate a target business and to structure and complete our initial business combination, and
the costs associated with this process, are not currently ascertainable with any degree of certainty. Any costs incurred with respect
to the identification and evaluation of a prospective target business with which a business combination is not ultimately completed
will result in our incurring losses and will reduce the funds we can use to complete another business combination. We will not pay
any finders or consulting fees to members of our management team, or any of their respective affiliates, for services rendered to or
in connection with a business combination.

Lack of business diversification
For an indefinite period of time after completion of our initial business combination, the prospects for our success may depend

entirely on the future performance of a single business. Unlike other entities that have the resources to complete business
combinations with multiple entities in one or several industries, it is probable that we will not have the resources to diversify our
operations and mitigate the risks of being in a single line of business. By completing a business combination with only a single
entity, our lack of diversification may:

• subject us to negative economic, competitive and regulatory developments, any or all of which may have a substantial
adverse impact on the particular industry in which we operate after our initial business combination, and

• cause us to depend on the marketing and sale of a single product or limited number of products or services.

Limited ability to evaluate the target’s management team
Although we intend to closely scrutinize the management of a prospective target business when evaluating the desirability of

effecting a business combination with that business, our assessment of the target business’s management may not prove to be
correct. In addition, the future management may not have the necessary skills, qualifications or abilities to manage a public
company. Furthermore, the future role of

67

 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

members of our management team, if any, in the target business cannot presently be stated with any certainty. While it is possible
that one or more of our directors will remain associated in some capacity with us following a business combination, it is unlikely
that any of them will devote their full efforts to our affairs subsequent to a business combination. Moreover, we cannot assure you
that members of our management team will have significant experience or knowledge relating to the operations of the particular
target business. We cannot assure you that any of our key personnel will remain in senior management or advisory positions with
the combined company. The determination as to whether any of our key personnel will remain with the combined company will be
made at the time of our initial business combination.

Following a business combination, we may seek to recruit additional managers to supplement the incumbent management of
the target business. We cannot assure you that we will have the ability to recruit additional managers, or that additional managers
will have the requisite skills, knowledge or experience necessary to enhance the incumbent management.

Stockholders may not have the ability to approve a business combination
We intend to conduct redemptions without a stockholder vote pursuant to the tender offer rules of the SEC. Therefore we do

not intend to seek stockholder approval before we effect our initial business combination as not all business combinations require
stockholder approval under applicable state law. However, we will seek stockholder approval, if it is required by law, or we may
decide to seek stockholder approval for business or other legal reasons. Presented in the table below is a graphic explanation of the
types of initial business combinations we may consider and whether stockholder approval is currently required under Delaware
law for each such transaction.  
Type of Transaction  Whether

Stockholder
Approval is

Required
Purchase of assets   No 
Purchase of stock of target not involving a merger with the company   No 
Merger of target into a subsidiary of the company   No 
Merger of the company with a target   Yes 

Permitted purchases of our securities
If we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in connection with our

business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, prior to the completion of a business combination, our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation will permit the release to us from the trust account amounts necessary to purchase up to 15% of
the shares sold in this offering (2,625,000 shares, or 3,018,750 shares if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full) at any time commencing after the filing of a preliminary proxy statement for our initial business combination and ending on
the date of the stockholder meeting to approve the initial business combination. Purchases will be made only in open market
transactions at times when we are not in possession of any material non-public information and may not be made during a
restricted period under Regulation M under the Exchange Act. It is intended that these purchases will comply with Rule 10b-18
under the Exchange Act, which provides a safe harbor for purchases made under certain conditions, including with respect to the
manner of sale (sales are required to be effected through one broker on a single day, subject to certain exceptions), timing
(purchases are subject to certain restrictions at the beginning and end of the trading session), pricing (the purchase price may not
exceed the highest independent bid or the last independent transaction price, whichever is higher) and volume of purchases (the
total volume of Rule 10b-18 purchases effected by us or any affiliated purchasers effected on any single day generally must not
exceed 25% of the average daily trading volume of the shares). If the conditions of Rule 10b-18, as in effect at the time we wish to
make such purchases, are not satisfied, we may still make such purchases provided such purchases do not violate the anti-
manipulation provisions of Section 9(a)(2) of the Exchange Act or Rule 10b-5 promulgated under the Exchange Act. Any
purchases we make will be at prices (inclusive of commissions) not to exceed the per-share amount then held in the trust account
(approximately $10.00 per share or approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full).
Any difference between the prices we pay and the per-share amount then held in the trust account will remain in the trust account
and will be available for distribution to our remaining public stockholders upon any subsequent redemption of our public shares.
We can purchase any or all of the
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2,625,000 shares (or 3,018,750 shares if the over-allotment option is exercised in full) we are entitled to purchase. It will be
entirely in our discretion as to how many shares are purchased. Purchasing decisions will be made based on various factors,
including the then current market price of our common stock and the terms of the proposed business combination. All shares
purchased by us will be immediately cancelled. Such open market purchases, if any, would be conducted by us to minimize any
disparity between the then current market price of our common stock and the per-share amount held in the trust account. A market
price below the per-share trust amount could provide an incentive for purchasers to buy our shares after the filing of our
preliminary proxy statement at a discount to the per-share amount held in the trust account for the sole purpose of voting against
our initial business combination and exercising redemption rights for the full per-share amount held in the trust account. Such
trading activity could enable such investors to block a business combination by making it difficult for us to obtain the approval of
such business combination by the vote of a majority of our outstanding shares of common stock that are voted.

In addition, in the event we seek stockholder approval of our business combination and we do not conduct redemptions in
connection with our business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, we may enter into privately negotiated transactions to
purchase public shares following the completion of the business combination from stockholders who would have otherwise
elected to have their shares redeemed in conjunction with a proxy solicitation pursuant to the proxy rules for a per-share pro rata
portion of the trust account. Our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates may also purchase shares in privately
negotiated transactions either prior to or following the completion of our initial business combination. Neither we nor our
directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates will make any such purchases when we or they are in possession of any material non-
public information not disclosed to the seller. Such a purchase would include a contractual acknowledgement that such
stockholder, although still the record holder of our shares is no longer the beneficial owner thereof and therefore agrees not to
exercise its redemption rights. In the event that we or our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates purchase shares in
privately negotiated transactions from public stockholders who have already elected to exercise their redemption rights, such
selling stockholders would be required to revoke their prior elections to redeem their shares.

The purpose of such purchases would be to (i) increase the likelihood of obtaining stockholder approval of the business
combination or (ii), where the purchases are made by our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates, to satisfy a closing
condition in an agreement with a target that requires us to have a minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash at the closing of
the business combination, where it appears that such requirement would otherwise not be met. This may result in the completion
of a business combination that may not otherwise have been possible.

As a consequence of any such purchases by us:

• the funds in our trust account that are so used will not be available to us after the business combination;

• the public “float” of our common stock may be reduced and the number of beneficial holders of our securities may be
reduced, which may make it difficult to obtain the quotation, listing or trading of our securities on a national securities
exchange;

• because the stockholders who sell their shares in a privately negotiated transaction or pursuant to market transactions as
described above may receive a per share purchase price payable from the trust account that is not reduced by a pro rata share
of the deferred underwriting commissions or franchise or income taxes payable, our remaining stockholders may bear the
entire payment of such deferred commissions and franchise or income taxes payable (as well as, in the case of purchases
which occur prior to the completion of our initial business combination, up to $100,000 of net interest that may be released
to us from the trust account to fund our dissolution expenses in the event we do not complete our initial business
combination within the prescribed time frame). That is, if we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination,
the redemption price per share payable to public stockholders who elect to have their shares redeemed will be reduced by a
larger percentage of the franchise or income taxes payable than it would have been in the absence of
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such privately negotiated or market transactions, and stockholders who do not elect to have their shares redeemed and
remain our stockholders after the business combination will bear the economic burden of the deferred commissions and
franchise or income taxes payable because such amounts will be payable by us; and

• the payment of any premium would result in a reduction in book value per share for the remaining stockholders compared to
the value received by stockholders that have their shares purchased by us at a premium.

Our sponsor, officers, directors and/or their affiliates anticipate that they will identify the stockholders with whom our sponsor,
officers, directors or their affiliates may pursue privately negotiated purchases by either the stockholders contacting us directly or
by our receipt of redemption requests submitted by stockholders following our mailing of tender offer materials in connection with
our initial business combination. To the extent that our sponsor, officers, directors, advisors or their affiliates enter into a private
purchase, they would identify and contact only potential selling stockholders who have expressed their election to redeem their
shares for a pro rata share of the trust account or vote against the business combination. Pursuant to the terms of such
arrangements, any shares so purchased by our sponsor, officers, advisors, directors and/or their affiliates would then revoke their
election to redeem such shares. The terms of such purchases would operate to facilitate our ability to complete a proposed business
combination by potentially reducing the number of shares redeemed for cash.

Redemption rights for public stockholders upon completion of our initial business combination
We will provide our stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their shares upon the completion of our initial business

combination at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account, including
interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable, divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, subject to the
limitations described herein. The amount in the trust account is initially anticipated to be approximately $10.00 per public share, or
approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full. Our initial stockholders have
agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and any public shares they may hold in connection with
the completion of a business combination.

Manner of Conducting Redemptions
Unlike many blank check companies that hold stockholder votes and conduct proxy solicitations in conjunction with their

initial business combinations and provide for related redemptions of public shares for cash upon completion of such initial
business combinations even if not required by law, if a stockholder vote is not required by law and we do not decide to hold a
stockholder vote for business or other legal reasons, we will, pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation:

• conduct the redemptions pursuant to Rule 13e-4 and Regulation 14E of the Exchange Act, which regulate issuer tender
offers, and

• file tender offer documents with the SEC prior to completing our initial business combination which will contain
substantially the same financial and other information about the initial business combination and the redemption rights as is
required under Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act, which regulates the solicitation of proxies, and we will not be
permitted to complete our initial business combination until the expiration of the tender offer period.

In the event we conduct redemptions pursuant to the tender offer rules, our offer to redeem shall remain open for at least 20
business days, in accordance with Rule 14e-1(a) under the Exchange Act. In addition, the tender offer will be conditioned on
public stockholders not tendering more than a specified number of public shares, which number will be based on the requirement
that we may not redeem public shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less than $5,000,001 (so that we
are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules) or any greater net tangible asset or cash requirement which may be contained in
the agreement relating to our initial business combination. If public stockholders tender more shares than we have offered to
purchase, we will withdraw the tender offer and not complete the initial business combination.

When we conduct a tender offer to redeem our public shares upon completion of our initial business combination, in order to
comply with the tender offer rules, the offer will be made to all of our stockholders,
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not just our public stockholders. Our initial stockholders have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder
shares and public shares in connection with any such tender offer.

If, however, stockholder approval of the transaction is required by law, or we decide to obtain stockholder approval for
business or other legal reasons, we will, pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation:

• conduct the redemptions in conjunction with a proxy solicitation pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act, which
regulates the solicitation of proxies, and not pursuant to the tender offer rules, and

• file proxy materials with the SEC.

In the event that we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination, we will distribute proxy materials and, in
connection therewith, provide our public stockholders with the redemption rights described above upon completion of the initial
business combination.

If we seek stockholder approval, we will complete our initial business combination only if a majority of the outstanding shares
of common stock voted are voted in favor of the business combination. In such case, our initial stockholders have agreed to vote
their founder shares in accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the public stockholders and to vote any public shares
purchased during or after the offering in favor of our initial business combination. Each public stockholder may elect to redeem
their public shares irrespective of whether they vote for or against the proposed transaction. In addition, our initial stockholders
have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in connection with the
completion of a business combination.

Many blank check companies would not be able to complete a business combination if the holders of the company’s public
shares voted against a proposed business combination and elected to redeem or convert more than a specified maximum
percentage of the shares sold in such company’s initial public offering, which percentage threshold has typically been between
19.99% and 39.99%. As a result, many blank check companies have been unable to complete business combinations because the
amount of shares voted by their public stockholders electing conversion exceeded the maximum conversion threshold pursuant to
which such company could proceed with a business combination. Since we have no such specified maximum redemption
threshold, our structure is different in this respect from the structure that has been used by many blank check companies. However,
we may not redeem our public shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less than $5,000,001 (so that we
are not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules) and the agreement for our business combination may require as a closing
condition that we have a minimum net worth or a certain amount of cash. If too many public stockholders exercise their
redemption rights so that we cannot satisfy the net tangible asset requirement or any net worth or cash requirements, we would not
proceed with the redemption of our public shares and the related business combination, and instead may search for an alternate
business combination.

Limitation on redemption rights upon completion of a business combination if we seek stockholder approval
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination and we do not conduct

redemptions in connection with our business combination pursuant to the tender offer rules, our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation provides that a public stockholder, together with any affiliate of such stockholder or any other person with whom
such stockholder is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange Act), will be restricted from
seeking redemption rights with respect to more than an aggregate of 10% of the shares sold in this offering. We believe this
restriction will discourage stockholders from accumulating large blocks of shares, and subsequent attempts by such holders to use
their ability to exercise their redemption rights as a means to force us or our management to purchase their shares at a significant
premium to the then-current market price or on other undesirable terms. Absent this provision, a public stockholder holding more
than an aggregate of 10% of the shares sold in this offering could threaten to exercise its redemption rights if such holder’s shares
are not purchased by us or our management at a premium to the then-current market price or on other undesirable terms. By
limiting our stockholders’ ability to redeem no more than 10% of the shares sold in this offering, we believe we will limit
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the ability of a small group of stockholders to unreasonably attempt to block our ability to complete a business combination,
particularly in connection with a business combination with a target that requires as a closing condition that we have a minimum
net worth or a certain amount of cash. However, we would not be restricting our stockholders’ ability to vote all of their shares for
or against a business combination.

Tendering stock certificates in connection with a tender offer or redemption rights
We may require our public stockholders seeking to exercise their redemption rights, whether they are record holders or hold

their shares in “street name,” to either tender their certificates to our transfer agent prior to the date set forth in the tender offer
documents or proxy materials mailed to such holders, or up to two business days prior to the vote on the proposal to approve the
business combination in the event we distribute proxy materials, or to deliver their shares to the transfer agent electronically using
Depository Trust Company’s DWAC (Deposit/Withdrawal At Custodian) System, at the holder’s option. The tender offer or proxy
materials, as applicable, that we will furnish to holders of our public shares in connection with our initial business combination
will indicate whether we are requiring public stockholders to satisfy such delivery requirements. Accordingly, a public stockholder
would have from the time we send out our tender offer materials until the close of the tender offer period, or up to two days prior
to the vote on the business combination if we distribute proxy materials, as applicable, to tender its shares if it wishes to seek to
exercise its redemption rights. Given the relatively short exercise period, it is advisable for stockholders to use electronic delivery
of their public shares.

There is a nominal cost associated with the above-referenced tendering process and the act of certificating the shares or
delivering them through the DWAC System. The transfer agent will typically charge the tendering broker $35.00 and it would be
up to the broker whether or not to pass this cost on to the redeeming holder. However, this fee would be incurred regardless of
whether or not we require holders seeking to exercise redemption rights to tender their shares. The need to deliver shares is a
requirement of exercising redemption rights regardless of the timing of when such delivery must be effectuated.

The foregoing is different from the procedures used by many blank check companies. In order to perfect redemption rights in
connection with their business combinations, many blank check companies would distribute proxy materials for the stockholders’
vote on an initial business combination, and a holder could simply vote against a proposed business combination and check a box
on the proxy card indicating such holder was seeking to exercise his redemption rights. After the business combination was
approved, the company would contact such stockholder to arrange for him to deliver his certificate to verify ownership. As a
result, the stockholder then had an “option window” after the completion of the business combination during which he could
monitor the price of the company’s stock in the market. If the price rose above the redemption price, he could sell his shares in the
open market before actually delivering his shares to the company for cancellation. As a result, the redemption rights, to which
stockholders were aware they needed to commit before the stockholder meeting, would become “option” rights surviving past the
completion of the business combination until the redeeming holder delivered its certificate. The requirement for physical or
electronic delivery prior to the meeting ensures that a redeeming holder’s election to redeem is irrevocable once the business
combination is approved.

Any request to redeem such shares, once made, may be withdrawn at any time up to the date set forth in the tender offer
materials or the date of the stockholder meeting set forth in our proxy materials, as applicable. Furthermore, if a holder of a public
share delivered its certificate in connection with an election of redemption rights and subsequently decides prior to the applicable
date not to elect to exercise such rights, such holder may simply request that the transfer agent return the certificate (physically or
electronically). It is anticipated that the funds to be distributed to holders of our public shares electing to redeem their shares will
be distributed promptly after the completion of a business combination.

If the initial business combination is not approved or completed for any reason, then our public stockholders who elected to
exercise their redemption rights would not be entitled to redeem their shares for the applicable pro rata share of the trust account. In
such case, we will promptly return any certificates delivered by public holders who elected to redeem their shares.

If our initial proposed business combination is not completed, we may continue to try to complete a business combination with
a different target until 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months
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from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is
executed before the 21-month period ends.

Redemption of public shares and liquidation if no initial business combination
Our sponsor, officers and directors have agreed that we will have only 21 months from the closing of this offering to complete

our initial business combination or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating
to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends. If we are unable to complete a business
combination within such time period, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that we will (i) cease all
operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days
thereafter, redeem 100% of the public shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit
in the trust account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest to pay
dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which redemption will completely extinguish
public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any), subject to
applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the trust account which is
received after such redemption shall be distributed to the former public stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible
following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining stockholders and our board of directors, dissolve and
liquidate, subject in each case to our obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of
other applicable law.

Our initial stockholders have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares if we fail to complete
a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter
of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period
ends. However, if our sponsor, or any of our officers, directors or affiliates acquire public shares in or after this offering, they will
be entitled to redemption rights with respect to such public shares if we fail to complete a business combination within the required
time period. There will be no redemption rights or liquidating distributions with respect to our warrants, which will expire
worthless in the event we do not complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame. We expect that all costs and
expenses associated with implementing our plan of dissolution, as well as payments to any creditors, will be funded from amounts
remaining out of the $1,000,000 of proceeds held outside the trust account and from the up to $1,750,000, subject to adjustment in
the event the size of the offering changes as a result of the underwriters’ exercise of any portion of the over-allotment option or if
we otherwise decide to change the size of this offering, in interest income on the balance of the trust account (net franchise and
income taxes payable) that will be released to us to fund our working capital requirements, although we cannot assure you that
there will be sufficient funds for such purpose. However, if those funds are not sufficient to cover the costs and expenses
associated with implementing our plan of dissolution, to the extent that there is any interest accrued in the trust account not
required to pay franchise and income taxes on interest income earned on the trust account balance, we may request the trustee to
release to us an additional amount of up to $100,000 of such accrued interest to pay those costs and expenses.

If we were to expend all of the net proceeds of this offering, other than the proceeds deposited in the trust account, and without
taking into account interest, if any, earned on the trust account, the per-share redemption amount received by stockholders upon
our dissolution would be approximately $10.00 (or approximately $9.97 if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full). The proceeds deposited in the trust account could, however, become subject to the claims of our creditors which would have
higher priority than the claims of our public stockholders. We cannot assure you that the actual per-share redemption amount
received by stockholders will not be less than approximately $10.00, plus interest (net of any franchise and income taxes payable).
Under Section 281(b) of the DGCL, our plan of dissolution must provide for all claims against us to be paid in full or make
provision for payments to be made in full, as applicable, if there are sufficient assets. These claims must be paid or provided for
before we make any distribution of our remaining assets to our stockholders. While we intend to pay such amounts, if any, we
cannot assure you that we will have funds sufficient to pay or provide for all creditors’ claims.
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Although we will seek to have all vendors, service providers, prospective target businesses or other entities with which we do
business execute agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the trust
account for the benefit of our public stockholders, there is no guarantee that they will execute such agreements or even if they
execute such agreements that they would be prevented from bringing claims against the trust account including but not limited to
fraudulent inducement, breach of fiduciary responsibility or other similar claims, as well as claims challenging the enforceability
of the waiver, in each case in order to gain an advantage with respect to a claim against our assets, including the funds held in the
trust account. If any third party refuses to execute an agreement waiving such claims to the monies held in the trust account, our
management will perform an analysis of the alternatives available to it and will only enter into an agreement with a third party that
has not executed a waiver if management believes that such third party’s engagement would be significantly more beneficial to us
than any alternative. Examples of possible instances where we may engage a third party that refuses to execute a waiver include
the engagement of a third party consultant whose particular expertise or skills are believed by management to be significantly
superior to those of other consultants that would agree to execute a waiver or in cases where management is unable to find a service
provider willing to execute a waiver. In addition, there is no guarantee that such entities will agree to waive any claims they may
have in the future as a result of, or arising out of, any negotiations, contracts or agreements with us and will not seek recourse
against the trust account for any reason. In order to protect the amounts held in the trust account, Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky have
agreed that they will be jointly and severally liable to us if and to the extent any claims by a vendor for services rendered or
products sold to us, or a prospective target business with which we have discussed entering into a transaction agreement, reduce
the amounts in the trust account to below $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per share if the underwriters’ over-allotment
option is exercised in full), except as to any claims by a third party who executed a waiver of any and all rights to seek access to
the trust account and except as to any claims under our indemnity of the underwriters of this offering against certain liabilities,
including liabilities under the Securities Act. In the event that an executed waiver is deemed to be unenforceable against a third
party, Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky will not be responsible to the extent of any liability for such third party claims. We cannot
assure you, however, that Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky would be able to satisfy those obligations. None of our officers will
indemnify us for claims by third parties including, without limitation, claims by vendors and prospective target businesses.

In the event that the proceeds in the trust account are reduced below $10.00 per public share (or approximately $9.97 per public
share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) and Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky assert that they are unable to
satisfy their joint and several indemnification obligations or that they have no indemnification obligations related to a particular
claim, our independent directors would determine whether to take legal action against Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky to enforce their
indemnification obligations. While we currently expect that our independent directors would take legal action on our behalf against
Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky to enforce their indemnification obligations to us, it is possible that our independent directors in
exercising their business judgment may choose not to do so in any particular instance. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that due
to claims of creditors the actual value of the per-share redemption price will not be less than $10.00 per public share (or
approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full).

We will seek to reduce the possibility that Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky will have to indemnify the trust account due to claims
of creditors by endeavoring to have all vendors, service providers, prospective target businesses or other entities with which we do
business execute agreements with us waiving any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to monies held in the trust account.
Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky will also not be liable as to any claims under our indemnity of the underwriters of this offering against
certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act. We will have access to up to $1,000,000 from the proceeds of this
offering, and the up to $1,750,000, subject to adjustment in the event the size of the offering changes as a result of the
underwriters’ exercise of any portion of the over-allotment option or if we otherwise decide to change the size of this offering, in
interest income on the balance of the trust account (net of franchise and income taxes payable) with which to pay any such
potential claims (including costs and expenses incurred in connection with our liquidation, currently estimated to be no more than
approximately $100,000). In the event that we liquidate and it is subsequently determined that the reserve for claims and liabilities
is insufficient, stockholders who received funds from our trust account could be liable for claims
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made by creditors. In the event that our offering expenses exceed our estimate of $750,000, we may fund such excess with funds
from the $1,000,000 not to be held in the trust account. In such case, the amount of funds we intend to be held outside the trust
account would decrease by a corresponding amount. Conversely, in the event that the offering expenses are less than our estimate
of $750,000, the amount of funds we intend to be held outside the trust account would increase by a corresponding amount.

Under the DGCL, stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against a corporation to the extent of distributions
received by them in a dissolution. The pro rata portion of our trust account distributed to our public stockholders upon the
redemption of 100% of our public shares in the event we do not complete our initial business combination within 21 months from
the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a
prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, may be considered a liquidation distribution
under Delaware law. If the corporation complies with certain procedures set forth in Section 280 of the DGCL intended to ensure
that it makes reasonable provision for all claims against it, including a 60-day notice period during which any third-party claims
can be brought against the corporation, a 90-day period during which the corporation may reject any claims brought, and an
additional 150-day waiting period before any liquidating distributions are made to stockholders, any liability of stockholders with
respect to a liquidating distribution is limited to the lesser of such stockholder’s pro rata share of the claim or the amount
distributed to the stockholder, and any liability of the stockholder would be barred after the third anniversary of the dissolution.

Furthermore, if the pro rata portion of our trust account distributed to our public stockholders upon the redemption of 100% of
our public shares in the event we do not complete our initial business combination within 21 months from the closing of this
offering or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial
business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, is not considered a liquidation distribution under Delaware law
and such redemption distribution is deemed to be unlawful, then pursuant to Section 174 of the DGCL, the statute of limitations for
claims of creditors could then be six years after the unlawful redemption distribution, instead of three years, as in the case of a
liquidation distribution. If we are unable to complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame, we will (i) cease all
operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days
thereafter, redeem 100% of the public shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit
in the trust account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest to pay
dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which redemption will completely extinguish
public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any), subject to
applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the trust account which is
received after such redemption shall be distributed to the former public stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible
following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining stockholders and our board of directors, dissolve and
liquidate, subject in each case to our obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of
other applicable law. Accordingly, it is our intention to redeem our public shares as soon as reasonably possible following our 21st

month, or 24th month, if applicable, and, therefore, we do not intend to comply with those procedures. As such, our stockholders
could potentially be liable for any claims to the extent of distributions received by them (but no more) and any liability of our
stockholders may extend well beyond the third anniversary of such date.

Because we will not be complying with Section 280, Section 281(b) of the DGCL requires us to adopt a plan, based on facts
known to us at such time that will provide for our payment of all existing and pending claims or claims that may be potentially
brought against us within the subsequent 10 years. However, because we are a blank check company, rather than an operating
company, and our operations will be limited to searching for prospective target businesses to acquire, the only likely claims to arise
would be from our vendors (such as lawyers, investment bankers, etc.) or prospective target businesses. As described above,
pursuant to the obligation contained in our underwriting agreement, we will seek to have all vendors, service providers,
prospective target businesses or other entities with which we do business execute agreements with us waiving any right, title,
interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the trust account. As a result of this obligation, the claims that could be
made against us are significantly limited and the likelihood

75

 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

that any claim that would result in any liability extending to the trust account is remote. Further, Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky may
be liable only to the extent necessary to ensure that the amounts in the trust account are not reduced below $10.00 per public share
(or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) less any per-share amounts
distributed from our trust account to our public stockholders in the event we are unable to complete a business combination within
21 months from the closing of this offering or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive
agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, and will not be
liable as to any claims under our indemnity of the underwriters of this offering against certain liabilities, including liabilities under
the Securities Act. In the event that an executed waiver is deemed to be unenforceable against a third party, Messrs. Sloan and
Sagansky will not be responsible to the extent of any liability for such third-party claims.

If we file a bankruptcy petition or an involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, the proceeds held
in the trust account could be subject to applicable bankruptcy law, and may be included in our bankruptcy estate and subject to the
claims of third parties with priority over the claims of our stockholders. To the extent any bankruptcy claims deplete the trust
account, we cannot assure you we will be able to return $10.00 per share to our public stockholders. Additionally, if we file a
bankruptcy petition or an involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, any distributions received by
stockholders could be viewed under applicable debtor/creditor and/or bankruptcy laws as either a “preferential transfer” or a
“fraudulent conveyance.” As a result, a bankruptcy court could seek to recover all amounts received by our stockholders.
Furthermore, our board may be viewed as having breached its fiduciary duty to our creditors and/or may have acted in bad faith,
and thereby exposing itself and our company to claims of punitive damages, by paying public stockholders from the trust account
prior to addressing the claims of creditors. We cannot assure you that claims will not be brought against us for these reasons.

Our public stockholders will be entitled to receive funds from the trust account only in the event of the redemption of 100% of
our public shares if we do not complete a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months
from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is
executed before the 21-month period ends, or if they redeem their respective shares for cash upon the completion of the initial
business combination. In no other circumstances will a stockholder have any right or interest of any kind to or in the trust account.
In the event we seek stockholder approval in connection with our initial business combination, a stockholder’s voting in
connection with the business combination alone will not result in a stockholder’s redeeming its shares to us for an applicable pro
rata share of the trust account. Such stockholder must have also exercised its redemption rights described above.

Comparison of redemption or purchase prices in connection with our initial business combination and if we fail to
complete a business combination.

The following table compares the redemptions and other permitted purchases of public shares that may take place in
connection with the completion of our initial business combination and if we are unable to complete an initial business
combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent
or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends.
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 Redemptions in Connection

with our Initial Business
Combination

 Other Permitted Purchases
of Public Shares by us or

our Affiliates

 Redemptions if we fail to
Complete an Initial Business

Combination
Calculation
of
redemption
price

 Redemptions at the time of
our initial business
combination may be made
pursuant to a tender offer or
in connection with a
stockholder vote. The
redemption price will be
the same whether we
conduct redemptions
pursuant to a tender offer or
in connection with a
stockholder vote. In either
case, our public
stockholders may redeem
their public shares for cash
equal to the aggregate
amount then on deposit in
the trust account (which is
initially anticipated to be
approximately $10.00 per
public share, or
approximately $9.97 per
public share if the
underwriters’ over-
allotment option is
exercised in full), including
interest less franchise and
income taxes payable,
divided by the number of
then outstanding public
shares, subject to the
limitation that no
redemptions will take place
if all of the redemptions
would cause our net
tangible assets to be less
than $5,000,001.

 If we seek stockholder approval of
our initial business combination
and we do not conduct redemptions
in connection with our business
combination pursuant to the tender
offer rules, prior to the completion
of a business combination, there
can be released to us from the trust
account amounts necessary to
purchase up to 15% of the shares
sold in this offering. Such
purchases would be at prices not to
exceed the per-share amount then
held in the trust account (which is
initially anticipated to be
approximately $10.00 per share or
approximately $9.97 per share if
the underwriters’ over-allotment
option is exercised in full). In
addition, if we seek stockholder
approval of our initial business
combination, we may enter into
privately negotiated transactions to
purchase public shares from
stockholders following completion
of the initial business combination
with proceeds released to us from
the trust account immediately
following completion of the initial
business combination. There is no
limit to the prices that we or our
sponsor, directors, officers,
advisors or their affiliates may pay
in these transactions.

 If we are unable to complete an
initial business combination
within 21 months from the
closing of this offering, or 24
months from the closing of this
offering if a letter of intent or
definitive agreement relating to
a prospective initial business
combination is executed before
the 21-month period ends, we
will redeem all public shares at
a per-share price, payable in
cash, equal to the aggregate
amount, then on deposit in the
trust account (which is initially
anticipated to be approximately
$10.00 per public share, or
approximately $9.97 per public
share if the underwriters’ over-
allotment option is exercised in
full), including interest less
franchise and income taxes
payable and less up to $100,000
of such net interest to pay
dissolution expenses, divided
by the number of then
outstanding public shares. In
addition we will be required to
distribute to the former public
stockholders any refund of
income taxes that were paid
from the trust account which is
received after such redemption.
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 Redemptions in

Connection
with our Initial

Business
Combination

 Other Permitted Purchases
of Public Shares by us or

our Affiliates

 Redemptions if we fail
to

Complete an Initial
Business

Combination
Impact to
remaining
stockholders

 The redemptions in
connection with
our initial business
combination will
reduce the book
value per share for
our remaining
stockholders, who
will bear the
burden of the
deferred
underwriting
commissions and
franchise and
income taxes
payable.

 If the permitted purchases described above are made
at prices not exceeding the per-share amount then held
in the trust account, these purchases will reduce the
book value per share for our remaining stockholders
following a business combination, who will bear the
burden of the deferred underwriting commissions and
franchise and income taxes payable. If we make these
purchases using funds released to us from the trust
account following completion of a business
combination at prices that are at a premium to the per-
share amount then held in the trust account, our
remaining stockholders will also experience a
reduction in book value per share to the extent of such
premiums.

 The redemption of
100% of our public
shares if we fail to
complete a
business
combination will
reduce the book
value per share for
the shares held by
our initial
stockholders, who
will be our only
remaining
stockholders after
such redemptions.

Comparison of This Offering to Those of Blank Check Companies Subject to Rule 419

The following table compares the terms of this offering to the terms of an offering by a blank check company subject to the
provisions of Rule 419. This comparison assumes that the gross proceeds, underwriting commissions and underwriting expenses of
our offering would be identical to those of an offering undertaken by a company subject to Rule 419, and that the underwriters will
not exercise their over-allotment option. None of the provisions of Rule 419 apply to our offering.  

 Terms of Our Offering  Terms Under a Rule 419 Offering
Escrow
of
offering
proceeds

 Approximately $175,000 of the net offering
proceeds, which includes the $5,250,000 net
proceeds from the sale of the sponsor warrants and
approximately $6,125,000 in deferred underwriting
commissions (approximately $8,050,000 if the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in
full), will be deposited into a trust account with
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
acting as trustee.

 Approximately $175,000,000 of the offering
proceeds, representing the gross proceeds of
this offering, would be required to be deposited
into either an escrow account with an insured
depositary institution or in a separate bank
account established by a broker-dealer in which
the broker-dealer acts as trustee for persons
having the beneficial interests in the account.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms Under a Rule 419 Offering

Investment
of net
proceeds

 Approximately $175,000,000 of the net offering proceeds, which
includes the $5,250,000 net proceeds from the sale of the sponsor
warrants and approximately $6,125,000 in deferred underwriting
commissions (approximately $8,050,000 if the underwriters’ over-
allotment option is exercised in full) held in trust will be invested
only in U.S. government treasury bills with a maturity of 180 days
or less or in money market funds meeting certain conditions under
Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act.

 Proceeds could be invested
only in specified securities
such as a money market fund
meeting conditions of the
Investment Company Act or in
securities that are direct
obligations of, or obligations
guaranteed as to principal or
interest by, the United States.

Receipt of
interest on
escrowed
funds

 Interest on proceeds from the trust account to be paid to
stockholders is reduced by (i) any income or franchise taxes paid
or payable and then (ii) up to $1,750,000, subject to adjustment as
described herein, that can be used for working capital purposes,
and (iii) in the event of our liquidation for failure to complete our
initial business combination within the allotted time, up to
$100,000 of net interest that may be released to us should we have
no or insufficient working capital to fund the costs and expenses
of our dissolution and liquidation.

 Interest on funds in escrow
account would be held for the
sole benefit of investors, unless
and only after the funds held in
escrow were released to us in
connection with our
completion of a business
combination.

Limitation
on fair
value or
net assets
of target
business

 We are not required to set a minimum valuation on either the fair
market value or net assets of a target business.

 The fair value or net assets of
a target business must
represent at least 80% of the
maximum offering proceeds.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms Under a Rule

419 Offering
Trading
of
securities
issued

 The units will begin trading on or promptly after the date of this prospectus.
The common stock and warrants comprising the units will begin separate
trading on the 52nd day following the date of this prospectus unless Citigroup
Global Markets Inc. informs us of its decision to allow earlier separate trading,
subject to our having filed the Current Report on Form 8-K described below
and having issued a press release announcing when such separate trading will
begin. We will file the Current Report on Form 8-K promptly after the closing
of this offering, which is anticipated to take place three business days from the
date of this prospectus. If the over-allotment option is exercised following the
initial filing of such Current Report on Form 8-K, a second or amended Current
Report on Form 8-K will be filed to provide updated financial information to
reflect the exercise of the over-allotment option.

 No trading of the
units or the
underlying
common stock and
warrants would be
permitted until the
completion of a
business
combination.
During this period,
the securities
would be held in
the escrow or trust
account.

Exercise
of the
warrants

 The warrants cannot be exercised until the later of 30 days after the completion
of our initial business combination or 12 months from the closing of this
offering.

 The warrants could
be exercised prior
to the completion
of a business
combination, but
securities received
and cash paid in
connection with
the exercise would
be deposited in the
escrow or trust
account.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms Under a Rule 419 Offering

Election
to
remain
an
investor

 We will provide our public stockholders with the opportunity
to redeem their public shares for cash equal to their pro rata
share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust
account, including interest less franchise and income taxes
payable, upon the completion of our initial business
combination, subject to the limitations described herein. We
may not be required by law to hold a stockholder vote. If we
are not required by law and do not otherwise decide to hold a
stockholder vote, we will, pursuant to our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation, conduct the redemptions
pursuant to the tender offer rules of the SEC and file tender
offer documents with the SEC which will contain
substantially the same financial and other information about
the initial business combination and the redemption rights as
is required under the SEC’s proxy rules. If, however, we hold
a stockholder vote, we will, like many blank check
companies, offer to redeem shares in conjunction with a
proxy solicitation pursuant to the proxy rules and not pursuant
to the tender offer rules. If we seek stockholder approval, we
will complete our initial business combination only if a
majority of the outstanding shares of common stock voted
are voted in favor of the business combination. Each public
stockholder may elect to redeem their public shares
irrespective of whether they vote for or against the proposed
transaction.

 A prospectus containing information
pertaining to the business combination
required by the SEC would be sent to
each investor. Each investor would be
given the opportunity to notify the
company in writing, within a period of
no less than 20 business days and no
more than 45 business days from the
effective date of a post-effective
amendment to the company’s
registration statement, to decide if he,
she or it elects to remain a stockholder
of the company or require the return of
his, her or its investment. If the
company has not received the
notification by the end of the 45th

business day, funds and interest or
dividends, if any, held in the trust or
escrow account are automatically
returned to the stockholder. Unless a
sufficient number of investors elect to
remain investors, all funds on deposit
in the escrow account must be returned
to all of the investors and none of the
securities are issued.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms Under a Rule

419 Offering
Business
combination
deadline

 If we are unable to complete an initial business combination within 21
months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of
this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a
prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month
period ends, we will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of
winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten
business days thereafter, redeem 100% of the public shares, at a per-share
price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the
trust account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes
payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest to pay dissolution
expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which
redemption will completely extinguish public stockholders’ rights as
stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions,
if any), subject to applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any
refund of income taxes that were paid from the trust account which is
received after such redemption shall be distributed to the former public
stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such
redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining stockholders and our
board of directors, dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to our
obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the
requirements of other applicable law.

 If an acquisition
has not been
completed within
21 months after the
effective date of the
company’s
registration
statement, or within
24 months from the
closing of the
offering if a letter
of intent or
definitive
agreement relating
to a prospective
initial business
combination is
executed before the
21-month period
ends, funds held in
the trust or escrow
account are
returned to
investors.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms Under a

Rule 419
Offering

Release
of
funds

 Except for up to $1,750,000, subject to adjustment in the event the size of the offering
changes as a result of the underwriters’ exercise of any portion of the over-allotment
option or if we otherwise decide to change the size of this offering, of the interest
income earned on the trust account balance (net of franchise and income taxes
payable) released to us to pay any income and franchise taxes on such interest and to
fund our working capital requirements, and any amounts necessary to purchase up to
15% of our public shares if we seek stockholder approval of our initial business
combination as will be permitted under our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and the Investment Trust Management Agreement with American Stock
Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, none of the funds held in trust will be released from
the trust account until the earlier of (i) the completion of our initial business
combination or (ii) the redemption of 100% of our public shares if we are unable to
complete a business combination within the required time frame (subject to the
requirements of applicable law).

 The proceeds
held in the
escrow
account are
not released
until the
earlier of the
completion of
a business
combination
or the failure
to effect a
business
combination
within the
allotted time.
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Comparison of This Offering to Those of Many Blank Check Companies Not Subject to Rule 419

The following table compares the terms of this offering to the terms of many blank check companies that are not subject to
Rule 419. Each term of this offering described in the table below is located in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
other than “— Warrant terms” which is located in the warrant agreement.   

 Terms of Our Offering  Terms of Many
Blank Check Offerings

 Impact on Whether
a Particular Business

Combination is Completed
Requirement
to conduct a
tender offer
or hold a
stockholder
vote

 We will provide our stockholders
with the opportunity to redeem their
shares of common stock upon the
completion of our initial business
combination on the terms described in
this prospectus. We intend to conduct
these redemptions pursuant to the
tender offer rules without filing a
proxy statement with the SEC and
without conducting a stockholder vote
to approve our initial business
combination, unless stockholder
approval is required by law or we
decide to seek stockholder approval
for business or other legal reasons.

 Many blank check
companies are required to
file a proxy statement with
the SEC and hold a
stockholder vote to approve
their initial business
combination regardless of
whether such a vote is
required by law. These
blank check companies may
not complete a business
combination if the majority
of the company’s public
shares voted are voted
against a proposed business
combination.

 Our ability to complete
our initial business
combination without
conducting a stockholder
vote in the event that a
stockholder vote is not
required by law may
increase the likelihood
that we will be able to
complete our initial
business combination and
decrease the ability of
public stockholders to
affect whether or not a
particular business
combination is completed.

Requirement
to vote
against a
business
combination
in order to
redeem

 If we seek stockholder approval in
conjunction with the completion of
our initial business combination, each
public stockholder may elect to
redeem their public shares irrespective
of whether they vote for or against the
proposed transaction.

 Many blank check
companies require public
stockholders to vote against
the proposed business
combination in order to
redeem their shares.

 The ability of our public
stockholders to vote in
favor of a business
combination and redeem
their shares may increase
the likelihood that we will
be able to complete our
initial business
combination and decrease
the ability of public
stockholders to affect
whether or not a particular
business combination is
completed.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms of Many

Blank Check Offerings
 Impact on Whether

a Particular Business
Combination is Completed

Redemption
threshold

 We do not have a specified
maximum redemption threshold
apart from the limitation that we
will not redeem our public shares
in an amount that would cause our
net tangible assets to be less than
$5,000,001. In such case, we
would not proceed with the
redemption of our public shares
and the related business
combination, and instead may
search for an alternate business
combination.

 Many blank check companies
are not permitted to complete
a business combination if
more than a specified
percentage of the shares sold
in such company’s initial
public offering, which
percentage threshold has
typically been between
19.99% and 39.99%, elect to
redeem or convert their
shares in connection with the
stockholder vote.

 The absence of a redemption
threshold in our offering will
make it easier for us to
complete our initial business
combination even if a
substantial majority of our
stockholders do not agree.

Accelerated
deadline to
complete
business
combination

 We will only have 21 months to
complete our initial business
combination, or 24 months if a
letter of intent or definitive
agreement relating to a
prospective initial business
combination is executed before
the 21-month period ends.

 Many blank check companies
have between 24 and 36
months to complete their
initial business combinations.

 The deadline for us to
complete our initial business
combination may decrease
the likelihood that we will be
able to complete our initial
business combination
compared to many blank
check companies but should
not impact the ability of our
public stockholders to affect
whether or not a particular
business combination is
completed.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms of Many

Blank Check Offerings
 Impact on Whether

a Particular Business
Combination is Completed

Permitted
purchases of
shares by us
prior to the
completion
of our initial
business
combination
using
amounts
held in the
trust
account

 If we seek stockholder approval of our
initial business combination and we do not
conduct redemptions in connection with our
business combination pursuant to the tender
offer rules, prior to the completion of a
business combination, there could be
released to us from the trust account
amounts necessary to purchase up to 15%
of the shares sold in this offering at any
time commencing after the filing of a
preliminary proxy statement for our initial
business combination and ending on the
date of the stockholder meeting to approve
the initial business combination.

 Many blank check
companies are
prohibited from
utilizing funds from
the trust account to
purchase shares from
public stockholders
prior to the completion
of their initial business
combination.

 Our ability to purchase
shares prior to the
completion of our initial
business combination
using amounts held in the
trust account may increase
the likelihood that we will
be able to complete our
initial business
combination and decrease
the ability of public
stockholders to affect
whether or not a particular
business combination is
completed.

Minimum
fair market
value of
target

 We may enter into our initial business
combination with a target regardless of its
fair market value so long as we acquire a
controlling interest in the target.

 Many blank check
companies are required
to complete their initial
business combination
with a target whose fair
market value is equal
to at least 80% of the
amount of money held
in the trust account of
the blank check
company at the time of
entry into a definitive
agreement for a
business combination.

 The absence of a
minimum fair market
value requirement in our
offering may increase the
likelihood that we will be
able to complete our initial
business combination but
should not impact the
ability of our public
stockholders to affect
whether or not a particular
business combination is
completed.
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 Terms of Our Offering  Terms of Many

Blank Check Offerings
 Impact on Whether

a Particular Business
Combination is

Completed
Warrant
terms

 The warrants issued in this offering
(i) have an exercise price that is
above the initial public offering
price of our units and that is subject
to reduction in the event that we pay
extraordinary dividends, (ii) do not
expire until five years from the
closing of our initial business
combination or earlier upon
redemption or liquidation, (iii)
require the consent of holders of
65% of the public warrants to amend
their terms and (iv) may be exercised
on a cashless basis if a registration
statement covering shares underlying
the warrants is not effective within
60 days following our initial
business combination (subject to
compliance with certain state blue
sky laws, as specified in the warrant
agreement).

 The warrants issued in many blank
check offerings (i) have an exercise
price that is lower than the initial
public offering price of their units
and that is not subject to reduction in
the event that they pay extraordinary
dividends, (ii) expire five years from
the closing of the company’s initial
public offering or earlier upon
redemption or liquidation, (iii) only
require the consent of holders of a
majority of the such warrants to
amend their terms and (iv) are not
exercisable unless a registration
statement covering shares underlying
the warrants is effective within 60
days following the initial business
combination (subject to compliance
with certain state blue sky laws, as
specified in the warrant agreement).

 The differences in the
terms of the warrants
issued in our offering
may increase the
likelihood that we will
be able to complete
our initial business
combination to the
extent that potential
targets view the fact
that the exercise price
is above the initial
public offering price
of our units favorably
but should not impact
the ability of our
public stockholders to
affect whether or not a
particular business
combination is
completed.

Competition

In identifying, evaluating and selecting a target business for a business combination, we may encounter intense competition
from other entities having a business objective similar to ours, including other blank check companies, private equity groups and
leveraged buyout funds, and operating businesses seeking strategic acquisitions. Many of these entities are well established and
have extensive experience identifying and effecting business combinations directly or through affiliates. Moreover, many of these
competitors possess greater financial, technical, human and other resources than us. Our ability to acquire larger target businesses
will be limited by our available financial resources. This inherent limitation gives others an advantage in pursuing the acquisition
of a target business. Furthermore, our obligation to pay cash in connection with our public stockholders who exercise their
redemption rights may reduce the resources available to us for an initial business combination and our outstanding warrants, and
the future dilution they potentially represent, may not be viewed favorably by certain target businesses. Either of these factors may
place us at a competitive disadvantage in successfully negotiating an initial business combination.
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Facilities

We currently maintain our executive offices at 10900 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 1500, Los Angeles, California 90024. The cost for
this space is included in the $10,000 per month fee described above that Roscomare Ltd., an entity owned and controlled by Mr.
Sloan, our chairman and chief executive officer, charges us for general and administrative services. We believe, based on rents and
fees for similar services in the Los Angeles metropolitan area, that the fee charged by Mr. Sloan is at least as favorable as we could
have obtained from an unaffiliated person. We consider our current office space adequate for our current operations.

Employees

We currently have three executive officers. These individuals are not obligated to devote any specific number of hours to our
matters but they intend to devote as much of their time as they deem necessary to our affairs until we have completed our initial
business combination. The amount of time they will devote in any time period will vary based on whether a target business has
been selected for our initial business combination and the stage of the business combination process we are in. We do not intend to
have any full time employees prior to the completion of our initial business combination.

Periodic Reporting and Financial Information

We will register our units, common stock and warrants under the Exchange Act and have reporting obligations, including the
requirement that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with the SEC. In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange
Act, our annual reports will contain financial statements audited and reported on by our independent registered public accountants.

We will provide stockholders with audited financial statements of the prospective target business as part of the tender offer
materials or proxy solicitation materials sent to stockholders to assist them in assessing the target business. In all likelihood, these
financial statements will need to be prepared in accordance with GAAP. We cannot assure you that any particular target business
identified by us as a potential acquisition candidate will have financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP or that the
potential target business will be able to prepare its financial statements in accordance with GAAP. To the extent that this
requirement cannot be met, we may not be able to acquire the proposed target business. While this may limit the pool of potential
acquisition candidates, we do not believe that this limitation will be material.

We will be required to evaluate our internal control procedures for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012 as required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Only in the event we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer or an accelerated filer will we be required
to have our internal control procedures audited. A target company may not be in compliance with the provisions of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act regarding adequacy of their internal controls. The development of the internal controls of any such entity to achieve
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act may increase the time and costs necessary to complete any such acquisition.

Legal Proceedings

There is no material litigation, arbitration or governmental proceeding currently pending against us or any members of our
management team in their capacity as such, and we and the members of our management team have not been subject to any such
proceeding in the 12 months preceding the date of this prospectus.
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MANAGEMENT

Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors, executive officers and director nominees are as follows:  
Name  Age  Position
Harry E. Sloan  60  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Jeff Sagansky  59  President
James A. Graf  46  Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
Dennis A. Miller  53  Director Nominee
James M. McNamara  57  Director Nominee

Harry E. Sloan has been our chairman and chief executive officer since our inception. From October 2005 to August 2009,
Mr. Sloan served as chairman and chief executive officer of Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer, Inc., or MGM, a motion picture, television,
home entertainment, and theatrical production and distribution company, and thereafter continued as non-executive chairman until
January 2011. He was appointed by a consortium comprised of private equity investors, Comcast Corporation and Sony
Corporation of America one year after they agreed to acquire MGM through a leveraged buyout in September 2004. MGM filed
for protection under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code in November 2010 pursuant to a pre-packaged plan of
reorganization, which was confirmed by a federal bankruptcy court in December 2010. Mr. Sloan currently is an outside consultant
to MGM pursuant to a consulting agreement which expires in October 2011. From 1990 to 2001, Mr. Sloan was chairman and
chief executive officer of SBS Broadcasting, S.A., or SBS, a European broadcasting group, operating commercial television,
premium pay channels, radio stations and related print businesses in Western and Central and Eastern Europe, which he founded in
1990 and continued as executive chairman until 2005. In 1999, SBS became the largest shareholder of Lions Gate Entertainment
Corp., or Lions Gate, an independent motion picture and television production company. Mr. Sloan served as chairman of the
board of Lions Gate from April 2004 to March 2005. From 1983 to 1989, Mr. Sloan was co-chairman of New World
Entertainment Ltd., an independent motion picture and television production company. In January 2011, Mr. Sloan joined the
board of Promotora de Informaciones, S.A., or PRISA, Spain’s largest media conglomerate which owns El Pais, the leading
newspaper in the Spanish-speaking world, as well as pay television, radio and digital properties. He has served on the board of
ZeniMax Media Inc., an independent producer of interactive gaming and web content, since 1999. Mr. Sloan was appointed by
President Ronald Reagan in 1987 to the President's Advisory Council on Trade and Policy Negotiations (ACTPN). He currently
serves on the UCLA Anderson School of Management Board of Visitors and the Executive Board of UCLA Theatre, Film and
Television. Mr. Sloan received his Juris Doctor from Loyola Law School in 1976 and his Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of California, Los Angeles in 1971. Mr. Sloan’s designation as chairman of our board of directors was based upon his
extensive background and experience as an executive in the media and entertainment industries and his substantial experience in
identifying and acquiring a wide variety of businesses. Mr. Sloan is the brother-in-law of James A. Graf, our vice president, chief
financial officer, treasurer and secretary.

Jeff Sagansky has been our president since our inception. Mr. Sagansky has served as non-executive chairman of RHI
Entertainment, Inc., which develops, produces and distributes original made-for-television movies and miniseries, since February
2009. He also has served as chairman of Elm Tree Partners, a private casino development company, since January 2007, and as
chairman of Winchester Capital Management LLC, a private motion picture and television finance company, since 2008. From
September 2007 to February 2009, he served as co-chairman of Peace Arch Entertainment Group, Inc., or Peace Arch, a Canadian
production and sales company. He also served as interim chief executive officer of Peace Arch from November 2007 to July 2008.
From December 2002 to August 2003, he was vice chairman of Paxson Communications Corporation, a television network and
stations group. From 1998 to 2002, Mr. Sagansky served as chief executive officer of Paxson Communications Corporation. Prior
to joining Paxson Communications Corporation, Mr. Sagansky was co-president of Sony Pictures Entertainment, or SPE, a motion
picture, television, and home entertainment production and distribution company which is a subsidiary of Sony Corporation of
America, or SCA, from 1996 to 1998 where he was responsible for SPE’s strategic planning and worldwide television operations.
Prior to his position with SPE, Mr. Sagansky served as executive vice
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president of SCA, which he joined in 1994. Prior to joining SCA, Mr. Sagansky was president of CBS Entertainment, a television
network, from 1990 to 1994. Mr. Sagansky previously served as president of production and then president of TriStar Pictures, a
motion picture and television production and distribution company, from 1985 to 1989. He is currently a director of Scripps
Networks Interactive, Inc., a publicly traded lifestyle media company, and serves on its audit committee and corporate governance
committee. Mr. Sagansky earned a Bachelor of Arts degree from Harvard College and a Masters in Business degree from Harvard
Business School.

James A. Graf has been our vice president, chief financial officer, treasurer and secretary since our inception. Since late 2008,
Mr. Graf has served as a managing director of TC Capital Pte. Ltd., a Singapore-based corporate finance advisory firm. From 2007
to 2008, Mr. Graf was engaged as a consultant to provide financial advisory services to Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer, Inc. In 2001, Mr.
Graf founded and became chief executive officer of Praedea Solutions, Inc., an enterprise software company with operations in the
United States, Malaysia and Ukraine. Praedea Solutions, Inc. was sold in 2006 to a Mergent Inc, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xinhua Finance Ltd., and was re-named Mergent Data Technology, Inc. Prior to founding Praedea, Mr. Graf was a managing
director at Merrill Lynch, an investment bank, in Singapore from 1998 to 2000 and a consultant to Merrill Lynch in 2001. From
1996 to 1998, Mr. Graf served as a director and then managing director and president of Deutsche Bank’s investment banking
entity in Hong Kong, Deutsche Morgan Grenfell (Hong Kong) Ltd. From 1993 to 1996, he was a vice president at Smith Barney
in Hong Kong and Los Angeles. From 1987 to 1993, Mr. Graf was an analyst and then associate at Morgan Stanley in New York,
Los Angeles and Hong Kong. Mr. Graf received a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Chicago in 1987. Mr. Graf is the
brother-in-law of Harry E. Sloan, our chairman and chief executive officer.

Dennis A. Miller has agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the closing of this offering. In 2005, Mr. Miller became a
General Partner of Spark Capital LLC, a venture fund focusing on the media, entertainment and technology industries, and is
currently a venture partner. In 2000, Mr. Miller became a managing director of Constellation Ventures, the venture partner
business anchored by Bear Stearns. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Miller was executive vice president of Lions Gate. Prior to joining
Lions Gate, from 1995 to 1998, he was executive vice president of SPE. While there, he was responsible for all television
operations of SPE and actively involved with strategic planning and new media. From 1990 to 1996, Mr. Miller was executive vice
president of Turner Network Television, or TNT, a cable television channel, and in 1993 he took on the additional responsibility
for the Turner Entertainment Company, a subsidiary of Turner Broadcasting System, Inc. Mr. Miller currently serves on the Board
of FitOrbit, Inc., an online fitness company. Mr. Miller received his Juris Doctor from Boalt Law School in 1982 and his Bachelor
of Arts degree in political science from the University of California, San Diego in 1978. Mr. Miller’s designation as a director was
based upon his twenty years of experience operating and managing media and entertainment businesses and ten years of
successfully investing at the intersection of media and technology.

James A. McNamara has agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the closing of this offering. In 2005, Mr. McNamara
founded Panamax Films, LLC, a film production company that has an output deal with Lions Gate Films to produce films for the
U.S. Latino and Greater Latin American film going audiences, and he is currently its chairman. In 2008, Mr. McNamara joined
Cinelatino, Inc., a premium Spanish language film channel in the United States, where he serves as non-executive chairman and in
2010, he joined as non-executive chairman of Pantelion Films, a Latino Hollywood studio that is a partnership between Lions Gate
Entertainment and Grupo Televisa, a Spanish language media company. From 1999 to 2005, Mr. McNamara was president and
chief executive officer at Telemundo Communications Group, Inc., the operator of Telemundo, a Spanish-language broadcast
network. From April 1996 to June 1998, Mr. McNamara was the president of Universal Television Enterprises, or Universal, a
television production company where his responsibilities included domestic syndication first-run programming and international
sales. Mr. McNamara joined Universal from New World, where he served as chief executive officer from 1991 to 1995 and senior
vice president, executive vice president and then president of New World International from 1986 to 1991. Mr. McNamara served
as a director of Jump TV, a leading IPTV company providing a comprehensive suite of technology and services to content owners
and aggregators, from 2006 to 2008 as well as SBS from 1996 to 2005 and Film Roman, Inc., a producer of animated television
programming from 1997 to 1999.
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Mr. McNamara received his Masters degree from the American Graduate School of International Management and undergraduate
degree in business administration and political science from Rollins College. Mr. McNamara’s designation as a director was based
upon his twenty-five years of experience as a leading international film and television executive, extensive broadcast experience in
the United States and Latin America and wide management experience in both large and small companies.

Number and Terms of Office of Officers and Directors

Our board of directors is divided into three classes with only one class of directors being elected in each year and each class
(except for those directors appointed prior to our first annual meeting of stockholders) serving a three-year term. The term of office
of the first class of directors, consisting of Dennis A. Miller, will expire at our first annual meeting of stockholders. The term of
office of the second class of directors, consisting of James M. McNamara, will expire at the second annual meeting of
stockholders. The term of office of the third class of directors, consisting of Mr. Sloan, will expire at the third annual meeting of
stockholders.

Our officers are appointed by the board of directors and serve at the discretion of the board of directors, rather than for specific
terms of office. Our board of directors is authorized to appoint persons to the offices set forth in our amended and restated bylaws
as it deems appropriate. Our amended and restated bylaws provide that our officers may consist of a chairman of the board, chief
executive officer, president, chief financial officer, vice presidents, secretary, treasurer and such other offices as may be
determined by the board of directors.

Collectively, through their positions described above, our officers and directors have extensive experience in the private equity
business and the retail and consumer products business. These individuals will play a key role in identifying and evaluating
prospective acquisition candidates, selecting the target businesses, and structuring, negotiating and completing their acquisition.

Director Independence

Although we are not required to have a majority of independent directors on our board of directors, we have elected to have a
majority of independent directors. An “independent director” is defined generally as a person other than an officer or employee of
the company or its subsidiaries or any other individual having a relationship, which, in the opinion of the company’s board of
directors would interfere with the director’s exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director.

Our board of directors has determined that each of Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, who have agreed to join our
board of directors and are expected to join our board of directors upon the closing of this offering, will be independent directors as
such term is defined under the rules of the NYSE Amex and Rule 10A-3 of the Exchange Act. Although our company will not be
listed on the NYSE Amex upon completion of this offering, we have voluntarily applied the definition of director independence
used by the NYSE Amex Company Guide in making the determinations with respect to Dennis A. Miller and James M.
McNamara. Our independent directors will have regularly scheduled meetings at which only independent directors are present.

Executive Officer and Director Compensation

None of our executive officers or directors received any cash compensation for services rendered. Commencing on the date
that our securities are first quoted on the OTCBB through the earlier of completion of our initial business combination or our
liquidation, we will pay Roscomare Ltd., an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, a total of $10,000 per month for office
space and administrative services, including secretarial support. This arrangement is being agreed to by Mr. Sloan for our benefit
and is not intended to provide Mr. Sloan compensation in lieu of a salary. In addition, we will pay Mr. Graf or an entity owned and
controlled by him, a monthly consulting fee of $15,000 for services prior to the completion of the initial business combination. We
believe that such fees are at least as favorable as we could have obtained from an unaffiliated third party for such services. Other
than these monthly fees, no compensation of any kind, including finder’s and consulting fees, will be paid to our sponsor,
executive officers and directors, or any of their respective affiliates, for services rendered prior to or in connection with the
completion of an initial business combination. However, these individuals will be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses
incurred
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in connection with activities on our behalf such as identifying potential target businesses and performing due diligence on suitable
business combinations. Our independent directors will review on a quarterly basis all payments that were made to our sponsor,
officers, directors or our or their affiliates.

After the completion of our initial business combination, directors or members of our management team who remain with us,
may be paid consulting, management or other fees from the combined company with any and all amounts being fully disclosed to
stockholders, to the extent then known, in the tender offer materials or proxy solicitation materials furnished to our stockholders in
connection with a proposed business combination. It is unlikely the amount of such compensation will be known at the time, as it
will be up to the directors of the post-combination business to determine executive and director compensation. Any compensation
to be paid to our officers will be determined, or recommended to the board of directors for determination, either by a compensation
committee constituted solely by independent directors or by a majority of the independent directors on our board of directors.

We do not intend to take any action to ensure that members of our management team maintain their positions with us after the
completion of our initial business combination, although it is possible that some or all of our executive officers and directors may
negotiate employment or consulting arrangements to remain with us after the initial business combination. The existence or terms
of any such employment or consulting arrangements to retain their positions with us may influence our management’s motivation
in identifying or selecting a target business but we do not believe that the ability of our management to remain with us after the
completion of an initial business combination will be a determining factor in our decision to proceed with any potential business
combination. We are not party to any agreements with our executive officers and directors that provide for benefits upon
termination of employment.

Board Committees

Our board of directors intends to establish an audit committee and a compensation committee upon completion of a business
combination. At that time our board of directors intends to adopt charters for these committees. Prior to such time we do not intend
to establish either committee. Accordingly, there will not be a separate committee comprised of some members of our board of
directors with specialized accounting and financial knowledge to meet, analyze and discuss solely financial matters concerning
prospective target businesses. We do not believe a compensation committee is necessary prior to a business combination as there
will be no salary, fees or other compensation being paid to our officers or directors prior to a business combination other than as
disclosed in this prospectus.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a code of conduct and ethics applicable to our directors, officers and employees in accordance with
applicable federal securities laws.

Conflicts of Interest

In general, officers and directors of a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware, like us, are required,
under the doctrine of corporate opportunity, to present business opportunities to a corporation if:

• the corporation could financially undertake the opportunity;

• the opportunity is within the corporation’s line of business; and

• it would not be fair to the corporation and its stockholders for the opportunity not to be brought to the attention of the
corporation.
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Accordingly, as a result of multiple business affiliations, our officers and directors may have similar legal obligations relating
to presenting business opportunities meeting the above-listed criteria to multiple entities. Furthermore, our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation provides that the doctrine of corporate opportunity will not apply with respect to any of our officers or
directors, or any of their respective affiliates. However, although the doctrine of corporate opportunity will not apply, and in order
to minimize potential conflicts of interest which may arise from multiple corporate affiliations, each of our officers and directors,
other than our independent directors, has entered into a written agreement with us requiring him to present to us for our
consideration, prior to presentation to any other entity, any business combination opportunity with a target business having an
enterprise value of $100,000,000 or more, subject to any fiduciary duties or contractual obligations such officer or director may
have, currently or in the future, in respect of the companies to which such officer or director currently has fiduciary duties or
contractual obligations. These written agreements will expire upon the earliest of the completion of our initial business
combination, our failure to complete an initial business combination in the prescribed time frame or such time as the applicable
person ceases to be an officer or director. Accordingly, each of these individuals must present to us only business combination
opportunities with a target business having an enterprise value of $100,000,000 or more that they become aware of following the
date of this prospectus prior to presenting them to any company which they become affiliated with following this offering.
However, they would be required to present business opportunities to companies which they are affiliated with and owe a fiduciary
or contractual obligation to prior to the date of this prospectus prior to presenting them to us. Below is a table summarizing the
entities to which our officers and directors currently have fiduciary duties or contractual obligations:   
Individual  Entity  Entity’s Business  Affiliation
Harry E.

Sloan
 Promotora de

Informaciones, S.A.
(PRISA)

 International media conglomerate
based in Spain

 Director

   ZeniMax Media Inc.  Independent producer of interactive
gaming and web content

 Director

Jeff Sagansky  Winchester Capital
Management LLC

 Motion picture and television finance
company

 Co-founder and
Chairman

   Scripps Networks
Interactive, Inc.

 Lifestyle media company  Director

James A.
Graf

 TC Capital Pte. Ltd.  Corporate finance advisory firm based
in Singapore

 Managing
Director

Accordingly, if any of the above officers or directors becomes aware of a business combination opportunity which is suitable
for any of the above entities to which he has pre-existing fiduciary or contractual obligations, he will honor his pre-existing
fiduciary or contractual obligations to present such business combination opportunity to such entity, and only present it to us if
such entity rejects the opportunity. We do not believe, however, that any of the foregoing pre-existing fiduciary duties or
contractual obligations will materially undermine our ability to complete a business combination. Our independent directors will
not be obligated to present any business combination opportunities to us.

Each of our officers and directors may become involved with subsequent blank check companies similar to our company,
although they each have agreed not to participate in the formation of, or become an officer or director of, any blank check
company that is not limited to a particular industry or is focused on media and entertainment companies until we have entered into
a definitive agreement regarding our initial business combination or we have failed to complete our initial business combination
within the prescribed time frame. Prior to this offering, none of our officers, directors or promoters have been involved in any
blank check offerings.
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In addition, each of our officers and directors may become involved with entities, including blank check companies with which
he is permitted to be involved as indicated above, public and private companies, private equity funds, venture capital funds, hedge
funds and other investment vehicles and capital pools engaged in business activities similar to those intended to be conducted by
us. If any of our officers or directors becomes aware of business combination opportunities that may be appropriate for
presentation to us as well as the other entities with which he is involved, he may have conflicts of interest in determining to which
entity a particular business opportunity should be presented.

Potential investors should also be aware of the following other potential conflicts of interest:

• None of our officers and directors is required to commit his full time to our affairs and, accordingly, may have conflicts of
interest in allocating his time among various business activities.

• Our initial stockholders purchased founder shares prior to the date of this prospectus and our sponsor will purchase sponsor
warrants in a transaction that will close simultaneously with the closing of this offering. Our initial stockholders have
agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in connection with the
completion of a business combination. Additionally, our initial stockholders have agreed to waive their redemption rights
with respect to their founder shares if we fail to complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame. If we do
not complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame, the proceeds of the sale of the sponsor
warrants will be used to fund the redemption of our public shares, and the sponsor warrants will expire worthless.
Furthermore, the founder shares and sponsor warrants will be placed into escrow on the date of this prospectus and will not
be transferable, assignable or salable while in escrow, subject to limited exceptions, as described herein. The founder shares
will be released from escrow on the earlier of (x) one year after the completion of our initial business combination or earlier
if, subsequent to our business combination, the last sales price of our common stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as
adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any
30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our initial business combination, or (y) the date on which we
complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after our initial business combination that results
in all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this
offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) will not be released from escrow unless they no
longer are subject to forfeiture, as described herein. The sponsor warrants will not be released from escrow until 30 days
following the completion of our initial business combination. Because each of Messrs. Sloan, Sagansky, Graf, Miller and
McNamara will indirectly own shares of our common stock or warrants through our sponsor (or may own such shares or
warrants directly), they may have a conflict of interest in determining whether a particular target business is an appropriate
business with which to effectuate a business combination.

• Our officers and directors may have a conflict of interest with respect to evaluating a particular business combination if the
retention or resignation of any such officers and directors was included by a target business as a condition to any agreement
with respect to a business combination.

We are not prohibited from pursuing an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated with our
sponsor, officers or directors or making the acquisition through a joint venture or other form of shared ownership with our sponsor,
officers or directors. In the event we seek to complete an initial business combination with an acquisition target that is affiliated
with our sponsor, officers or directors, we, or a committee of independent directors, would obtain an opinion from an independent
investment banking firm which is a member of FINRA, that such an initial business combination is fair to our company from a
financial point of view. We are not required to obtain such an opinion in any other context. Furthermore, in no event will our
sponsor or any of our existing officers or directors, or any of their respective affiliates, be paid any finder’s fee, consulting fee or
other compensation prior to, or for any services they render in order to effectuate, the completion of our initial business
combination (other than the $10,000 per month payable to Roscomare Ltd., an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, our
chairman and chief executive officer, for
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office space, secretarial and administrative services, and consulting fees payable to our chief financial officer, James A. Graf, or an
entity owned or controlled by Mr. Graf, of $15,000 per month for services prior to the closing of our initial business combination).

We cannot assure you that any of the above mentioned conflicts will be resolved in our favor.

In the event that we submit our initial business combination to our public stockholders for a vote, our initial stockholders have
agreed to vote their founder shares in accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the public stockholders and to vote any
shares purchased during or after the offering in favor of our initial business combination.

Limitation on Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that our officers and directors will be indemnified by us to the
fullest extent authorized by Delaware law, as it now exists or may in the future be amended. In addition, our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation provides that our directors will not be personally liable for monetary damages to us for breaches of
their fiduciary duty as directors, unless they violated their duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders, acted in bad faith, knowingly or
intentionally violated the law, authorized unlawful payments of dividends, unlawful stock purchases or unlawful redemptions, or
derived an improper personal benefit from their actions as directors.

We will enter into agreements with our officers and directors to provide contractual indemnification in addition to the
indemnification provided for in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. Our amended and restated bylaws also will
permit us to secure insurance on behalf of any officer, director or employee for any liability arising out of his or her actions,
regardless of whether Delaware law would permit such indemnification. We will purchase a policy of directors’ and officers’
liability insurance that insures our officers and directors against the cost of defense, settlement or payment of a judgment in some
circumstances and insures us against our obligations to indemnify our officers and directors.

These provisions may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against our directors for breach of their fiduciary duty.
These provisions also may have the effect of reducing the likelihood of derivative litigation against officers and directors, even
though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit us and our stockholders. Furthermore, a stockholder’s investment
may be adversely affected to the extent we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against officers and directors pursuant to
these indemnification provisions.

We believe that these provisions, the insurance and the indemnity agreements are necessary to attract and retain talented and
experienced officers and directors.
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of the date of this
prospectus, and as adjusted to reflect the sale of our common stock included in the units offered by this prospectus, and assuming
no purchase of units in this offering, by:

• each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding shares of common stock;

• each of our officers, directors and director nominees that beneficially owns shares of our common stock; and

• all our officers, directors and director nominees as a group.

Unless otherwise indicated, we believe that all persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect
to all shares of common stock beneficially owned by them. The following table does not reflect record or beneficial ownership of
the sponsor warrants as these warrants are not exercisable within 60 days of the date of this prospectus.   

 Number of
Shares

Beneficially
Owned

 Approximate
Percentage of
Outstanding

Common Stock
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner (1)  Before

Offering
 After

Offering(2)

Global Eagle Acquisition, LLC (our sponsor)   4,373,507(3)   99.0%   17.82% 
Harry E. Sloan   4,373,507(3)   99.0%   17.82% 
Jeff Sagansky   4,373,507(3)   99.0%   17.82% 
James A. Graf   174,940(4)   4.0%   * 
Dennis A. Miller   22,088   *   * 
James M. McNamara   22,088   *   * 
All directors, director nominees and executive officers as a group (5

individuals)
  4,417,683   100.0%   18.00% 

* Less than one percent.

(1) Unless otherwise noted, the business address of each of the following is 10900 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 1500, Los Angeles, CA,
90024.

(2) Assumes exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option and no resulting forfeiture of an aggregate of 576,220 founder
shares held by our initial stockholders and includes a portion of the founder shares in an amount equal to 4.0% of our issued and
outstanding shares after this offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option that are subject to forfeiture
by our initial stockholders on the third anniversary of the closing of our initial business combination unless following our initial
business combination (i) the last sales price of our stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock
dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period or (ii) we
complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of our stockholders having the right
to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration of cash, securities or other property which equals or exceeds $13.00
per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like).

(3) These shares represent 100.0% of the shares of our common stock held by our sponsor. Messrs. Sloan, Sagansky and Graf are
members of our sponsor. Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky share voting and dispositive control of the shares of our common stock
held by our sponsor. Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky disclaim beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of their
pecuniary interest therein.

(4) These shares represent 4.0% of the shares of our common stock held by our sponsor.

In February 2011, our sponsor purchased 4,417,683 founder shares for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, or
approximately $0.01 per share. Subsequently, in March 2011, our sponsor transferred an aggregate of 44,176 founder shares to
Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, each of whom has agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the closing of this
offering.
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Immediately after this offering (assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option), our initial stockholders will
beneficially own 18.0% of the then issued and outstanding shares of our common stock (assuming they do not purchase any units
in this offering and they are not required to forfeit their founder earnout shares, as described in this prospectus). Because of this
ownership block, our initial stockholders may be able to effectively influence the outcome of all matters requiring approval by our
stockholders, including the election of directors, amendments to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and approval
of significant corporate transactions other than approval of our initial business combination.

To the extent the underwriters do not exercise the over-allotment option, up to an aggregate of 576,220 founder shares held by
our initial stockholders will be subject to forfeiture. Our initial stockholders will be required to forfeit only a number of founder
shares necessary to maintain our initial stockholders’ 18.0% ownership interest in our common stock on a fully-diluted basis after
giving effect to the offering and the exercise, if any, of the underwriters’ over-allotment option. In addition, the founder earnout
shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment
option) will be subject to forfeiture by our initial stockholders on the third anniversary of the closing of our initial business
combination unless following our initial business combination (i) the last sales price of our stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per
share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within
any 30-trading day period or (ii) we complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of
our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration of cash, securities or other property
which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the
like).

Our sponsor has committed, pursuant to a written agreement, to purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 sponsor warrants at a price
of $0.75 per warrant ($5,250,000 in the aggregate) in a private placement that will occur simultaneously with the closing of this
offering. Each sponsor warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of our common stock at $11.50 per share. The purchase
price of the sponsor warrants will be added to the proceeds from this offering to be held in the trust account pending our
completion of our initial business combination. If we do not complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time
frame, the proceeds of the sale of the sponsor warrants will be used to fund the redemption of our public shares, and the sponsor
warrants will expire worthless. The sponsor warrants are subject to the transfer restrictions described below. The sponsor warrants
will not be redeemable by us so long as they are held by our sponsor or their permitted transferees. If the sponsor warrants are held
by holders other than our sponsor or its permitted transferees, the sponsor warrants will be redeemable by us and exercisable by the
holders on the same basis as the warrants included in the units being sold in this offering. The sponsor warrants may also be
exercised by our sponsor or its permitted transferees on a cashless basis. Otherwise, the sponsor warrants have terms and
provisions that are identical to those of the warrants being sold as part of the units in this offering.

Global Eagle Acquisition LLC, our sponsor, and our executive officers and directors are deemed to be our “promoters” as such
term is defined under the federal securities laws.

Transfers of Founder Shares and Sponsor Warrants

On the date of this prospectus, the founder shares and sponsor warrants will be placed into a segregated escrow account
maintained by American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC acting as escrow agent pursuant to an escrow agreement between
us, the holders of the founder shares and sponsor warrants, the escrow agent and the representative of the underwriters. While in
escrow, such securities will not be transferable, other than (a) to our officers or directors, any affiliates or family members of any
of our officers or directors, any members of our sponsor, or any affiliates of our sponsor, (b) by gift to a member of one of the
members of our sponsor’s immediate family or to a trust, the beneficiary of which is a member of one of the members of our
sponsor’s immediate family, an affiliate of our sponsor or to a charitable organization; (c) by virtue of laws of descent and
distribution upon death of one of the members of our sponsor; (d) pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order; (e) by virtue of
the laws of the state of Delaware or our sponsor’s limited liability company agreement upon dissolution of our sponsor; (f) in the
event of our liquidation prior to our completion of our initial business combination; or (g) in the event of our completion of a
liquidation,
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merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction which results in all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their
shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property subsequent to our completion of our initial business combination;
provided, however, that these permitted transferees must enter into a written agreement agreeing to be bound by these transfer
restrictions.

The founder shares will be released from escrow on the earlier of (x) one year after the completion of our initial business
combination or earlier if, subsequent to our business combination, the last sales price of our common stock equals or exceeds
$12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading
days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our initial business combination, or (y) the date on
which we complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after our initial business combination that
results in all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this
offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) will not be released from escrow unless they no longer are
subject to forfeiture, as described herein.

The sponsor warrants will not be released from escrow until 30 days following the completion of our initial business
combination.

Registration Rights

The holders of the founder shares, sponsor warrants and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of working capital loans
will have registration rights to require us to register a sale of any of our securities held by them pursuant to a registration rights
agreement to be signed prior to or on the effective date of this offering. These stockholders will be entitled to make up to three
demands, excluding short form registration demands, that we register such securities for sale under the Securities Act. In addition,
these stockholders will have “piggy-back” registration rights to include their securities in other registration statements filed by us.
However, the registration rights agreement provides that we will not permit any registration statement filed under the Securities
Act to become effective with respect to any securities while they are held in escrow, as described herein. We will bear the costs
and expenses of filing any such registration statements.

98

 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In February 2011, we issued an aggregate of 4,417,683 founder shares to our sponsor for an aggregate purchase price of
$25,000 in cash, or approximately $0.01 per share. Subsequently, in March 2011, our sponsor transferred an aggregate of 44,176
founder shares to Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, each of whom has agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the
closing of this offering. If the underwriters determine the size of the offering should be increased, a stock dividend would be
effectuated in order to maintain the ownership represented by the founder shares at the same percentage, as was the case before the
stock dividend.

If the underwriters do not exercise all or a portion of their over-allotment option, our initial stockholders have agreed, pursuant
to a written agreement with us, that they will forfeit up to an aggregate of 576,220 founder shares in proportion to the portion of
the underwriters’ over-allotment option that was not exercised. In addition, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued
and outstanding shares after this offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) will be subject to forfeiture
by our initial stockholders on the third anniversary of the closing of our initial business combination unless following our initial
business combination (i) the last sales price of our stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock
dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period or (ii) we
complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after our initial business combination that results in all
of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration of cash, securities or other
property which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations
and the like). If such shares are forfeited, we would record the aggregate fair value of the shares forfeited and reacquired to
treasury stock and a corresponding credit to additional paid-in capital based on the difference between the fair market value of the
forfeited shares and the price paid to us for such forfeited shares of approximately $3,261. Upon receipt, such forfeited shares
would then be immediately cancelled, which would result in the retirement of the treasury stock and a corresponding charge to
additional paid-in capital.

Our sponsor has committed, pursuant to a written agreement, to purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 sponsor warrants in a
private placement that will occur simultaneously with the closing of this offering. Each sponsor warrant entitles the holder to
purchase one share of our common stock at $11.50 per share. The sponsor warrants (including the common stock issuable upon
exercise of the sponsor warrants) may not, subject to certain limited exceptions, be transferred, assigned or sold by it until 30 days
after the completion of our initial business combination.

Each of Messrs. Sloan, Sagansky and Graf is a member of our sponsor. Each of our officers and directors (other than our
independent directors) has agreed, pursuant to a written agreement with us, that until the earliest of our initial business
combination, our liquidation or such time as he ceases to be an officer or director, to present to us for our consideration, prior to
presentation to any other entity, any business combination opportunity with a target business having an enterprise value of
$100,000,000 or more, subject to any pre-existing fiduciary or contractual obligations he might have currently or in the future in
respect of the companies to which he currently has fiduciary duties or contractual obligations. As more fully discussed in
“Management — Conflicts of Interest,” if any of our officers or directors (other than our independent directors) becomes aware of
a business combination opportunity that falls within the line of business of any entity to which he has pre-existing fiduciary or
contractual obligations, he may be required to present such business combination opportunity to such entity prior to presenting
such business combination opportunity to us. All of our officers and directors (other than our independent directors) currently have
certain relevant fiduciary duties or contractual obligations that may take priority over their duties to us.

Commencing on the date that our securities are first quoted on the OTCBB through the earlier of completion of our initial
business combination or our liquidation, we will pay Roscomare Ltd., an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, a total of
$10,000 per month for office space and administrative services, including secretarial support. This arrangement is being agreed to
by Mr. Sloan for our benefit and is not intended to provide Mr. Sloan compensation in lieu of a salary. In addition, we will pay Mr.
Graf or an entity owned and controlled by him, a monthly consulting fee of $15,000 for services prior to the completion of the
initial business combination. We believe that such fees are at least as favorable as we could have obtained from an unaffiliated
third party for such services. Other than these monthly fees, no compensation of any kind,
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including finder’s and consulting fees, will be paid to our sponsor, executive officers and directors, or any of their respective
affiliates, for services rendered prior to or in connection with the completion of an initial business combination. However, these
individuals will be reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with activities on our behalf such as
identifying potential target businesses and performing due diligence on suitable business combinations. Our independent directors
will review on a quarterly basis all payments that were made to our sponsor, officers, directors or our or their affiliates.

Prior to the closing of this offering, our sponsor has agreed to loan us up to $200,000 to be used for a portion of the expenses of
this offering. These loans are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are due at the earlier of August 1, 2011 or the closing of this
offering. The loan will be repaid upon the closing of this offering out of the $750,000 of offering proceeds that has been allocated
to the payment of offering expenses.

In addition, in order to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination, our sponsor or an
affiliate of our sponsor or certain of our officers and directors may, but are not obligated to, loan us funds as may be required. If
we complete an initial business combination, we would repay such loaned amounts. In the event that the initial business
combination does not close, we may use a portion of the working capital held outside the trust account to repay such loaned
amounts but no proceeds from our trust account would be used for such repayment, other than the interest on such proceeds that
may be released to us for working capital purposes. Up to $500,000 of such loans may be convertible into warrants of the post
business combination entity at a price of $0.75 per warrant at the option of the lender. The warrants would be identical to the
sponsor warrants. The terms of such loans by our officers and directors, if any, have not been determined and no written
agreements exist with respect to such loans.

After our initial business combination, members of our management team who remain with us may be paid consulting,
management or other fees from the combined company with any and all amounts being fully disclosed to our stockholders, to the
extent then known, in the tender offer or proxy solicitation materials, as applicable, furnished to our stockholders. It is unlikely the
amount of such compensation will be known at the time of distribution of such tender offer materials or at the time of a
stockholder meeting held to consider our initial business combination, as applicable, as it will be up to the directors of the post-
combination business to determine executive and director compensation.

All ongoing and future transactions between us and any member of our management team or his or her respective affiliates will
be on terms believed by us at that time, based upon other similar arrangements known to us, to be no less favorable to us than are
available from unaffiliated third parties. It is our intention to obtain estimates from unaffiliated third parties for similar goods or
services to ascertain whether such transactions with affiliates are on terms that are no less favorable to us than are otherwise
available from such unaffiliated third parties. If a transaction with an affiliated third party were found to be on terms less favorable
to us than with an unaffiliated third party, we would not engage in such transaction.

We have entered into a registration rights agreement with respect to the founder shares and sponsor warrants, which is
described under the heading “Principal Stockholders — Registration Rights.”
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DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

Our authorized capital stock consists of 400,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.0001 par value, and 1,000,000 shares of
undesignated preferred stock, $0.0001 par value. The following description summarizes the material terms of our capital stock.
Because it is only a summary, it may not contain all the information that is important to you.

Units

Each unit consists of one share of common stock and one warrant. Each warrant entitles the holder to purchase one share of
common stock. The common stock and warrants comprising the units will begin separate trading on the 52nd day following the
date of this prospectus unless Citigroup Global Markets Inc. informs us of its decision to allow earlier separate trading, subject to
our having filed the Current Report on Form 8-K described below and having issued a press release announcing when such
separate trading will begin.

In no event will the common stock and warrants be traded separately until we have filed with the SEC a Current Report on
Form 8-K which includes an audited balance sheet reflecting our receipt of the gross proceeds of this offering. We will file a
Current Report on Form 8-K which includes this audited balance sheet upon the completion of this offering, which is anticipated
to take place three business days after the date of this prospectus. The audited balance sheet will include proceeds we received
from the exercise of the over-allotment option if such option is exercised prior to the filing of the Current Report on Form 8-K. If
the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised following the initial filing of such Current Report on Form 8-K, a second or
amended Current Report on Form 8-K will be filed to provide updated financial information to reflect the exercise of the
underwriters’ over-allotment option.

Common Stock

As of the date of this prospectus, there were 4,417,683 shares of our common stock outstanding, all of which were held of
record by our initial stockholders. This includes an aggregate of 576,220 shares of common stock subject to forfeiture by our initial
stockholders to the extent that the underwriters’ over-allotment option is not exercised in full so that our initial stockholders will
own 18.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this offering (assuming they do not purchase any units in this offering and
they are not required to forfeit their founder earnout shares, as described in this prospectus). Harry E. Sloan, our chairman and
chief executive officer, Jeff Sagansky, our president, and James A. Graf, our vice president, chief financial officer, treasurer and
secretary, are each members of our sponsor. Upon closing of this offering, 21,341,463 shares of our common stock will be
outstanding (assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option).

Common stockholders of record are entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters to be voted on by stockholders. Our
board of directors is divided into three classes, each of which will generally serve for a term of three years with only one class of
directors being elected in each year. There is no cumulative voting with respect to the election of directors, with the result that the
holders of more than 50% of the shares voted for the election of directors can elect all of the directors. Our stockholders are
entitled to receive ratable dividends when, as and if declared by the board of directors out of funds legally available therefor.

Because our amended and restated certificate of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 400,000,000 shares of common
stock, if we were to enter into a business combination, we may (depending on the terms of such a business combination) be
required to increase the number of shares of common stock which we are authorized to issue at the same time as our stockholders
vote on the business combination to the extent we seek stockholder approval in connection with a business combination.

We do not currently intend to hold an annual meeting of stockholders until after we complete a business combination, and thus
may not be in compliance with Section 211(b) of the DGCL. Therefore, if our stockholders want us to hold an annual meeting prior
to our completion of a business combination, they may attempt to force us to hold one by submitting an application to the
Delaware Court of Chancery in accordance with Section 211(c) of the DGCL.
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We will provide our stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their shares upon the completion of our initial business
combination at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account, including
interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable, divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, subject to the
limitations described herein. The amount in the trust account is initially anticipated to be approximately $10.00 per public share, or
approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full. Our initial stockholders have
agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in connection with the completion of
a business combination. Unlike many blank check companies that hold stockholder votes and conduct proxy solicitations in
conjunction with their initial business combinations and provide for related redemptions of public shares for cash upon completion
of such initial business combinations even when a vote is not required by law, if a stockholder vote is not required by law and we
do not decide to hold a stockholder vote for business or other legal reasons, we will, pursuant to our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation, conduct the redemptions pursuant to the tender offer rules of the SEC, and file tender offer documents
with the SEC prior to completing our initial business combination. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation requires
these tender offer documents to contain substantially the same financial and other information about the initial business
combination and the redemption rights as is required under the SEC’s proxy rules. If, however, a stockholder approval of the
transaction is required by law, or we decide to obtain stockholder approval for business or other legal reasons, we will, like many
blank check companies, offer to redeem shares in conjunction with a proxy solicitation pursuant to the proxy rules and not pursuant
to the tender offer rules. If we seek stockholder approval, we will complete our initial business combination only if a majority of
the outstanding shares of common stock voted are voted in favor of the business combination. However, the participation of our
sponsor, officers, directors, advisors or their affiliates in privately-negotiated transactions (as described in this prospectus), if any,
could result in the approval of a business combination even if a majority of our public stockholders vote, or indicate their intention
to vote, against such business combination. For purposes of seeking approval of the majority of our outstanding shares of common
stock, non-votes will have no effect on the approval of a business combination once a quorum is obtained. We intend to give
approximately 30 days (but not less than 10 days nor more than 60 days) prior written notice of any such meeting, if required, at
which a vote shall be taken to approve a business combination.

If we seek stockholder approval in connection with a business combination, our initial stockholders have agreed to vote their
founder shares in accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the public stockholders and to vote any public shares purchased
during or after the offering in favor of our initial business combination. Each public stockholder may elect to redeem their public
shares irrespective of whether they vote for or against the proposed transaction.

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, if we are unable to complete a business combination within
21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive
agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, we will (i) cease all
operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but no more than ten business days
thereafter, redeem 100% of the public shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit
in the trust account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest to pay
dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which redemption will completely extinguish
public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any), subject to
applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the trust account which is
received after such redemption shall be distributed to the former public stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible
following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining stockholders and our board of directors, dissolve and
liquidate, subject in each case to our obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of
other applicable law. Our initial stockholders have agreed to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares if
we fail to complete a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of
this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the
21-month period ends. However, if our initial stockholders or any of our officers, directors or affiliates acquire public
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shares in or after this offering, they will be entitled to redemption rights with respect to such public shares if we fail to complete a
business combination within the required time period.

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the company after a business combination, our stockholders are
entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining available for distribution to them after payment of liabilities and after provision is
made for each class of stock, if any, having preference over the common stock. Our stockholders have no preemptive or other
subscription rights. There are no sinking fund provisions applicable to the common stock, except that we will provide our
stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their shares of our common stock for cash equal to their pro rata share of the
aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account, including interest but net of any franchise and income taxes payable, upon
the completion of our initial business combination, subject to the limitations described herein.

Founder Shares
The founder shares are identical to the shares of common stock included in the units being sold in this offering, and holders of

founder shares have the same stockholder rights as public stockholders, except that (i) the founder shares will be held in escrow
and released only upon the occurrence of certain events, as described in more detail below, and (ii) our initial stockholders have
agreed (A) to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares and public shares in connection with the
completion of a business combination and (B) to waive their redemption rights with respect to their founder shares if we fail to
complete a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from the closing of this offering
if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month
period ends, although they will be entitled to redemption rights with respect to any public shares they hold if we fail to complete a
business combination within such time period. If we submit our initial business combination to our public stockholders for a vote,
our initial stockholders have agreed to vote their founder shares in accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the public
stockholders and to vote any public shares purchased during or after the offering in favor of our initial business combination.

On the date of this prospectus, the founder shares will be placed into a segregated escrow account maintained by American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC acting as escrow agent. While in escrow, the founder shares will not be transferable, other
than to permitted transferees as described above under “Principal Stockholders — Transfers of Founder Shares and Sponsor
Warrants”. The founder shares will be released from escrow on the earlier of (x) one year after the completion of our initial
business combination or earlier if, subsequent to our business combination, the last sales price of our common stock equals or
exceed $12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20
trading days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our initial business combination, or (y) the date
on which we complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after our initial business combination that
results in all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this offering
and the expiration of the underwriters’ overallotment option) will not be released from escrow unless they no longer are subject to
forfeiture, as described herein.

Preferred Stock

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that shares of preferred stock may be issued from time to time in
one or more series. Our board of directors will be authorized to fix the voting rights, if any, designations, powers, preferences, the
relative, participating, optional or other special rights and any qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof, applicable to the
shares of each series. Our board of directors will be able to, without stockholder approval, issue preferred stock with voting and
other rights that could adversely affect the voting power and other rights of the holders of the common stock and could have anti-
takeover effects. The ability of our board of directors to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval could have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of us or the removal of existing management. We have no preferred stock
outstanding at the date hereof. Although we do not currently intend to issue any shares of preferred stock, we cannot assure you
that we will not do so in the future. No shares of preferred stock are being issued or registered in this offering.
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Warrants

Public Stockholders’ Warrants
Each warrant entitles the registered holder to purchase one share of our common stock at a price of $11.50 per share, subject to

adjustment as discussed below, at any time commencing on the later of one year from the closing of this offering or 30 days after
the completion of our initial business combination. The warrants will expire five years after the completion of our initial business
combination, at 5:00 p.m., New York time, or earlier upon redemption or liquidation.

We will not be obligated to deliver any shares of common stock pursuant to the exercise of a warrant and will have no
obligation to settle such warrant exercise unless a registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to the shares of
common stock underlying the warrants is then effective and a prospectus relating thereto is current, subject to our satisfying our
obligations described below with respect to registration. No warrant will be exercisable and we will not be obligated to issue shares
of common stock upon exercise of a warrant unless common stock issuable upon such warrant exercise has been registered,
qualified or deemed to be exempt under the securities laws of the state of residence of the registered holder of the warrants. In the
event that the conditions in the two immediately preceding sentence are not satisfied with respect to a warrant, the holder of such
warrant will not be entitled to exercise such warrant and such warrant may have no value and expire worthless. In no event will we
be required to net cash settle any warrant. In the event that a registration statement is not effective for the exercised warrants, the
purchaser of a unit containing such warrant will have paid the full purchase price for the unit solely for the share of common stock
underlying such unit.

We have agreed that as soon as practicable, but in no event later than fifteen (15) business days, after the closing of our initial
business combination, we will use our best efforts to file with the SEC a registration statement for the registration, under the
Securities Act, of the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, and we will use our best efforts to take such
action as is necessary to register or qualify for sale, in those states in which the warrants were initially offered by us, the shares of
common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, to the extent an exemption is not available. We will use our best efforts to
cause the same to become effective and to maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement, and a current prospectus
relating thereto, until the expiration of the warrants in accordance with the provisions of the warrant agreement. In addition, we
agree to use our best efforts to register the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of a warrant under the blue sky laws of
the states of residence of the exercising warrant holder to the extent an exemption is not available.

If any such registration statement has not been declared effective by the 60 th business day following the closing of our initial
business combination, holders of the warrants will have the right, during the period beginning on the 61st business day after the
closing of our initial business combination and ending upon such registration statement being declared effective by the SEC, and
during any other period when we will fail to have maintained an effective registration statement covering the shares of common
stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants, to exercise such warrants on a cashless basis, by exchanging the warrants (in
accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act or another exemption) for that number of shares of common stock equal to
the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of common stock underlying the warrants, multiplied by
the difference between the warrant exercise price and the fair market value” by (y) the fair market value. For these purposes, fair
market value will mean the volume weighted average price of common stock as reported during the ten (10) trading day period
ending on the trading day prior to the date that notice of exercise is received by the warrant agent from the holder of such warrants
or our securities broker or intermediary.
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Once the warrants become exercisable, we may call the warrants for redemption:

• in whole and not in part;

• at a price of $0.01 per warrant;

• upon not less than 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption (the “30-day redemption period”) to each warrant holder; and

• if, and only if, the reported last sale price of the common stock equals or exceeds $17.50 per share for any 20 trading days
within a 30 trading day period ending three business days before we send to the notice of redemption to the warrant holders.

We will not redeem the warrants unless an effective registration statement under the Securities Act covering the shares of
common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants is effective and a current prospectus relating to those shares of common stock
is available throughout the 30-day redemption period, except if the warrants may be exercised on a cashless basis and such cashless
exercise is exempt from registration under the Securities Act. If and when the warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise
our redemption right even if we are unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state
securities laws.

We have established the last of the redemption criterion discussed above to prevent a redemption call unless there is at the
time of the call a significant premium to the warrant exercise price. If the foregoing conditions are satisfied and we issue a notice
of redemption of the warrants, each warrant holder will be entitled to exercise his, her or its warrant prior to the scheduled
redemption date. However, the price of the common stock may fall below the $17.50 redemption trigger price as well as the
$11.50 warrant exercise price after the redemption notice is issued.

If we call the warrants for redemption as described above, our management will have the option to require any holder that
wishes to exercise his, her or its warrant to do so on a cashless basis. If our management takes advantage of this option, all holders
of warrants would pay the exercise price by surrendering his, her or its warrants for that number of shares of common stock equal
to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of common stock underlying the warrants, multiplied
by the difference between the exercise price of the warrants and the “fair market value” (defined below) by (y) the fair market
value. The “fair market value” shall mean the average reported last sale price of the common stock for the 10 trading days ending
on the third trading day prior to the date on which the notice of redemption is sent to the holders of warrants. If our management
takes advantage of this option, the notice of redemption will contain the information necessary to calculate the number of shares
of common stock to be received upon exercise of the warrants, including the “fair market value” in such case. Requiring a cashless
exercise in this manner will reduce the number of shares to be issued and thereby lessen the dilutive effect of a warrant
redemption. We believe this feature is an attractive option to us if we do not need the cash from the exercise of the warrants after a
business combination. If we call our warrants for redemption and our management does not take advantage of this option, the
sponsor and its permitted transferees would still be entitled to exercise their sponsor warrants for cash or on a cashless basis using
the same formula described above that other warrant holders would have been required to use had all warrant holders been
required to exercise their warrants on a cashless basis, as described in more detail below.

A holder of a warrant may notify us in writing in the event it elects to be subject to a requirement that such holder will not
have the right to exercise such warrant, to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, such person (together with such
person’s affiliates), to the warrant agent’s actual knowledge, would beneficially own in excess of 9.8% of the shares of common
stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise.

If the number of outstanding shares of common stock is increased by a stock dividend payable in shares of common stock, or
by a split-up of shares of common stock or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such stock dividend, split-up or
similar event, the number of shares of common stock issuable on exercise of each warrant will be increased in proportion to such
increase in the outstanding shares of common stock. A rights offering to holders of common stock entitling holders to purchase
shares of common stock at a
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price less than the fair market value will be deemed a stock dividend of a number of shares of common stock equal to the product
of (i) the number of shares of common stock actually sold in such rights offering (or issuable under any other equity securities sold
in such rights offering that are convertible into or exercisable for common stock) multiplied by (ii) the quotient of (x) the price per
share of common stock paid in such rights offering divided by (y) the fair market value. For these purposes (i) if the rights offering
is for securities convertible into or exercisable for common stock, in determining the price payable for common stock, there will be
taken into account any consideration received for such rights, as well as any additional amount payable upon exercise or
conversion and (ii) fair market value means the volume weighted average price of common stock as reported during the ten (10)
trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the first date on which the shares of common stock trade on the applicable
exchange or in the applicable market, regular way, without the right to receive such rights.

In addition, if we, at any time while the warrants are outstanding and unexpired, pay a dividend or make a distribution in cash,
securities or other assets to the holders of common stock on account of such shares of common stock (or other shares of our capital
stock into which the warrants are convertible), other than (a) as described above, (b) certain ordinary cash dividends, (c) to satisfy
the redemption rights of the holders of common stock in connection with a proposed initial business combination, or (d) in
connection with the redemption of our public shares upon our failure to complete our initial business combination, then the
warrant exercise price will be decreased, effective immediately after the effective date of such event, by the amount of cash and/or
the fair market value of any securities or other assets paid on each share of common stock in respect of such event.

If the number of outstanding shares of our common stock is decreased by a consolidation, combination, reverse stock split or
reclassification of shares of common stock or other similar event, then, on the effective date of such consolidation, combination,
reverse stock split, reclassification or similar event, the number of shares of common stock issuable on exercise of each warrant
will be decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares of common stock.

Whenever the number of shares of common stock purchasable upon the exercise of the warrants is adjusted, as described
above, the warrant exercise price will be adjusted by multiplying the warrant exercise price immediately prior to such adjustment
by a fraction (x) the numerator of which will be the number of shares of common stock purchasable upon the exercise of the
warrants immediately prior to such adjustment, and (y) the denominator of which will be the number of shares of common stock so
purchasable immediately thereafter.

In case of any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding shares of common stock (other than those described above
or that solely affects the par value of such shares of common stock), or in the case of any merger or consolidation of us with or
into another corporation (other than a consolidation or merger in which we are the continuing corporation and that does not result
in any reclassification or reorganization of our outstanding shares of common stock), or in the case of any sale or conveyance to
another corporation or entity of the assets or other property of us as an entirety or substantially as an entirety in connection with
which we are dissolved, the holders of the warrants will thereafter have the right to purchase and receive, upon the basis and upon
the terms and conditions specified in the warrants and in lieu of the shares of our common stock immediately theretofore
purchasable and receivable upon the exercise of the rights represented thereby, the kind and amount of shares of stock or other
securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such reclassification, reorganization, merger or consolidation, or upon a
dissolution following any such sale or transfer, that the holder of the warrants would have received if such holder had exercised
their warrants immediately prior to such event. The warrant agreement provides for certain modifications to what holders of
warrants will have the right to purchase and receive upon the occurrence of certain events, and that if less than 70% of the
consideration receivable by the holders of common stock in the applicable event is payable in the form of common stock in the
successor entity that is listed for trading on a national securities exchange or on the OTC Bulletin Board, or is to be so listed for
trading immediately following such event, then the warrant exercise price will be reduced in accordance with a formula specified
in the warrant agreement.
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The warrants will be issued in registered form under a warrant agreement between American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
LLC, as warrant agent, and us. You should review a copy of the warrant agreement, which will be filed as an exhibit to the
registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, for a complete description of the terms and conditions applicable to the
warrants.

The warrants may be exercised upon surrender of the warrant certificate on or prior to the expiration date at the offices of the
warrant agent, with the exercise form on the reverse side of the warrant certificate completed and executed as indicated,
accompanied by full payment of the exercise price (or on a cashless basis, if applicable), by certified or official bank check payable
to us, for the number of warrants being exercised. The warrant holders do not have the rights or privileges of holders of common
stock and any voting rights until they exercise their warrants and receive shares of common stock. After the issuance of shares of
common stock upon exercise of the warrants, each holder will be entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters to
be voted on by stockholders.

No fractional shares will be issued upon exercise of the warrants. If, upon exercise of the warrants, a holder would be entitled
to receive a fractional interest in a share, we will, upon exercise, round up to the nearest whole number the number of shares of
common stock to be issued to the warrant holder.

Sponsor Warrants
The sponsor warrants (including the common stock issuable upon exercise of the sponsor warrants) will be placed into a

segregated escrow account maintained by American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC acting as escrow agent, and will not be
released until 30 days after the completion of our initial business combination. While in escrow, the sponsor warrants will be
subject to restrictions on transfer described under “Principal Stockholders — Transfers of Founder Shares and Sponsor Warrants”
and they will not be redeemable by us so long as they are held by the sponsor or its permitted transferees. Otherwise, the sponsor
warrants have terms and provisions that are identical to those of the warrants being sold as part of the units in this offering, except
that such warrants may be exercised by the holders on a cashless basis. If the sponsor warrants are held by holders other than the
sponsor or its permitted transferees, the sponsor warrants will be redeemable by us and exercisable by the holders on the same
basis as the warrants included in the units being sold in this offering.

If holders of the sponsor warrants elect to exercise them on a cashless basis, they would pay the exercise price by surrendering
his, her or its warrants for that number of shares of common stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the
number of shares of common stock underlying the warrants, multiplied by the difference between the exercise price of the
warrants and the “fair market value” (defined below) by (y) the fair market value. The “fair market value” shall mean the average
reported last sale price of the common stock for the 10 trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the
notice of warrant exercise is sent to the warrant agent. The reason that we have agreed that these warrants will be exercisable on a
cashless basis so long as they are held by our sponsor or its affiliates and permitted transferees is because it is not known at this
time whether they will be affiliated with us following a business combination. If they remain affiliated with us, their ability to sell
our securities in the open market will be significantly limited. We expect to have policies in place that prohibit insiders from selling
our securities except during specific periods of time. Even during such periods of time when insiders will be permitted to sell our
securities, an insider cannot trade in our securities if he or she is in possession of material non-public information. Accordingly,
unlike public stockholders who could exercise their warrants and sell the shares of common stock received upon such exercise
freely in the open market in order to recoup the cost of such exercise, the insiders could be significantly restricted from selling such
securities. As a result, we believe that allowing the holders to exercise such warrants on a cashless basis is appropriate.

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock to date and do not intend to pay cash dividends prior to the
completion of a business combination. The payment of cash dividends in the future will be dependent upon our revenues and
earnings, if any, capital requirements and general financial condition subsequent to completion of a business combination. The
payment of any cash dividends subsequent to a business combination will be within the discretion of our board of directors at such
time. In addition, our board of directors is not currently contemplating and does not anticipate declaring any stock dividends in the
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foreseeable future, except if we increase the size of the offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, in which case we
will effect a stock dividend immediately prior to the completion of the offering in such amount as to maintain our initial
stockholders’ ownership at 14.0% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock upon the completion of this offering.
Further, if we incur any indebtedness, our ability to declare dividends may be limited by restrictive covenants we may agree to in
connection therewith.

Our Transfer Agent and Warrant Agent

The transfer agent for our common stock and warrant agent for our warrants is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
LLC. We have agreed to indemnify American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC in its roles as transfer agent and warrant
agent, its agents and each of its stockholders, directors, officers and employees against all claims and losses that may arise out of
acts performed or omitted for its activities in that capacity, except for any liability due to any gross negligence or intentional
misconduct of the indemnified person or entity.

Our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains certain requirements and restrictions relating to this offering
that will apply to us until the completion of our business combination. These provisions cannot be amended without the approval
of 65% of our stockholders. Our initial stockholders, who will collectively beneficially own 18.0% of our common stock upon the
closing of this offering (assuming they do not purchase any units in this offering), will participate in any vote to amend our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation and will have the discretion to vote in any manner they choose. Specifically, our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides, among other things, that:

• if we are unable to complete a business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from
the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination
is executed before the 21-month period ends we will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as
promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem 100% of the public shares, at a per-
share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account, including interest but net of
franchise and income taxes payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest that may be distributed to us to pay dissolution
expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public
stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any), subject to
applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the trust account which is
received after such redemption shall be distributed to the former public stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably
possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining stockholders and our board of directors,
dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to our obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the
requirements of other applicable law;

• prior to our initial business combination, we may not issue additional shares of capital stock that would entitle the holders
thereof to (i) receive funds from the trust account or (ii) vote on any initial business combination;

• in the event we enter into an initial business combination with a target business that is affiliated with our sponsor, officers or
directors, we, or a committee of independent directors, will obtain an opinion from an independent investment banking firm
that is a member of FINRA that such a business combination is fair to our company from a financial point of view;

• if we offer to redeem our public shares in conjunction with a stockholder vote on an initial business combination pursuant to
a proxy solicitation, a public stockholder, together with any affiliate of such stockholder or any other person with whom
such stockholder is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act), shall be
restricted from seeking redemption with respect to more than an aggregate of 10% of the public shares;

• if we seek stockholder approval of an initial business combination, prior to the consummation thereof, we may instruct the
trustee under the trust agreement that amounts necessary to purchase up
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to 15% of the public shares at any time and from time to time commencing after the filing of a preliminary proxy statement
for the initial business combination and ending on the date of the stockholder meeting to approve such initial business
combination be released to us from the trust account. Such purchases may be made only at per share prices (inclusive of
commissions) that do not exceed an amount equal to (a) the aggregate amount then on deposit in the trust account divided
by (b) the total number of public shares then outstanding;

• if a stockholder vote on our initial business combination is not required by law and we do not decide to hold a stockholder
vote for business or other legal reasons, we will offer to redeem our public shares pursuant to Rule 13e-4 and Regulation
14E of the Exchange Act and will file tender offer documents with the SEC prior to completing our initial business
combination which contain substantially the same financial and other information about the initial business combination
and the redemption rights as is required under Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act; and

• we will not effectuate our initial business combination with another blank check company or a similar company with
nominal operations.

In addition, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that under no circumstances will we redeem our
public shares in an amount that would cause our net tangible assets to be less than $5,000,001.

Certain Anti-Takeover Provisions of Delaware Law

We will be subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL regulating corporate takeovers upon completion of this
offering. This statute prevents certain Delaware corporations, under certain circumstances, from engaging in a “business
combination” with:

• a stockholder who owns 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock (otherwise known as an “interested stockholder”);

• an affiliate of an interested stockholder; or

• an associate of an interested stockholder, for three years following the date that the stockholder became an interested
stockholder.

A “business combination” includes a merger or sale of more than 10% of our assets. However, the above provisions of Section
203 do not apply if:

• our board of directors approves the transaction that made the stockholder an “interested stockholder,” prior to the date of the
transaction;

• after the completion of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, that stockholder
owned at least 85% of our voting stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, other than statutorily excluded
shares of common stock; or

• on or subsequent to the date of the transaction, the business combination is approved by our board of directors and
authorized at a meeting of our stockholders, and not by written consent, by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the
outstanding voting stock not owned by the interested stockholder.

Securities Eligible for Future Sale

Immediately after this offering (assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option and the forfeiture of 576,220
founder shares held by our initial stockholders) we will have 21,341,463 shares of common stock outstanding. Of these shares, the
17,500,000 shares sold in this offering will be freely tradable without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act,
except for any shares purchased by one of our affiliates within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act. All of the
remaining 3,841,463 shares and all 7,000,000 sponsor warrants are restricted securities under Rule 144, in that they were issued in
private transactions not involving a public offering.
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Rule 144
Pursuant to Rule 144, a person who has beneficially owned restricted shares of our common stock or warrants for at least six

months would be entitled to sell their securities provided that (i) such person is not deemed to have been one of our affiliates at the
time of, or at any time during the three months preceding, a sale and (ii) we are subject to the Exchange Act periodic reporting
requirements for at least three months before the sale and have filed all required reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange
Act during the 12 months (or such shorter period as we were required to file reports) preceding the sale.

Persons who have beneficially owned restricted shares of our common stock or warrants for at least six months but who are
our affiliates at the time of, or at any time during the three months preceding, a sale, would be subject to additional restrictions, by
which such person would be entitled to sell within any three-month period only a number of securities that does not exceed the
greater of:

• 1% of the total number of shares of common stock then outstanding, which will equal 213,415 shares immediately after this
offering (or 245,427 if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option); or

• the average weekly reported trading volume of the common stock during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a
notice on Form 144 with respect to the sale.

Sales by our affiliates under Rule 144 are also limited by manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the
availability of current public information about us.

Restrictions on the Use of Rule 144 by Shell Companies or Former Shell Companies
Rule 144 is not available for the resale of securities initially issued by shell companies (other than business combination

related shell companies) or issuers that have been at any time previously a shell company. However, Rule 144 also includes an
important exception to this prohibition if the following conditions are met:

• the issuer of the securities that was formerly a shell company has ceased to be a shell company;

• the issuer of the securities is subject to the reporting requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

• the issuer of the securities has filed all Exchange Act reports and material required to be filed, as applicable, during the
preceding 12 months (or such shorter period that the issuer was required to file such reports and materials), other than Form
8-K reports; and

• at least one year has elapsed from the time that the issuer filed current Form 10 type information with the SEC reflecting its
status as an entity that is not a shell company.

As a result, our initial stockholders will be able to sell their founder shares and sponsor warrants, as applicable, pursuant to
Rule 144 without registration one year after we have completed our initial business combination.

Registration Rights

The holders of the founder shares, sponsor warrants and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of working capital loans
(and any shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of the sponsor warrant and warrants that may be issued upon
conversion of working capital loans) will be entitled to registration rights pursuant to a registration rights agreement to be signed
prior to or on the effective date of this offering. The holders of the majority of these securities are entitled to make up to three
demands, excluding short form demands, that we register such securities. In addition, the holders have certain “piggy-back”
registration rights with respect to registration statements filed subsequent to our completion of an initial business combination.
However, the registration rights agreement provides that we will not permit any registration statement filed under the Securities
Act to become effective with respect to any securities until they are released from escrow, as described herein. We will bear the
expenses incurred in connection with the filing of any such registration statements.
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Quotation of Securities

We expect our units, common stock and warrants quoted on the OTCBB under the symbols “    ,” “    ,” and “    ,” respectively.
We anticipate that our units will be quoted on the OTCBB on or promptly after the effective date of the registration statement.
Following the date the shares of our common stock and warrants are eligible to trade separately, we anticipate that the shares of
our common stock and warrants will be quoted separately and as a unit on the OTCBB. Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. has advised
us that it intends to act as a market maker of our securities on the OTCBB until the earlier of (i) the completion of our initial
business combination and (ii) the redemption of all our public shares if we fail to complete a business combination in the
prescribed time frame but it could cease making a market at any time.
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MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL TAX CONSIDERATIONS

This is a general summary of the material U.S. federal tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of our
units, common stock and warrants, which we refer to collectively as our securities, purchased by public stockholders pursuant to
this offering. This discussion assumes that stockholders will hold our securities as capital assets within the meaning of Section
1221 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). This discussion does not address all aspects of U.S. federal
taxation that may be relevant to a public stockholder in light of such stockholder’s particular circumstances. In addition, this
discussion does not address (i) U.S. gift or estate tax laws except to the limited extent set forth below, (ii) state, local or foreign tax
consequences, (iii) the special tax rules that may apply to certain stockholders, including without limitation banks, insurance
companies, financial institutions, broker-dealers, taxpayers that have elected mark-to-market accounting, taxpayers subject to the
alternative minimum tax provisions of the Code, tax-exempt entities, S corporations, regulated investment companies, real estate
investment trusts, taxpayers whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, U.S. expatriates or former long-term residents of the
United States, or governments or their agencies or instrumentalities, or (iv) the special tax rules that may apply to a stockholder
that acquires, holds, or disposes of our securities as part of a straddle, hedge, wash sale (except to the limited extent described
below), constructive sale or conversion transaction or other integrated investment. Additionally, this discussion does not consider
the tax treatment of partnerships (including entities treated as partnerships for U.S. federal tax purposes) or other pass-through
entities or persons who hold our securities through such entities. The tax treatment of a partnership and each partner thereof will
generally depend upon the status and activities of the partnership and such partner. Thus, partnerships, other pass-through entities
and persons holding our securities through such entities should consult their own tax advisors.

This discussion is based on current provisions of the Code, U.S. Treasury regulations promulgated under the Code, judicial
opinions, and published rulings and procedures of the United States Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), all as in effect on the date
of this prospectus and all of which are subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. We have not sought, and will not seek,
any ruling from the IRS or any opinion of counsel with respect to the tax consequences discussed below, and there can be no
assurance that the IRS will not take a position contrary to the tax consequences discussed below or that any position taken by the
IRS would not be sustained.

As used in this “Material U.S. Federal Tax Considerations” section only, the term “U.S. person” means a person that is, for
U.S. federal income tax purposes (i) an individual citizen or resident of the United States, (ii) a corporation (or other entity treated
as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes) created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any State
thereof or the District of Columbia, (iii) an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its
source, or (iv) a trust if (A) a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the
trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust, or (B) it has in effect a valid
election to be treated as a U.S. person. As used in this discussion, the term “U.S. holder” means a beneficial owner of our securities
that is a U.S. person and the term “non-U.S. holder” means a beneficial owner of our securities (other than an entity that is treated
as a partnership or as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes) that is not a U.S. person.

This discussion is only a summary of material U.S. federal income and estate tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership
and disposition of our securities. Each prospective investor is urged to consult its own tax advisors with respect to the U.S. federal,
state, local and foreign tax consequences to such investor of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of our securities.

Company

Personal Holding Company Status
We could be subject to a second level of U.S. federal income tax on a portion of our income if we are determined to be a

personal holding company (“PHC”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes. A U.S. corporation generally will be classified as a PHC
for U.S. federal income tax purposes in a given taxable year if (i) at any time during the last half of such taxable year, five or fewer
individuals (without regard to
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their citizenship or residency and including as individuals for this purpose certain entities such as certain tax-exempt organizations,
pension funds, and charitable trusts) own or are deemed to own (pursuant to certain constructive ownership rules) more than 50%
of the stock of the corporation by value and (ii) at least 60% of the corporation’s adjusted ordinary gross income, as determined for
U.S. federal income tax purposes, for such taxable year consists of PHC income (which includes, among other things, dividends,
interest, certain royalties, annuities and, under certain circumstances, rents).

Depending on the date and size of our initial business combination, it is possible that at least 60% of our adjusted ordinary
gross income may consist of PHC income as discussed above. In addition, depending on the concentration of our stock in the hands
of individuals, including the members of our sponsor and certain tax-exempt organizations, pension funds, and charitable trusts, it
is possible that more than 50% of our stock will be owned or deemed owned (pursuant to the constructive ownership rules) by such
persons during the last half of a taxable year. Thus, no assurance can be given that we will not become a PHC following this
offering or in the future. If we are or were to become a PHC in a given taxable year, we would be subject to an additional PHC tax
on our undistributed PHC income, which generally includes our taxable income, subject to certain adjustments. For taxable years
beginning after December 31, 2012, the tax rate on undistributed PHC income will be equal to the highest marginal rate on
ordinary income applicable to individuals. For the tax years ending before January 1, 2013, the tax rate is 15%.

Public Stockholders

General
There is no authority addressing the treatment, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, of securities with terms substantially the

same as the units, and, therefore, that treatment is not entirely clear. Each unit should be treated for U.S. federal income tax
purposes as an investment unit consisting of one share of our common stock and a warrant to acquire one share of our common
stock. Each holder of a unit must allocate the purchase price paid by such holder for such unit between the share of common stock
and the warrant based on their respective relative fair market values. A holder’s initial tax basis in the common stock and the
warrant included in each unit should equal the portion of the purchase price of the unit allocated thereto.

The foregoing treatment of the common stock and warrants and a holder’s purchase price allocation are not binding on the IRS
or the courts. Because there are no authorities that directly address instruments that are similar to the units, no assurance can be
given that the IRS or the courts will agree with the characterization described above or the discussion below. Accordingly, each
prospective investor is urged to consult its own tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal, state, local and any foreign tax
consequences of an investment in a unit (including alternative characterizations of a unit). Unless otherwise stated, the following
discussions are based on the assumption that the characterization of the common stock and warrants and the allocation described
above are accepted for U.S. federal tax purposes.

U.S. Holders

Taxation of Distributions
If we pay cash distributions to U.S. holders of shares of our common stock, such distributions generally will constitute

dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent paid from our current or accumulated earnings and profits, as
determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits will
constitute a return of capital that will be applied against and reduce (but not below zero) the U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in our
common stock. Any remaining excess will be treated as gain realized on the sale or other disposition of the common stock and
will be treated as described under “U.S. Holders — Gain or Loss on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of
Common Stock” below.

Dividends we pay to a U.S. holder that is a taxable corporation generally will qualify for the dividends received deduction if
the requisite holding period is satisfied. With certain exceptions (including, but not limited to, dividends treated as investment
income for purposes of investment interest deduction limitations), and provided certain holding period requirements are met,
dividends we pay to a non-corporate U.S. holder generally will constitute “qualified dividends” that will be subject to tax at the
maximum tax rate accorded to
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long-term capital gains (currently 15%) for tax years beginning before January 1, 2013, after which the rate applicable to dividends
is currently scheduled to return to the tax rate generally applicable to ordinary income. It is unclear whether the redemption rights
with respect to the common stock described in this prospectus may prevent a U.S. holder from satisfying the applicable holding
period requirements with respect to the dividends received deduction or the preferential tax rate on qualified dividend income, as
the case may be.

Gain or Loss on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Stock
In general, a U.S. holder must treat any gain or loss recognized upon a sale, taxable exchange or other taxable disposition of

our common stock (which would include a dissolution and liquidation in the event we do not complete an initial business
combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering or 24 months from the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or
definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is executed before the 21-month period ends) as capital
gain or loss. Any such capital gain or loss will be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. holder’s holding period for the common
stock so disposed of exceeds one year. It is unclear, however, as to whether the redemption rights with respect to the common
stock described in this prospectus may suspend the running of the applicable holding period for this purpose. Generally, a U.S.
holder will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between (i) the sum of the amount of cash and the fair
market value of any property received in such disposition (or, if the common stock is held as part of a unit at the time of the
disposition, the portion of the amount realized on such disposition that is allocated to the common stock based upon the then fair
market values of the common stock and the warrant included in the unit) and (ii) the U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in its common
stock so disposed of. A U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in its common stock generally will equal the U.S. holder’s acquisition cost
(that is, as discussed above, the portion of the purchase price of a unit allocated to a share of common stock) less any prior return
of capital. Long-term capital gain realized by a non-corporate U.S. holder generally will be subject to a maximum rate of 15% for
tax years beginning before January 1, 2013, after which the maximum long-term capital gains rate is scheduled to increase. The
deduction of capital losses is subject to limitations, as is the deduction for losses realized upon a taxable disposition by a U.S.
holder of our common stock (whether or not held as part of a unit) if, within a period beginning 30 days before the date of such
disposition and ending 30 days after such date, such U.S. holder has acquired (by purchase or by an exchange on which the entire
amount of gain or loss was recognized by law), or has entered into a contract or option so to acquire, substantially identical stock
or securities.

Redemption of Common Stock
In the event that a U.S. holder redeems common stock pursuant to the redemption provisions described in this prospectus, the

treatment of the transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes will depend on whether the redemption qualifies as sale of the
common stock. If that redemption qualifies as a sale of common stock by the U.S. holder under Section 302 of the Code, the U.S.
holder will be treated as described under “U.S. Holders — Gain or Loss on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition
of Common Stock” above. If that redemption does not qualify as a sale of common stock under Section 302 of the Code, the U.S.
holder will be treated as receiving a corporate distribution with the tax consequences described above. Whether that redemption
qualifies for sale treatment will depend largely on the total number of shares of our stock treated as held by the U.S. holder
(including any stock constructively owned by the U.S. holder as a result of, among other things, owning warrants) relative to all of
our shares both before and after the redemption. The redemption of common stock generally will be treated as a sale of the
common stock (rather than as a corporate distribution) if the redemption (i) is “substantially disproportionate” with respect to the
U.S. holder, (ii) results in a “complete termination” of the U.S. holder’s interest in us or (iii) is “not essentially equivalent to a
dividend” with respect to the U.S. holder. These tests are explained more fully below.

In determining whether any of the foregoing tests are satisfied, a U.S. holder takes into account not only stock actually owned
by the U.S. holder, but also shares of our stock that are constructively owned by it. A U.S. holder may constructively own, in
addition to stock owned directly, stock owned by certain related individuals and entities in which the U.S. holder has an interest or
that have an interest in such U.S. holder, as well as any stock the U.S. holder has a right to acquire by exercise of an option, which
would generally include common stock which could be acquired pursuant to the exercise of the warrants. In order to meet the
substantially disproportionate test, the percentage of our outstanding voting stock actually and constructively
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owned by the U.S. holder immediately following the redemption of common stock must, among other requirements, be less than
80 percent of the percentage of our outstanding voting stock actually and constructively owned by the U.S. holder immediately
before the redemption. There will be a complete termination of a U.S. holder’s interest if either (i) all of the shares of our stock
actually and constructively owned by the U.S. holder are redeemed or (ii) all of the shares of our stock actually owned by the U.S.
holder are redeemed and the U.S. holder is eligible to waive, and effectively waives in accordance with specific rules, the
attribution of stock owned by certain family members and the U.S. holder does not constructively own any other stock. The
redemption of the common stock will not be essentially equivalent to a dividend if a U.S. holder’s conversion results in a
“meaningful reduction” of the U.S. holder’s proportionate interest in us. Whether the redemption will result in a meaningful
reduction in a U.S. holder’s proportionate interest in us will depend on the particular facts and circumstances. However, the IRS
has indicated in a published ruling that even a small reduction in the proportionate interest of a small minority stockholder in a
publicly held corporation who exercises no control over corporate affairs may constitute such a “meaningful reduction.” A U.S.
holder should consult with its own tax advisors as to the tax consequences of a redemption.

If none of the foregoing tests are satisfied, then the redemption will be treated as a corporate distribution and the tax effects
will be as described under “U.S. Holders — Taxation of Distributions,” above. After the application of those rules, any remaining
tax basis of the U.S. holder in the redeemed common stock will be added to the U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in its remaining
stock, or, if it has none, to the U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis in its warrants or possibly in other stock constructively owned by it.

The tax treatment of the receipt of any “premium” purchase price by U.S. holders in connection with a privately negotiated
transaction as described in this prospectus (see “The Offering — Other permitted purchases of public shares by us or our
affiliates”) is unclear. The premium may be treated as either (i) additional consideration received in exchange for the tendered
common stock in a redemption, in which case such payments will be taken into account in determining the amount of gain or loss
on the exchange as discussed above, or (ii) a separate fee for voting in favor of the proposed business combination, in which case
such payments will be treated as ordinary income to recipient U.S. holders. There can be no assurance that the IRS will not attempt
to treat the receipt of the premiums as the receipt of separate consideration for voting in favor of the proposed business
combination. U.S. holders are urged to consult their own tax advisors as to the proper treatment of the premiums.

U.S. holders who actually or constructively own one percent or more of our stock (by vote or value) may be subject to special
reporting requirements with respect to a redemption of common stock, and such holders should consult with their own tax advisors
with respect to their reporting requirements.

Exercise of a Warrant
Except as discussed below with respect to the cashless exercise of a warrant, a U.S. holder will not be required to recognize

taxable gain or loss upon exercise of a warrant. The U.S. holder’s tax basis in the share of our common stock received upon
exercise of the warrant generally will be an amount equal to the sum of the U.S. holder’s initial investment in the warrant (i.e., the
portion of the U.S. holder’s purchase price for a unit that is allocated to the warrant, as described above under “— General”) and
the exercise price. The U.S. holder’s holding period for the share of our common stock received upon exercise of the warrant will
begin on the date following the date of exercise (or possibly the date of exercise) of the warrant and will not include the period
during which the U.S. holder held the warrant.

The tax consequences of a cashless exercise of a warrant are not clear under current tax law. A cashless exercise may be tax-
free, either because the exercise is not a gain realization event or because the exercise is treated as a recapitalization for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. In either tax-free situation, a U.S. holder’s basis in the common stock received would equal the
holder’s basis in the warrant. If the cashless exercise were treated as not being a gain realization event, a U.S. holder’s holding
period in the common stock would be treated as commencing on the date following the date of exercise (or possibly the date of
exercise) of the warrant. If the cashless exercise were treated as a recapitalization, the holding period of the common stock would
include the holding period of the warrant.
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It is also possible that a cashless exercise could be treated as a taxable exchange in which gain or loss would be recognized. In
such event, a U.S. holder could be deemed to have surrendered warrants equal to the number of common shares having a value
equal to the exercise price for the total number of warrants to be exercised. The U.S. holder would recognize capital gain or loss in
an amount equal to the difference between the fair market value of the common stock represented by the warrants deemed
surrendered and the U.S. holder’s tax basis in the warrants deemed surrendered. In this case, a U.S. holder’s tax basis in the
common stock received would equal the sum of the fair market value of the common stock represented by the warrants deemed
surrendered and the U.S. holder’s tax basis in the warrants exercised. A U.S. holder’s holding period for the common stock would
commence on the date following the date of exercise (or possibly the date of exercise) of the warrant.

Due to the absence of authority on the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a cashless exercise, there can be no assurance
which, if any, of the alternative tax consequences and holding periods described above would be adopted by the IRS or a court of
law. Accordingly, U.S. holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of a cashless exercise.

Sale, Taxable Exchange, Redemption or Expiration of a Warrant
Upon a sale, taxable exchange (other than by exercise), redemption, or expiration of a warrant, a U.S. holder will be required

to recognize taxable gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between (i) the amount realized upon such disposition or
expiration (or, if the warrant is held as part of a unit at the time of the disposition of the unit, the portion of the amount realized on
such disposition that is allocated to the warrant based on the then fair market values of the warrant and the common stock included
in the unit) and (ii) the U.S. holder’s tax basis in the warrant (that is, as discussed above, the portion of the U.S. holder’s purchase
price for a unit that is allocated to the warrant, as described above under “— General”). Such gain or loss would generally be
treated as long-term capital gain or loss if the warrant was held by the U.S. holder for more than one year at the time of such
disposition or expiration. As discussed above, the deductibility of capital losses is subject to certain limitations, as is the deduction
for losses upon a taxable disposition by a U.S. holder of a warrant (whether or not held as part of a unit) if, within a period
beginning 30 days before the date of such disposition and ending 30 days after such date, such U.S. holder has acquired (by
purchase or by an exchange on which the entire amount of gain or loss was recognized by law), or has entered into a contract or
option so to acquire, substantially identical stock or securities.

Additional Taxes After 2012
For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2012, U.S. holders that are individuals, estates or trusts and whose income

exceeds certain thresholds generally will be subject to a 3.8% Medicare contribution tax on unearned income, including, among
other things, dividends on, and capital gains from the sale or other taxable disposition of, our common stock, subject to certain
limitations and exceptions. U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, of such tax on their
ownership and disposition of our securities.

Non-U.S. Holders

Taxation of Distributions
In general, any distributions we make to a non-U.S. holder of shares of our common stock, to the extent paid out of our current

or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles), generally will constitute dividends
for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, provided such dividends are not effectively connected with the non-U.S. holder’s
conduct of a trade or business within the United States, we generally will be required to withhold tax from the gross amount of the
dividend at a rate of 30%, unless such non-U.S. holder is eligible for a reduced rate of withholding tax under an applicable income
tax treaty and provides proper certification of its eligibility for such reduced rate (usually on an IRS Form W-8BEN). Any
distribution not constituting a dividend will be treated first as reducing (but not below zero) the non-U.S. holder’s adjusted tax
basis in its shares of our common stock and, to the extent such distribution exceeds the non-U.S. holder’s adjusted tax basis, as
gain realized from the sale or other disposition of the common stock, which will be treated as described under “Non-U.S.
Holders — Gain on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Stock and Warrants” below. In addition, if
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we determine that we are likely to be classified as a “United States real property holding corporation” (see “Non-U.S.
Holders — Gain on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Stock and Warrants” below), we will
withhold 10% of any distribution that exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits.

Dividends we pay to a non-U.S. holder that are effectively connected with such non-U.S. holder’s conduct of a trade or
business within the United States generally will not be subject to U.S. withholding tax, provided such non-U.S. holder complies
with certain certification and disclosure requirements (usually by providing an IRS Form W-8ECI). Instead, such dividends
generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax, net of certain deductions, at the same graduated individual or corporate rates
applicable to U.S. holders (subject to an exemption or reduction in such tax as may be provided by an applicable income tax
treaty). If the non-U.S. holder is a corporation, dividends that are effectively connected income may also be subject to a “branch
profits tax” at a rate of 30% (or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty).

Exercise of a Warrant
The U.S. federal income tax treatment of a non-U.S. holder’s exercise of a warrant generally will correspond to the U.S. federal

income tax treatment of the exercise of a warrant by a U.S. holder, as described under “U.S. Holders — Exercise of a Warrant”
above, although to the extent a cashless exercise results in a taxable exchange, the consequences would be similar to those
described below in “Non-U.S. Holders — Gain on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Stock and
Warrants.”

Gain on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Stock and Warrants
A non-U.S. holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax in respect of gain recognized on a

sale, taxable exchange or other taxable disposition of our common stock (which would include a dissolution and liquidation in the
event we do not complete an initial business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from
the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is
executed before the 21-month period ends, or warrants (including an expiration or redemption of our warrants), in each case
without regard to whether those securities were held as part of a unit, unless:

• the gain is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business by the non-U.S. holder within the United States
(and, under certain income tax treaties, is attributable to a United States permanent establishment or fixed base maintained
by the non-U.S. holder);

• the non-U.S. holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of
disposition and certain other conditions are met; or

• we are or have been a “U.S. real property holding corporation” for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time during the
shorter of the five-year period ending on the date of disposition or the period that the non-U.S. holder held our common
stock, and, in the case where shares of our common stock are regularly traded on an established securities market, the non-
U.S. holder has owned, directly or indirectly, more than 5% of our common stock at any time within the shorter of the five-
year period preceding the disposition or such non-U.S. holder’s holding period for the shares of our common stock. There
can be no assurance that our common stock will be treated as regularly traded on an established securities market for this
purpose.

Unless an applicable treaty provides otherwise, gain described in the first bullet point above will be subject to tax at generally
applicable U.S. federal income tax rates. Any gains described in the first bullet point above of a non-U.S. holder that is a foreign
corporation may also be subject to an additional “branch profits tax” at a 30% rate (or lower treaty rate). Gain described in the
second bullet point above (which may be offset by U.S. source capital losses) will be subject to a flat 30% U.S. federal income tax.
Non-U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding possible eligibility for benefits under income tax treaties.
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Although we currently are not a U.S. real property holding corporation, we cannot determine whether we will be a United
States real property holding corporation in the future until we complete an initial business combination. We will be classified as a
U.S. real property holding corporation if the fair market value of our “U.S. real property interests” equals or exceeds 50 percent of
the sum of the fair market value of our worldwide real property interests plus our other assets used or held for use in a trade or
business, as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Redemption of Common Stock
The characterization for U.S. federal income tax purposes of a non-U.S. holder’s redemption of our common stock pursuant to

the redemption provisions described in this prospectus generally will correspond to the U.S. federal income tax characterization of
such a redemption by a U.S. holder, as described under “U.S. Holders — Redemption of Common Stock” above, and the
consequences of the redemption to the non-U.S. holder will be as described above under “Non-U.S. Holders — Taxation of
Distributions” and “Non-U.S. Holders — Gain on Sale, Taxable Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of Common Stock and
Warrants,” as applicable.

As discussed above in “U.S. Holders — Redemption of Common Stock,” the treatment of the receipt of any premium in
connection with a privately negotiated transaction as described in this prospectus is unclear. Accordingly, we intend to withhold
U.S. federal income tax at a rate of 30% from any premium paid to a non-U.S. Holder, unless (i) the non-U.S. holder is engaged in
the conduct of a trade or business in the United States to which the receipt of the premium is effectively connected and provides a
properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI or (ii) a U.S. tax treaty either eliminates or reduces such withholding tax with respect to the
premium paid to the non-U.S. holder and the non-U.S. holder provides a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN (claiming
exemption or reduction under an applicable treaty), and in both cases, neither we nor our paying agent knows or has reason to know
that such certification is false. If such withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, the applicable non-U.S. holder may be able
to obtain a refund or credit, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS. Non-U.S. holders should consult
their tax advisors with respect to the tax treatment of any such premium.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding
We must report annually to the IRS and to each holder the amount of dividends or other distributions we pay to such holder on

our shares of common stock and the amount of tax withheld with respect to those distributions, regardless of whether withholding
is required. In the case of a non-U.S. holder, the IRS may make copies of the information returns reporting those dividends and
amounts withheld available to the tax authorities in the country in which the non-U.S. holder resides pursuant to the provisions of
an applicable income tax treaty or exchange of information treaty.

The gross amount of dividends and proceeds from the disposition of our common stock or warrants paid to a holder that fails to
provide the appropriate certification in accordance with applicable U.S. Treasury regulations generally will be subject to backup
withholding at the applicable rate.

Information reporting and backup withholding generally are not required with respect to the amount of any proceeds from the
sale by a non-U.S. holder of common stock or warrants outside the United States through a foreign office of a foreign broker that
does not have certain specified connections to the United States. However, if a non-U.S. holder sells common stock or warrants
through a U.S. broker or the U.S. office of a foreign broker, the broker will be required to report to the IRS the amount of proceeds
paid to such holder, unless the non-U.S. holder provides appropriate certification (usually on an IRS Form W-8BEN) to the broker
of its status as a non-U.S. holder or such non-U.S. holder is an exempt recipient. In addition, for information reporting purposes,
certain non-U.S. brokers with certain type of relationships with the United States will be treated in a manner similar to United
States brokers.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts we withhold under the backup withholding rules may be refunded
or credited against the holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, by the IRS if the required information is furnished to the
IRS in a timely manner.
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Recent legislation may impose additional reporting or certification requirements on certain non-U.S. holders. Each non-U.S.
holder is urged to consult its own tax advisors with respect to any reporting and certifications applicable to it.

Federal Estate Tax
Shares of our common stock or warrants owned or treated as owned by an individual who is not a U.S. citizen or resident (as

specifically defined for U.S. federal estate tax purposes) at the time of his or her death will be included in the individual’s gross
estate for U.S. federal estate tax purposes, unless an applicable estate tax treaty provides otherwise, and therefore may be subject to
U.S. federal estate tax. Each non-U.S. holder should consult its own tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal estate tax.
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UNDERWRITING

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. is acting as sole book-running manager of this offering and as representative of the underwriters
named below. Subject to the terms and conditions stated in the underwriting agreement dated the date of this prospectus, each
underwriter named below has severally agreed to purchase and we have agreed to sell to that underwriter, the number of units set
forth opposite the underwriter’s name.  
Underwriter  Number of Units
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.          
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.          
       
             
Total   17,500,000 

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the units included in this offering are
subject to approval of legal matters by counsel and to other conditions. The underwriters are obligated to purchase all of the units
(other than those covered by the over-allotment option described below) if they purchase any of the units.

Units sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of
this prospectus. Any units sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount from the initial public offering
price not to exceed $    per unit. If all of the units are not sold at the initial offering price, the underwriters may change the offering
price and the other selling terms. Citigroup Global Markets Inc. has advised us that the underwriters do not intend to make sales to
discretionary accounts.

If the underwriters sell more units than the total number set forth in the table above, we have granted to the underwriters an
option, exercisable for 45 days from the date of this prospectus, to purchase up to 2,625,000 additional units at the public offering
price less the underwriting discount. The underwriters may exercise this option solely for the purpose of covering over-allotments,
if any, in connection with this offering. To the extent the option is exercised, each underwriter must purchase a number of
additional units approximately proportionate to that underwriter’s initial purchase commitment. Any units issued or sold under the
option will be issued and sold on the same terms and conditions as the other units that are the subject of this offering.

We, our sponsor and our officers and directors have agreed that, for a period of 180 days from the date of this prospectus, we
and they will not, without the prior written consent of Citigroup Global Markets Inc., offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge or
otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, any units, warrants, shares of common stock or any other securities convertible into, or
exercisable, or exchangeable for, shares of common stock. Citigroup Global Markets Inc. in its sole discretion may release any of
the securities subject to these lock-up agreements at any time without notice.

On the date of this prospectus, the founder shares and sponsor warrants will be placed into a segregated escrow account
maintained by American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC acting as escrow agent. While in escrow, such securities will not
be transferable, other than to permitted transferees as described below under “Principal Stockholders — Transfers of Founder
Shares and Sponsor Warrants”.

The founder shares will be released from escrow on the earlier of (x) one year after the completion of our initial business
combination or earlier if, subsequent to our business combination, the last sales price of our common stock equals or exceeds
$12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading
days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our initial business combination, or (y) the date on
which we complete a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after our initial business combination that
results in all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property.
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the founder earnout shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this
offering and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) will not be released from escrow unless they no longer are
subject to forfeiture, as described herein.

The sponsor warrants will not be released from escrow until 30 days following the completion of our initial business
combination.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our securities. Consequently, the initial public offering price for the
units was determined by negotiations between us and the representative. The determination of our per unit offering price was more
arbitrary than would typically be the case if we were an operating company. Among the factors considered in determining initial
public offering price were the history and prospects of companies whose principal business is the acquisition of other companies,
prior offerings of those companies, our management, our capital structure, and currently prevailing general conditions in equity
securities markets, including current market valuations of publicly traded companies considered comparable to our company. We
cannot assure you, however, that the price at which the units, common stock or warrants will sell in the public market after this
offering will not be lower than the initial public offering price or that an active trading market in our units, common stock or
warrants will develop and continue after this offering.

We expect our units to be quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board (“OTCBB”) under the symbol “  ” and, once the common stock
and warrants begin separate trading, to have our common stock and warrants quoted on the OTCBB under the symbols “  ” and
“  ”, respectively.

The following table shows the underwriting discounts and commissions that we are to pay to the underwriters in connection
with this offering. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment
option.   

 Paid by Global Eagle
Acquisition Corp.

   No Exercise  Full Exercise
Per Unit  $ 0.55  $ 0.60 
Total(1)  $ 9,625,000  $ 12,075,000 

(1) The underwriters have agreed to defer $0.35 per unit, or approximately $6,125,000 in the aggregate, of underwriting
commissions, which will be placed in the trust account at Citibank, N.A. with American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
acting as trustee. If the aggregate gross proceeds to us from this offering (including pursuant to the exercise of the underwriters’
overallotment option) exceed $200,000,000, the aggregate underwriting commissions will be increased to $0.60 per unit with
$0.40 per unit being deferred and placed into the trust account. The deferred commissions will be released to the underwriters
only on completion of an initial business combination, as described in this prospectus.

If we do not complete our initial business combination within 21 months from the closing of this offering, or 24 months from
the closing of this offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective initial business combination is
executed before the 21-month period ends, the trustee and the underwriters have agreed that (i) they will forfeit any rights or
claims to their deferred underwriting discounts and commissions, including any accrued interest thereon, then in the trust account,
and (ii) that the deferred underwriters’ discounts and commissions will be distributed on a pro rata basis, together with any accrued
interest thereon and net of franchise and income taxes payable income taxes on such interest, to the public stockholders.

In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell units in the open market. Purchases and sales in the
open market may include short sales, purchases to cover short positions, which may include purchases pursuant to the over-
allotment option, and stabilizing purchases.

• Short sales involve secondary market sales by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to
purchase in the offering.

• “Covered” short sales are sales of units in an amount up to the number of units represented by the underwriters’ over-
allotment option.
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• “Naked” short sales are sales of units in an amount in excess of the number of units represented by the underwriters’
over-allotment option.

• Covering transactions involve purchases of units either pursuant to the over-allotment option or in the open market after the
distribution has been completed in order to cover short positions.

• To close a naked short position, the underwriters must purchase shares in the open market after the distribution has been
completed. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be
downward pressure on the price of the units in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who
purchase in the offering.

• To close a covered short position, the underwriters must purchase units in the open market after the distribution has been
completed or must exercise the over-allotment option. In determining the source of shares to close the covered short
position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of units available for purchase in the open market
as compared to the price at which they may purchase units through the over-allotment option.

• Stabilizing transactions involve bids to purchase units so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum.

Purchases to cover short positions and stabilizing purchase, as well as other purchases by the underwriters for their own
accounts, may have the effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the units. They may also cause the price of
the units to be higher than the price that would otherwise exist in the open market in the absence of these transactions. The
underwriters may conduct these transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise. If the underwriters commence any of
these transactions, they may discontinue them at any time.

Citigroup Global Markets Inc. has advised us that it intends to act as a market maker of our securities on the OTCBB until the
earlier of (i) the completion of our initial business combination and (ii) the redemption of all of our public shares if we fail to
complete a business combination in the prescribed time frame, but it could cease making a market at any time.

Unlike many blank check companies, if we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination, prior to the
completion of a business combination, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will permit the release to us from the
trust account amounts necessary to purchase up to 15% of the shares sold in this offering (2,625,000 shares, or 3,018,750 shares if
the over-allotment option is exercised in full) at any time commencing after the filing of a preliminary proxy statement for our
initial business combination and ending on the date of the stockholder meeting to approve the initial business combination.
Purchases will be made only in open market transactions at times when we are not in possession of material non-public information
and will not be made during a restricted period under Regulation M under the Exchange Act. The restricted period under
Regulation M will depend on the nature of the business combination. If our business combination requires us to issue securities to
shareholders of a privately held target who will approve the business combination by entering into the acquisition agreement, the
restricted period would be deemed to commence on the earlier of one (or five) business day(s) prior to (i) the time we furnish the
definitive acquisition agreement for execution to the shareholders of the privately held target company or (ii) the commencement
of the valuation period, if any, which is the period when the market price of the securities we are issuing in the business
combination is a factor in determining the consideration to be paid in the business combination. The restricted period would
continue until the later of (i) execution of the definitive acquisition agreement or (ii) the end of the valuation period. If our
business combination requires us to issue securities to the shareholders of the target who will be solicited to approve the business
combination, the restricted period would be deemed to commence on the day of mailing the proxy solicitation materials and
continue through the end of the period in which the target shareholders can vote on the business combination, provided that if the
valuation period occurs outside of the proxy solicitation period, an additional restricted period would commence one (or five)
business days prior to the commencement of the valuation period and continue until the valuation period ends. In addition, if we
engage in an offering of securities at the time of the business combination, there may also be a restricted period under Regulation
M depending on the nature of the offering. In addition, it is intended that these purchases will comply with Rule 10b-18 under the
Exchange Act, which provides a safe harbor for
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purchases made under certain conditions, including with respect to the manner of sale (sales are required to be effected through one
broker on a single day, subject to certain exceptions), timing (purchases are subject to certain restrictions at the beginning and end
of the trading session), pricing (the purchase price may not exceed the highest independent bid or the last independent transaction
price, whichever is higher) and volume of purchases (the total volume of Rule 10b-18 purchases effected by us or any affiliated
purchasers effected on any single day generally must not exceed 25% of the average daily trading volume of the shares). If the
conditions of Rule 10b-18, as in effect at the time we wish to make such purchases, are not satisfied, we may still make such
purchases provided such purchases do not violate the anti-manipulation provisions of Section 9(a)(2) of the Exchange Act or Rule
10b-5 promulgated under the Exchange Act. Consequently, if the market does not view our initial business combination positively,
these purchases may have the effect of counteracting the market’s view of our initial business combination, which would
otherwise be reflected in a decline in the market price of our securities. If we do not make these purchases because they would not
be in compliance with Regulation M or Rule 10b-18 or otherwise, the absence of the support of these purchases could materially
affect the market price of our securities or our ability to complete a business combination. In addition, even if these purchases are
made, once the purchases are complete, the termination of the support provided by these purchases may materially adversely
affect the market price of our securities or our ability to complete a business combination.

We estimate that our portion of the total expenses of this offering payable by us will be $750,000, excluding underwriting
discounts and commissions.

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to
contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make because of any of those liabilities.

We are not under any contractual obligation to engage any of the underwriters to provide any services for us after this offering,
and have no present intent to do so. However, any of the underwriters may introduce us to potential target businesses or assist us in
raising additional capital in the future. If any of the underwriters provide services to us after this offering, we may pay such
underwriter fair and reasonable fees that would be determined at that time in an arm’s length negotiation; provided that no
agreement will be entered into with any of the underwriters and no fees for such services will be paid to any of the underwriters
prior to the date that is 90 days from the date of this prospectus, unless FINRA determines that such payment would not be deemed
underwriters’ compensation in connection with this offering and we may pay the underwriters of this offering or any entity with
which they are affiliated a finder’s fee or other compensation for services rendered to us in connection with the completion of a
business combination.

State Blue Sky Information

We will offer and sell the units to retail customers only in Connecticut, Colorado, Delaware, the District of Columbia, Florida,
Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Louisiana, Minnesota, Missouri, New York, Rhode Island, South Carolina, South Dakota, Utah,
Virginia, Wisconsin and Wyoming. In New York and Hawaii, we have relied on exemptions from the state registration
requirements. In states other than those listed above, we will apply to have the units registered for sale and will not sell the units to
retail customers in such states unless and until such registration is effective.

If you are not an institutional investor, you may purchase our securities in this offering only in the jurisdictions described
directly above. Institutional investors in every state, except Idaho, may purchase the units in this offering pursuant to exemptions
under the blue sky laws of various states. The definition of an “institutional investor” varies from state to state but generally
includes financial institutions, broker-dealers, banks, insurance companies and other qualified entities.

The National Securities Markets Improvement Act of 1996, which is a federal statute, preempts the states from regulating
transactions in certain securities, which are referred to as “covered securities.” The resale of the units, from and after the effective
date, and the common stock and warrants comprising the units, once they become separately transferable, are exempt from state
registration requirements under the National Securities Markets Improvement Act because we will file periodic and annual reports
under the Exchange Act. However, certain states require notice filings and collect fees with regard to these transactions and a state
may suspend the offer and sale of securities within such state if any such required filing is not made or fee is not
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paid. As of the date of this prospectus, Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware,
Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota,
Mississippi, Missouri, Nebraska, Nevada, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania,
South Carolina, South Dakota, Utah, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and Wyoming either do not presently
require any notice filings or fee payments or have not yet issued rules or regulations indicating whether notice filings or fee
payments will be required. The District of Columbia, Illinois, Montana, New Hampshire, North Dakota, Ohio, Oregon, Puerto
Rico, Rhode Island, Tennessee, Texas and Vermont currently permit the resale of the units, and the common stock and warrants
comprising the units, once they become separately transferable, if the proper notice filings and fees have been submitted. As of the
date of this prospectus, we have not determined in which, if any, of these states we will submit the required filings or pay the
required fee. Additionally, if any of these states that has not yet adopted a statute relating to the National Securities Markets
Improvement Act adopts such a statute in the future requiring a filing or fee or if any state amends its existing statutes with respect
to its requirements, we would need to comply with those new requirements in order for our securities to continue to be eligible for
resale in those jurisdictions.

Under the National Securities Markets Improvement Act, the states retain the jurisdiction to investigate and bring enforcement
actions with respect to fraud or deceit, or unlawful conduct by a broker or dealer, in connection with the sale of securities.
Although we are not aware of a state having used these powers to prohibit or restrict resales of securities issued by blank check
companies generally, certain state securities commissioners view blank check companies unfavorably and might use these powers,
or threaten to use these powers, to hinder the resale of securities of blank check companies in their states.

Aside from the exemption from registration provided by the National Securities Markets Improvement Act, we believe that the
units, from and after the effective date, and the common stock and warrants comprising the units, once they become separately
transferable, will be eligible for sale on a secondary market basis in various states based on the availability of another applicable
exemption from state registration requirements, in certain instances subject to waiting periods, notice filings or fee payments.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each member state of the European Economic Area that has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a
relevant member state), with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus Directive is implemented in that relevant
member state (the “relevant implementation date”), an offer of units described in this prospectus may not be made to the public in
that relevant member state prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to the units that has been approved by the competent
authority in that relevant member state or, where appropriate, approved in another relevant member state and notified to the
competent authority in that relevant member state, all in accordance with the Prospectus Directive, except that, with effect from
and including the relevant implementation date, an offer of our units may be made to the public in that relevant member state at
any time:

• to any legal entity that is authorized or regulated to operate in the financial markets or, if not so authorized or regulated,
whose corporate purpose is solely to invest in securities;

• to any legal entity that has two or more of (1) an average of at least 250 employees during the last financial year; (2) a total
balance sheet of more than €43,000,000 and (3) an annual net turnover of more than €50,000,000, as shown in its last
annual or consolidated accounts;

• to fewer than 100 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined below) subject to obtaining the prior
consent of the underwriter for any such offer; or

• in any other circumstances that do not require the publication of a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus
Directive.

Each purchaser of units described in this prospectus located within a relevant member state will be deemed to have represented,
acknowledged and agreed that it is a “qualified investor” within the meaning of Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive.
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For the purpose of this provision, the expression an “offer to the public” in any relevant member state means the
communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the units to be offered so as to
enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the units, as the expression may be varied in that member state by any
measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in that member state, and the expression “Prospectus Directive” means Directive
2003/71/EC and includes any relevant implementing measure in each relevant member state.

We have not authorized and do not authorize the making of any offer of units through any financial intermediary on their
behalf, other than offers made by the underwriters with a view to the final placement of the units as contemplated in this
prospectus. Accordingly, no purchaser of the units, other than the underwriters, is authorized to make any further offer of the units
on behalf of us or the underwriters.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

This prospectus is only being distributed to, and is only directed at, persons in the United Kingdom that are qualified investors
within the meaning of Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive that are also (i) investment professionals falling within Article
19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the “Order”) or (ii) high net worth
entities, and other persons to whom it may lawfully be communicated, falling within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order (all such
persons together being referred to as a “relevant person”). This prospectus and its contents are confidential and should not be
distributed, published or reproduced (in whole or in part) or disclosed by recipients to any other persons in the United Kingdom.
Any person in the United Kingdom that is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this document or any of its contents.

Notice to Prospective Investors in France

Neither this prospectus nor any other offering material relating to the units described in this prospectus has been submitted to
the clearance procedures of the Autorité des Marchés Financiers or by the competent authority of another member state of the
European Economic Area and notified to the Autorité des Marchés Financiers. The units have not been offered or sold and will not
be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, to the public in France. Neither this prospectus nor any other offering material relating to
the units has been or will be:

• released, issued, distributed or caused to be released, issued or distributed to the public in France; or

• used in connection with any offer for subscription or sale of the units to the public in France.

Such offers, sales and distributions will be made in France only:

• to qualified investors (investisseurs qualifiés) and/or to a restricted circle of investors (cercle restreint d’investisseurs), in
each case investing for their own account, all as defined in, and in accordance with, Article L.411-2, D.411-1, D.411-2,
D.734-1, D.744-1, D.754-1 and D.764-1 of the French Code monétaire et financier;

• to investment services providers authorized to engage in portfolio management on behalf of third parties; or

• in a transaction that, in accordance with article L.411-2-II-1°-or-2°-or 3° of the French Code monétaire et financier and
article 211-2 of the General Regulations (Règlement Général) of the Autorité des Marchés Financiers, does not constitute a
public offer (appel public à l’épargne).

The units may be resold directly or indirectly, only in compliance with Articles L.411-1, L.411-2, L.412-1 and L.621-8 through
L.621-8-3 of the French Code monétaire et financier.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Hong Kong

The units may not be offered or sold in Hong Kong by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not
constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to
“professional investors” within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules
made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a “prospectus” within the meaning of
the
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Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong) and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the units may be
issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere),
which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to
do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to units which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons
outside Hong Kong or only to “professional investors” within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Singapore

This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this
prospectus and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of
the units may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the units be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for
subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under
Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the “SFA”), (ii) to a relevant person pursuant to Section
275(1), or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA or
(iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA, in each case
subject to compliance with conditions set forth in the SFA.

Where the units are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which is:

• a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole business of which is to
hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited
investor; or

• a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary of the
trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries’ rights and interest (howsoever
described) in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the shares pursuant
to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA except:

• to an institutional investor (for corporations, under Section 274 of the SFA) or to a relevant person defined in Section 275(2)
of the SFA, or to any person pursuant to an offer that is made on terms that such shares, debentures and units of shares and
debentures of that corporation or such rights and interest in that trust are acquired at a consideration of not less than
S$200,000 (or its equivalent in a foreign currency) for each transaction, whether such amount is to be paid for in cash or by
exchange of securities or other assets, and further for corporations, in accordance with the conditions specified in Section
275 of the SFA;

• where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer; or

• where the transfer is by operation of law.
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LEGAL MATTERS

McDermott Will & Emery LLP, New York, New York, is acting as counsel in connection with the registration of our securities
under the Securities Act, and as such, will pass upon the validity of the securities offered in this prospectus. In connection with this
offering Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP, New York, New York, is acting as counsel to the underwriters.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of Global Eagle Acquisition Corp. (a development stage company) as of February 4, 2011 and for the
period February 2, 2011 (inception) through February 4, 2011, have been included herein in reliance upon the report of Rothstein,
Kass & Company, P.C., independent registered public accounting firm, appearing elsewhere herein, and upon the authority of
Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C. as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to the securities we are
offering by this prospectus. This prospectus does not contain all of the information included in the registration statement. For
further information about us and our securities, you should refer to the registration statement and the exhibits and schedules filed
with the registration statement. Whenever we make reference in this prospectus to any of our contracts, agreements or other
documents, the references are materially complete but may not include a description of all aspects of such contracts, agreements or
other documents, and you should refer to the exhibits attached to the registration statement for copies of the actual contract,
agreement or other document.

Upon completion of this offering, we will be subject to the information requirements of the Exchange Act and will file annual,
quarterly and current event reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You can read our SEC filings, including
the registration statement, over the Internet at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we
file with the SEC at its public reference facility at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549.

You may also obtain copies of the documents at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at 100
F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the
public reference facilities.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Global Eagle Acquisition Corp. (a corporation in the development stage)
(the “Company”) as of February 4, 2011, and the related statements of operations, stockholder’s equity and cash flows for the
period from February 2, 2011 (date of inception) to February 4, 2011. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Global
Eagle Acquisition Corp. (a corporation in the development stage) as of February 4, 2011, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the period from February 2, 2011 (date of inception) to February 4, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ ROTHSTEIN, KASS & COMPANY, P.C.
Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.

Roseland, New Jersey
February 11, 2011
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GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
(A Corporation in the Development Stage)

  
BALANCE SHEET

As of February 4, 2011  
ASSETS:      

Current assets:      
Cash  $ 50,000 

Non-current assets:      
Deferred offering costs   20,000 

Total assets  $ 70,000 
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY:      

Current liabilities:      
Note payable to stockholder  $ 25,000 
Accrued expenses – other   10,000 
Accrued offering costs   20,000 

Total current liabilities  $ 55,000 
Stockholder’s equity:      

Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding  $ — 
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 4,417,683 shares issued and

outstanding
  442 

Additional paid-in capital   24,558 
Deficit accumulated during the development stage   (10,000) 

Total stockholder’s equity, net   15,000 
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity  $ 70,000 

 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
(A Corporation in the Development Stage)

  
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the period from February 2, 2011 (date of inception) to February 4, 2011 
Revenue  $ — 

General and Administrative Expenses   (10,000) 
Loss from Operations   (10,000) 

Interest and Dividend Income   — 
Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders  $ (10,000) 
Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding   4,417,683 
Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Share Attributable to Other Stockholders  $ (0.00) 

 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

For the period from February 2, 2011 (date of inception) to February 4, 2011     
 

  
  

Common Stock

 Additional
Paid-In
Capital

 Deficit
Accumulated

During the
Development

Stage

 Total
Stockholder’s

Equity

   Shares  Amount
Sale of common stock to Sponsor at $0.010

per share
  4,417,683  $ 442  $ 24,558  $ —  $ (25,000) 

Net loss   —   —   —   (10,000)   (10,000) 
Balance as of February 4, 2011   4,417,683  $ 442  $ 24,558  $ (10,000)  $ 15,000 

 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the period from February 2, 2011 (date of inception) to February 4, 2011 
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:      

Net loss  $ (10,000) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:      

Increase in accrued expenses   10,000 
Net cash provided by operating activities   — 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:      
Proceeds from sale of common stock to Sponsor   25,000 
Proceeds from note payable to stockholder   25,000 

Net cash provided by financing activities   50,000 
Increase in cash   50,000 
Cash at beginning of period   — 
Cash at end of period  $ 50,000 
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Financing Activities:      

Deferred offering costs included in accrued expenses  $ 20,000 

 
 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business Operations

Incorporation
Global Eagle Acquisition Corp. (the “Company”), a corporation in the development stage, was incorporated in Delaware on

February 2, 2011.

Sponsor
The company’s sponsor is Global Eagle Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Sponsor”). Members of

the Sponsor include Harry E. Sloan, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Jeff Sagansky, the Company’s
President, and James A. Graf, the Company’s Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary.

Fiscal Year End
The Company has selected December 31 as its fiscal year end.

Business Purpose
The Company was formed for the purpose of acquiring, through a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock

purchase, reorganization, exchangeable share transaction or other similar business combination, one or more operating businesses
or assets that we have not yet identified (“Business Combination”). The Company has neither engaged in any operations nor
generated significant revenue to date. The Company is considered to be in the development stage as defined in FASB Accounting
Standard Codification, or ASC 915, “Development Stage Entities,” and is subject to the risks associated with activities of
development stage companies.

The Company’s management has broad discretion with respect to the Business Combination, although substantially all of the
net proceeds of the Proposed Offering (as defined below) are intended to be generally applied toward consummating a Business
Combination. However, there is no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully affect a Business Combination.

Financing
The Sponsor intends to finance a Business Combination in part with proceeds from a $175,000,000 public offering (the “Public

Offering” — Note 3), and a $5,250,000 private placement (Note 4).

Upon the closing of the Public Offering and the private placement, $175,000,000 (or $200,725,000 if the underwriter’s over-
allotment option is exercised in full — Note 3) will be held in the Trust Account (discussed below).

Trust Account
The trust account (the “Trust Account”) will be invested in permitted United States “government securities” within the

meaning of Section 2(a)(16) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, which we refer to as the Investment Company
Act, having a maturity of 180 days or less or in money market funds meeting certain conditions under Rule 2a-7 promulgated
under the Investment Company Act.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, except for a portion of interest income earned on the Trust
Account balance that may be released to the Company to pay any taxes on such interest and to fund working capital requirements,
and any amounts necessary for the Company to purchase up to 15% of the Company’s public shares if the Company seeks
stockholder approval of the Business Combination, none of the funds held in trust will be released until the earlier of: (i) the
completion of the Business Combination; or (ii) the redemption of 100% of the shares of common stock included in the units
being sold in the Public Offering if the Company is unable to complete a Business Combination within 21 months from the closing
of the Public Offering, or 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a
prospective Business Combination is executed before the 21-month period ends (subject to the requirements of law).
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1. Organization and Business Operations  – (continued)

Business Combination
A Business Combination is subject to the following size, focus and stockholder approval provisions:

Size — The prospective target business will not have a limitation to size; however, the Company will not complete a
Business Combination unless it acquires a controlling interest in a target company or are otherwise not required to register as an
investment company under the Investment Company Act.

Focus — The Company’s efforts in identifying prospective target businesses will initially be focused on businesses in the
media and entertainment industries but the Company may pursue opportunities in other business sectors.

Tender Offer/Stockholder Approval — The Company, after signing a definitive agreement for a Business Combination,
will either (i) seek stockholder approval of the Business Combination at a meeting called for such purpose in connection with
which stockholders may seek to redeem their shares, regardless of whether they vote for or against the Business Combination,
for cash equal to their pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest but less
franchise and income taxes payable, or (ii) provide stockholders with the opportunity to sell their shares to the Company by
means of a tender offer (and thereby avoid the need for a stockholder vote) for an amount in cash equal to their pro rata share of
the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest but less franchise and income taxes payable. The
decision as to whether the Company will seek stockholder approval of the Business Combination or will allow stockholders to
sell their shares in a tender offer will be made by the Company, solely in its discretion, and will be based on a variety of factors
such as the timing of the transaction and whether the terms of the transaction would otherwise require the Company to seek
stockholder approval. If the Company seeks stockholder approval, it will complete its Business Combination only if a majority
of the outstanding shares of common stock voted are voted in favor of the Business Combination. However, in no event will the
Company redeem its public shares in an amount that would cause its net tangible assets to be less than $5,000,001. In such case,
the Company would not proceed with the redemption of its public shares and the related Business Combination, and instead
may search for an alternate Business Combination.

Regardless of whether the Company holds a stockholder vote or a tender offer in connection with a Business Combination,
a public stockholder will have the right to redeem their shares for an amount in cash equal to their pro rata share of the
aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest but less franchise and income taxes payable. As a
result, such shares of common stock will be recorded at conversion/tender value and classified as temporary equity upon the
completion of the Public Offering, in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, ASC Topic 480,
“Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity.”

Permitted Purchase of Public Shares — If the Company seeks stockholder approval prior to the Business Combination and
does not conduct redemptions pursuant to the tender offer rules, prior to the Business Combination, the Company’s Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation will permit the release to the Company from the Trust Account, amounts necessary to
purchase up to 15% of the shares sold in the Public Offering. All shares so purchased by the Company will be immediately
cancelled.

Liquidation
If the Company does not complete a Business Combination within 21 months from the closing of the Public Offering, or 24

months from the closing of the Public Offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business
Combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, the Company will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of
winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but not more than ten business days thereafter, redeem 100% of the common
stock sold as part of the
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business Operations  – (continued)

units in the Public Offering, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust
Account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest which may be
distributed to the Company to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which
redemption will completely extinguish public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further
liquidation distributions, if any), subject to applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were
paid from the Trust Account which is received after such redemption shall be distributed to the former public stockholders, and
(iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of the Company’s remaining
stockholders and the Company’s board of directors, dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to the Company’s obligations under
Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law.

In the event of liquidation, it is likely that the per share value of the residual assets remaining available for distribution
(including Trust Account assets) will be less than the initial public offering price per share in the Public Offering (assuming no
value is attributed to the warrants contained in the units to be offered in the Public Offering discussed in Note 3).

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying financial statements of the Company are presented in U.S. dollars in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

These financial statements were approved by management and available for issuance on February 11, 2011. Subsequent events
have been evaluated through this date.

Development Stage Company
The Company is considered to be in the development stage as defined by FASB ASC 915, “Development Stage Entities,” and

is subject to the risks associated with activities of development stage companies. The Company has neither engaged in any
operations nor generated any income to date. All activity through the date the financial statements were issued relates to the
Company’s formation and the Public Offering. Following such offering, the Company will not generate any operating revenues
until after completion of a Business Combination, at the earliest. The Company will generate non-operating income in the form of
interest income on the designated Trust Account after the Public Offering.

Net Loss Per Common Share
Net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the period, plus to the extent dilutive the incremental number of shares of common
stock to settle warrants, as calculated using the treasury stock method. At February 4, 2011, the Company did not have any dilutive
securities and other contracts that could, potentially, be exercised or converted into common stock and then share in the earnings of
the Company under the treasury stock method. As a result, diluted loss per common share is the same as basic loss per common
share for the period.

Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist of cash accounts in a financial

institution which, at times, may exceed the Federal depository insurance coverage of $250,000. The Company has not experienced
losses on these accounts and management believes the Company is not exposed to significant risks of such accounts.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies  – (continued)

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes are provided for the differences between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and

income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to
be realized.

The Company is required to determine whether its tax positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by
the applicable taxing authority, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of
the position. The tax benefit recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood
of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority. De-recognition of a tax benefit previously recognized
results in the Company recording a tax liability that reduces ending retained earnings. Based on its analysis, the Company has
determined that it has not incurred any liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of February 4, 2011. The Company’s conclusions
may be subject to review and adjustment at a later date based on factors including, but not limited to, on-going analyses of and
changes to tax laws, regulations and interpretations thereof.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and other expenses,
respectively. No interest expense or penalties have been recognized as of and for the period ended February 4, 2011. The
Company is subject to income tax examinations by major taxing authorities since inception.

The Company may be subject to potential examination by U.S. federal, U.S. states or foreign jurisdiction authorities in the
areas of income taxes. These potential examinations may include questioning the timing and amount of deductions, the nexus of
income amoung various tax jurisdictions and compliance with U.S. federal, U.S. state and foreign tax laws. The Company’s
management does not expect that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits will materially change over the next twelve
months.

Deferred Offering Costs
Deferred offering costs consist principally of legal and accounting fees incurred through the balance sheet date that are related

to the Public Offering and that will be charged to capital upon the receipt of the capital raised or charged to operations if the Public
Offering is not completed.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Unless otherwise disclosed, the fair values of financial instruments, including cash and the note payable to stockholder,

approximate their carrying amount due primarily to their short-term nature.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Management does not believe that any other recently issued, but not effective, accounting standards, if currently adopted,

would have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

3. Public Offering

Public Units
The Public Offering calls for the Company to offer for sale 17,500,000 units at a price of $10.00 per unit (the “Public Units”).

Each unit consists of one share of the Company’s common stock, $0.0001 par value and
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3. Public Offering  – (continued)

one warrant (the “Public Warrants”). The Company intends to grant the underwriters a 45-day option to purchase up to 2,625,000
additional Public Units solely to cover over-allotments, if any.

Public Warrant Terms and Conditions:
Exercise Conditions — Each Public Warrant will entitle the holder to purchase from the Company one share of common

stock at an exercise price of $11.50 per share commencing on the later of: (i) 30 days after the completion of the Company’s
initial Business Combination, or (ii) 12 months from the closing of the offering, provided that the Company has an effective
registration statement covering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the Public Warrants and such shares are
registered, qualified or exempt from registration under the securities, or blue sky, laws of the state of residence of the holder.
The Public Warrants expire at 5:00 pm, New York time, 5 years after the completion of the Company’s initial Business
Combination or earlier upon redemption or liquidation. The Public Warrants will be redeemable in whole and not in part at a
price of $0.01 per warrant upon a minimum of 30 days’ prior written notice of redemption after the Public Warrants become
exercisable; if, and only if, the last sales price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $17.50 per share for any 20
trading days within a 30-trading day period ending on the third trading date prior to the date on which the Company sends the
notice of redemption to the Public Warrant holders. If the Public Warrants are redeemed by the Company, management will
have the option to require all holders that wish to exercise warrants to do so on a cashless basis.

Registration Risk — In accordance with a warrant agreement relating to the Public Warrants, the Company will be required
to use its best efforts to maintain the effectiveness of a registration statement relating to common stock which would be issued
upon exercise of the Public Warrants. The Company will not be obligated to deliver securities, and there are no contractual
penalties for failure to deliver securities, if a registration statement is not effective at the time of exercise. Additionally, in the
event that a registration is not effective at the time of exercise, the holders of such Public Warrants shall not be entitled to
exercise such Public Warrants (except on a cashless basis under certain circumstances) and in no event (whether in the case of a
registration statement not being effective or otherwise) will the Company be required to net cash settle or cash settle the Public
Warrants. Consequently, the Public Warrants may expire unexercised, unredeemed and worthless, and an investor in the Public
Offering may effectively pay the full unit price solely for the shares of common stock included in the Public Units.

Accounting — Since the Company is not required to net cash settle the Public Warrants, management has determined that
the Public Warrants will be recorded at fair value and classified within stockholders’ equity as “Additional paid-in capital”
upon their issuance in accordance with FASB ASC 815-40.

Underwriting Agreement
The Company is committed to pay an underwriting discount of 2.0% of the public unit offering price to the underwriters at the

closing of the Public Offering, with an additional fee of 3.5% of the gross offering proceeds (4.0% of the gross offering proceeds
if such proceeds exceed $200,000,000) payable upon the Company’s completion of a Business Combination. The underwriters
will not be entitled to any interest accrued on the deferred discount.

4. Related Party Transactions

Founder Shares — In February 2011, the Sponsor purchased 4,417,683 shares of common stock as adjusted, (the “Founder
Shares”) for $25,000, or $0.01 per share. This amount has been adjusted as the Company effected a forward stock split in the form
of a dividend and issued 302,979 additional shares to the Sponsor subsequent to the balance sheet date. All share information in the
Company’s financial statements have been retroactively restated for the effect of this dividend. Subsequently, in March 2011, the
Company’s
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4. Related Party Transactions  – (continued)

sponsor transferred an aggregate of 44,176 founder shares to Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, each of whom has agreed
to serve on the Company’s board of directors upon the closing of this offering.

Forfeiture — The Founder Shares include 576,220 shares of common stock that are subject to forfeiture if and to the extent the
underwriters’ over-allotment option is not exercised, so that the Sponsor and its permitted transferees will own 18.0% of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares after the Public Offering.

In addition, a portion of the Founder Shares in an amount equal to 4.0% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares after
the Public Offering and the exercise of the over-allotment option, if applicable (“Earnout Shares”), will be subject to forfeiture on
the third anniversary of the closing of the Company’s Business Combination unless following the Business Combination (i) the
last sales price of the Company’s stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends,
reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period or (ii) the Company
completes a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of the Company’s stockholders
having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration of cash, securities or other property which equals or
exceeds $13.00 per share.

Rights — The Founder Shares are identical to the shares of common stock included in the units being sold in the Public
Offering except that (i) the Founder Shares will be subject to certain transfer restrictions, as described in more detail below, and
(ii) the Sponsor will agree to waive its redemption rights with respect to the Founder Shares and public shares it purchases in
connection with the Business Combination and will also waive its redemption rights with respect to the Founder Shares if the
Company fails to complete a Business Combination within 21 months from the closing of the Public Offering, or 24 months from
the closing of the Public Offering if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business Combination is
executed before the 21-month period ends.

Voting — If the Company seeks stockholder approval of its Business Combination, the Sponsor will agree to vote the Founder
Shares in accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the public stockholders and to vote any public shares purchased during
or after the Public Offering in favor of the Business Combination.

Liquidation — Although the Sponsor and its permitted transferees will waive their redemption rights with respect to the
Founder Shares if the Company fails to complete a Business Combination within the prescribed time frame, they will be entitled to
redemption rights with respect to any Public Shares they may own.

Sponsor Warrants — The Sponsor has agreed to purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 warrants (the “Sponsor Warrants”) at
$0.75 per warrant (for an aggregate purchase price of $5,250,000) from the Company on a private placement basis simultaneously
with the closing of the Public Offering.

Exercise Conditions — Each Sponsor Warrant is exercisable into one share of common stock at $11.50 per share. The
proceeds from the Sponsor Warrant will be added to the proceeds from the Public Offering held in the Trust Account. The Sponsor
Warrants will be identical to the warrants included in the units sold in the Public Offering except that the Sponsor Warrants (i) will
not be redeemable by the Company as long as they are held by the Sponsor or any of its permitted transferees, (ii) will be subject
to certain transfer restrictions described in more detail below and (iii) may be exercised for cash or on a cashless basis.

Accounting — Since the Company is not required to net-cash settle the Sponsor Warrants, management has determined that
the Sponsor Warrants will be recorded at fair value and classified within stockholders’ equity as “Additional paid-in capital” upon
their issuance in accordance with FASB ASC 815-40.
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4. Related Party Transactions  – (continued)

Disposition Restrictions
On the date of the prospectus included in the registration statement for the Public Offering, the Founder Shares and Sponsor

Warrants will be placed into a segregated escrow account maintained by American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC acting
as escrow agent. While in escrow, such securities will not be transferable, other than to certain permitted transferees. The Founder
Shares will be released from escrow on the earlier of (x) one year after the completion of the Business Combination or earlier if,
subsequent to the Business Combination, the last sales price of the Company’s common stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share
(as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-
trading day period commencing at least 150 days after the Business Combination, or (y) the date on which the Company
completes a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after the Business Combination that results in all of
the Company’s stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for cash, securities or other property.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Earnout Shares will not be released from escrow unless they no longer are subject to forfeiture,
as described above. The Sponsor Warrants will not be released from escrow until 30 days following the completion of the
Business Combination.

Registration Rights
The holders of the Founder Shares, Sponsor Warrants and warrants that may be issued upon conversion of working capital

loans will hold registration rights to require the Company to register a sale of any of the securities held by them pursuant to a
registration rights agreement to be signed prior to or on the effective date of this offering. These stockholders will be entitled to
make up to three demands, excluding short form demands, that the Company register such securities for sale under the Securities
Act. In addition, these stockholders will have “piggy-back” registration rights to include their securities in other registration
statements filed by the Company. However, the registration rights agreement provides that the Company will not permit any
registration statement filed under the Securities Act to become effective with respect to any securities until they are released from
escrow, as described above. The Company will bear the costs and expenses of filing any such registration statements.

Administrative Services and Consulting Fees
The Company has agreed to pay $10,000 a month in total for office space and general and administrative services to

Roscomare Ltd., an entity owned and controlled by Mr. Sloan, the Company’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. The
Company has also agreed to pay $15,000 a month to Mr. Graf, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer. Services will commence
promptly after the date the Company’s securities are first quoted on the OTCBB and will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the
completion of a Business Combination or (ii) the liquidation of the Company.

Note Payable
The Company issued an unsecured promissory note (the “Note”) to Sponsor on February 2, 2011 that provides for the Sponsor

to advance to the Company, from time to time, up to $200,000 for expenses related to the Proposed Offering. On February 4, 2011,
the Sponsor advanced $25,000 to the Company under the Note, leaving a total $175,000 as yet undrawn on February 4, 2011. The
Note is non-interest bearing and is payable on the earlier of August 1, 2011 or the completion of the Proposed Offering. Due to the
short-term nature of the Note, the fair value of the Note approximates its carrying amount of $25,000 at February 4, 2011.
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5. Commitments & Contingencies

The Company expects to grant the underwriters a 45-day option to purchase up to 2,625,000 additional Units to cover the over-
allotment at the initial public offering price less the underwriting discounts and commissions.

The Company is committed to pay an underwriting discount of 2.0% of the Unit offering price to the underwriters at the
closing of the Proposed Offering, with an additional fee (the “Deferred Discount”) of 3.5% of the gross offering proceeds payable
upon the Company’s consummation of a Business Combination if the gross offering proceeds are no more than $200,000,000; or a
Deferred Discount of 4.0% if the gross offering proceeds are more than $200,000,000, which would be the case in the event the
underwriter’s over-allotment option is exercised in full. The underwriters will not be entitled to any interest accrued on the
Deferred Discount, and no Deferred Discount is payable to the underwriters if there is no Business Combination.

6. Income Taxes

Components of the Company’s deferred tax assets are as follows:  
Net operating loss carry-forward  $ 1,400 
Less, valuation allowance   (1,400) 
   $ — 

Management has recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets because it does not believe it is more likely
than not that sufficient taxable income will be generated. The effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate of 34% due to the
establishment of the valuation allowance. The net operating loss carry-forward expires in 2031.

7. Stockholder’s Equity

Common Stock — The authorized common stock of the Company includes up to 100,000,000 shares. Holders of the
Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock. At February 4, 2011, there were 4,417,683
shares of common stock outstanding.

Preferred Shares — The Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 preferred shares with such designations, voting and
other rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.
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PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 13. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.
The estimated expenses payable by us in connection with the offering described in this registration statement (other than the

underwriting discount and commissions) will be as follows:  
SEC expenses  $ 23,365 
FINRA expenses   20,625 
Accounting fees and expenses   40,000 
Blue sky services and expenses   40,000 
Printing and engraving expenses   60,000 
Travel and road show expenses   60,000 
Directors & Officers liability insurance premiums(1)   100,000 
Legal fees and expenses   300,000 
Miscellaneous(2)   106,010 
Total  $750,000 

(1) This amount represents the approximate amount of annual director and officer liability insurance premiums the registrant
anticipates paying following the completion of its initial public offering and until it completes a business combination.

(2) This amount represents additional expenses that may be incurred by the Company in connection with the offering over and
above those specifically listed above, including distribution and mailing costs.

Item 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.
Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that all of our directors, officers, employees and agents shall be

entitled to be indemnified by us to the fullest extent permitted by Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law concerning indemnification of officers, directors, employees and agents
is set forth below.

Section 145. Indemnification of officers, directors, employees and agents; insurance.

(a) A corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an
action by or in the right of the corporation) by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of
the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and
amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if the
person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the
corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe the person’s conduct was
unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo
contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner
which the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any
criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe that the person’s conduct was unlawful.

(b) A corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of
the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the
corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise
against expenses (including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred by the person in connection with the defense or
settlement of such action or suit if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in
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or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation and except that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim,
issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation unless and only to the extent that
the Court of Chancery or the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the
adjudication of liability but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity
for such expenses which the Court of Chancery or such other court shall deem proper.

(c) To the extent that a present or former director or officer of a corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in
defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in subsections (a) and (b) of this section, or in defense of any claim, issue or
matter therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys’ fees) actually and reasonably incurred by
such person in connection therewith.

(d) Any indemnification under subsections (a) and (b) of this section (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the
corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the present or former director,
officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because the person has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in
subsections (a) and (b) of this section. Such determination shall be made, with respect to a person who is a director or officer at the
time of such determination, (1) by a majority vote of the directors who are not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, even
though less than a quorum, or (2) by a committee of such directors designated by majority vote of such directors, even though less
than a quorum, or (3) if there are no such directors, or if such directors so direct, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion,
or (4) by the stockholders.

(e) Expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by an officer or director in defending any civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or
proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such director or officer to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be
determined that such person is not entitled to be indemnified by the corporation as authorized in this section. Such expenses
(including attorneys’ fees) incurred by former officers and directors or other employees and agents may be so paid upon such
terms and conditions, if any, as the corporation deems appropriate.

(f) The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, the other subsections of this section
shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses may be
entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise, both as to action in such person’s
official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office. A right to indemnification or to advancement of
expenses arising under a provision of the certificate of incorporation or a bylaw shall not be eliminated or impaired by an
amendment to such provision after the occurrence of the act or omission that is the subject of the civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative action, suit or proceeding for which indemnification or advancement of expenses is sought, unless the provision in
effect at the time of such act or omission explicitly authorizes such elimination or impairment after such action or omission has
occurred.

(g) A corporation shall have power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director,
officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee
or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against such person
and incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of such person’s status as such, whether or not the corporation
would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under this section.

(h) For purposes of this section, references to “the corporation” shall include, in addition to the resulting corporation, any
constituent corporation (including any constituent of a constituent) absorbed in a consolidation or merger which, if its separate
existence had continued, would have had power and authority to indemnify its directors, officers, and employees or agents, so that
any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of such constituent corporation, or is or was serving at the request
of such constituent corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise, shall stand in the same position under this section with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as such
person would have with respect to such constituent corporation if its separate existence had continued.
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(i) For purposes of this section, references to “other enterprises” shall include employee benefit plans; references to “fines”
shall include any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to any employee benefit plan; and references to “serving at the
request of the corporation” shall include any service as a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation which imposes
duties on, or involves services by, such director, officer, employee or agent with respect to an employee benefit plan, its
participants or beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in the
interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be deemed to have acted in a manner “not opposed to
the best interests of the corporation” as referred to in this section.

(j) The indemnification and advancement of expenses provided by, or granted pursuant to, this section shall, unless otherwise
provided when authorized or ratified, continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and shall
inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

(k) The Court of Chancery is hereby vested with exclusive jurisdiction to hear and determine all actions for advancement of
expenses or indemnification brought under this section or under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested
directors, or otherwise. The Court of Chancery may summarily determine a corporation’s obligation to advance expenses
(including attorneys’ fees).

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers, and
controlling persons pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that, in the opinion of the SEC, such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim
for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling
person in a successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in
connection with the securities being registered, we will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by
controlling precedent, submit to the court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against
public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

In accordance with Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, will provide that no
director shall be personally liable to us or any of our stockholders for monetary damages resulting from breaches of their fiduciary
duty as directors, except to the extent such limitation on or exemption from liability is not permitted under the DGCL. The effect
of this provision of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation is to eliminate our rights and those of our stockholders
(through stockholders’ derivative suits on our behalf) to recover monetary damages against a director for breach of the fiduciary
duty of care as a director, including breaches resulting from negligent or grossly negligent behavior, except, as restricted by
Section 102(b)(7) of the DGCL. However, this provision does not limit or eliminate our rights or the rights of any stockholder to
seek non-monetary relief, such as an injunction or rescission, in the event of a breach of a director’s duty of care.

If the DGCL is amended to authorize corporate action further eliminating or limiting the liability of directors, then, in
accordance with our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, the liability of our directors to us or our stockholders will
be eliminated or limited to the fullest extent authorized by the DGCL, as so amended. Any repeal or amendment of provisions of
our amended and restated certificate of incorporation limiting or eliminating the liability of directors, whether by our stockholders
or by changes in law, or the adoption of any other provisions inconsistent therewith, will (unless otherwise required by law) be
prospective only, except to the extent such amendment or change in law permits us to further limit or eliminate the liability of
directors on a retroactive basis.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will also provide that we will, to the fullest extent authorized or
permitted by applicable law, indemnify our current and former officers and directors, as well as those persons who, while directors
or officers of our corporation, are or were serving as directors, officers, employees or agents of another entity, trust or other
enterprise, including service with respect to an employee benefit plan, in connection with any threatened, pending or completed
proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, against all expense, liability and loss (including, without
limitation, attorney’s fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes and penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred
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or suffered by any such person in connection with any such proceeding. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a person eligible for
indemnification pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation will be indemnified by us in connection with a
proceeding initiated by such person only if such proceeding was authorized by our board of directors, except for proceedings to
enforce rights to indemnification.

The right to indemnification conferred by our amended and restated certificate of incorporation is a contract right that includes
the right to be paid by us the expenses incurred in defending or otherwise participating in any proceeding referenced above in
advance of its final disposition, provided, however, that if the DGCL requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by our officer
or director (solely in the capacity as an officer or director of our corporation) will be made only upon delivery to us of an
undertaking, by or on behalf of such officer or director, to repay all amounts so advanced if it is ultimately determined that such
person is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or otherwise.

The rights to indemnification and advancement of expenses will not be deemed exclusive of any other rights which any person
covered by our amended and restated certificate of incorporation may have or hereafter acquire under law, our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation, our amended and restated bylaws, an agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested
directors, or otherwise.

Any repeal or amendment of provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation affecting indemnification
rights, whether by our stockholders or by changes in law, or the adoption of any other provisions inconsistent therewith, will
(unless otherwise required by law) be prospective only, except to the extent such amendment or change in law permits us to
provide broader indemnification rights on a retroactive basis, and will not in any way diminish or adversely affect any right or
protection existing at the time of such repeal or amendment or adoption of such inconsistent provision with respect to any act or
omission occurring prior to such repeal or amendment or adoption of such inconsistent provision. Our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation will also permit us, to the extent and in the manner authorized or permitted by law, to indemnify and to
advance expenses to persons other that those specifically covered by our amended and restated certificate of incorporation.

Our amended and restated bylaws, which we intend to adopt immediately prior to the closing of this offering, include the
provisions relating to advancement of expenses and indemnification rights consistent with those set forth in our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation. In addition, our amended and restated bylaws provide for a right of indemnity to bring a suit in
the event a claim for indemnification or advancement of expenses is not paid in full by us within a specified period of time. Our
amended and restated bylaws also permit us to purchase and maintain insurance, at our expense, to protect us and/or any director,
officer, employee or agent of our corporation or another entity, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss,
whether or not we would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the DGCL.

Any repeal or amendment of provisions of our amended and restated bylaws affecting indemnification rights, whether by our
board of directors, stockholders or by changes in applicable law, or the adoption of any other provisions inconsistent therewith,
will (unless otherwise required by law) be prospective only, except to the extent such amendment or change in law permits us to
provide broader indemnification rights on a retroactive basis, and will not in any way diminish or adversely affect any right or
protection existing thereunder with respect to any act or omission occurring prior to such repeal or amendment or adoption of such
inconsistent provision.

We will enter into indemnification agreements with each of our officers and directors a form of which is filed as Exhibit 10.8
to this Registration Statement. These agreements will require us to indemnify these individuals to the fullest extent permitted under
Delaware law against liabilities that may arise by reason of their service to us, and to advance expenses incurred as a result of any
proceeding against them as to which they could be indemnified.
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Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement filed as Exhibit 1.1 to this Registration Statement, we have agreed to indemnify the
Underwriters and the Underwriters have agreed to indemnify us against certain civil liabilities that may be incurred in connection
with this offering, including certain liabilities under the Securities Act.

Item 15. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.
In February 2011, Global Eagle Acquisition LLC, our sponsor, purchased 4,417,683 shares of our common stock, for an

aggregate offering price of $25,000 at an average purchase price of approximately $0.01 per share. Subsequently, in March 2011,
our sponsor transferred an aggregate of 44,176 founder shares to Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara, each of whom has
agreed to serve on our board of directors upon the closing of this offering. The founder shares held by our initial stockholders
include an aggregate of 576,220 shares subject to forfeiture to the extent that the underwriters’ over-allotment option is not
exercised in full. In addition, a portion of the founder shares (equal to 4.0% of our issued and outstanding shares after this offering
and the expiration of the underwriters’ over-allotment option) will be subject to forfeiture by holders of such founder shares on the
third anniversary of the closing of our initial business combination unless following our initial business combination (i) the last
sales price of our stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations,
recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period or (ii) we complete a liquidation, merger,
stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of our stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of
common stock for cash, securities or other property for an amount which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock
splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like). Such securities were issued in connection with our
organization pursuant to the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

Harry E. Sloan, our chairman and chief executive officer, Jeff Sagansky, our president, and James A. Graf, our vice president,
chief financial officer, treasurer and secretary, are each members of our sponsor. Our sponsor is an accredited investor for purposes
of Rule 501 of Regulation D. Each of the equity holders in our sponsor is an accredited investor under Rule 501 of Regulation D.
The sole business of our sponsor is to act as the company’s sponsor in connection with this offering. The limited liability company
agreement of our sponsor provides that its membership interests may only be transferred to our officers or directors or other
persons affiliated with our sponsor, or in connection with estate planning transfers.

In addition, our sponsor has committed, pursuant to a written agreement, to purchase from us an aggregate of 7,000,000
sponsor warrants at $0.75 per warrant (for an aggregate purchase price of $5,250,000). These purchases will take place on a private
placement basis simultaneously with the completion of our initial public offering. These issuances will be made pursuant to the
exemption from registration contained in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.

No underwriting discounts or commissions were paid with respect to such sales.
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Item 16. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following exhibits are filed as part of this Registration Statement: 

Exhibit
No.

 Description

1.1  Form of Underwriting Agreement.**
3.1  Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.**
3.2  Form of By-laws.**
4.1  Specimen Unit Certificate.**
4.2  Specimen Common Stock Certificate.**
4.3  Specimen Warrant Certificate (included as an exhibit in the Warrant Agreement).**
4.4  Form of Warrant Agreement between American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC and the

Registrant.*
5.1  Opinion of McDermott Will & Emery LLP.*
10.1  Promissory Note, dated February 2, 2011, issued to Global Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.2(a)  Letter Agreement, dated as of         , 2011, among the Registrant, Global Eagle Acquisition LLC and

each of the members of Global Eagle Acquisition LLC *
10.2(b)  Letter Agreement, dated         , 2011, between the Registrant and James M. McNamara.*
10.2(c)  Letter Agreement, dated         , 2011, between the Registrant and Dennis A. Miller.*
10.3  Form of Investment Management Trust Agreement between American Stock Transfer & Trust

Company, LLC and the Registrant.**
10.4  Letter Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2011, between Roscomare Ltd. and the Registrant regarding

administrative support.**
10.5  Form of Registration Rights Agreement between the Registrant and Global Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.6  Securities Purchase Agreement, effective as of February 2, 2011, between the Registrant and Global

Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.7  Sponsor Warrants Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2011, among the Registrant and Global

Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.8  Form of Indemnity Agreement.**
10.9  Form of Escrow Agreement among the Registrant, Global Eagle Acquisition LLC, James M.

McNamara, Dennis A. Miller and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC.*
10.10  Securities Assignment Agreement dated as of March 21, 2011, among Global Eagle Acquisition LLC,

Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara.**
10.11  Form of Consulting Agreement between the Registrant and James A. Graf.*
14  Form of Code of Ethics.**
23.1  Consent of Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.*
23.2  Consent of McDermott Will & Emery LLP (included on Exhibit 5.1).*
24  Power of Attorney.**
99.1  Consent of Dennis A. Miller.**
99.2  Consent of James M. McNamara.**

* Filed herewith.

** Previously filed.

Item 17. Undertakings.
(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement:

i. To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

ii. To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the
most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in
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the aggregate, represent a fundamental change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not
exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range
may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the
changes in volume and price represent no more than 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in
the “Calculation of Registration Fee” table in the effective registration statement;

iii. To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective amendment
shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of such securities at
that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain
unsold at the termination of the offering.

(4) That, for the purpose of determining liability of the registrant under the Securities Act of 1933 to any purchaser in the
initial distribution of the securities, in a primary offering of securities of the undersigned registrant pursuant to this registration
statement, regardless of the underwriting method used to sell the securities to the purchaser, if the securities are offered or sold
to such purchaser by means of any of the following communications, the undersigned registrant will be a seller to the purchaser
and will be considered to offer or sell such securities to such purchaser:

(i) Any preliminary prospectus or prospectus of the undersigned registrant relating to the offering required to be filed
pursuant to Rule 424;

(ii) Any free writing prospectus relating to the offering prepared by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant or used or
referred to by the undersigned registrant;

(iii) The portion of any other free writing prospectus relating to the offering containing material information about the
undersigned registrant or its securities provided by or on behalf of the undersigned registrant; and

(iv) Any other communication that is an offer in the offering made by the undersigned registrant to the purchaser.

(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to provide to the underwriter at the closing specified in the underwriting
agreements, certificates in such denominations and registered in such names as required by the underwriter to permit prompt
delivery to each purchaser.

(c) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers and
controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the
opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is,
therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the
registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any
action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being
registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a
court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act
and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.
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(d) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:

(1) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, the information omitted from the form of
prospectus filed as part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by
the registrant pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration
statement as of the time it was declared effective.

(2) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each post-effective amendment that
contains a form of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and
the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Los Angeles, State of California, on the 6th day
of April, 2011.  

 GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
   By: /s/ Harry E. Sloan

Harry E. Sloan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  

Name  Position  Date
/s/ Harry E. Sloan
Harry E. Sloan

 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

 April 6, 2011

*
Jeff Sagansky

 President  April 6, 2011

*
James A. Graf

 Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
and Secretary (Principal Financial Officer and

Principal Accounting Officer)

 April 6, 2011

 
*Pursuant to Power of Attorney

/s/ Harry E. Sloan
Attorney-

in-fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX 
Exhibit

No.
 Description

1.1  Form of Underwriting Agreement.**
3.1  Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.**
3.2  Form of By-laws.**
4.1  Specimen Unit Certificate.**
4.2  Specimen Common Stock Certificate.**
4.3  Specimen Warrant Certificate (included as an exhibit in the Warrant Agreement).**
4.4  Form of Warrant Agreement between American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC and the

Registrant.*
5.1  Opinion of McDermott Will & Emery LLP.*
10.1  Promissory Note, dated February 2, 2011, issued to Global Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.2(a)  Letter Agreement, dated as of         , 2011, among the Registrant, Global Eagle Acquisition LLC and

each of the members of Global Eagle Acquisition LLC *
10.2(b)  Letter Agreement, dated         , 2011, between the Registrant and James M. McNamara.*
10.2(c)  Letter Agreement, dated         , 2011, between the Registrant and Dennis A. Miller.*
10.3  Form of Investment Management Trust Agreement between American Stock Transfer & Trust

Company, LLC and the Registrant.**
10.4  Letter Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2011, between Roscomare Ltd. and the Registrant regarding

administrative support.**
10.5  Form of Registration Rights Agreement between the Registrant and Global Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.6  Securities Purchase Agreement, effective as of February 2, 2011, between the Registrant and Global

Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.7  Sponsor Warrants Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 2, 2011, among the Registrant and Global

Eagle Acquisition LLC.**
10.8  Form of Indemnity Agreement.**
10.9  Form of Escrow Agreement among the Registrant, Global Eagle Acquisition LLC, James M.

McNamara, Dennis A. Miller and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC.*
10.10  Securities Assignment Agreement dated as of March 21, 2011, among Global Eagle Acquisition LLC,

Dennis A. Miller and James M. McNamara.**
10.11  Form of Consulting Agreement between the Registrant and James A. Graf.*
14  Form of Code of Ethics.**
23.1  Consent of Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.*
23.2  Consent of McDermott Will & Emery LLP (included on Exhibit 5.1).*
24  Power of Attorney.**
99.1  Consent of Dennis A. Miller.**
99.2  Consent of James M. McNamara.**

* Filed herewith.

** Previously filed.
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WARRANT AGREEMENT

GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.

and

AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY, LLC, as Warrant Agent
 

 
WARRANT AGREEMENT

Dated as of                , 2011

 
 



 

THIS WARRANT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”), dated as of                , 2011, is by and between Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.,
a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as warrant agent (the “Warrant Agent”).

WHEREAS, the Company has entered into that certain Sponsor Warrants Purchase Agreement dated as of February 2, 2011, (the
“Sponsor Warrants Purchase Agreement”), with Global Eagle Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Sponsor”),
pursuant to which the Sponsor will purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 warrants bearing the legend set forth in Exhibit B hereto (the
“Sponsor Warrants” ) at a purchase price of $0.75 per Sponsor Warrant, to be sold to the Sponsor simultaneously with the closing of the
Offering (as defined below); and

WHEREAS, the Company is engaged in an initial public offering (the “Offering”) of units of the Company’s equity securities, each
such unit comprised of one share of Common Stock (as defined below) and one Public Warrant (as defined below) (the “Units”) and, in
connection therewith, has determined to issue and deliver up to 20,125,000 warrants (including up to 2,625,000 warrants subject to the Over-
allotment Option (as defined below)) to public investors in the Offering (the “Public Warrants” and, together with the Sponsor Warrants, the
“Warrants”), each such Warrant evidencing the right of the holder thereof to purchase one share of common stock of the Company, par
value $0.0001 per share (“Common Stock”), for $11.50 per share, subject to adjustment as described herein; and

WHEREAS, the Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) a registration statement on
Form S-1, No. 333-172267 (the “Registration Statement”) and prospectus (the “Prospectus”), for the registration, under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), of the Units, the Public Warrants and Common Stock included in the Units; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires the Warrant Agent to act on behalf of the Company, and the Warrant Agent is willing to so act, in
connection with the issuance, registration, transfer, exchange, redemption and exercise of the Warrants; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide for the form and provisions of the Warrants, the terms upon which they shall be issued and
exercised, and the respective rights, limitation of rights, and immunities of the Company, the Warrant Agent, and the holders of the
Warrants; and

WHEREAS, all acts and things have been done and performed which are necessary to make the Warrants, when executed on behalf of
the Company and countersigned by or on behalf of the Warrant Agent, as provided herein, the valid, binding and legal obligations of the
Company, and to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Appointment of Warrant Agent . The Company hereby appoints the Warrant Agent to act as agent for the Company for the Warrants, and
the Warrant Agent hereby accepts such appointment and agrees to perform the same in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement.

2. Warrants.

2.1 Form of Warrant. Each Warrant shall be issued in registered form only and shall be in substantially the form of Exhibit A hereto, the
provisions of which are incorporated herein and shall be signed by, or bear the facsimile signature of, the Chairman of the Board, President,
Chief Executive Officer, Secretary or other principal officer of the Company. In the event the person whose facsimile signature has been
placed upon any Warrant shall have ceased to serve in the capacity in which such person signed the Warrant before such Warrant is issued, it
may be issued with the same effect as if he or she had not ceased to be such at the date of issuance.

2.2 Effect of Countersignature. Unless and until countersigned by the Warrant Agent pursuant to this Agreement, a Warrant shall be
invalid and of no effect and may not be exercised by the holder thereof.
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2.3 Registration.

2.3.1 Warrant Register. The Warrant Agent shall maintain books (the “Warrant Register”), for the registration of original issuance
and the registration of transfer of the Warrants. Upon the initial issuance of the Warrants, the Warrant Agent shall issue and register the
Warrants in the names of the respective holders thereof in such denominations and otherwise in accordance with instructions delivered to the
Warrant Agent by the Company.

2.3.2 Registered Holder. Prior to due presentment for registration of transfer of any Warrant, the Company and the Warrant Agent
may deem and treat the person in whose name such Warrant is registered in the Warrant Register (the “Registered Holder”) as the absolute
owner of such Warrant and of each Warrant represented thereby (notwithstanding any notation of ownership or other writing on the Warrant
Certificate (as defined below) made by anyone other than the Company or the Warrant Agent), for the purpose of any exercise thereof, and
for all other purposes, and neither the Company nor the Warrant Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

2.4 Detachability of Warrants . The Common Stock and Public Warrants comprising the Units shall begin separate trading on the 52nd
day following the date of the Prospectus or, if such 52nd day is not on a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday or federal holiday, on which
banks in New York City are generally open for normal business (a “Business Day”), then on the immediately succeeding Business Day
following such date, or earlier (the “Detachment Date”) with the consent of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. ( “Citi”), as representative of the
several underwriters, but in no event shall the Common Stock and the Public Warrants comprising the Units be separately traded until (A)
the Company has filed a current report on Form 8-K with the Commission containing an audited balance sheet reflecting the receipt by the
Company of the gross proceeds of the Offering, including the proceeds received by the Company from the exercise by the underwriters of
their right to purchase additional shares of Common Stock in the Offering (the “Over-allotment Option”), if the Over-allotment Option is
exercised prior to the filing of the Form 8-K, and (y) the Company issues a press release and files with the Commission a current report on
Form 8-K announcing when such separate trading shall begin.

2.5. Sponsor Warrants. The Sponsor Warrants shall be identical to the Public Warrants, except that so long as they are held by the
members of the Sponsor or any of their Permitted Transferees (as defined below) the Sponsor Warrants: (i) may be exercised for cash or on a
cashless basis, pursuant to subsection 3.3.1(c) hereof, (ii) may not be transferred, assigned or sold until thirty (30) days after the completion
by the Company of an initial Business Combination (as defined below), and (iii) shall not be redeemable by the Company; provided,
however, that in the case of (ii), the Sponsor Warrants and any shares of Common Stock held by the members of the Sponsor and issued
upon exercise of the Sponsor Warrants may be transferred by the holders thereof:

(a) as gift to such person’s immediate family or to a trust, the beneficiary of which is a member of such person’s immediate family, an
affiliate of such person or to a charitable organization,

(b) to the Company’s officers or directors, any affiliate or family member of any of the Company’s officers or directors or any affiliate of
the Sponsor or to any member(s) of the Sponsor,

(c) by virtue of the laws of descent and distribution upon death of such person,

(d) pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order,

(e) in the event of the Company’s liquidation prior to the completion of the Company’s initial Business Combination, or

(f) in the event that, subsequent to the consummation of the Company’s initial Business Combination, the Company consummates a
merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of the holders of the Company’s equity securities issued in the Offering
having the right to exchange their shares of Common Stock for cash, securities or other property;

provided, however, that, in the case of clauses (a) through (d), these transferees (the “Permitted Transferees”) enter into a written agreement
with the Company agreeing to be bound by the transfer restrictions in this Agreement.
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3. Terms and Exercise of Warrants.

3.1 Warrant Price. Each Warrant shall, when countersigned by the Warrant Agent, entitle the Registered Holder thereof, subject to the
provisions of such Warrant and of this Agreement, to purchase from the Company the number of shares of Common Stock stated therein, at
the price of $11.50 per share, subject to the adjustments provided in Section 4 hereof and in the last sentence of this Section 3.1. The term
“Warrant Price” as used in this Agreement shall mean the price per share at which shares of Common Stock may be purchased at the time a
Warrant is exercised. The Company in its sole discretion may lower the Warrant Price at any time prior to the Expiration Date (as defined
below) for a period of not less than twenty (20) Business Days, provided, that the Company shall provide at least twenty (20) days prior
written notice of such reduction to Registered Holders of the Warrants and, provided further that any such reduction shall be identical among
all of the Warrants.

3.2 Duration of Warrants . A Warrant may be exercised only during the period (the “Exercise Period”) commencing on the later of: (i)
the date that is thirty (30) days after the first date on which the Company completes a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock
purchase, reorganization or similar business combination, involving the Company and one or more businesses (a “Business Combination”),
or (ii) the date that is twelve (12) months from the date of the closing of the Offering, and terminating at 5:00 p.m., New York City time on
the earlier to occur of: (x) the date that is five (5) years after the date on which the Company completes its initial Business Combination, (y)
the liquidation of the Company, or (z) other than with respect to the Sponsor Warrants, the Redemption Date (as defined below) as provided
in Section 6.2 hereof (the “Expiration Date”); provided, however, that the exercise of any Warrant shall be subject to the satisfaction of any
applicable conditions, as set forth in subsection 3.3.2 below with respect to an effective registration statement. Except with respect to the
right to receive the Redemption Price (as defined below) (other than with respect to a Sponsor Warrant) in the event of a redemption (as set
forth in Section 6 hereof), each Warrant (other than a Sponsor Warrant in the event of a redemption) not exercised on or before the
Expiration Date shall become void, and all rights thereunder and all rights in respect thereof under this Agreement shall cease at 5:00 p.m.
New York City time on the Expiration Date. The Company in its sole discretion may extend the duration of the Warrants by delaying the
Expiration Date; provided, that the Company shall provide at least twenty (20) days prior written notice of any such extension to Registered
Holders of the Warrants and, provided further that any such extension shall be identical in duration among all the Warrants.

3.3 Exercise of Warrants.

3.3.1 Payment. Subject to the provisions of the Warrant and this Agreement, a Warrant, when countersigned by the Warrant Agent,
may be exercised by the Registered Holder thereof by surrendering it, at the office of the Warrant Agent, or at the office of its successor as
Warrant Agent, in the Borough of Manhattan, City and State of New York, with the subscription form, as set forth in the Warrant, duly
executed, and by paying in full the Warrant Price for each full share of Common Stock as to which the Warrant is exercised and any and all
applicable taxes due in connection with the exercise of the Warrant, the exchange of the Warrant for the shares of Common Stock and the
issuance of such Common Stock, as follows:

(a) in lawful money of the United States, in good certified check or good bank draft payable to the order of the Company;

(b) in the event of a redemption pursuant to Section 6 hereof in which the Company’s board of directors (the “Board”) has
elected to require all holders of the Warrants to exercise such Warrants on a “cashless basis,” by surrendering the Warrants for that number
of shares of Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of Common Stock underlying
the Warrants, multiplied by the difference between the Warrant Price and the “Fair Market Value”, as defined in this subsection 3.3.1(b) by
(y) the Fair Market Value. Solely for purposes of this subsection 3.3.1(b) and Section 6.3, the “Fair Market Value” shall mean the average
last sale price of the Common Stock for the ten (10) trading days ending on the third trading day prior to the date on which the notice of
redemption is sent to the holders of the Warrants, pursuant to Section 6 hereof;

(c) with respect to any Sponsor Warrant, so long as such Sponsor Warrant is held by the Sponsor, a member of the Sponsor or a
Permitted Transferee, by surrendering the Warrants for that number of shares of Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing
(x) the product of the number of shares of Common Stock underlying the Warrants, multiplied by the difference between the Warrant Price
and the “Fair Market Value”, as defined in this subsection 3.3.1(c), by (y) the Fair Market Value. Solely for purposes of this subsection
3.3.1(c), the “Fair Market Value” shall mean the average last sale price of the Common Stock for the ten (10) trading days ending on the
third trading day prior to the date on which notice of exercise of the Warrant is sent to the Warrant Agent; or
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(d) as provided in Section 7.4 hereof.

3.3.2 Issuance of Shares of Common Stock on Exercise. As soon as practicable after the exercise of any Warrant and the clearance
of the funds in payment of the Warrant Price (if payment is pursuant to subsection 3.3.1(a)), the Company shall issue to the Registered
Holder of such Warrant a certificate or certificates for the number of full shares of Common Stock to which he, she or it is entitled, registered
in such name or names as may be directed by him, her or it, and if such Warrant shall not have been exercised in full, a new countersigned
Warrant for the number of shares as to which such Warrant shall not have been exercised. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall
not be obligated to deliver any shares of Common Stock pursuant to the exercise of a Warrant and shall have no obligation to settle such
Warrant exercise unless a registration statement under the Securities Act with respect to the shares of Common Stock underlying the Public
Warrants is then effective and a prospectus relating thereto is current, subject to the Company’s satisfying its obligations under Section 7.4.
No Warrant shall be exercisable and the Company shall not be obligated to issue shares of Common Stock upon exercise of a Warrant unless
the Common Stock issuable upon such Warrant exercise has been registered, qualified or deemed to be exempt under the securities laws of
the state of residence of the Registered Holder of the Warrants. In the event that the conditions in the two immediately preceding sentences
are not satisfied with respect to a Warrant, the holder of such Warrant shall not be entitled to exercise such Warrant and such Warrant may
have no value and expire worthless, in which case the purchaser of a Unit containing such Public Warrants shall have paid the full purchase
price for the Unit solely for the shares of Common Stock underlying such Unit.  In no event shall the Company be required to net cash settle
any Warrant.

3.3.3 Valid Issuance. All shares of Common Stock issued upon the proper exercise of a Warrant in conformity with this Agreement
shall be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable.

3.3.4 Date of Issuance. Each person in whose name any certificate for shares the Common Stock is issued shall for all purposes be
deemed to have become the holder of record of such shares of Common Stock on the date on which the Warrant was surrendered and
payment of the Warrant Price was made, irrespective of the date of delivery of such certificate, except that, if the date of such surrender and
payment is a date when the share transfer books of the Company are closed, such person shall be deemed to have become the holder of such
shares at the close of business on the next succeeding date on which the share transfer books are open.

3.3.5 Maximum Percentage. A holder of a Warrant may notify the Company in writing in the event it elects to be subject to the
provisions contained in this subsection 3.3.5; however, no holder of a Warrant shall be subject to this subsection 3.3.5 unless he, she or it
makes such election. If the election is made by a holder, the Warrant Agent shall not effect the exercise of the holder’s Warrant, and such
holder shall not have the right to exercise such Warrant, to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, such person (together with such
person’s affiliates), to the Warrant Agent’s actual knowledge, would beneficially own in excess of 9.8% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of
the shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise. For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the
aggregate number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such person and its affiliates shall include the number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrant with respect to which the determination of such sentence is being made, but shall
exclude shares of Common Stock that would be issuable upon (x) exercise of the remaining, unexercised portion of the Warrant beneficially
owned by such person and its affiliates and (y) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other securities of the
Company beneficially owned by such person and its affiliates (including, without limitation, any convertible notes or convertible preferred
stock or warrants) subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitation contained herein. Except as set forth in the
preceding sentence, for purposes of this paragraph, beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). For purposes of the Warrant, in determining the number of outstanding
shares of Common Stock, the holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as reflected in (1) the Company’s
most recent annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly report on Form 10-Q, current report on Form 8-K or other public filing with the
Commission as the case may be, (2) a more recent public announcement by the Company or (3) any other notice by the Company or
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC (the “Transfer Agent”) setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding.
For any reason at any time, upon the written request of the holder of the Warrant, the Company shall, within two (2) Business Days, confirm
orally and in writing to such holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the number of outstanding shares
of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or exercise of equity securities of the Company by the holder and
its affiliates since the date as of which such number of outstanding shares of Common Stock was reported. By written notice to the
Company, the holder of a Warrant may from time to time increase or decrease the Maximum Percentage applicable to such holder to any
other percentage specified in such notice; provided, however, that any such increase shall not be effective until the sixty-first (61st) day after
such notice is delivered to the Company.
 
 

5



 

4. Adjustments.

4.1 Stock Dividends.

4.1.1 Split-Ups. If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4.6 below, the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock is increased by a stock dividend payable in shares of Common Stock, or by a split-up of shares of Common Stock or other
similar event, then, on the effective date of such stock dividend, split-up or similar event, the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
on exercise of each Warrant shall be increased in proportion to such increase in the outstanding shares of Common Stock. A rights offering to
holders of the Common Stock entitling holders to purchase shares of Common Stock at a price less than the “Fair Market Value” (as defined
below) shall be deemed a stock dividend of a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the product of (i) the number of shares of
Common Stock actually sold in such rights offering (or issuable under any other equity securities sold in such rights offering that are
convertible into or exercisable for the Common Stock) multiplied by (ii) the quotient of (x) the price per share of Common Stock paid in
such rights offering divided by (y) the Fair Market Value. For purposes of this subsection 4.1.1, (i) if the rights offering is for securities
convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock, in determining the price payable for Common Stock, there shall be taken into account any
consideration received for such rights, as well as any additional amount payable upon exercise or conversion and (ii) “Fair Market Value”
means the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock as reported during the ten (10) trading day period ending on the trading day
prior to the first date on which the shares of Common Stock trade on the applicable exchange or in the applicable market, regular way,
without the right to receive such rights.

4.1.2 Extraordinary Dividends. If the Company, at any time while the Warrants are outstanding and unexpired, shall pay a dividend
or make a distribution in cash, securities or other assets to the holders of the Common Stock on account of such shares of Common Stock (or
other shares of the Company’s capital stock into which the Warrants are convertible), other than (a) as described in subsection 4.1.1 above,
(b) Ordinary Cash Dividends (as defined below), (c) to satisfy the redemption rights of the holders of the Common Stock in connection with
a proposed initial Business Combination, (d) as a result of the repurchase of shares of Common Stock by the Company if a proposed initial
Business Combination is presented to the stockholders of the Company for approval or (e) in connection with the Company’s liquidation and
the distribution of its assets upon its failure to consummate a Business Combination (any such non- excluded event being referred to herein
as an “Extraordinary Dividend”), then the Warrant Price shall be decreased, effective immediately after the effective date of such
Extraordinary Dividend, by the amount of cash and/or the fair market value (as determined by the Board, in good faith) of any securities or
other assets paid on each share of Common Stock in respect of such Extraordinary Dividend. For purposes of this subsection 4.1.2,
“Ordinary Cash Dividends” means any cash dividend or cash distribution which, when combined on a per share of Common Stock basis,
with the per share amounts of all other cash dividends and cash distributions paid on the Common Stock during the 365-day period ending
on the date of declaration of such dividend or distribution (as adjusted to appropriately reflect any of the events referred to in other
subsections of this Section 4 and excluding cash dividends or cash distributions that resulted in an adjustment to the Warrant Price or to the
number of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of each Warrant) does not exceed $0.50 (being 5% of the offering price of the Units
in the Company’s Offering).

4.2 Aggregation of Shares. If after the date hereof, and subject to the provisions of Section 4.6 hereof, the number of outstanding shares
of Common Stock is decreased by a consolidation, combination, reverse stock split or reclassification of shares of Common Stock or other
similar event, then, on the effective date of such consolidation, combination, reverse stock split, reclassification or similar event, the number
of shares of Common Stock issuable on exercise of each Warrant shall be decreased in proportion to such decrease in outstanding shares of
Common Stock.

4.3 Adjustments in Exercise Price. Whenever the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants is
adjusted, as provided in subsection 4.1.1 or 4.2 above, the Warrant Price shall be adjusted (to the nearest cent) by multiplying such Warrant
Price immediately prior to such adjustment by a fraction (x) the numerator of which shall be the number of shares of Common Stock
purchasable upon the exercise of the Warrants immediately prior to such adjustment, and (y) the denominator of which shall be the number
of shares of Common Stock so purchasable immediately thereafter.
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4.4 Replacement of Securities upon Reorganization, etc. In case of any reclassification or reorganization of the outstanding shares of
Common Stock (other than a change under subsections 4.1.1 or 4.1.2 or Section 4.2 hereof or that solely affects the par value of such shares
of Common Stock), or in the case of any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another corporation (other than a
consolidation or merger in which the Company is the continuing corporation and that does not result in any reclassification or reorganization
of the outstanding shares of Common Stock), or in the case of any sale or conveyance to another corporation or entity of the assets or other
property of the Company as an entirety or substantially as an entirety in connection with which the Company is dissolved, the holders of the
Warrants shall thereafter have the right to purchase and receive, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified in the Warrants
and in lieu of the shares of Common Stock of the Company immediately theretofore purchasable and receivable upon the exercise of the
rights represented thereby, the kind and amount of shares of stock or other securities or property (including cash) receivable upon such
reclassification, reorganization, merger or consolidation, or upon a dissolution following any such sale or transfer, that the holder of the
Warrants would have received if such holder had exercised his, her or its Warrant(s) immediately prior to such event (the “Alternative
Issuance”); provided, however, that (i) if the holders of the Common Stock were entitled to exercise a right of election as to the kind or
amount of securities, cash or other assets receivable upon such consolidation or merger, then the kind and amount of securities, cash or other
assets constituting the Alternative Issuance for which each Warrant shall become exercisable shall be deemed to be the weighted average of
the kind and amount received per share by the holders of the Common Stock in such consolidation or merger that affirmatively make such
election, and (ii) if a tender, exchange or redemption offer shall have been made to and accepted by the holders of the Common Stock (other
than a tender, exchange or redemption offer made by the Company in connection with redemption rights held by stockholders of the
Company as provided for in the Company’s certificate of incorporation or as a result of the repurchase of shares of Common Stock by the
Company if a proposed initial Business Combination is presented to the stockholders of the Company for approval) under circumstances in
which, upon completion of such tender or exchange offer, the maker thereof, together with members of any group (within the meaning of
Rule 13d-5(b)(1) under the Exchange Act) of which such maker is a part, and together with any affiliate or associate of such maker (within
the meaning of Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act) and any members of any such group of which any such affiliate or associate is a part,
own beneficially (within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act) more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock,
the holder of a Warrant shall be entitled to receive as the Alternative Issuance, the highest amount of cash, securities or other property to
which such holder would actually have been entitled as a stockholder if such Warrant holder had exercised the Warrant prior to the
expiration of such tender or exchange offer, accepted such offer and all of the Common Stock held by such holder had been purchased
pursuant to such tender or exchange offer, subject to adjustments (from and after the consummation of such tender or exchange offer) as
nearly equivalent as possible to the adjustments provided for in this Section 4; provided further, however, that if more than 30% of the
consideration receivable by the holders of the Common Stock in the applicable event is payable in the form of common stock in the
successor entity that is not listed for trading on a national securities exchange or on the OTC Bulletin Board, or is not to be so listed for
trading immediately following such event, then the Warrant Price shall be reduced by an amount (in dollars) equal to the quotient of (x)
$17.50 (subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 6.1 hereof) minus the Per Share Consideration (as defined below) (but in no event,
less than zero), and (y): if the applicable event is announced on or prior to the third anniversary of the closing date of the initial Business
Combination, 2; if the applicable event is announced after the third anniversary of the closing date of the initial Business Combination and
on or prior to the fourth anniversary of the closing date of the initial Business Combination, 2.5; if the applicable event is announced after
the fourth anniversary of the closing date of the initial Business Combination and on or prior to the Expiration Date, 3. “Per Share
Consideration” means (i) if the consideration paid to holders of the Common Stock consists exclusively of cash, the amount of such cash per
share of Common Stock, and (ii) in all other cases, the volume weighted average price of the Common Stock as reported during the ten (10)
trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the effective date of the applicable event. If any reclassification or reorganization also
results in a change in shares of Common Stock covered by subsection 4.1.1, then such adjustment shall be made pursuant to subsection 4.1.1
o r Sections 4.2, 4.3 and this Section 4.4. The provisions of this Section 4.4 shall similarly apply to successive reclassifications,
reorganizations, mergers or consolidations, sales or other transfers.

4.5 Notices of Changes in Warrant. Upon every adjustment of the Warrant Price or the number of shares issuable upon exercise of a
Warrant, the Company shall give written notice thereof to the Warrant Agent, which notice shall state the Warrant Price resulting from such
adjustment and the increase or decrease, if any, in the number of shares purchasable at such price upon the exercise of a Warrant, setting
forth in reasonable detail the method of calculation and the facts upon which such calculation is based. Upon the occurrence of any event
specified in Sections 4.1, 4.2, 4.3 or 4.4, the Company shall give written notice of the occurrence of such event to each holder of a Warrant,
at the last address set forth for such holder in the Warrant Register, of the record date or the effective date of the event. Failure to give such
notice, or any defect therein, shall not affect the legality or validity of such event.
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4.6 No Fractional Shares. Notwithstanding any provision contained in this Warrant Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall not
issue fractional shares upon exercise of Warrants. If, by reason of any adjustment made pursuant to this Section 4, the holder of any Warrant
would be entitled, upon the exercise of such Warrant, to receive a fractional interest in a share, the Company shall, upon such exercise, round
up to the nearest whole number, the number of the shares of Common Stock to be issued to such holder.

4.7 Form of Warrant. The form of Warrant need not be changed because of any adjustment pursuant to this Section 4, and Warrants
issued after such adjustment may state the same Warrant Price and the same number of shares as is stated in the Warrants initially issued
pursuant to this Agreement; provided, however, that the Company may at any time in its sole discretion make any change in the form of
Warrant that the Company may deem appropriate and that does not affect the substance thereof, and any Warrant thereafter issued or
countersigned, whether in exchange or substitution for an outstanding Warrant or otherwise, may be in the form as so changed.

4.8 Other Events. In case any event shall occur affecting the Company as to which none of the provisions of preceding subsections of
this Section 4 are strictly applicable, but which would require an adjustment to the terms of the Warrants in order to (i) avoid an adverse
impact on the Warrants and (ii) effectuate the intent and purpose of this Section 4, then, in each such case, the Company shall appoint a firm
of independent public accountants, investment banking or other appraisal firm of recognized national standing, which shall give its opinion
as to whether or not any adjustment to the rights represented by the Warrants is necessary to effectuate the intent and purpose of this Section
4 and, if they determine that an adjustment is necessary, the terms of such adjustment. The Company shall adjust the terms of the Warrants
in a manner that is consistent with any adjustment recommended in such opinion.

5. Transfer and Exchange of Warrants.

5.1 Registration of Transfer. The Warrant Agent shall register the transfer, from time to time, of any outstanding Warrant upon the
Warrant Register, upon surrender of such Warrant for transfer, properly endorsed with signatures properly guaranteed and accompanied by
appropriate instructions for transfer. Upon any such transfer, a new Warrant representing an equal aggregate number of Warrants shall be
issued and the old Warrant shall be cancelled by the Warrant Agent. The Warrants so cancelled shall be delivered by the Warrant Agent to
the Company from time to time upon request.

5.2 Procedure for Surrender of Warrants . Warrants may be surrendered to the Warrant Agent, together with a written request for
exchange or transfer, and thereupon the Warrant Agent shall issue in exchange therefor one or more new Warrants as requested by the
Registered Holder of the Warrants so surrendered, representing an equal aggregate number of Warrants; provided, however, that in the event
that a Warrant surrendered for transfer bears a restrictive legend (as in the case of the Sponsor Warrants), the Warrant Agent shall not cancel
such Warrant and issue new Warrants in exchange thereof until the Warrant Agent has received an opinion of counsel for the Company
stating that such transfer may be made and indicating whether the new Warrants must also bear a restrictive legend.

5.3 Fractional Warrants. The Warrant Agent shall not be required to effect any registration of transfer or exchange which shall result in
the issuance of a warrant certificate for a fraction of a warrant.

5.4 Service Charges. No service charge shall be made for any exchange or registration of transfer of Warrants.

5.5 Warrant Execution and Countersignature . The Warrant Agent is hereby authorized to countersign and to deliver, in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement, the Warrants required to be issued pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5, and the Company, whenever
required by the Warrant Agent, shall supply the Warrant Agent with Warrants duly executed on behalf of the Company for such purpose.

5.6 Transfer of Warrants . Prior to the Detachment Date, the Public Warrants may be transferred or exchanged only together with the
Unit in which such Warrant is included, and only for the purpose of effecting, or in conjunction with, a transfer or exchange of such Unit.
Furthermore, each transfer of a Unit on the register relating to such Units shall operate also to transfer the Warrants included in such Unit.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this Section 5.6 shall have no effect on any transfer of Warrants on and after the
Detachment Date.
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6. Redemption.

6.1 Redemption. Subject to Section 6.4 hereof, not less than all of the outstanding Warrants may be redeemed, at the option of the
Company, at any time while they are exercisable and prior to their expiration, at the office of the Warrant Agent, upon notice to the
Registered Holders of the Warrants, as described in Section 6.2 below, at the price of $0.01 per Warrant (the “Redemption Price”), provided
that the last sales price of the Common Stock reported has been at least $17.50 per share (subject to adjustment in compliance with Section 4
hereof), on each of twenty (20) trading days within the thirty (30) trading-day period ending on the third Business Day prior to the date on
which notice of the redemption is given and provided that there is an effective registration statement covering the shares of Common Stock
issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, and a current prospectus relating thereto, available throughout the 30-day Redemption Period (as
defined in Section 6.2 below).

6.2 Date Fixed for, and Notice of, Redemption. In the event that the Company elects to redeem all of the Warrants, the Company shall
fix a date for the redemption (the “Redemption Date”). Notice of redemption shall be mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, by the
Company not less than thirty (30) days prior to the Redemption Date to the Registered Holders of the Warrants to be redeemed at their last
addresses as they shall appear on the registration books. Any notice mailed in the manner herein provided shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given whether or not the Registered Holder received such notice.

6.3 Exercise After Notice of Redemption. The Warrants may be exercised, for cash (or on a “cashless basis” in accordance with
subsection 3.3.1(b) of this Agreement) at any time after notice of redemption shall have been given by the Company pursuant to Section 6.2
hereof and prior to the Redemption Date. In the event that the Company determines to require all holders of Warrants to exercise their
Warrants on a “cashless basis” pursuant to subsection 3.3.1, the notice of redemption shall contain the information necessary to calculate the
number of shares of Common Stock to be received upon exercise of the Warrants, including the “Fair Market Value” (as such term is
defined in subsection 3.3.1(b) hereof) in such case. On and after the Redemption Date, the record holder of the Warrants shall have no
further rights except to receive, upon surrender of the Warrants, the Redemption Price.

6.4 Exclusion of Sponsor Warrants. The Company agrees that the redemption rights provided in this Section 6 shall not apply to the
Sponsor Warrants if at the time of the redemption such Sponsor Warrants continue to be held by the Sponsor or its Permitted Transferees.
However, once such Sponsor Warrants are transferred (other than to Permitted Transferees under subsection 2.5), the Company may redeem
the Sponsor Warrants, provided that the criteria for redemption are met, including the opportunity of the holder of such Sponsor Warrants to
exercise the Sponsor Warrants prior to redemption pursuant to Section 6.3. Sponsor Warrants that are transferred to persons other than
Permitted Transferees shall upon such transfer cease to be Sponsor Warrants and shall become Public Warrants under this Agreement.

7. Other Provisions Relating to Rights of Holders of Warrants.

7.1 No Rights as Stockholder. A Warrant does not entitle the Registered Holder thereof to any of the rights of a stockholder of the
Company, including, without limitation, the right to receive dividends, or other distributions, exercise any preemptive rights to vote or to
consent or to receive notice as stockholders in respect of the meetings of stockholders or the election of directors of the Company or any
other matter.

7.2 Lost, Stolen, Mutilated, or Destroyed Warrants . If any Warrant is lost, stolen, mutilated, or destroyed, the Company and the Warrant
Agent may on such terms as to indemnity or otherwise as they may in their discretion impose (which shall, in the case of a mutilated
Warrant, include the surrender thereof), issue a new Warrant of like denomination, tenor, and date as the Warrant so lost, stolen, mutilated, or
destroyed. Any such new Warrant shall constitute a substitute contractual obligation of the Company, whether or not the allegedly lost,
stolen, mutilated, or destroyed Warrant shall be at any time enforceable by anyone.

7.3 Reservation of the Common Stock. The Company shall at all times reserve and keep available a number of its authorized but
unissued shares of Common Stock that shall be sufficient to permit the exercise in full of all outstanding Warrants issued pursuant to this
Agreement.
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7.4 Registration of the Common Stock. The Company agrees that as soon as practicable, but in no event later than fifteen (15) Business
Days after the closing of its initial Business Combination, it shall use its best efforts to file with the Commission a registration statement for
the registration, under the Securities Act, of the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, and it shall use its best
efforts to take such action as is necessary to register or qualify for sale, in those states in which the Warrants were initially offered by the
Company, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, to the extent an exemption is not available. The Company
shall use its best efforts to cause the same to become effective and to maintain the effectiveness of such registration statement, and a current
prospectus relating thereto, until the expiration of the Warrants in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. If any such registration
statement has not been declared effective by the 60th Business Day following the closing of the Business Combination, holders of the
Warrants shall have the right, during the period beginning on the 61st Business Day after the closing of the Business Combination and
ending upon such registration statement being declared effective by the Commission, and during any other period when the Company shall
fail to have maintained an effective registration statement covering the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Warrants, to
exercise such Warrants on a “cashless basis,” by exchanging the Warrants (in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Act or another
exemption) for that number of shares of Common Stock equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the product of the number of shares of
Common Stock underlying the Warrants, multiplied by the difference between the Warrant Price and the “Fair Market Value” (as defined
below) by (y) the Fair Market Value. Solely for purposes of this Section 7.4, “Fair Market Value” shall mean the volume weighted average
price of the Common Stock as reported during the ten (10) trading day period ending on the trading day prior to the date that notice of
exercise is received by the Warrant Agent from the holder of such Warrants or its securities broker or intermediary. The date that notice of
cashless exercise is received by the Warrant Agent shall be conclusively determined by the Warrant Agent. The Company shall provide the
Warrant Agent with an opinion of counsel for the Company (which shall be an outside law firm with securities law experience) stating that
(i) the exercise of the Warrants on a cashless basis in accordance with this Section 7.4 is not required to be registered under the Securities Act
and (ii) the shares of Common Stock issued upon such exercise shall be freely tradable under United States federal securities laws by anyone
who is not an affiliate (as such term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act) of the Company and, accordingly, shall not be required
to bear a restrictive legend. For the avoidance of any doubt, (i) unless and until all of the Warrants have been exercised on a cashless basis,
the Company shall continue to be obligated to comply with its registration obligations under the first three sentences of this Section 7.4, and
(ii) no holder of Warrants shall have the right to exercise any Warrants on a cashless basis unless the Common Stock issuable upon exercise
of such Warrants is registered or qualified, or exempt from registration or qualification, under the blue sky laws of the state of residence of
the exercising holder. In addition, if an exercising Warrant holder is an institutional investor and is not a resident of a state in which the
Warrants were initially offered by the Company (as to which state the Company is required to take certain actions pursuant to the first
sentence of this Section 7.4), the Company agrees to use its best efforts to take such action, if any, as is necessary to permit the issuance of
shares of Common Stock upon exercise of such holder’s Warrants pursuant to the institutional investor exemptions under the blue sky laws
of the state of such holder’s residence.

8. Concerning the Warrant Agent and Other Matters.

8.1 Payment of Taxes . The Company shall from time to time promptly pay all taxes and charges that may be imposed upon the
Company or the Warrant Agent in respect of the issuance or delivery of shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of the Warrants, but the
Company shall not be obligated to pay any transfer taxes in respect of the Warrants or such shares.

8.2 Resignation, Consolidation, or Merger of Warrant Agent.

8.2.1 Appointment of Successor Warrant Agent. The Warrant Agent, or any successor to it hereafter appointed, may resign its duties
and be discharged from all further duties and liabilities hereunder after giving sixty (60) days’ notice in writing to the Company. If the office
of the Warrant Agent becomes vacant by resignation or incapacity to act or otherwise, the Company shall appoint in writing a successor
Warrant Agent in place of the Warrant Agent. If the Company shall fail to make such appointment within a period of thirty (30) days after it
has been notified in writing of such resignation or incapacity by the Warrant Agent or by the holder of a Warrant (who shall, with such
notice, submit his Warrant for inspection by the Company), then the holder of any Warrant may apply to the Supreme Court of the State of
New York for the County of New York for the appointment of a successor Warrant Agent at the Company’s cost. Any successor Warrant
Agent, whether appointed by the Company or by such court, shall be a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New
York, in good standing and having its principal office in the Borough of Manhattan, City and State of New York, and authorized under such
laws to exercise corporate trust powers and subject to supervision or examination by federal or state authority. After appointment, any
successor Warrant Agent shall be vested with all the authority, powers, rights, immunities, duties, and obligations of its predecessor Warrant
Agent with like effect as if originally named as Warrant Agent hereunder, without any further act or deed; but if for any reason it becomes
necessary or appropriate, the predecessor Warrant Agent shall execute and deliver, at the expense of the Company, an instrument
transferring to such successor Warrant Agent all the authority, powers, and rights of such predecessor Warrant Agent hereunder; and upon
request of any successor Warrant Agent the Company shall make, execute, acknowledge, and deliver any and all instruments in writing for
more fully and effectually vesting in and confirming to such successor Warrant Agent all such authority, powers, rights, immunities, duties,
and obligations.
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8.2.2 Notice of Successor Warrant Agent. In the event a successor Warrant Agent shall be appointed, the Company shall give notice
thereof to the predecessor Warrant Agent and the Transfer Agent for the Common Stock not later than the effective date of any such
appointment.

8.2.3 Merger or Consolidation of Warrant Agent. Any corporation into which the Warrant Agent may be merged or with which it
may be consolidated or any corporation resulting from any merger or consolidation to which the Warrant Agent shall be a party shall be the
successor Warrant Agent under this Agreement without any further act.

8.3 Fees and Expenses of Warrant Agent.

8.3.1 Remuneration. The Company agrees to pay the Warrant Agent reasonable remuneration for its services as such Warrant Agent
hereunder and shall, pursuant to its obligations under this Agreement, reimburse the Warrant Agent upon demand for all expenditures that the
Warrant Agent may reasonably incur in the execution of its duties hereunder.

8.3.2 Further Assurances. The Company agrees to perform, execute, acknowledge, and deliver or cause to be performed, executed,
acknowledged, and delivered all such further and other acts, instruments, and assurances as may reasonably be required by the Warrant
Agent for the carrying out or performing of the provisions of this Agreement.

8.4 Liability of Warrant Agent.

8.4.1 Reliance on Company Statement. Whenever in the performance of its duties under this Warrant Agreement, the Warrant Agent
shall deem it necessary or desirable that any fact or matter be proved or established by the Company prior to taking or suffering any action
hereunder, such fact or matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively
proved and established by a statement signed by the President or Chairman of the Board of the Company and delivered to the Warrant Agent.
The Warrant Agent may rely upon such statement for any action taken or suffered in good faith by it pursuant to the provisions of this
Agreement.

8.4.2 Indemnity. The Warrant Agent shall be liable hereunder only for its own gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith.
The Company agrees to indemnify the Warrant Agent and save it harmless against any and all liabilities, including judgments, costs and
reasonable counsel fees, for anything done or omitted by the Warrant Agent in the execution of this Agreement, except as a result of the
Warrant Agent’s gross negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith.

8.4.3 Exclusions. The Warrant Agent shall have no responsibility with respect to the validity of this Agreement or with respect to
the validity or execution of any Warrant (except its countersignature thereof). The Warrant Agent shall not be responsible for any breach by
the Company of any covenant or condition contained in this Agreement or in any Warrant. The Warrant Agent shall not be responsible to
make any adjustments required under the provisions of Section 4 hereof or responsible for the manner, method, or amount of any such
adjustment or the ascertaining of the existence of facts that would require any such adjustment; nor shall it by any act hereunder be deemed
to make any representation or warranty as to the authorization or reservation of any shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to this
Agreement or any Warrant or as to whether any shares of Common Stock shall, when issued, be valid and fully paid and nonassessable.

8.5 Acceptance of Agency. The Warrant Agent hereby accepts the agency established by this Agreement and agrees to perform the same
upon the terms and conditions herein set forth and among other things, shall account promptly to the Company with respect to Warrants
exercised and concurrently account for, and pay to the Company, all monies received by the Warrant Agent for the purchase of shares of
Common Stock through the exercise of the Warrants.
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8.6 Waiver. The Warrant Agent has no right of set-off or any other right, title, interest or claim of any kind ( “Claim”) in, or to any
distribution of, the Trust Account (as defined in that certain Investment Management Trust Agreement, dated as of the date hereof, by and
between the Company and the Warrant Agent as trustee thereunder) and hereby agrees not to seek recourse, reimbursement, payment or
satisfaction for any Claim against the Trust Account for any reason whatsoever. The Warrant Agent hereby waives any and all Claims
against the Trust Account and any and all rights to seek access to the Trust Account.

9. Miscellaneous Provisions.

9.1 Successors. All the covenants and provisions of this Agreement by or for the benefit of the Company or the Warrant Agent shall bind
and inure to the benefit of their respective successors and assigns.

9.2 Notices. Any notice, statement or demand authorized by this Warrant Agreement to be given or made by the Warrant Agent or by the
holder of any Warrant to or on the Company shall be sufficiently given when so delivered if by hand or overnight delivery or if sent by
certified mail or private courier service within five (5) days after deposit of such notice, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is
filed in writing by the Company with the Warrant Agent), as follows:

Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
10900 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 1500
Los Angeles, California 90024
Attention: Chief Executive Officer

Any notice, statement or demand authorized by this Agreement to be given or made by the holder of any Warrant or by the Company to or
on the Warrant Agent shall be sufficiently given when so delivered if by hand or overnight delivery or if sent by certified mail or private
courier service within five (5) days after deposit of such notice, postage prepaid, addressed (until another address is filed in writing by the
Warrant Agent with the Company), as follows:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
6201 15th Avenue
Brooklyn, New York 11219
Attn: Felix Orihuela

9.3 Applicable Law. The validity, interpretation, and performance of this Agreement and of the Warrants shall be governed in all
respects by the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to conflicts of law principles that would result in the application of the
substantive laws of another jurisdiction. The Company hereby agrees that any action, proceeding or claim against it arising out of or relating
in any way to this Agreement shall be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York, and irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction, which jurisdiction shall be exclusive. The Company hereby
waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and that such courts represent an inconvenient forum.

9.4 Persons Having Rights under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to confer upon, or give to, any person or
corporation other than the parties hereto and the Registered Holders of the Warrants any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Agreement or of any covenant, condition, stipulation, promise, or agreement hereof. All covenants, conditions, stipulations, promises, and
agreements contained in this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns and
of the Registered Holders of the Warrants.

9.5 Examination of the Warrant Agreement . A copy of this Agreement shall be available at all reasonable times at the office of the
Warrant Agent in the Borough of Manhattan, City and State of New York, for inspection by the Registered Holder of any Warrant. The
Warrant Agent may require any such holder to submit his Warrant for inspection by it.
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9.6 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of original or facsimile counterparts and each of such counterparts
shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

9.7 Effect of Headings. The section headings herein are for convenience only and are not part of this Agreement and shall not affect the
interpretation thereof.

9.8 Amendments. This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto without the consent of any Registered Holder for the purpose
of curing any ambiguity, or curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision contained herein or adding or changing any other
provisions with respect to matters or questions arising under this Agreement as the parties may deem necessary or desirable and that the
parties deem shall not adversely affect the interest of the Registered Holders. All other modifications or amendments, including any
amendment to increase the Warrant Price or shorten the Exercise Period and any amendment to the terms of only the Sponsor Warrants, shall
require the written consent of the Registered Holders of 65% of the then outstanding Public Warrants. Further, the members of the Sponsor
shall not vote any Warrants owned or controlled by them in favor of such amendment unless the Registered Holders of 65% of the Public
Warrants vote in favor of such amendment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may lower the Warrant Price or extend the
duration of the Exercise Period pursuant to Sections 3.1 and 3.2, respectively, without the consent of the Registered Holders.

9.9 Severability. This Agreement shall be deemed severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any term or provision hereof shall
not affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or of any other term or provision hereof. Furthermore, in lieu of any such invalid or
unenforceable term or provision, the parties hereto intend that there shall be added as a part of this Agreement a provision as similar in terms
to such invalid or unenforceable provision as may be possible and be valid and enforceable.

Exhibit A Form of Warrant Certificate
Exhibit B Legend — Sponsor’s Warrants
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.

 GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
    
 By:   
  Name:   
  Title:   
    
 AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY, LLC, as
 Warrant Agent
  
 By:   
  Name:   
  Title:   
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EXHIBIT A

[Form of Warrant Certificate]

[FACE]

Number

Warrants

THIS WARRANT SHALL BE VOID IF NOT EXERCISED PRIOR TO
THE EXPIRATION OF THE EXERCISE PERIOD PROVIDED FOR

IN THE WARRANT AGREEMENT DESCRIBED BELOW

GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
Incorporated Under the Laws of the State of Delaware

CUSIP ________

Warrant Certificate

This Warrant Certificate certifies that ____________________, or registered assigns, is the registered holder of _______________
warrants (the “Warrants”) to purchase shares of Common Stock, $.0001 par value (the “Common Stock”), of Global Eagle Acquisition
Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”). Each Warrant entitles the holder, upon exercise during the period set forth in the Warrant
Agreement referred to below, to receive from the Company that number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as set forth
on the reverse hereof, at the exercise price (the “Exercise Price”) as determined pursuant to the Warrant Agreement, payable in lawful
money (or through “cashless exercise” if permitted by the Warrant Agreement) of the United States of America upon surrender of this
Warrant Certificate and payment of the Exercise Price at the office or agency of the Warrant Agent referred to below, subject to the
conditions set forth herein and in the Warrant Agreement. Defined terms used in this Warrant Certificate but not defined herein shall have the
meanings given to them in the Warrant Agreement.

Each Warrant is initially exercisable for one fully paid and non-assessable share of Common Stock. The number of the Warrants
issuable upon exercise of the Warrants is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events set forth in the Warrant Agreement.

The initial Exercise Price per share of Common Stock for any Warrant is equal to $11.50 per share. The Exercise Price is subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events set forth in the Warrant Agreement.

Subject to the conditions set forth in the Warrant Agreement, the Warrants may be exercised only during the Exercise Period and to the
extent not exercised by the end of such Exercise Period, such Warrants shall become void.

Reference is hereby made to the further provisions of this Warrant Certificate set forth on the reverse hereof and such further provisions
shall for all purposes have the same effect as though fully set forth at this place.

This Warrant Certificate shall not be valid unless countersigned by the Warrant Agent, as such term is used in the Warrant Agreement.
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This Warrant Certificate shall be governed and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of New York, without regard
to conflicts of laws principles thereof.

 GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
    
 By:  
  Name:  
  Title:  
    
 AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST COMPANY, LLC, as
 Warrant Agent
  
 By:  
  Name:  
  Title:  
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[Form of Warrant Certificate]

[Reverse]

The Warrants evidenced by this Warrant Certificate are part of a duly authorized issue of Warrants entitling the holder on exercise to
receive shares of Common Stock and are issued or to be issued pursuant to a Warrant Agreement dated as of                , 2011 (the “Warrant
Agreement”), duly executed and delivered by the Company to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as warrant agent (the
“Warrant Agent”), which Warrant Agreement is hereby incorporated by reference in and made a part of this instrument and is hereby
referred to for a description of the rights, limitation of rights, obligations, duties and immunities thereunder of the Warrant Agent, the
Company and the holders (the words “holders” or “holder” meaning the Registered Holders or Registered Holder) of the Warrants. A copy
of the Warrant Agreement may be obtained by the holder hereof upon written request to the Company. Defined terms used in this Warrant
Certificate but not defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Warrant Agreement.

Warrants may be exercised at any time during the Exercise Period set forth in the Warrant Agreement. The holder of Warrants evidenced
by this Warrant Certificate may exercise them by surrendering this Warrant Certificate, with the form of election to purchase set forth hereon
properly completed and executed, together with payment of the Exercise Price as specified in the Warrant Agreement (or through “cashless
exercise” if permitted by the Warrant Agreement) at the principal corporate trust office of the Warrant Agent. In the event that upon any
exercise of Warrants evidenced hereby the number of Warrants exercised shall be less than the total number of Warrants evidenced hereby,
there shall be issued to the holder hereof or his, her or its assignee, a new Warrant Certificate evidencing the number of Warrants not
exercised. No adjustment shall be made for any dividends on any of the Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant.

Notwithstanding anything else in this Warrant Certificate or the Warrant Agreement, no Warrant may be exercised unless at the time of
exercise (i) a registration statement covering the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon exercise is effective under the Securities Act and
(ii) a prospectus thereunder relating to the shares of Common Stock is current, except through “cashless exercise” if permitted by the
Warrant Agreement.

The Warrant Agreement provides that upon the occurrence of certain events the number of the Warrants set forth on the face hereof
may, subject to certain conditions, be adjusted. If, upon exercise of a Warrant, the holder thereof would be entitled to receive a fractional
interest in a share of Common Stock, the Company shall, upon exercise, round up to the nearest whole number of shares of Common Stock
to be issued to the holder of the Warrant.

Warrant Certificates, when surrendered at the principal corporate trust office of the Warrant Agent by the Registered Holder thereof in
person or by legal representative or attorney duly authorized in writing, may be exchanged, in the manner and subject to the limitations
provided in the Warrant Agreement, but without payment of any service charge, for another Warrant Certificate or Warrant Certificates of
like tenor evidencing in the aggregate a like number of Warrants.

Upon due presentation for registration of transfer of this Warrant Certificate at the office of the Warrant Agent a new Warrant
Certificate or Warrant Certificates of like tenor and evidencing in the aggregate a like number of Warrants shall be issued to the transferee(s)
in exchange for this Warrant Certificate, subject to the limitations provided in the Warrant Agreement, without charge except for any tax or
other governmental charge imposed in connection therewith.

The Company and the Warrant Agent may deem and treat the Registered Holder(s) thereof as the absolute owner(s) of this Warrant
Certificate (notwithstanding any notation of ownership or other writing hereon made by anyone), for the purpose of any exercise hereof, of
any distribution to the holder(s) hereof, and for all other purposes, and neither the Company nor the Warrant Agent shall be affected by any
notice to the contrary. Neither the Warrants nor this Warrant Certificate entitles any holder hereof to any rights of a stockholder of the
Company.
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Election to Purchase

(To Be Executed Upon Exercise of Warrant)

The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise the right, represented by this Warrant Certificate, to receive __________ shares of
Common Stock and herewith tenders payment for such shares to the order of Global Eagle Acquisition Corp. (the “Company”) in the
amount of $ __________ in accordance with the terms hereof. The undersigned requests that a certificate for such shares be registered in the
name of __________ , whose address is __________ and that such shares be delivered to __________ whose address is _________. If said
number of shares is less than all of the shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder, the undersigned requests that a new Warrant
Certificate representing the remaining balance of such shares be registered in the name of __________, whose address is
________________, and that such Warrant Certificate be delivered to __________, whose address is _______________.

In the event that the Warrant has been called for redemption by the Company pursuant to Section 6 of the Warrant Agreement and the
Company has required cashless exercise pursuant to Section 6.3 of the Warrant Agreement, the number of shares that this Warrant is
exercisable for shall be determined in accordance with subsection 3.3.1(b) and Section 6.3 of the Warrant Agreement.

In the event that the Warrant is a Sponsor Warrant that is to be exercised on a “cashless” basis pursuant to subsections 3.3.1(c) of the
Warrant Agreement, the number of shares that this Warrant is exercisable for shall be determined in accordance with subsection 3.3.1(c) of
the Warrant Agreement.

In the event that the Warrant is to be exercised on a “cashless” basis pursuant to Section 7.4 of the Warrant Agreement, the number of
shares that this Warrant is exercisable for shall be determined in accordance with Section 7.4 of the Warrant Agreement.

In the event that the Warrant (as such term is defined in the Warrant Agreement) may be exercised, to the extent allowed by the Warrant
Agreement, through cashless exercise (i) the number of shares that this Warrant is exercisable for would be determined in accordance with
the relevant section of the Warrant Agreement which allows for such cashless exercise and (ii) the holder hereof shall complete the
following: The undersigned hereby irrevocably elects to exercise the right, represented by this Warrant Certificate, through the cashless
exercise provisions of Section ___ of the Warrant Agreement, to receive shares of Common Stock. If said number of shares is less than all of
the shares of Common Stock purchasable hereunder (after giving effect to the cashless exercise), the undersigned requests that a new
Warrant Certificate representing the remaining balance of such shares be registered in the name of  _____________, whose address is
_____________ , and that such Warrant Certificate be delivered to _____________ , whose address is _______________.

Date: ____________, 20__    
  (Signature)  
    
    
    
  (Address)  
    
  (Tax Identification Number)  

Signature Guaranteed:
____________
THE SIGNATURE(S) SHOULD BE GUARANTEED BY AN ELIGIBLE GUARANTOR INSTITUTION (BANKS, STOCKBROKERS,
SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATIONS AND CREDIT UNIONS WITH MEMBERSHIP IN AN APPROVED SIGNATURE
GUARANTEE MEDALLION PROGRAM, PURSUANT TO S.E.C. RULE 17Ad-15).
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EXHIBIT B

LEGEND

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND ANY
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. IN ADDITION,
SUBJECT TO ANY ADDITIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TRANSFER DESCRIBED IN THE SECURITIES ESCROW AGREEMENT BY
AND AMONG GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP. (THE “COMPANY”), GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION LLC AND THE
OTHER PARTIES THERETO, THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY NOT BE SOLD OR
TRANSFERRED PRIOR TO THE DATE THAT IS THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER THE DATE UPON WHICH THE COMPANY
COMPLETES ITS INITIAL BUSINESS COMBINATION (AS DEFINED IN SECTION 3 OF THE WARRANT AGREEMENT
REFERRED TO HEREIN) EXCEPT TO A PERMITTED TRANSFEREE (AS DEFINED IN SECTION 2 OF THE WARRANT
AGREEMENT) WHO AGREES IN WRITING WITH THE COMPANY TO BE SUBJECT TO SUCH TRANSFER PROVISIONS.

SECURITIES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE AND SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OF THE COMPANY ISSUED UPON
EXERCISE OF SUCH SECURITIES SHALL BE ENTITLED TO REGISTRATION RIGHTS UNDER A REGISTRATION RIGHTS
AGREEMENT TO BE EXECUTED BY THE COMPANY.

No. ____________ __________________Warrants
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McDermott
Will & Emery
Boston  Brussels  Chicago  Düsseldorf  London  Los Angeles  Miami  Munich
NewYork  Orange County  Rome  Silicon Valley  Washington, D.C.
Strategic alliance with MWE China Law Offices (Shanghai)
 
 
 
 
April 5, 2011
 
Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
10900 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 1500
Los Angeles, California 90024
 
Re: Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
   Registration Statement on Form S-1
   (File Number 333-172267)
 
Ladies and Gentlemen:
 
We have acted as counsel to Global Eagle Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), in connection with the preparation and
filing by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission of a registration statement on Form S-1, as amended (File Number 333-
172267) (the “Registration Statement”), under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”). The Registration Statement relates to an
underwritten public offering by the Company of up to 20,125,000 Units of the Company (the “Units”) (including up to 2,625,000 Units
subject to the Underwriters’ (as defined below) over-allotment option), each Unit consisting of:
 
(i) one share of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock” and the shares of Common Stock

underlying the Units, the “Shares”), for an aggregate of up to 20,125,000 Shares (including up to 2,625,000 Shares included in the
Units subject to the Underwriters’ over-allotment option), and

 
(ii) one warrant (each, a “Warrant”) to purchase one share of Common Stock, for an aggregate of up to 20,125,000 Warrants (including

up to 2,625,000 Warrants included in the Units subject to the Underwriters’ over-allotment option) to be issued under a Warrant
Agreement (the “Warrant Agreement”) to be entered into by the Company and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC,
as Warrant Agent,

 
pursuant to the terms of an underwriting agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) to be executed by the Company and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., as representative of the underwriters named therein (the “Underwriters”). This opinion is being furnished in accordance with the
requirements of Item 601(b)(5) of Regulation S-K under the Act.
 
 

 



 

Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
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Page 2
 
We have examined originals or certified copies of such corporate records of the Company and other certificates and documents of officials of
the Company, public officials, and others as we have deemed appropriate for purposes of this letter. We have assumed the genuineness of all
signatures, the legal capacity of all natural persons, the authenticity of all documents submitted to us as originals, and the conformity to
authentic original documents of all copies submitted to us as conformed, certified, or reproduced copies. We have also assumed that upon sale
and delivery of the Units, the Shares and the Warrants, the certificates representing such Units, Shares and Warrants will conform to the
specimens thereof filed as exhibits to the Registration Statement and will have been duly countersigned by the transfer agent and duly
registered by the registrar or, if uncertificated, valid book-entry notations for the issuance of the Units, the Shares and the Warrants in
uncertificated form will have been duly made in the register of the Company. In addition, in providing the opinions herein, we have relied,
with respect to matters related to the Company’s existence, upon the certificates referenced above.
 
Based upon the foregoing, and subject to the assumptions, exceptions, qualifications, and limitations stated herein, we are of the opinion that:
 
1. When the Underwriting Agreement and the Warrant Agreement have been duly executed and delivered and the Units, the Shares

and the Warrants have been issued and delivered in accordance with the Underwriting Agreement against payment in full of the
consideration payable therefor as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company or a duly authorized committee thereof and
as contemplated by the Underwriting Agreement, the Units and the Shares and Warrants included in the Units will be duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

 
2. When the Warrant Agreement and the Underwriting Agreement have been duly executed and delivered by the respective parties

thereto and the Warrants have been duly executed by the Company and duly countersigned by the Warrant Agent in accordance
with the terms of the Warrant Agreement and delivered to and paid for by the Underwriters pursuant to the terms of the
Underwriting Agreement, the Warrants will be valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against the Company in
accordance with their terms.

 
The opinions and other matters in this letter are qualified in their entirety and subject to the following:
 
A. We express no opinion as to the laws of any jurisdiction other than (i) the laws of the State of New York and (ii) the General

Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. As used herein, the term “General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware” includes
the statutory provisions contained therein and all applicable provisions of the Delaware Constitution and reported judicial decisions
interpreting these laws.
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B. The matters expressed in this letter are subject to and qualified and limited by (i) applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent

transfer and conveyance, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally; and (ii)
general principles of equity, including without limitation, concepts of materiality, reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing and
the possible unavailability of specific performance or injunctive relief (regardless of whether considered in a proceeding in equity or
at law).

 
C. This opinion letter is limited to the matters expressly stated herein and no opinion is to be inferred or implied beyond the opinions

expressly set forth herein. We undertake no, and hereby disclaim any, obligation to make any inquiry after the effective date of the
Registration Statement or to advise you of any changes in any matter set forth herein, whether based on a change in the law, a
change in any fact relating to the Company or any other person or any other circumstance.

 
We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement and to the use of our name in the Prospectus
forming a part of the Registration Statement under the caption “Legal Matters”. In giving this consent, we do not thereby admit that we are
within the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Act and the rules and regulations thereunder.
 
Very truly yours,
 

/s/ McDermott Will & Emery LLP

 
 

 
 



Exhibit 10.2(a)

                       , 2011

Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
10900 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 1500
Los Angeles, California 90024

Re:   Initial Public Offering

Gentlemen:

This letter (“Letter Agreement”) is being delivered to you in accordance with the Underwriting Agreement (the “Underwriting
Agreement”) entered into by and between Global Eagle Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., as representative of the several underwriters (the “Underwriters”), relating to an underwritten initial public offering (the “ Public
Offering”), of 17,500,000 of the Company’s units (the “Units”), each comprised of one share of the Company’s common stock, par value
$0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”), and one warrant exercisable for one share of the Common Stock (each, a “Warrant”). The Units
sold in the Public Offering shall be quoted and traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-
1 and prospectus (the “Prospectus”) filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”). Certain
capitalized terms used herein are defined in paragraph 10 hereof.

In order to induce the Company and the Underwriters to enter into the Underwriting Agreement and to proceed with the Public Offering
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Global Eagle Acquisition LLC
(the “Sponsor”) and each of the members of Global Eagle Acquisition LLC (each, a “Member” and collectively, the “Members”) hereby
agrees with the Company as follows:

1. The Sponsor agrees that if the Company seeks stockholder approval of a proposed Business Combination, then in connection with such
proposed Business Combination, it (i) shall vote all Founder Shares in accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the Public
Stockholders and (ii) shall vote any shares acquired by it in the Public Offering or the secondary public market in favor of such proposed
Business Combination.

2. The Sponsor and Members hereby agree that in the event that the Company fails to consummate a Business Combination (as defined in
the Underwriting Agreement) within 21 months from the closing of the Public Offering or 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering
if a letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business Combination is executed before the 21-month period ends, the
Sponsor and each Member shall take all reasonable steps to cause the Company to (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding
up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible, redeem 100% of the Common Stock sold as part of the Units in the Offering, at a per-share price,
payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes
payable (less up to $100,000 of such net interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which
redemption will completely extinguish Public Stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation
distributions, if any), subject to applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the Trust
Account which is received after the redemption shall be distributed to the former Public Stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably
possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of the Company’s remaining stockholders and the Company’s board of directors,
dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to the Company’s obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and other
requirements of applicable law.

Each of the Members and the Sponsor acknowledges that they have no right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in
the Trust Account or any other asset of the Company as a result of any liquidation of the Company with respect to the Founder Shares. The
Sponsor and each of the Members hereby further waive, with respect to any shares of the Common Stock held by it, any redemption rights it
may have in connection with the consummation of a Business Combination, including, without limitation, any such rights available in the
context of a stockholder vote to approve such Business Combination or in the context of a tender offer made by the Company to purchase
shares of the Common Stock (although the Sponsor and the Members shall be entitled to redemption and liquidation rights with respect to any
shares of the Common Stock (other than the Founder Shares) they hold if the Company fails to consummate a Business Combination within
21 months from the date of the closing of the Public Offering or 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering if a letter of intent or
definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business Combination is executed before the 21-month period ends).
  
 

 



 
 

3. During the period commencing on the effective date of the Underwriting Agreement and ending 180 days after such date, the Sponsor
and the Members shall not (i) sell, offer to sell, contract or agree to sell, hypothecate, pledge, grant any option to purchase or otherwise
dispose of or agree to dispose of, directly or indirectly, or establish or increase a put equivalent position or liquidate or decrease a call
equivalent position within the meaning of Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the
Commission promulgated thereunder, with respect to any Units, shares of Common Stock, Warrants or any securities convertible into, or
exercisable, or exchangeable for, shares of Common Stock owned by him, her or it, (ii) enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers
to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of any Units, shares of Common Stock, Warrants or any
securities convertible into, or exercisable, or exchangeable for, shares of Common Stock owned by him, her or it, whether any such
transaction is to be settled by delivery of such securities, in cash or otherwise, or (iii) publicly announce any intention to effect any transaction
specified in clause (i) or (ii).

4. In the event of the liquidation of the Trust Account, Harry E. Sloan and Jeff Sagansky (the “ Indemnitors”) jointly and severally agree
to indemnify and hold harmless the Company against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever (including, but not
limited to, any and all legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, preparing or defending against any litigation, whether
pending or threatened, or any claim whatsoever) to which the Company may become subject as a result of any claim by (i) any third party for
services rendered or products sold to the Company or (ii) a prospective target business with which the Company has entered into an
acquisition agreement (a “Target”); provided, however, that such indemnification of the Company by the Indemnitors shall apply only to the
extent necessary to ensure that such claims by a third party for services rendered (other than the Company’s independent public accountants)
or products sold to the Company or a Target do not reduce the amount of funds in the Trust Account to below $10.00 per share of the
Common Stock sold in the Public Offering (the “Offering Shares”) (or approximately $9.97 per Offering Share if the underwriters’ over-
allotment option, as described in the Prospectus, is exercised in full, or such pro rata amount in between $9.97 and $10.00 per Offering Share
that corresponds to the portion of the over-allotment option that is exercised), and provided, further, that only if such third party or Target has
not executed an agreement waiving claims against and all rights to seek access to the Trust Account whether or not such agreement is
enforceable. In the event that any such executed waiver is deemed to be unenforceable against such third party, the Indemnitors shall not be
responsible for any liability as a result of any such third party claims. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, such indemnification of the
Company by the Indemnitors shall not apply as to any claims under the Company’s obligation to indemnify the Underwriters against certain
liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Indemnitors shall have the right to defend against any such
claim with counsel of its choice reasonably satisfactory to the Company if, within 15 days following written receipt of notice of the claim to
the Indemnitors, the Indemnitors notify the Company in writing that it shall undertake such defense.

5.  To the extent that the Underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment option to purchase an additional 2,625,000 shares of the
Common Stock (as described in the Prospectus), the Sponsor agrees that it shall return to the Company for cancellation, at no cost, the
number of Founder Shares held by the Sponsor determined by multiplying 4,240,976 by a fraction, (i) the numerator of which is 2,625,000
minus the number of shares of the Common Stock purchased by the Underwriters upon the exercise of their over-allotment option, and (ii) the
denominator of which is 2,625,000. The Sponsor further agrees that to the extent that (a) the size of the Public Offering is increased or
decreased and (b) the Sponsor has either purchased or sold shares of the Common Stock or an adjustment to the number of Founder Shares has
been effected by way of a stock split, stock dividend, reverse stock split, contribution back to capital or otherwise, in each case in connection
with such increase or decrease in the size of the Public Offering, then (i) the references to 2,625,000 in the numerator and denominator of the
formula in the immediately preceding sentence shall be changed to a number equal to 15% of the number of shares included in the Units
issued in the Public Offering and (ii) the reference to 4,240,976 in the formula set forth in the immediately preceding sentence shall be
adjusted to such number of shares of the Common Stock that the Sponsor would have to return to the Company in order to hold 17.82% of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares after the Public Offering (assuming the Underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment option). In
addition, a portion of the Founder Shares in an amount equal to 3.96% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares immediately after the
Public Offering, shall be returned to the Company for cancellation, at no cost, unless the last sales price of the Company’s stock equals or
exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days
within any 30-trading day period within thirty-six (36) months following the closing of the Company’s initial Business Combination or the
Company completes a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of its stockholders having the right to
exchange their shares of common stock for consideration in cash, securities or other property which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as
adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like).
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6.      (a) In order to minimize potential conflicts of interest which may arise from multiple corporate affiliations, each Member agrees that
until the earliest of the completion of the Company’s initial Business Combination, the Company’s failure to complete an initial Business
Combination in the prescribed time frame or such time as he ceases to be an officer or director of the Company, he shall present to the
Company for its consideration, prior to presentation to any other entity, any business combination opportunity with a target business having an
enterprise value of $100,000,000 or more, subject to any fiduciary duties or contractual obligations he may have, currently or in the future, in
respect of the companies to which he currently has fiduciary duties or contractual obligations.

(b) Each Member understands that the Company may effect a Business Combination with a single target business or multiple target
businesses simultaneously and agrees that he shall not participate in the formation of, or become an officer or director of, any blank check
company until the Company has entered into a definitive agreement regarding its initial Business Combination or the Company has failed to
complete an initial Business Combination within 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering; provided, however, that nothing
contained herein shall override any Member’s fiduciary obligations to any entity with which he, she or it is currently directly or indirectly
associated or affiliated or by whom he is currently employed.

(c) Each Member hereby agrees and acknowledges that (i) each of the Underwriters and the Company would be irreparably injured in
the event of a breach by such Member of his obligations under paragraphs 6(a) and/or 6(b) herein, (ii) monetary damages may not be an
adequate remedy for such breach and (iii) the non-breaching party shall be entitled to injunctive relief, in addition to any other remedy that
such party may have in law or in equity, in the event of such breach.

7. Each Member’s biographical information furnished to the Company is true and accurate in all respects and does not omit any material
information with respect to such Member’s background. The Member ’s questionnaire furnished to the Company is true and accurate in all
respects. Each Member represents and warrants that: such Member is not subject to or a respondent in any legal action for, any injunction,
cease-and-desist order or order or stipulation to desist or refrain from any act or practice relating to the offering of securities in any
jurisdiction; such Member has never been convicted of, or pleaded guilty to, any crime (i) involving fraud, (ii) relating to any financial
transaction or handling of funds of another person, or (iii) pertaining to any dealings in any securities and such Member is not currently a
defendant in any such criminal proceeding; and neither such Member nor the Sponsor has ever been suspended or expelled from membership
in any securities or commodities exchange or association or had a securities or commodities license or registration denied, suspended or
revoked.

8. Except as disclosed in the Prospectus, neither the Sponsor, any Member, nor any affiliate of the Sponsor or any Member, nor any
director or officer of the Company, shall receive any finder’s fee, reimbursement, consulting fee, monies in respect of any repayment of a loan
or other compensation prior to, or in connection with any services rendered in order to effectuate the consummation of the Company’s initial
Business Combination (regardless of the type of transaction that it is), other than the following: repayment of a loan of up to $200,000 made
to the Company by the Sponsor, pursuant to a Promissory Note dated February 2, 2011; payment of an aggregate of $10,000 per month to
Roscomare Ltd., for office space, secretarial and administrative services, pursuant to an Administrative Support Agreement, dated February 2,
2011; payment of consulting fees payable to James A. Graf, or an entity owned or controlled by Mr. Graf, of $15,000 per month for services
prior to the closing of our initial business combination; reimbursement for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying,
investigating and consummating an initial Business Combination, so long as no proceeds of the Public Offering held in the Trust Account
may be applied to the payment of such expenses prior to the consummation of a Business Combination, except that the Company may, for
purposes of funding its working capital requirements (including paying such expenses), receive from the Trust Account up to $1,750,000 in
interest income (net of franchise and income taxes payable), in the event the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is not
exercised in full, or $2,012,500 in interest income (net of franchise and income taxes payable), if the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the
Public Offering is exercised in full (or, if the over-allotment option is not exercised in full, but is exercised in part, the amount in interest
income (net of franchise and income taxes payable) to be released shall be increased proportionally in relation to the proportion of the over-
allotment option which was exercised); and repayment of loans, if any, and on such terms as to be determined by the Company from time to
time, made by the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor or certain of the Company’s officers and directors to finance transaction costs in
connection with an intended initial Business Combination, provided, that, if the Company does not consummate an initial Business
Combination, a portion of the working capital held outside the Trust Account may be used by the Company to repay such loaned amounts so
long as no proceeds from the Trust Account are used for such repayment; provided, however, that the Company may, for purposes of funding
its working capital requirements (including repaying such loans), receive from the Trust Account up to $1,750,000 in interest income (net of
taxes payable on such interest), in the event the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is not exercised in full,
or $2,012,500 in interest income (net of taxes payable on such interest), if the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is
exercised in full (or, if the over-allotment option is not exercised in full, but is exercised in part, the amount in interest income (net of taxes
payable on such interest) to be released shall be increased proportionally in relation to the proportion of the over-allotment option which was
exercised).
  
 

3



 
 

9. The Sponsor and each Member have full right and power, without violating any agreement to which he or it is bound (including,
without limitation, any non-competition or non-solicitation agreement with any employer or former employer), to enter into this Letter
Agreement and each Member hereby consents to being named in the Prospectus as an officer and/or director of the Company.

10. As used herein, (i) “Business Combination” shall mean a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase,
reorganization or similar business combination, involving the Company and one or more businesses; (ii) “Founder Shares” shall mean the
4,417,683 shares of the Common Stock of the Company acquired by the Sponsor for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, or
approximately $0.01 per share, prior to the consummation of the Public Offering; (iii) “Sponsor Warrants  ” shall mean the Warrants to
purchase up to 7,000,000 shares of the Common Stock of the Company that are acquired by the Members for an aggregate purchase price of
$5,250,000 million, or $0.75 per Warrant in a private placement that shall occur simultaneously with the consummation of the Public
Offering; (iv) “Public Stockholders” shall mean the holders of securities issued in the Public Offering; and (v) “Trust Account” shall mean
the trust fund into which a portion of the net proceeds of the Public Offering shall be deposited.

11. This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter hereof
and supersede all prior understandings, agreements, or representations by or among the parties hereto, written or oral, to the extent they relate
in any way to the subject matter hereof or the transactions contemplated hereby. This Letter Agreement may not be changed, amended,
modified or waived (other than to correct a typographical error) as to any particular provision, except by a written instrument executed by all
parties hereto.

12. No party hereto may assign either this Letter Agreement or any of its rights, interests, or obligations hereunder without the prior
written consent of the other party. Any purported assignment in violation of this paragraph shall be void and ineffectual and shall not operate
to transfer or assign any interest or title to the purported assignee. This Letter Agreement shall be binding on the Sponsor, each of the
Members and each of their respective successors, heirs, personal representatives and assigns.

13. This Letter Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of New York,
without giving effect to conflicts of law principles that would result in the application of the substantive laws of another jurisdiction. The
parties hereto (i) all agree that any action, proceeding, claim or dispute arising out of, or relating in any way to, this Letter Agreement shall be
brought and enforced in the courts of New York City, in the State of New York, and irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction and venue, which
jurisdiction and venue shall be exclusive and (ii) waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and venue or that such courts represent an
inconvenient forum.

14. Any notice, consent or request to be given in connection with any of the terms or provisions of this Letter Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be sent by express mail or similar private courier service, by certified mail (return receipt requested), by hand delivery or
facsimile transmission.

15. This Letter Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the expiration of the applicable Escrow Period (as such term is defined in
the Escrow Agreement to be entered into upon the closing of the Public Offering among the Company, the Sponsor, American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company, LLC and the other parties thereto), or (ii) the liquidation of the Company; provided, however, that this Letter Agreement
shall earlier terminate in the event that the Public Offering is not consummated and closed by ________, provided further that paragraph 4 of
this Letter Agreement shall survive such liquidation.

[Signature page follows]
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Sincerely,
 
GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION LLC
 
By:         
 Name:
 Title:
  
By:      
 Harry E. Sloan
  
By:      
 Jeff Sagansky
  
By:      
 James A. Graf

Acknowledged and Agreed:
 
GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
 
By:        
 Name:
 Title:
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Exhibit 10.2(b)

                      , 2011

Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
10900 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 1500
Los Angeles, California 90024

Re: Initial Public Offering

Gentlemen:

This letter (“Letter Agreement”) is being delivered to you in accordance with the Underwriting Agreement (the “Underwriting
Agreement”) entered into by and between Global Eagle Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., as representative of the several underwriters (the “Underwriters”), relating to an underwritten initial public offering (the “Public
Offering”), of 17,500,000 of the Company’s units (the “Units”), each comprised of one share of the Company’s common stock, par value
$0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”), and one warrant exercisable for one share of Common Stock (each, a “Warrant”). The Units sold
in the Offering shall be quoted and traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 and
prospectus (the “Prospectus”) filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”). Certain capitalized
terms used herein are defined in paragraph 6 hereof.

In order to induce the Company and the Underwriters to enter into the Underwriting Agreement and to proceed with the Public Offering,
the Company has entered into that certain letter agreement, dated as of                , 2011, by and among Global Eagle Acquisition LLC (the
“Sponsor”) and the members of the Sponsor (the “Members”).

Therefore, in order to induce the Company and the Underwriters to enter into the Underwriting Agreement and to proceed with the Public
Offering and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the undersigned
hereby agrees with the Company as follows:

1. The undersigned hereby agrees that in the event that the Company fails to consummate a Business Combination (as defined in the
Underwriting Agreement) within 21 months from the closing of the Public Offering or 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering if a
letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business Combination is executed before the 21 month period ends, he or she
shall take all reasonable steps to cause the Company to (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as
reasonably possible, redeem 100% of the Common Stock sold as part of the Units in the Public Offering, at a per-share price, payable in cash,
equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable (less up
to $100,000 of such net interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which redemption will
completely extinguish Public Stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any),
subject to applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the Trust Account which is
received after the redemption shall be distributed to the former Public Stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following
such redemption, subject to the approval of the Company’s remaining stockholders and the Company’s board of directors, dissolve and
liquidate, subject in each case to the Company’s obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and other requirements of
applicable law.

2. (a) The undersigned agrees that if the Company seeks stockholder approval of a proposed Business Combination, then in connection
with such proposed Business Combination, he or she shall (i) vote all the Founder Shares owned by him or her in accordance with the
majority of the votes cast by the Public Stockholders and (ii) vote any shares acquired by him or her in the Public Offering or the secondary
public market in favor of such proposed Business Combination.
  
 

 



 
 

(b) To the extent that the Underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment option to purchase an additional 2,625,000 shares of Common
Stock (as described in the Prospectus), the undersigned agrees that he or she shall return to the Company for cancellation, at no cost, the
number of Founder Shares held by him or her determined by multiplying 22,088 by a fraction, (i) the numerator of which is 2,625,000 minus
the number of shares of the Common Stock purchased by the Underwriters upon the exercise of their over-allotment option, and (ii) the
denominator of which is 2,625,000. The undersigned further agrees that to the extent that (a) the size of the Public Offering is increased or
decreased and (b) the undersigned has either purchased or sold shares of the Common Stock or an adjustment to the number of Founder
Shares has been effected by way of a stock split, stock dividend, reverse stock split, contribution back to capital or otherwise, in each case in
connection with such increase or decrease in the size of the Public Offering, then (i) the references to 2,625,000 in the numerator and
denominator of the formula in the immediately preceding sentence shall be changed to a number equal to 15% of the number of shares
included in the Units issued in the Public Offering and (ii) the reference to 22,088 in the formula set forth in the immediately preceding
sentence shall be adjusted to such number of shares of the Common Stock that the undersigned would have to return to the Company in order
to hold 0.09% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares after the Public Offering (assuming the Underwriters do not exercise their over-
allotment option). In addition, a portion of the Founder Shares held by him or her in an amount equal to 0.02% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding shares immediately after the Public Offering, shall be returned to the Company for cancellation, at no cost, unless the last sales
price of the Company’s stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations,
recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period within thirty-six (36) months following the closing of
the Company’s initial Business Combination or the Company completes a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that
results in all of its stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration in cash, securities or other
property which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the
like).

(c) The undersigned acknowledges that he or she has no right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the Trust
Account or any other asset of the Company as a result of any liquidation of the Company with respect to the Founder Shares held by him or
her. The undersigned hereby further waives, with respect to any shares of the Common Stock held by him or her, any redemption rights he or
she may have in connection with the consummation of a Business Combination, including, without limitation, any such rights available in the
context of a stockholder vote to approve such Business Combination or in the context of a tender offer made by the Company to purchase
shares of the Common Stock (although the undersigned shall be entitled to redemption and liquidation rights with respect to any shares of the
Common Stock (other than the Founder Shares) he or she holds if the Company fails to consummate a Business Combination within 21
months from the date of the closing of the Public Offering or 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering if a letter of intent or
definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business Combination is executed before the 21-month period ends).

3. The undersigned’s biographical information furnished to the Company is true and accurate in all respects and does not omit any
material information with respect to the undersigned’s background. The undersigned ’s questionnaire furnished to the Company is true and
accurate in all respects. The undersigned represents and warrants that:

(a) the undersigned is not subject to or a respondent in any legal action for, any injunction, cease-and-desist order or order or stipulation to
desist or refrain from any act or practice relating to the offering of securities in any jurisdiction;

(b) the undersigned has never been convicted of, or pleaded guilty to, any crime (i) involving fraud, (ii) relating to any financial
transaction or handling of funds of another person, or (iii) pertaining to any dealings in any securities and the undersigned is not currently a
defendant in any such criminal proceeding; and

(c) the undersigned has never been suspended or expelled from membership in any securities or commodities exchange or association or
had a securities or commodities license or registration denied, suspended or revoked.

4. Except as disclosed in the Prospectus, neither the undersigned nor any affiliate of the undersigned, shall receive any finder’s fee,
reimbursement, consulting fee, monies in respect of any repayment of a loan or other compensation prior to, or in connection with any
services rendered in order to effectuate the consummation of the Company’s initial Business Combination (regardless of the type of
transaction that it is), other than the following:

(a) repayment of a loan of up to $200,000 made to the Company by the Sponsor, pursuant to a Promissory Note, dated February 2, 2011;

(b) payment of an aggregate of $10,000 per month to Roscomare Ltd., for office space, secretarial and administrative services, pursuant to
an Administrative Support Agreement, dated February 2, 2011;
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(c) payment of consulting fees payable to James A. Graf, or an entity owned or controlled by Mr. Graf, of $15,000 per month for services
prior to the closing of our initial business combination.

(d) reimbursement for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying, investigating and consummating an initial Business
Combination, so long as no proceeds of the Public Offering held in the Trust Account may be applied to the payment of such expenses prior to
the consummation of a Business Combination, except that the Company may, for purposes of funding its working capital requirements
(including paying such expenses), receive from the Trust Account up to $1,750,000 in interest income (net of franchise and income taxes
payable), in the event the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is not exercised in full, or $2,012,500 in interest income
(net of franchise and income taxes payable), if the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is exercised in full (or, if the
over-allotment option is not exercised in full, but is exercised in part, the amount in interest income (net of franchise and income taxes
payable) to be released shall be increased proportionally in relation to the proportion of the over-allotment option which was exercised); and

(e) repayment of loans, if any, and on such terms as to be determined by the Company from time to time, made by the Sponsor or an
affiliate of the Sponsor or certain of the Company’s officers and directors to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial
Business Combination, provided, that, if the Company does not consummate an initial Business Combination, a portion of the working capital
held outside the Trust Account may be used by the Company to repay such loaned amounts so long as no proceeds from the Trust Account
are used for such repayment; provided, however, that the Company may, for purposes of funding its working capital requirements (including
repaying such loans), receive from the Trust Account up to $1,750,000 in interest income (net of taxes payable on such interest), in the event
the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is not exercised in full, or $2,012,500 in interest income (net of taxes payable on
such interest), if the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is exercised in full (or, if the over-allotment option is not
exercised in full, but is exercised in part, the amount in interest income (net of taxes payable on such interest) to be released shall be increased
proportionally in relation to the proportion of the over-allotment option which was exercised).

5. The undersigned has full right and power, without violating any agreement to which he or she is bound (including, without limitation,
any non-competition or non-solicitation agreement with any employer or former employer), to enter into this Letter Agreement and to serve as
an officer of the Company or as a director on the board of directors of the Company, as applicable, and hereby consents to being named in the
Prospectus as an officer and/or as a director of the Company, as applicable.

6. As used in this Letter Agreement, (i) “Business Combination” shall mean a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock
purchase, reorganization or similar business combination, involving the Company and one or more businesses; (ii) “Founder Shares” shall
mean the 4,417,683 shares of the Common Stock of the Company acquired by the Sponsor for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, or
approximately $0.01 per share, prior to the consummation of the Public Offering; (iii) “Public Stockholders” shall mean the holders of
securities issued in the Public Offering; and (iv) “Trust Account” shall mean the trust fund into which a portion of the net proceeds of the
Public Offering will be deposited.

7. This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter hereof
and supersede all prior understandings, agreements, or representations by or among the parties hereto, written or oral, to the extent they relate
in any way to the subject matter hereof or the transactions contemplated hereby. This Letter Agreement may not be changed, amended,
modified or waived (other than to correct a typographical error) as to any particular provision, except by a written instrument executed by the
parties hereto.

8. Neither party may assign either this Letter Agreement or any of its rights, interests, or obligations hereunder without the prior written
consent of the other party. Any purported assignment in violation of this paragraph shall be void and ineffectual and shall not operate to
transfer or assign any interest or title to the purported assignee. This Letter Agreement shall be binding on the undersigned and each of his or
her heirs, personal representatives and assigns.

9. This Letter Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without
giving effect to conflicts of law principles that would result in the application of the substantive laws of another jurisdiction. The parties hereto
(i) agree that any action, proceeding, claim or dispute arising out of, or relating in any way to, this Letter Agreement shall be brought and
enforced in the courts of New York City, in the State of New York, and irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction and venue, which jurisdiction
and venue shall be exclusive and (ii) waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and venue or that such courts represent an
inconvenient forum.
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10. Any notice, consent or request to be given in connection with any of the terms or provisions of this Letter Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be sent by express mail or similar private courier service, by certified mail (return receipt requested), by hand delivery or
facsimile transmission.

11. This Letter Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the expiration of the applicable Escrow Period (as such term is defined in
the Escrow Agreement to be entered into upon the closing of the Public Offering among the Company, the Sponsor, American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company, LLC and the other parties thereto), or (ii) the liquidation of the Company; provided, however, that this Letter Agreement
shall earlier terminate in the event that the Public Offering is not consummated and closed by ___________ , 2011.

[Signature page follows]
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Sincerely,
 
By:       
  
 James M. McNamara

Acknowledged and Agreed:
 
GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
 
By:       
 Name:
 Title:
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Exhibit 10.2(c)

                      , 2011

Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
10900 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 1500
Los Angeles, California 90024

Re: Initial Public Offering

Gentlemen:

This letter (“Letter Agreement”) is being delivered to you in accordance with the Underwriting Agreement (the “Underwriting
Agreement”) entered into by and between Global Eagle Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”) and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc., as representative of the several underwriters (the “Underwriters”), relating to an underwritten initial public offering (the “Public
Offering”), of 17,500,000 of the Company’s units (the “Units”), each comprised of one share of the Company’s common stock, par value
$0.0001 per share (the “Common Stock”), and one warrant exercisable for one share of Common Stock (each, a “Warrant”). The Units sold
in the Offering shall be quoted and traded on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 and
prospectus (the “Prospectus”) filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”). Certain capitalized
terms used herein are defined in paragraph 6 hereof.

In order to induce the Company and the Underwriters to enter into the Underwriting Agreement and to proceed with the Public Offering,
the Company has entered into that certain letter agreement, dated as of                , 2011, by and among Global Eagle Acquisition LLC (the
“Sponsor”) and the members of the Sponsor (the “Members”).

Therefore, in order to induce the Company and the Underwriters to enter into the Underwriting Agreement and to proceed with the Public
Offering and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the undersigned
hereby agrees with the Company as follows:

1. The undersigned hereby agrees that in the event that the Company fails to consummate a Business Combination (as defined in the
Underwriting Agreement) within 21 months from the closing of the Public Offering or 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering if a
letter of intent or definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business Combination is executed before the 21 month period ends, he or she
shall take all reasonable steps to cause the Company to (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as
reasonably possible, redeem 100% of the Common Stock sold as part of the Units in the Public Offering, at a per-share price, payable in cash,
equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest but net of franchise and income taxes payable (less up
to $100,000 of such net interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding public shares, which redemption will
completely extinguish Public Stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any),
subject to applicable law, and subject to the requirement that any refund of income taxes that were paid from the Trust Account which is
received after the redemption shall be distributed to the former Public Stockholders, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following
such redemption, subject to the approval of the Company’s remaining stockholders and the Company’s board of directors, dissolve and
liquidate, subject in each case to the Company’s obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and other requirements of
applicable law.

2. (a) The undersigned agrees that if the Company seeks stockholder approval of a proposed Business Combination, then in connection
with such proposed Business Combination, he or she shall (i) vote all the Founder Shares owned by him or her in accordance with the
majority of the votes cast by the Public Stockholders and (ii) vote any shares acquired by him or her in the Public Offering or the secondary
public market in favor of such proposed Business Combination.
  
 

 



 
 

(b) To the extent that the Underwriters do not exercise their over-allotment option to purchase an additional 2,625,000 shares of Common
Stock (as described in the Prospectus), the undersigned agrees that he or she shall return to the Company for cancellation, at no cost, the
number of Founder Shares held by him or her determined by multiplying 22,088 by a fraction, (i) the numerator of which is 2,625,000 minus
the number of shares of the Common Stock purchased by the Underwriters upon the exercise of their over-allotment option, and (ii) the
denominator of which is 2,625,000. The undersigned further agrees that to the extent that (a) the size of the Public Offering is increased or
decreased and (b) the undersigned has either purchased or sold shares of the Common Stock or an adjustment to the number of Founder
Shares has been effected by way of a stock split, stock dividend, reverse stock split, contribution back to capital or otherwise, in each case in
connection with such increase or decrease in the size of the Public Offering, then (i) the references to 2,625,000 in the numerator and
denominator of the formula in the immediately preceding sentence shall be changed to a number equal to 15% of the number of shares
included in the Units issued in the Public Offering and (ii) the reference to 22,088 in the formula set forth in the immediately preceding
sentence shall be adjusted to such number of shares of the Common Stock that the undersigned would have to return to the Company in order
to hold 0.09% of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares after the Public Offering (assuming the Underwriters do not exercise their over-
allotment option). In addition, a portion of the Founder Shares held by him or her in an amount equal to 0.02% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding shares immediately after the Public Offering, shall be returned to the Company for cancellation, at no cost, unless the last sales
price of the Company’s stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations,
recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period within thirty-six (36) months following the closing of
the Company’s initial Business Combination or the Company completes a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that
results in all of its stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration in cash, securities or other
property which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the
like).

(c) The undersigned acknowledges that he or she has no right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the Trust
Account or any other asset of the Company as a result of any liquidation of the Company with respect to the Founder Shares held by him or
her. The undersigned hereby further waives, with respect to any shares of the Common Stock held by him or her, any redemption rights he or
she may have in connection with the consummation of a Business Combination, including, without limitation, any such rights available in the
context of a stockholder vote to approve such Business Combination or in the context of a tender offer made by the Company to purchase
shares of the Common Stock (although the undersigned shall be entitled to redemption and liquidation rights with respect to any shares of the
Common Stock (other than the Founder Shares) he or she holds if the Company fails to consummate a Business Combination within 21
months from the date of the closing of the Public Offering or 24 months from the closing of the Public Offering if a letter of intent or
definitive agreement relating to a prospective Business Combination is executed before the 21-month period ends).

3. The undersigned’s biographical information furnished to the Company is true and accurate in all respects and does not omit any
material information with respect to the undersigned’s background. The undersigned ’s questionnaire furnished to the Company is true and
accurate in all respects. The undersigned represents and warrants that:

(a) the undersigned is not subject to or a respondent in any legal action for, any injunction, cease-and-desist order or order or stipulation to
desist or refrain from any act or practice relating to the offering of securities in any jurisdiction;

(b) the undersigned has never been convicted of, or pleaded guilty to, any crime (i) involving fraud, (ii) relating to any financial
transaction or handling of funds of another person, or (iii) pertaining to any dealings in any securities and the undersigned is not currently a
defendant in any such criminal proceeding; and

(c) the undersigned has never been suspended or expelled from membership in any securities or commodities exchange or association or
had a securities or commodities license or registration denied, suspended or revoked.

4. Except as disclosed in the Prospectus, neither the undersigned nor any affiliate of the undersigned, shall receive any finder’s fee,
reimbursement, consulting fee, monies in respect of any repayment of a loan or other compensation prior to, or in connection with any
services rendered in order to effectuate the consummation of the Company’s initial Business Combination (regardless of the type of
transaction that it is), other than the following:

(a) repayment of a loan of up to $200,000 made to the Company by the Sponsor, pursuant to a Promissory Note, dated February 2, 2011;

(b) payment of an aggregate of $10,000 per month to Roscomare Ltd., for office space, secretarial and administrative services, pursuant to
an Administrative Support Agreement, dated February 2, 2011;
 
 

2



 
 

(c) payment of consulting fees payable to James A. Graf, or an entity owned or controlled by Mr. Graf, of $15,000 per month for services
prior to the closing of our initial business combination.

(d) reimbursement for any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying, investigating and consummating an initial Business
Combination, so long as no proceeds of the Public Offering held in the Trust Account may be applied to the payment of such expenses prior to
the consummation of a Business Combination, except that the Company may, for purposes of funding its working capital requirements
(including paying such expenses), receive from the Trust Account up to $1,750,000 in interest income (net of franchise and income taxes
payable), in the event the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is not exercised in full, or $2,012,500 in interest income
(net of franchise and income taxes payable), if the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is exercised in full (or, if the
over-allotment option is not exercised in full, but is exercised in part, the amount in interest income (net of franchise and income taxes
payable) to be released shall be increased proportionally in relation to the proportion of the over-allotment option which was exercised); and

(e) repayment of loans, if any, and on such terms as to be determined by the Company from time to time, made by the Sponsor or an
affiliate of the Sponsor or certain of the Company’s officers and directors to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial
Business Combination, provided, that, if the Company does not consummate an initial Business Combination, a portion of the working capital
held outside the Trust Account may be used by the Company to repay such loaned amounts so long as no proceeds from the Trust Account
are used for such repayment; provided, however, that the Company may, for purposes of funding its working capital requirements (including
repaying such loans), receive from the Trust Account up to $1,750,000 in interest income (net of taxes payable on such interest), in the event
the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is not exercised in full, or $2,012,500 in interest income (net of taxes payable on
such interest), if the underwriters’ over-allotment option in the Public Offering is exercised in full (or, if the over-allotment option is not
exercised in full, but is exercised in part, the amount in interest income (net of taxes payable on such interest) to be released shall be increased
proportionally in relation to the proportion of the over-allotment option which was exercised).

5. The undersigned has full right and power, without violating any agreement to which he or she is bound (including, without limitation,
any non-competition or non-solicitation agreement with any employer or former employer), to enter into this Letter Agreement and to serve as
an officer of the Company or as a director on the board of directors of the Company, as applicable, and hereby consents to being named in the
Prospectus as an officer and/or as a director of the Company, as applicable.

6. As used in this Letter Agreement, (i) “Business Combination” shall mean a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock
purchase, reorganization or similar business combination, involving the Company and one or more businesses; (ii) “Founder Shares” shall
mean the 4,417,683 shares of the Common Stock of the Company acquired by the Sponsor for an aggregate purchase price of $25,000, or
approximately $0.01 per share, prior to the consummation of the Public Offering; (iii) “Public Stockholders” shall mean the holders of
securities issued in the Public Offering; and (iv) “Trust Account” shall mean the trust fund into which a portion of the net proceeds of the
Public Offering will be deposited.

7. This Letter Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties hereto in respect of the subject matter hereof
and supersede all prior understandings, agreements, or representations by or among the parties hereto, written or oral, to the extent they relate
in any way to the subject matter hereof or the transactions contemplated hereby. This Letter Agreement may not be changed, amended,
modified or waived (other than to correct a typographical error) as to any particular provision, except by a written instrument executed by the
parties hereto.

8. Neither party may assign either this Letter Agreement or any of its rights, interests, or obligations hereunder without the prior written
consent of the other party. Any purported assignment in violation of this paragraph shall be void and ineffectual and shall not operate to
transfer or assign any interest or title to the purported assignee. This Letter Agreement shall be binding on the undersigned and each of his or
her heirs, personal representatives and assigns.

9. This Letter Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without
giving effect to conflicts of law principles that would result in the application of the substantive laws of another jurisdiction. The parties hereto
(i) agree that any action, proceeding, claim or dispute arising out of, or relating in any way to, this Letter Agreement shall be brought and
enforced in the courts of New York City, in the State of New York, and irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction and venue, which jurisdiction
and venue shall be exclusive and (ii) waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and venue or that such courts represent an
inconvenient forum.
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10. Any notice, consent or request to be given in connection with any of the terms or provisions of this Letter Agreement shall be in
writing and shall be sent by express mail or similar private courier service, by certified mail (return receipt requested), by hand delivery or
facsimile transmission.

11. This Letter Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the expiration of the applicable Escrow Period (as such term is defined in
the Escrow Agreement to be entered into upon the closing of the Public Offering among the Company, the Sponsor, American Stock Transfer
& Trust Company, LLC and the other parties thereto), or (ii) the liquidation of the Company; provided, however, that this Letter Agreement
shall earlier terminate in the event that the Public Offering is not consummated and closed by ___________ , 2011.

[Signature page follows]
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Sincerely,
 
By:       
  
 Dennis A. Miller

Acknowledged and Agreed:
 
GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
 
By:       
 Name:
 Title:
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Exhibit 10.9

 
SECURITIES ESCROW AGREEMENT

 
SECURITIES ESCROW AGREEMENT, dated as of                  , 2011 (the “ Agreement”) by and among Global Eagle

Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), Global Eagle Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the
“Sponsor”), James McNamara and Dennis Miller (together with the Sponsor, the “Initial Holders”), and American Stock Transfer & Trust
Company, LLC (the “Escrow Agent”).
 

WHEREAS, the Company has entered into an Underwriting Agreement, dated                , 2011 (the “ Underwriting
Agreement”), with Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (the “Representative”), acting as representative of the several underwriters (collectively,
the “Underwriters”), pursuant to which, among other matters, the Underwriters have agreed to purchase in a public offering (the “IPO”)
17,500,000 units (not including the Underwriters’ over-allotment option) (the “Units”) of the Company’s securities, each Unit consisting of
one share of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “ Common Stock”), and one warrant (a “Warrant”), each
Warrant entitling the holder to purchase one share of Common Stock, all as more fully described in the Company’s definitive Prospectus,
dated __________, 2011 (“Prospectus”), comprising part of the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-172267) under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Registration Statement”), declared effective on __________, 2011 (the “Effective Date”);
 

WHEREAS, the Initial Holders have agreed, as a condition to the Underwriters’ obligation to purchase the Units pursuant to
the Underwriting Agreement and to offer them to the public, to deposit all of their shares of Common Stock, as set forth opposite its name on
Exhibit A attached hereto, in aggregate 4,417,683 shares, which includes all shares of Common Stock outstanding prior to the Closing Date
(as defined below), consisting of (i) 4,240,976 shares (up to 553,171 of which will be forfeited if the Underwriters’ over-allotment option is
not exercised in full) (the “Founder Shares”) and (ii) 176,707 shares (up to 23,049 of which will be forfeited if the Underwriters’ over-
allotment option is not exercised in full) (the “Founder Earnout Shares” and together with the Founder Shares, the “Escrow Shares”), in
escrow with the Escrow Agent as hereinafter provided;
 

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2011, the Company and the Sponsor entered into that certain Sponsor Warrants Purchase
Agreement, pursuant to which the Sponsor has agreed to purchase an aggregate of 7,000,000 warrants (the “Private Warrants” and, together
with the Escrow Shares, the “Escrow Securities”) in a private placement transaction to occur simultaneously on the date of the closing of the
IPO (the “Closing Date”);
 

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has agreed as a condition of the sale of the Private Warrants to deposit all of its Private Warrants,
as set forth opposite its name on Exhibit A attached hereto, in escrow with the Escrow Agent as hereinafter provided; and
 

WHEREAS, the Company and the Initial Holders desire that the Escrow Agent accept the Escrow Securities, in escrow, to
be held and disbursed as hereinafter provided.
 
 

 



 
 

IT IS AGREED:
 

1 .           Appointment of Escrow Agent.  The Company and the Initial Holders hereby appoint the Escrow Agent to act in
accordance with and subject to the terms of this Agreement, and the Escrow Agent hereby accepts such appointment and agrees to act in
accordance with and subject to such terms.
 

2 .           Deposit of Escrow Securities.  On or before the Closing Date, the Initial Holders shall deliver to the Escrow Agent
certificates representing their respective Escrow Securities, in proper transfer order with Medallion guaranteed stock powers, to be held and
disbursed subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The Initial Holders acknowledge and agree that the certificates representing
the Escrow Securities will bear a legend to reflect the deposit of such Escrow Securities under this Agreement.
 

3 .           Disbursement of the Escrow Securities. The Escrow Agent shall hold each of the Escrow Shares and the Private
Warrants until the termination of their respective Escrow Periods (as defined below).  In the case of the Escrow Shares, the “Escrow Period”
shall be the period beginning on the date the certificates representing the Escrow Shares are deposited with the Escrow Agent and ending (a)
with respect to the Founder Shares, on the earlier of (x) the first anniversary of the completion of the Company’s initial business combination
(as such term is defined in the Registration Statement), (y) such time subsequent to the Company’s initial business combination as the last
sales price of the Company’s Common Stock equals or exceeds $12.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations,
recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period commencing at least 150 days after our initial business
combination, or (z) the date on which the Company completes a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction after the
Company’s initial business combination that results in all of the Company’s stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of
Common Stock for cash, securities or other property, and (b) with respect to the Founder Earnout Shares, on the earlier of (x) such time as the
last sales price of the Company’s Common Stock equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends,
reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like) for any 20 trading days within any 30-trading day period, or (y) the date on which the Company
completes a liquidation, merger, stock exchange or other similar transaction that results in all of the Company’s stockholders having the right
to exchange their shares of common stock for consideration in cash, securities or other property which equals or exceeds $13.00 per share (as
adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations and the like); provided, that in the event neither (x) nor (y) has
occurred within three years following the consummation of the Company’s initial business combination (the “Founder Earnout Deadline”),
the Founder Earnout Shares shall be forfeited.  In the case of the Private Warrants, the “Escrow Period” shall be the period beginning on the
date the certificates representing the Private Warrants are deposited with the Escrow Agent and ending on the 30th day following the date of
the consummation of the Company’s initial business combination.
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On the termination date of the applicable Escrow Period, the Escrow Agent shall, upon written instructions from the Company, disburse the
Escrow Securities to the Initial Holders; provided, however, that if the Escrow Agent is notified by the Company pursuant to Section 6.7
hereof that (i) up to an aggregate of 576,220 of the Escrow Shares have been forfeited because the Underwriters did not exercise their over-
allotment option in full or (ii) the Founder Earnout Shares have been forfeited because neither (x) nor (y) above occurred on or before the
Founder Earnout Deadline, then the Escrow Agent shall promptly destroy the certificates representing such Escrow Securities (or portion
thereof, as applicable).  In addition, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Escrow Agent shall disburse the Escrow
Securities to the Initial Holders upon being notified by the Company that the trust account into which substantially all of the proceeds of the
IPO and the sale of the Private Warrants has been deposited as described in the Prospectus (the “Trust Account”) is being liquidated because
the Company has been unable to consummate its initial business combination within the required time frame.  The Escrow Agent shall have
no further duties hereunder after the disbursement or destruction of the Escrow Securities in accordance with this Section 3.
 

4.           Rights of Initial Holders in Escrow Securities.
 

4.1           Voting Rights as a Stockholder.  Subject to the terms of the Insider Letter described in Section 4.4 hereof
and except as herein provided, the Initial Holders shall retain all of their rights as stockholders of the Company during the Escrow Period,
including, without limitation, the right to vote the Escrow Shares.
 

4 . 2           Dividends and Other Distributions in Respect of the Escrow Securities.  During the applicable Escrow
Period, all dividends payable in cash with respect to the Escrow Securities other than the Founder Earnout Shares shall be paid to the Initial
Holders, but all dividends payable in cash with respect to the Founder Earnout Shares or in stock or other non-cash property with respect to all
of the Escrow Securities (“Non-Cash Dividends”) shall be delivered to the Escrow Agent to hold in accordance with the terms hereof.  As
used herein, the term “Escrow Securities” shall be deemed to include the Non-Cash Dividends distributed thereon, if any.
 

4.3           Restrictions on Transfer.  During the applicable Escrow Period, no sale, transfer or other disposition may
be made of any or all of the Escrow Securities except (i) to the Company’s officers or directors, any affiliates or family members of any of the
Company’s officers or directors, any members of the Sponsor, or any affiliates of the Sponsor, (ii) by gift to a member of one of the members
of the Sponsor’s immediate family or to a trust, the beneficiary of which is a member of one of the members of the Sponsor’s immediate
family, an affiliate of the Sponsor or to a charitable organization; (iii) by virtue of laws of descent and distribution upon death of one of the
members of the Sponsor; (iv) pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order; (v) by virtue of the laws of the state of Delaware or the
Sponsor’s limited liability company agreement upon dissolution of the Sponsor; (vi) in the event of the Company’s liquidation prior to the
Company’s completion of our initial business combination; or (vii) in the event of the Company’s completion of a liquidation, merger, stock
exchange or other similar transaction which results in all of the Company’s stockholders having the right to exchange their shares of Common
Stock for cash, securities or other property subsequent to the Company’s completion of the Company’s initial business combination; provided,
however, that these permitted transferees must enter into a written agreement agreeing to be bound by these transfer restrictions.  Even if
transferred in accordance with this Section 4.3, the Escrow Securities will remain subject to this Agreement and may be released from escrow
only in accordance with Section 3 hereof.  During the applicable Escrow Period, the Sponsor shall not pledge or grant a security interest in the
Escrow Securities or grant a security interest in its rights under this Agreement. The Escrow Shares and Private Warrants each shall bear the
respective legend provided on Exhibit B attached hereto.
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4 . 4           Insider Letters.  Each Initial Holder has executed a letter agreement with the Representative and the
Company, dated as of the Effective Date, and which is filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement (each an “Insider Letter”), which
contains certain rights and obligations of such Initial Holder with respect to the Company, including, but not limited to, certain voting
obligations in respect of the Escrow Shares.
 

5.           Concerning the Escrow Agent.
 

5.1           Good Faith Reliance.  The Escrow Agent shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by it in good
faith and in the exercise of its own best judgment, and may rely conclusively and shall be protected in acting upon any order, notice, demand,
certificate, opinion or advice of counsel (including counsel chosen by the Escrow Agent, which counsel may be company counsel), statement,
instrument, report or other paper or document (not only as to its due execution and the validity and effectiveness of its provisions, but also as
to the truth and acceptability of any information therein contained) which is believed by the Escrow Agent to be genuine and to be signed or
presented by the proper person or persons.  The Escrow Agent shall not be bound by any notice or demand, or any waiver, modification,
termination or rescission of this Agreement unless evidenced by a writing delivered to the Escrow Agent signed by the proper party or parties
and, if the duties or rights of the Escrow Agent are affected, unless it shall have given its prior written consent thereto.
 

5 . 2           Indemnification.  The Escrow Agent shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company from and
against any expenses, including reasonable counsel fees and disbursements, or loss suffered by the Escrow Agent in connection with any
action taken by it hereunder, action, suit or other proceeding involving any claim which in any way, directly or indirectly, arises out of or
relates to this Agreement, the services of the Escrow Agent hereunder, or the Escrow Securities held by it hereunder, other than expenses or
losses arising from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of the Escrow Agent.  Promptly after the receipt by the Escrow Agent of notice
of any demand or claim or the commencement of any action, suit or proceeding, the Escrow Agent shall notify the other parties hereto in
writing.  In the event of the receipt of such notice, the Escrow Agent, in its sole discretion, may commence an action in the nature of
interpleader in an appropriate court to determine ownership or disposition of the Escrow Securities or it may deposit the Escrow Securities
with the clerk of any appropriate court or it may retain the Escrow Securities pending receipt of a final, non-appealable order of a court having
jurisdiction over all of the parties hereto directing to whom and under what circumstances the Escrow Securities are to be disbursed and
delivered.  The provisions of this Section 5.2 shall survive in the event the Escrow Agent resigns or is discharged pursuant to Sections 5.5 or
5.6 below.
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5.3           Compensation.  The Escrow Agent shall be entitled to reasonable compensation from the Company for all
services rendered by it hereunder, as set forth on Exhibit C hereto.  The Escrow Agent shall also be entitled to reimbursement from the
Company for all reasonable expenses paid or incurred by it in the administration of its duties hereunder including, but not limited to, all
counsel, advisors’ and agents’ fees and disbursements and all taxes or other governmental charges.
 

5.4           Further Assurances.  From time to time on and after the date hereof, the Company and the Initial Holders
shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Escrow Agent such further documents and instruments and shall do or cause to be done such
further acts as the Escrow Agent shall reasonably request to carry out more effectively the provisions and purposes of this Agreement, to
evidence compliance herewith or to assure itself that it is protected in acting hereunder.
 

5.5           Resignation.  The Escrow Agent may resign at any time and be discharged from its duties as escrow agent
hereunder by its giving the other parties hereto written notice and such resignation shall become effective as hereinafter provided.  Such
resignation shall become effective at such time that the Escrow Agent shall turn over to a successor escrow agent appointed by the Company
and approved by the Representative, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, the Escrow Securities held
hereunder.  If no new escrow agent is so appointed within the 60 day period following the giving of such notice of resignation, the Escrow
Agent may deposit the Escrow Securities with any court it reasonably deems appropriate in the State of New York.
 

5 . 6           Discharge of Escrow Agent.  The Escrow Agent shall resign and be discharged from its duties as escrow
agent hereunder if so requested in writing at any time by the other parties hereto, jointly, provided, however, that such resignation shall
become effective only upon acceptance of appointment by a successor escrow agent as provided in Section 5.5.
 

5 . 7           Liability.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Escrow Agent shall not be relieved from
liability hereunder for its own gross negligence, fraud or willful misconduct.
 

6.           Miscellaneous.
 

6 . 1           Governing Law.  This Agreement shall for all purposes be deemed to be made under and shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York without reference to its principles of conflicts of law which would require the
application of the laws of another jurisdiction.  Each of the parties hereby agrees that any action, proceeding or claim against it arising out of
or relating in any way to this Agreement shall be brought and enforced in the courts of the State of New York or the United States District
Court for the Southern District of New York, and irrevocably submits to such personal jurisdiction, which jurisdiction shall be
exclusive.  Each of the parties hereby waives any objection to such exclusive jurisdiction and that such courts represent an inconvenient forum.
 

6 . 2           Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the Insider Letters contain the entire agreement of the parties
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and, except as expressly provided herein, may not be changed or modified except by an
instrument in writing signed by the party to be charged.  In connection with any proposed amendment, the Escrow Agent may request an
opinion of the Company’s counsel as to the validity of the proposed amendment as a condition to its execution of said amendment.
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6.3           Headings.  The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect
in any way the meaning or interpretation thereof.
 

6 . 4           Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective parties
hereto and their legal representative, successors and assigns.
 

6 . 5           Notices.  Any notice or other communication required or which may be given hereunder shall be in
writing and either be delivered personally or by private national courier service, or be mailed, certified or registered mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed given when so delivered personally or by private national courier service, or, if mailed, four
business days after the date of mailing, as follows:
 

if to the Escrow Agent, to:
 
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC
6201 15th Avenue
Brooklyn, New York 11219
Attn: Felix Orihuela
Fax No.: (718) 921-8355
 
if to the Company, to:
 
Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
10900 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 1500
Los Angeles, CA 90024
Attn: Harry E. Sloan
Fax No.: (310) 209-7225
 
and a copy, which shall not constitute notice, to:
 
McDermott Will & Emery LLP
340 Madison Avenue
New York, New York 10173
Attn: Joel L. Rubinstein, Esq.
Fax No.: (212) 547-5444
McDermott Will & Emery LLP
 
if to the Initial Holders, to the address set forth in Exhibit A hereto.
 
if the to the Underwriters, to:
 
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.
388 Greenwich Street
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New York, NY 10013
Attn: General Counsel
Fax No.: (212) 816-7912
 
with a copy, to:
 
Akin Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP
One Bryant Park
New York, New York 10036
Attn: Bruce S. Mendelsohn, Esq.
Fax No.: (212) 872-1002

 
The parties may change the persons and addresses to which the notices or other communications are to be sent by giving

written notice to any such change in the manner provided herein for giving notice.
 

6 . 6           Liquidation of Company; Forfeiture.  The Company shall give the Escrow Agent prompt written
notification of (i) the liquidation of the Trust Account, (ii) forfeiture of up to an aggregate of 576,220 Escrow Shares held by the Initial
Holders to the extent the Underwriters’ over-allotment option is not exercised in full, as further described in the Registration Statement or (iii)
forfeiture of the Founder Earnout Shares on the Founder Earnout Deadline.
 

6 . 7           Trust Account Waiver .  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Escrow Agent hereby
waives any and all right, title, interest, demand, damages, action, causes of action or claim of any kind whatsoever, known or unknown,
foreseen or unforeseen, in law or equity (a “Claim”) that it has or may have against the Company or in or to any distribution of the Trust
Account, and hereby agrees not to seek recourse, reimbursement, payment or satisfaction for any Claim against the Trust Account for any
reason whatsoever.
 

6 . 8           Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Each Initial Holder hereby acknowledges that the Underwriters, including,
without limitation, the Representative, are third-party beneficiaries of this Agreement and this Agreement cannot be modified or changed
without the prior written consent of the Representative.
 

6.9           Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts each one of which shall constitute
an original and may be delivered by facsimile transmission and together shall constitute one instrument.
 

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused the execution of this Agreement as of the date first above written.
 
 GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP.
  
 By:   
  Name:
  Title:
  
 AMERICAN STOCK TRANSFER & TRUST

COMPANY, LLC
  
 By:   
  Name:
  Title:
  
 GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION LLC
  
 By:   
  Name:
  Title:
  
   
 Name: James McNamara
  
   
 Name: Dennis Miller

Signature Page to Securities Escrow Agreement

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A
 

LIST OF INITIAL HOLDERS
 

Name  Founder Shares  Founder Earnout Shares  Warrants
       
Global Eagle Acquisition LLC
10900 Wilshire Blvd.,
Suite 1500
Los Angeles, CA 90024
Fax No.: (310) 209-7225

 4,198,566 shares (up to 547,639 of
which will be forfeited if the
Underwriters’ over-allotment option is
not exercised in full)

 179,940 shares (up to 22,818 of which
will be forfeited if the Underwriters’
over-allotment option is not exercised
in full)

 7,000,000 warrants

       
James McNamara
1095 Mariner Drive
Key Biscayne, FL 33149

 21,205 shares (up to 2,766 of which
will be forfeited if the Underwriters’
over-allotment option is not exercised
in full)

 884 shares (up to 115 of which will be
forfeited if the Underwriters’ over-
allotment option is not exercised in
full)

  

       
Dennis Miller
1338 Bella Oceana Vista
Pacific Palisades, CA 90272

  21,205 shares (up to 2,766 of which
will be forfeited if the Underwriters’
over-allotment option is not exercised
in full)

  884 shares (up to 115 of which will be
forfeited if the Underwriters’ over-
allotment option is not exercised in
full)

   

 
 



 

EXHIBIT B
 

LEGENDS
 
The following legend shall be included on the certificates representing the Founder Shares:
 
“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND, SUBJECT TO ANY ADDITIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TRANSFER
DESCRIBED IN THE SECURITIES ESCROW AGREEMENT BY AND AMONG GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP., (THE
“COMPANY”), GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION LLC AND THE OTHER PARTIES THERETO, MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD,
TRANSFERRED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED,
AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE.
 
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER
AND OTHER AGREEMENTS SET FORTH IN THE LETTER AGREEMENT DATED AS OF                , 2011 BY AND BETWEEN THE
HOLDER AND THE COMPANY.”
 
The following legend shall be included on the certificates representing the Private Warrants:
 
“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND ANY
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. IN ADDITION, SUBJECT
TO ANY ADDITIONAL LIMITATIONS ON TRANSFER DESCRIBED IN THE SECURITIES ESCROW AGREEMENT BY AND
AMONG GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION CORP. (THE “COMPANY”), GLOBAL EAGLE ACQUISITION LLC AND THE OTHER
PARTIES THERETO, THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE MAY NOT BE SOLD OR TRANSFERRED PRIOR
TO THE DATE THAT IS THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER THE DATE UPON WHICH THE COMPANY COMPLETES ITS INITIAL
BUSINESS COMBINATION (AS DEFINED IN SECTION 3 OF THE WARRANT AGREEMENT REFERRED TO HEREIN) EXCEPT TO
A PERMITTED TRANSFEREE (AS DEFINED IN SECTION 2 OF THE WARRANT AGREEMENT) WHO AGREES IN WRITING
WITH THE COMPANY TO BE SUBJECT TO SUCH TRANSFER PROVISIONS.
 
 

 



 
 
SECURITIES EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATE AND SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OF THE COMPANY ISSUED UPON
EXERCISE OF SUCH SECURITIES SHALL BE ENTITLED TO REGISTRATION RIGHTS UNDER A REGISTRATION RIGHTS
AGREEMENT TO BE EXECUTED BY THE COMPANY.”
 
 

 



 

EXHIBIT C
 

ESCROW AGENT FEES
 
$[____] annually for acting as escrow agent.
First year escrow agent fee to be paid on the Closing Date.
 

 

 
 



Exhibit 10.11
CONSULTING AGREEMENT

 
This Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”), effective as of ____________, 2011 is entered into by and between Global Eagle

Acquisition Corp. (the “Company”) and James A. Graf (the “Consultant”).
 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has experience providing financial advisory services and the Company wishes to retain the Consultant to
provide financial advisory services to the Company on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein made, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged and agreed, IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS:
 

1.           Engagement.  The Company hereby engages Consultant, and Consultant hereby agrees to serve the Company to the best of
his ability to provide financial advisory services to the Company during the Term (as defined below) as and when requested by the Company
(the “Consulting Obligations”).  Consultant shall devote his attention, skill, energy and efforts to faithfully and effectively perform his duties
hereunder.
 

2.           Term.  The Consultant’s obligation to perform the Consulting Obligations and the Company’s obligations to compensate the
Consultant hereunder shall terminate on the earlier of (i) the date which is 30 days from the date one party sends written notice to the other
party with respect to the termination of this Agreement, which a party can exercise at any time and (ii) the closing date of the Company’s
initial business combination as such term is used in the Company’s Registration Statement (No. 333-172267) on Form S-1, as amended, (the
“Term”) and upon which date this Agreement other than the provisions of Sections 5 through 11 applicable thereto shall terminate.
 

3.           Fees.  During the Term, in consideration for the Consultant’s services to be performed hereunder, the Company shall pay the
Consultant a consulting fee, monthly in arrears, at the rate of $15,000 per month for each month (or portion thereof) that the Company
engages the Consultant to perform consulting services.
 

4.           Expenses.  During the Term, the Company shall reimburse the Consultant for the Consultant’s reasonable and documented
travel expenses incurred at the request of the Company.  The Consultant shall not be entitled to any other benefits from the Company or its
affiliates.
 

5.           Covenants of the Consultant.
 

A.           Confidential Information.  “Confidential Information” means all information (whether written or oral) and materials
concerning the Company or any business or assets that the Company may target for acquisition which the Company and/or its
affiliates or their employees or representatives has furnished or may hereafter furnish to the Consultant or which the Consultant learns
in connection with the performance of his duties hereunder.  Confidential Information specifically includes, but is not limited to,
pricing, costs, other financial information, drawings, artwork, designs, formulations, processes, patent applications, research
procedures, models, prototypes, samples, specifications, test results, analyses, software, forecasts and studies.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Confidential Information does not include any information or materials which Consultant can clearly demonstrate (a) is or
becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of an unauthorized disclosure by the Consultant, (b) is or becomes
available to Consultant from a third party, other than on a confidential basis from the Company or its affiliates, which third party
represents to the Consultant that it is entitled to disclose such information, (c) was known to the Consultant prior to receipt thereof by
the Consultant from the Company or its affiliates, or (d) is approved for release by the express prior written authorization of Company
or its affiliates and then only after such approval and only for the purpose specified.

 
 

 



 
 

B.           Confidentiality and Non-Use.  Consultant shall keep or cause to be kept in strict confidence all Confidential
Information and shall not use it or disclose it to anyone except in connection with the fulfillment of the Consulting Obligations (and, in
the case of disclosure to a third party, only if the third party to whom it is disclosed agrees to keep it confidential in accordance with
this Agreement).  If the Consultant makes any copies of the Confidential Information or any abstracts or summaries thereof or
references thereto in any other document, he will keep a record in each such instance.  Upon the Company’s written request, the
Consultant will either destroy or return to the Company all Confidential Information which is in tangible form, including any copies
thereof which the Consultant may have made, and the Consultant will destroy all abstracts and summaries thereof and destroy or delete
all references thereto in his documents, and certify to the Company that he has done so.  If the Company notifies the Consultant in
writing as to any of the Confidential Information which it does not wish copied, the Consultant shall so comply and upon the
Company’s written request shall certify such compliance to the Company in writing.

 
C.           Legal Requirement to Disclose.  In the event that the Consultant or to the Consultant’s knowledge anyone to whom

the Consultant transmits the Confidential Information pursuant to this Agreement becomes legally compelled to disclose any of the
Confidential Information, the Consultant will provide the Company with prompt notice, if lawful, so that the Company may seek a
protective order or other appropriate remedy or waive compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.  If such protective order or
other remedy is not obtained, or if the Company waives compliance with the provisions of this Agreement, the Consultant will furnish
only that portion of the Confidential Information which the Consultant is advised by its counsel is legally required to be furnished.

 
D.           Conduct.  The Consultant agrees that he will not, directly or indirectly, individually or in concert with others, engage

in any conduct or make any statement calculated or likely to have the effect of undermining, disparaging or otherwise reflecting poorly
upon the Company or its affiliates or their good will, products or business opportunities, or in any manner detrimental to the Company,
its successors and assigns, and its affiliates, their shareholders, officers, directors, or employees, past, present and future.  The
foregoing shall apply (but not be limited to) oral, written or other communications with former, existing and potential employees,
officers, directors, customers and suppliers.
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E.           Remedies/Specific Performance.  In the event of a breach or a threatened breach of any of the provisions of this
Section 5, the Company and its affiliates, in addition and supplementary to other rights and remedies existing in its favor, may apply to
any court of law or equity of competent jurisdiction for specific performance and/or injunctive or other relief in order to enforce or
prevent any violations of the provisions hereof (without posting a bond or other security).

 
6.           Benefits, etc.  The Consultant shall be responsible for all personal income and other payroll taxes payable with respect to

compensation received hereunder and accepts exclusive liability for all contributions required under social security laws and unemployment
compensation laws or other payments under any laws of similar character for Consultant.  The Consultant shall not be entitled to receive any
benefits under any employee benefit plan or program of any kind maintained by the Company.
 

7.           Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Consultant and the Company with respect
to its subject matter and supersedes all prior discussions and agreements relating to its subject matter.
 

8.           Enforceability.  Any term or provision of this Agreement that is invalid or unenforceable in any situation in any jurisdiction
shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining terms and provisions hereof or the validity or enforceability of the offending
term or provision in any other situation or in any other jurisdiction.  If any provision of this Agreement shall, in whole or in part, become or be
held invalid or unenforceable, all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  The parties undertake to replace
such invalid or unenforceable provisions with such valid and enforceable provisions, which accomplish as far as possible the purpose and
intent of the parties with respect to the invalid or unenforceable provision.  The same shall apply accordingly to any situation not contemplated
under or covered by this Agreement.
 

9.           Counterparts; Assignment; Notices.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be
an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  the rights and obligations of this Agreement shall bind and
inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and assigns.  Except as expressly provided herein or therein, the rights and
obligations of this Agreement may not be assigned by the Consultant without the prior written consent of Company.  All notices, requests,
demands, claims, and other communications hereunder shall be in writing.
 

10.           Amendments and Waivers.  This Agreement may not be modified, amended, supplemented, canceled or discharged, except
by written instrument executed by the Company and the Consultant.  No failure to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power or
privilege under this Agreement shall operate as a waiver, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, power or privilege hereunder
preclude the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.  No waiver of any breach of any provision shall be deemed to be a waiver of any
preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other provision, nor shall any waiver be implied from any course of dealing between the
parties.
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11.           Governing Law and Arbitration. All issues and questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and
interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of California, without giving
effect to any choice of law or conflict of law rules or provisions (whether of the State of California or any other jurisdiction) that would cause
the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of California.  The parties agree that all disputes, legal actions, suits and
proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall, in lieu of a jury or other civil trial, be settled by final and binding arbitration
before a single arbitrator in Los Angeles, California and shall be conducted in accordance with then-current rules of the American Arbitration
Association.  This agreement to arbitrate includes all claims whether arising in tort or contract and whether arising under statute or common
law.  The obligation to arbitrate such claims shall continue forever, and the arbitrator shall have jurisdiction to determine the arbitrability of
any claim.  The arbitrator shall have the power to award any remedies, including attorneys’ fees and costs, available under applicable law.  The
arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, subtract from or modify any of the terms of this Agreement.  Judgment on any award rendered
by the arbitrator may be entered and enforced by any court having jurisdiction thereof.  The costs of the arbitration, including the arbitrator’s
fees, shall be borne equally by the parties to the arbitration, unless the arbitrator orders otherwise, and each party shall be responsible for
paying its own other costs for the arbitration, including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees, witness fees, transcript fees, or other litigation
expenses that such party would otherwise be required to bear in a court action, unless the arbitrator orders otherwise.  Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Company shall be entitled to apply to any court of law or equity of competent jurisdiction for the relief specified in Section 5(E)
hereof.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Consultant and the Company have executed this Agreement effective as of the date first written
above.
 
  Global Eagle Acquisition Corp.
    
  By:  
    
  Name:  
James A. Graf    
  Title:  
 
 

 

 



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the use in this Registration Statement on Form S-1, of our report dated February 11, 2011, relating to the financial statements
of Global Eagle Acquisition Corp. (a corporation in the development stage) and to the reference to our Firm under the caption “Experts” in the
Prospectus.

 /s/ Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.
  
Roseland, New Jersey  
April 5, 2011  
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	Our public stockholders may not be afforded an opportunity to vote on our proposed business combination, unless such vote is required by law, which means we may complete our initial business combination even though a majority of our public stockholders do not support such a combination.
	Your only opportunity to affect the investment decision regarding a potential business combination will be limited to the exercise of your right to redeem your shares from us for cash, unless we seek stockholder approval of the business combination.
	The ability of our public stockholders to redeem their shares for cash may make our financial condition unattractive to potential business combination targets, which may make it difficult for us to enter into a business combination with a target.
	The ability of a larger number of our stockholders to exercise redemption rights may not allow us to complete the most desirable business combination or optimize our capital structure.
	The requirement that we complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame may give potential target businesses leverage over us in negotiating a business combination and may decrease our ability to conduct due diligence on potential business combination targets as we approach our dissolution deadline, which could undermine our ability to complete a business combination on terms that would produce value for our stockholders.
	We may not be able to complete a business combination within the prescribed time frame, in which case we would cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up and we would redeem our public shares and liquidate.
	If we are unable to complete our initial business combination within the prescribed time frame, our public stockholders may receive less than $10.00 per share on our redemption and our warrants will expire worthless.
	In the event we seek stockholder approval of our initial business combination, a public stockholder, together with any affiliate of such stockholder or any other person with whom such stockholder is acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange Act), will be restricted from redeeming its shares with respect to more than an aggregate of 10% of the shares included in the units sold in this offering.
	If a stockholder fails to receive notice of our offer to redeem our public shares in connection with our business combination, or fails to comply with the procedures for tendering its shares, such shares may not be redeemed.
	Our purchase of common stock in the open market may support the market price of the common stock and/or warrants during the buyback period and, accordingly, the termination of the support provided by such purchases may materially adversely affect the market price of the units, common stock and/or warrants.
	If we seek stockholder approval of our business combination, we, our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors and their affiliates may elect to purchase shares from stockholders, in which case we or they may influence a vote in favor of a proposed business combination that you do not support.
	Our purchases of common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions would reduce the funds available to us after the business combination.
	Purchases of common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions by us or our sponsor, directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates may make it difficult for us to list our common stock on a national securities exchange.
	Our purchases of common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions may have negative economic effects on our remaining public stockholders.
	You will not have any rights or interests in funds from the trust account, except under certain limited circumstances. To liquidate your investment, therefore, you may be forced to sell your public shares or warrants, potentially at a loss.
	We do not intend to establish an audit committee or a compensation committee until the completion of an initial business combination. Until such time, no formal committee of independent directors will review matters related to our business, and such lack of review could negatively impact our business.
	Our securities will be initially quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board quotation system, which will limit the liquidity and price of our securities more than if our securities were quoted or listed on a national securities exchange and result in our stockholders not receiving the benefit of our being subject to the listing standards of a national securities exchange.
	If there are no market makers for our securities on the OTCBB, our securities could be removed from quotation on the OTCBB, and the liquidity of our securities would be further limited.
	You will not be entitled to protections normally afforded to investors of many other blank check companies.
	Because of our limited resources and the significant competition for business combination opportunities, it may be more difficult for us to complete a business combination. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may receive only approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.
	If the net proceeds of this offering not being held in the trust account, together with the up to $1,750,000 (subject to adjustment as described herein) of interest in the trust account (net of franchise and income taxes payable) which may be released to us for working capital purposes, are insufficient to allow us to operate for at least the next 24 months, we may be unable to complete our initial business combination.
	The current low interest rate environment could limit the amount available to fund our search for a target business or businesses and complete our initial business combination since we will depend on interest earned on the trust account to fund our search, to pay our franchise and income taxes and to complete our initial business combination.
	Subsequent to our completion of our initial business combination, we may be required to subsequently take write-downs or write-offs, restructuring and impairment or other charges that could have a significant negative effect on our financial condition, results of operations and our stock price, which could cause you to lose some or all of your investment.
	If the size of the offering is increased, the portion of the trust account attributable to the proceeds of the sale of sponsor warrants will be allocated pro rata among a greater number of public shares, which will reduce the per-share amount payable to our public stockholders upon our liquidation or our public stockholders’ exercise of redemption rights.
	If third parties bring claims against us, the proceeds held in the trust account could be reduced and the per-share redemption amount received by stockholders may be less than approximately $10.00 per share.
	Our directors may decide not to enforce the indemnification obligations of Messrs. Sloan and Sagansky, resulting in a reduction in the amount of funds in the trust account available for distribution to our public stockholders.
	If, after we distribute the proceeds in the trust account to our public stockholders, we file a bankruptcy petition or an involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, a bankruptcy court may seek to recover such proceeds, and the members of our board of directors may be viewed as having breached their fiduciary duties to our creditors, thereby exposing the members of our board of directors and us to claims of punitive damages.
	If, before distributing the proceeds in the trust account to our public stockholders, we file a bankruptcy petition or an involuntary bankruptcy petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, the claims of creditors in such proceeding may have priority over the claims of our stockholders and the per-share amount that would otherwise be received by our stockholders in connection with our liquidation may be reduced.
	If we are deemed to be an investment company under the Investment Company Act, we may be required to institute burdensome compliance requirements and our activities may be restricted, which may make it difficult for us to complete a business combination.
	Changes in laws or regulations, or a failure to comply with any laws and regulations, may adversely affect our business, investments and results of operations.
	Our stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against us to the extent of distributions received by them upon redemption of their shares.
	We do not currently intend to hold an annual meeting of stockholders until after our completion of a business combination and you will not be entitled to any of the corporate protections provided by such a meeting.
	We are not registering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants under the Securities Act or states securities laws at this time, and such registration may not be in place when an investor desires to exercise warrants, thus precluding such investor from being able to exercise its warrants and causing such warrants to expire worthless.
	The grant of registration rights to our initial stockholders and holders of our sponsor warrants may make it more difficult to complete our initial business combination, and the future exercise of such rights may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
	Because we have not selected a particular segment of the media or entertainment industries or any specific target businesses with which to pursue a business combination, you will be unable to ascertain the merits or risks of any particular target business’s operations.
	None of our officers or directors has ever been associated with a blank check company, which could adversely affect our ability to consummate a business combination.
	We may seek investment opportunities in industries outside of the media or entertainment industries (which industries may or may not be outside of our management’s area of expertise).
	Although we identified general guidelines that we believe are important in evaluating prospective target businesses, we may enter into a business combination with a target does not meet such guidelines, and as a result, the target business with which we enter into our initial business combination may not have attributes entirely consistent with our general guidelines.
	Unlike many blank check companies, we are not required to acquire a target with a valuation equal to a certain percentage of the amount held in the trust account. Management’s unrestricted flexibility in identifying and selecting a prospective acquisition candidate, along with our management’s financial interest in completing an initial business combination, may lead management to enter into an acquisition agreement that is not in the best interest of our stockholders.
	We are not required to obtain an opinion from an independent investment banking firm, and consequently, you may have no assurance from an independent source that the price we are paying for the business is fair to our company from a financial point of view.
	We may issue additional common or preferred shares to complete our initial business combination or under an employee incentive plan after completion of our initial business combination, which would dilute the interest of our stockholders and likely present other risks.
	Resources could be wasted in researching acquisitions that are not completed, which could materially adversely affect subsequent attempts to locate and acquire or merge with another business. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.
	We are dependent upon our officers and directors and their loss could adversely affect our ability to operate.
	Our ability to successfully effect our initial business combination and to be successful thereafter will be totally dependent upon the efforts of our key personnel, some of whom may join us following our initial business combination. The loss of key personnel could negatively impact the operations and profitability of our post-combination business.
	Our key personnel may negotiate employment or consulting agreements with a target business in connection with a particular business combination. These agreements may provide for them to receive compensation following a business combination and as a result, may cause them to have conflicts of interest in determining whether a particular business combination is the most advantageous.
	We may have a limited ability to assess the management of a prospective target business and, as a result, may effect a business combination with a target business whose management may not have the skills, qualifications or abilities to manage a public company.
	The officers and directors of an acquisition candidate may resign upon completion of a business combination. The loss of an acquisition target’s key personnel could negatively impact the operations and profitability of our post-combination business.
	Our officers and directors will allocate their time to other businesses thereby causing conflicts of interest in their determination as to how much time to devote to our affairs. This conflict of interest could have a negative impact on our ability to complete a business combination.
	Certain of our officers and directors are now, and all of them may in the future become, affiliated with entities engaged in business activities similar to those intended to be conducted by us and, accordingly, may have conflicts of interest in allocating their time and determining to which entity a particular business opportunity should be presented.
	Our officers, directors, security holders and their respective affiliates may have competitive pecuniary interests that conflict with our interests.
	We may engage in a business combination with one or more target businesses that have relationships with entities that may be affiliated with our executive officers, directors or existing holders which may raise potential conflicts of interest.
	Since our sponsor will lose its entire investment in us if a business combination is not completed and our officers and directors have significant financial interests in us, a conflict of interest may arise in determining whether a particular acquisition target is appropriate for our initial business combination.
	We may issue notes or other debt securities, or otherwise incur substantial debt, to complete a business combination, which may adversely affect our leverage and financial condition and thus negatively impact the value of our stockholders’ investment in us.
	We may only be able to complete one business combination with the proceeds of this offering, which will cause us to be solely dependent on a single business which may have a limited number of products or services. This lack of diversification may negatively impact our operations and profitability.
	We may attempt to simultaneously complete business combinations with multiple prospective targets, which may hinder our ability to complete an initial business combination and give rise to increased costs and risks that could negatively impact our operations and profitability.
	We may attempt to complete our initial business combination with a private company about which little information is available, which may result in a business combination with a company that is not as profitable as we suspected, if at all.
	We may not be able to maintain control of a target business after our initial business combination. We cannot provide assurance that, upon loss of control of a target business, new management will possess the skills, qualifications or abilities necessary to profitably operate such business.
	Unlike many blank check companies, we do not have a specified maximum redemption threshold. The absence of such a redemption threshold will make it easier for us to complete a business combination with which a substantial majority of our stockholders do not agree.
	The exercise price for the public warrants is higher than in many similar blank check company offerings in the past, and, accordingly, the warrants are more likely to expire worthless.
	In order to effectuate a business combination, blank check companies have, in the recent past, amended various provisions of their charters and modified governing instruments. We cannot assure you that we will not seek to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or governing instruments in a manner that will make it easier for us to complete a business combination that our stockholders may not support.
	The provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation may be amended with the approval of 65% of our stockholders, which is a lower amendment threshold than that of many blank check companies. It may be easier for us, therefore, to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to facilitate the completion of an initial business combination that our stockholders may not support.
	We may be unable to obtain additional financing to complete our initial business combination or to fund the operations and growth of a target business, which could compel us to restructure or abandon a particular business combination. If we are unable to complete our initial business combination, our public stockholders may only receive approximately $10.00 per share (or approximately $9.97 per public share if the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full) on our redemption, and our warrants will expire worthless.
	Our initial stockholders control a substantial interest in us and thus may exert a substantial influence on actions requiring a stockholder vote, potentially in a manner that you do not support.
	Our initial stockholders paid an aggregate of $25,000, or approximately $0.01 per founder share and, accordingly, you will experience immediate and substantial dilution from the purchase of our common stock.
	We may amend the terms of the warrants in a manner that may be adverse to holders with the approval by the holders of at least 65% of the then outstanding public warrants.
	We may redeem your unexpired warrants prior to their exercise at a time that is disadvantageous to you, thereby making your warrants worthless.
	Our warrants may have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock and make it more difficult to effectuate a business combination.
	The determination of the offering price of our units and the size of this offering is more arbitrary than the pricing of securities and size of an offering of an operating company in a particular industry. You may have less assurance, therefore, that the offering price of our units properly reflects the value of such units than you would have in a typical offering of an operating company.
	There is currently no market for our securities and a market for our securities may not develop, which would adversely affect the liquidity and price of our securities.
	Because we must furnish our stockholders with target business financial statements, we may lose the ability to complete an otherwise advantageous initial business combination with some prospective target businesses.
	If you are not an institutional investor, you may purchase our securities in this offering only if you reside within certain states in which we will apply to have the securities registered. Although resales of our securities are exempt from state registration requirements, state securities commissioners who view blank check offerings unfavorably may attempt to hinder resales in their states.
	Compliance obligations under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 may make it more difficult for us to effectuate a business combination, require substantial financial and management resources, and increase the time and costs of completing an acquisition.
	Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and Delaware law may inhibit a takeover of us, which could limit the price investors might be willing to pay in the future for our common stock and could entrench management.
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